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Vision  
“To be the Leader in Innovative Logistics 

Services and Solutions Provider 
Company for the Technology Industry        

in Asia Pacific”

Corporate Value

Missions 
“ WICE is Specialized in Providing 

Innovative Logistics Services                
and Solutions with Intelligence            

and Trustworthy.”

A I M S
Accountability Integrity Mutual 

Support
Service 

Excellence
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Company General Information

Company name :  WICE Logistics Public Company Limited
Securities Initial :  WICE

Company registration number  :  0107558000156

Type of Business : Transport and Logistics Business

Registered Capital : 325,949,750 baht, consisting of 651,899,500 ordinary shares with a par value              

  of 0.50 baht per share.

  Preferred shares (None) (as of December 31, 2022)

Issued and fully paid capital : 325,949,750 baht, consisting of 651,899,500 ordinary shares with a par value   

  of 0.50 baht per share.

  Preferred shares (None) (as of December 31, 2022)

Head Office Location : 88/8 Nonsi Road, Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yannawa District, Bangkok 10120, Thailand 

Telephone  :  0-2681-6181 

Fax :  0-2681-6173, 0-2295-2108

Website :  www.wice.co.th

Company Secretary/Investor Relations
Telephone  :  02-6816181 ext. 3501  

Email  :  secretary2@wice.co.th

Reference Person
Securities Registrar  : Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited 

  93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 

  14th Floor Ratchadaphisek Road, Din Daeng Sub-district, 

  Din Daeng District, Bangkok 10400

  Telephone 0-2009-9000

Auditors : EY Office Company Limited

  193/136-137 Lake Ratchada Building Office Complex, 33rd Floor, 

  New Ratchadapisek Road Khlong Toei District, Bangkok 10110  

  Telephone 0-2264-0777

Legal advisor : Dherakupt International Law Office Company Limited

  900 Tonson Tower, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini Sub-district, 

  Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330

  Telephone 0-2252-1588
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 Achievement Award  

 WICE has received significant awards from the 19th  

SET Awards 2022, namely the Outstanding CEO Awards and the Outstanding Company 
Performance Awards, in the category of listed companies with outstanding performance 
and market capitalization exceeding 3,000 million baht.
•  Best Company Performance Awards
•  Outstanding CEO Awards

Award announcement :  October 28, 2022 
Awarded by   : The Stock Exchange of Thailand, together with Money 

and Banking Journal

WICE has received an excellent evaluation result (Excellent 
CG Scoring) or 5 symbols of excellent for 4 consecutive years. 
The award is given to the listed companies with market value 
of more than 3,000 million baht, in the Corporate Governance 
Survey of Listed Companies (Corporate Governance Report of 
Thai Listed Companies : CGR), in 2022. 

Award announcement : October 27, 2022 
Awarded by   : Thai Institute of Directors (Thai IOD) 

and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 5



Dear Shareholders

Throughout the past year 2022, Thailand has had to overcome 

many obstacles and problems, including being recovered 

from the situations of the COVID-19 epidemic which is still 

not fully, the situations from increasing energy prices, the 

fighting between Russia and Ukraine, and the rising inflation 

around the world. As a result, the economy of many countries 

has a risk of being a recession. However, Thailand can still 

generate income from shipping goods to sell to others countries 

at a record high of 280 billion USD which increased from 2021 

to nearly 100 billion USD, according to the disclosed data 

from the Ministry of Commerce.

Although Thailand’s export trend is expanding, however, 

it grew at a decreasing rate because the world economy is 

very uncertain. There is a risk that the economy will enter 

into a recession and slowdown in the important trading partners 

with Thailand. In addition, with the fluctuation of the baht 

currency, all these factors affect Thailand’s export. 

However, positive factors still came into Thailand. Since the 

opening of China, China is Thailand’s second-largest export 

market after the United States. In addition, political situations 

in China and geopolitical conflicts have forced many foreign 

companies in China to move productions based out of the 

country. Some of them moved to Southeast Asian countries, 

especially Vietnam and Thailand. Most of the industries moving 

to Thailand are in the high-tech sectors such as automobiles 

and parts, electric cars, electronics, petrochemicals, as well as 

information technology and data centers.

The overall picture of exports tends to grow at a slowdown, 

which affects the logistics business sectors. WICE Logistics 

Public Company Limited is still committed to conducting 

business in accordance with our vision and adjusting our 

strategies to suit situations by expanding trade routes and 

Message From Chairman 

 Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon
Chairman of the Board 
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investments, building a network of alliances in strategic 

locations in Asia, and supporting expansions of the movement 

of goods and services. These also provide a sustainable basis 

for the future.

In the past, the Company has increased its competitiveness 

and expanded its partner networks by investing in subsidiaries 

that are considered the important logistics network to drive 

business growth in all trade routes. This includes a sub-branch 

in Ningbo City by WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Company 

Limited as well as the main branch and sub-branch in Kuala 

Lumpur, Johor Bahru, and Penang, by WICE Logistics 

(Malaysia) Sbn.Bhd., as well as a joint venture company - 

Euroasia Total Logistics Co.,Ltd., which operates cross-border 

services. These are to increase business opportunities for 

the Company in the international markets. With our services, 

we provide service in cross-border transport between China, 

Hong Kong, and Southeast Asia in the latest cross-border 

transport route model with the Laos-China railway connection 

for the convenience of transportation, reducing products stuck 

at customs, and connecting China’s One Belt One Road, 

which is a highlight and an important driver of China’s trade 

in the future. It is also listed on the Market for Alternative 

Investment (MAI) in 2022.

The Company is committed to operating our business 

according to its mission. It is to drive a Thai logistics company 

to become an international logistics services and solutions 

provider in Asia. The Company has connected with partners 

in many countries to build the WICE brand to be known 

internationally. We will continuously continue to expand our 

network to important commercial cities.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors of WICE Logistics 

Public Company Limited, we would like to thank you all 

stakeholders for trusting in our business operations and always 

support the Company. We are committed to operating the 

business under the principles of good governance along with 

the good corporate governance with transparency, accuracy, 

and fairness. We focus on developing our organization towards 

sustainability by paying attention to every components in 

order to create a balance between all stakeholders including 

the shareholders, the business partners, the society, 

the communities, and the environment and the employees 

to jointly in creating our performance to grow together. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank you all 

executives and all employees for their cooperation in working 

with diligence and responsibility. This is an important part in 

strengthening the Company’s operations and making the 

Company stable and grow sustainably in accordance with 

our goals.

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 7



Dear Shareholders 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited (WICE) became 

a listed company on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in July 

2015. Over the past 8 years, the Company has developed 

significant businesses and has continuously promoted the 

potential in our operations. This can be reflected in the intention 

of our management team and all employees.

In the past year in 2022, Thailand continued to ship more 

products to sell in many countries with export revenues 

increasing to 280 billion USD, representing an increase of 

5.5 percent from 2021 according to the disclosed data from 

the Ministry of Commerce. The is considered to be increasing 

at a steadily declining rate, showing the economic slowdown 

of Thailand and the trading partner countries. However, WICE 

Logistics Public Company Limited still strives to operate 

businesses in accordance with our vision and adjust strategies 

to suit situations. This is done by our expanding trade routes 

and investments, building a network of alliances in strategic 

locations in Asia, and supporting the expansion of the 

movement of goods and services. In the past, this was reflected 

in our intention and practices. As a result, the Company can 

make more profit every year.

Although the global economic outlook in 2023 is volatile and 

has experienced continuous problems since 2022, the 

Company considered that this is a challenge for us to operate 

the businesses in situations that are full of uncertainties with 

a commitment to developing our management and business 

to have potential and be prompt to deal with all problems 

arising.

For the 2023 business strategy, the Company will continue 

to focus on profitability in all 4 main business groups: sea 

freight, air freight, cross-border services, and supply chain 

solutions. We have been creating both organic growth and 

inorganic growth, one customer stop services, and have 

Message from Chief Executive Officer 

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn
Chief Executive Officer
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expanded our work in the existing customers and the new 

customers based both domestically and internationally. There 

are 9 branches: WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte.Ltd., WICE 

Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd. (Kuala Lumpur, Johor Bahru, 

and Penang Branches), and WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) 

Ltd. (Hong Kong, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, and 

Ningbo Branches). We have expanded the customers in a 

variety of industries and in the industries that have good 

trends such as electronic products, automotive parts, 

household electrical appliances, etc.

As for the cross-border services business, under the 

management of the joint venture Euroasia Total Logistics 

Co.,Ltd. (ETL), it has started to provide road-rail services by 

connecting transport routes by truck to the Laos-China Railway 

for the speed of transportation to customers. As well as to 

connect the One Belt One road from China to the Middle East 

and Europe, increasing job opportunities in the future. 

At the same time, the Company has expanded our customer 

who wants to move their production base from China to 

Southeast Asia, especially Thailand, Vietnam, and Cambodia. 

We offer a solution package, providing transportation services 

for raw materials and machinery equipment to the factories 

from upstream to downstream. We focus on strategies to 

provide customers with advice through WICE Supply Chain 

Solutions Co.,Ltd. (the subsidiary), providing complete supply 

chain services including warehousing, distribution, and 

transportation of large-sized equipment which is a good trend. 

The warehouse management work and freight have been 

increasing. 

The Company aims to be a leader in providing logistics 

services in Asia with one-stop services and providing services 

covering key strategic commercial areas according to the 

organization’s vision and to be consistent with our business 

operations to drive the Company to be a leader in Asia. The 

Company focuses on operating businesses according to 

sustainability principles along with human resource 

development. This is for having a good quality of life, continuing 

to grow in the career path, along with caring and sharing 

society surrounding environment, focusing on reducing energy 

consumptions and reducing glass emissions to zero, 

developing technology to meet the needs and the customer 

access to a variety of services.

This year will be another challenging year for all of us. I would 

like to ask all of you for giving your encouragement to our 

management team and all employees to be able to overcome 

problems, and obstacles, lead our business to progress, grow 

steadily, be a sustainable company, and conduct our business 

in compliance with the principles of good governance along 

with supervision with transparency and focus on generating 

good profits.

Finally, I would like to thank all stakeholders both the 

shareholders and the business partners, and the customers 

who trust and support the Company as always. Most 

importantly, I would like to thank the management team and 

all employees who dedicated themselves and adapted to face 

every situation until this becomes a strong culture of our 

organization in taking us forward towards the goals with 

strength and sustainability. 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 9
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1. Structure and Operations of The Company Group 

1.1 Policies and Overview of Business

Background 
 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited (“WICE”) 

stands for Worldwide Industrial Commercial Enterprise (formerly 

known as WICE Freight Services (Thailand) Company Limited) 

started the international freight services providing business in 

1993, focused on marine freight services. The main route is 

Thailand-United States with an authorized capital of 300 million 

THB as a joint venture between Thai investors, accounting for 

70%, and WICE Group which is a well-known foreign conglomerate 

in the freight forwarder business. The Company located in 

Singapore and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of 

the People’s Republic of China, accounted for 30%, later, The 

Company expanded its service to cover customs clearance 

services. 

 In 2002 and 2004, the group of Mrs. Araya Kongsoonthorn, 

the group of major shareholders of The Company bought The 

Company’s shares from Hong Kong and Singaporean partners, 

respectively, resulting in The Company’s shares to held by Thai 

people, accounting for 100%. In order to increase the performance 

in management, The Company restructured The Company Group 

in November 2013 by the method of amalgamation between 

WICE Freight Services (Thailand) Company Limited and Prompt 

Freight and Logistics Company Limited to establish a new 

company under the same name which is WICE Freight Services 

(Thailand) Company Limited with authorized capital and paid-up 

capital of 15,000,000 THB and has an office to provide services 

at Laem Chabang Port, Chonburi. 

 Additionally, in 2013, The Company increased the 

registered and paid-up capital to 180,000,000 THB and acquired 

99.99% of shares in Sun Express (Thailand) Company Limited 

(former name).

 Later, The Company converted into a “Public Company” 

and changed its name to “WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited” on April 3, 2015, with an authorized capital of 300,000,000 

THB divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value 

of 0.50 THB per share and entered listed on the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand (SET) by Initial Public Offering (IPO) on July 28, 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 11



2015, with an offering price of 2.10 THB per share, and in 2016, 

The Company has bought ordinary shares of Sun Express 

Logistics Private Limited Company (SEL) Singapore (former 

name), now changed to WICE Logistics (Singapore) Private 

Limited Company accounted for 70% by cash payment and share 

swap by issuing new shares of 51,899,500 shares and offered 

to the private placement and acquired another 30% of ordinary 

shares in 2020. Therefore, The Company owns shares 100%. 

 Later, The Company converted into a “Public Company” 

and changed its name to “WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited” on April 3, 2015, with an authorized capital of 300,000,000 

THB divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value 

of 0.50 THB per share and entered listed on the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand (SET) by Initial Public Offering (IPO) on July 28, 

2015, with an offering price of 2.10 THB per share, and in 2016, 

The Company has bought ordinary shares of Sun Express Logistics 

Private Limited Company (SEL) Singapore (former name), now 

changed to WICE Logistics (Singapore) Private Limited Company 

accounted for 70% by cash payment and share swap by issuing 

new shares of 51,899,500 shares and offered to the private 

placement and acquired another 30% of ordinary shares in 2020. 

Therefore, The Company owns shares 100%. 

 Subsequently, on January 4, 2018, The Company 

entered into an agreement to purchase 80,000 ordinary shares 

of WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited Company accounting 

for 80% of the total ordinary shares, and on September 14, 2018, 

The Company made a joint venture company, Euroasia Total 

Logistics Company Limited or “ETL” to operate Cross-Border 

Services between China, Hong Kong, and Southeast Asia with 

a Malaysia partner in which The Company holds 40% shares 

and has financial oversight, subsequently, the capital was 

increased by 11%, resulting in The Company’s shareholding in 

the joint venture of 51% and has affiliates in 3 countries such as 

Malaysia, Vietnam, and China. Currently, it converted to a public 

company as Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited on May 

25, 2022, in order to prepare to be listed on the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand in 2023. 

 Currently, WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 

operates as an international logistics service and solution provider, 

providing import and export services by sea and air, customs 

clearance services, domestic transportation services, cross-

border services, and warehousing, as well as affiliated companies 

in many leading countries to support the needs of customers 

continuously and quickly. The Company has expertise and 

experience for more than 30 years and has an authorized capital 

of 325,949,750 THB which consists of 651,899,500 ordinary 

shares with a par value of 0.50 THB per share.

1.1.1 Vision, Mission, Targets, and Business 
Operational Strategy of The Company

 The Company is determined to be a corporation that 

creates sustainable growth by doing business with ethics, 

respecting human rights, and being responsible to shareholders 

and all stakeholders, as well as being responsible to society, the 

community, and the environment. Moreover, The Company wants 

to raise the level of leadership in logistics services to international 

standards, innovate, and implement technology in all areas under 

the vision of being a “Leader in Logistics Services Providing 

Innovative Solutions for Customers in the Technology Industry 

in Asia Pacific”. With more than 30 years of experience in 

international logistics services, The Company is specialized and 

is able to provide a variety of services and meet the needs of 

customers, which is part of The Company’s mission.

Operational Targets 

The Company has set targets for the business in the next 3-5 

years as follows:

1. To be a leading company in being a comprehensive 

international logistics service provider, to expand investment, 

and build a network of logistics service providers both in 

the country and abroad, covering the Asia-Pacific region, 

will uplift the competitiveness and the organization’s potential 

to become a regional player in order to expand opportunities 

for stable and sustainable growth.

2. The Company focuses on providing logistics and supply 

chain solutions to meet the needs of various customers, 

maintain the current customer base, and support new 

customer base expansion in the growing country’s industry. 

3. The Company plans to manage and operate efficiently by 

emphasizing services with good gross margins to maintain 

gross profitability at a competitive level in the industry and 

create higher returns for shareholders.

1.1.2 Major Changes and Developments in the 
Past 3 Years 

• In 2020, WICE Logistics Public Company Limited signed a 

contract to buy ordinary shares of WICE Logistics 

(Singapore) Private Limited Company or “WICE SG” 

(formerly known as Sun Express Logistics Private Limited 
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Company or “SEL”), part 2 of 210,000 shares with a par 

value of 1 Singapore dollar per share, accounting for 30% 

of all registered and paid-up shares of WICE SG, and 

payment for the purchase of ordinary shares part 2 is in the 

amount of 5,354,375 Singapore dollars, on May 5, 2020, 

WICE acquired WICE SG with 100% of the shares. 

• In 2021, WICE Logistics Public Company Limited invests 

more in ordinary shares of Euro Asia Total Logistics 

Company Limited, a subsidiary, for a total of 126.20 million 

THB. After the investment, The Company’s shareholding 

proportion in the subsidiary will increase from 40-51%.

• In 2022, WICE Logistics Public Company Limited invests 

more in WICE Supply Chain Solution Company Limited for 

a total of 66.5 million THB, in which the mentioned company 

increased its authorized capital from 13.5 million THB to 

80 million THB (66,500 ordinary shares with a par value of 

1,000 THB per share). The Company has already paid for 

additional shares 33 25 million THB.

1.2 Nature of Business Operations 
1.2.1 Revenue Structure of The Company and Its Subsidiaries Divided by Service 

Unit: Million THB

Type of Revenue
In 2020 In 2021 In 2022

Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

Service Revenues

1. Sea Freight 655.62 16.37 3,730 48.63 3,758.13 52.6

2. Air Freight 2130.12 53.18 1,785 23.27 1,615.63 22.6

3. Supply Chain Solution 339.74 8.48 402 0.06 417.51 0.58

4. Cross-Border Service 979.49 24.45 1,927 25.12 1,534.11 21.47

Revenue within Operating Segments (109.44) - (207) - (223.07) -

Total Service Revenues 3,995.53 99.75 7,637 99.57 7,102.31 99.40

Other Revenues* 10.04 0.25 33 0.43 34.22 0.06

Total Revenue 4,005.57 100.00 7,670 100.00 7,136.53 100

Remark: 

* Other revenues such as gains from the exchange rate, interest revenue, profit and loss from the sale of the investment, etc.

1.2.2 Service Information
(1) Service Characteristics
 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its 

subsidiaries are comprehensive international logistics service 

providers both import and export via sea freight (full container 

and not-full container), air freight, customs clearance services, 

and domestic transportation by tractor-trailer, and cross-border 

service to meet the diverse needs of customers. This also includes 

door-to-door freight forwarding services, which is a service that 

arranges transportation from the doorstep of the originating 

customer’s factory to deliver to the door of the destination 

customer’s factory where the exporter is responsible for the 

transportation cost, and the ex-work type, which is a transportation 

management service where the importer is responsible for the 

transportation cost from the door of the exporter’s factory to the 

recipient’s destination.

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 13



International Logistics Flow

 The Company and its subsidiaries are international 

freight forwarders for both importing and exporting by sea freight 

and air freight covering more than 100 countries with an 

experienced team of experts in logistics systems ready to consult 

and give advice on international transportation management as 

well as planning and designing transportation routes following 

the needs of customers, for maximum efficiency taking into 

account the duration of transportation, cost of transport, type/ 

nature of products transported, convenience for customers in 

transportation management, etc. The Company and its 

subsidiaries are Non-Vessel Operation Common Carrier 

(N.V.O.C.C.) which The Company and its subsidiaries will procure 

ships or planes from transport operators such as shipping lines 

or airlines, and coordinate with oversea agents who are considered 

to be business partners of The Company in each country to carry 

out the arrangement so that the product reaches the recipient 

safely and promptly. The Company and its subsidiaries’ 

international freight management service can be divided 

as follows:

1.  Sea Freight:

 The Company is a service provider for international 

freight management that focuses on sea freight forwarding 

services, whereby The Company will be the supplier of ships 

and containers from leading and reputable shipping lines, booking 

a fleet that is suitable for the needs of each customer. The 

Company has expanded its network by joining other member 

parties such as CGLN under the WCA Family Network, as The 

Company is able to provide sea freight management services 

covering major ports in major trading zones in various countries. 

The main market is still the United States market because The 

Company has had experience and expertise in the Thai-United 

States transportation route from the beginning. The second main 

market is China, Japan, and the Philippines.

 Shipping by boat can transport products in bulk and 

costs less than transporting products by plane, which is suitable 

for non-urgent transport. The main products are electronic 

products, finished products, automotive parts, steel structures 

and building materials, canned food, etc. For shipping by boat, 

the products will be loaded into containers, which moves products 

faster and more conveniently. The containers are divided into 2 

main sizes: 20 feet, suitable for heavy loads but small volumes, 

and 40 feet, suitable for small loads but large volumes. 

 In addition, containers are also available in various 

forms, such as dry, reefer, open top, etc., to meet the needs of 

customers and suit the type of cargo being transported.
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The Company’s Ocean Freight and Its Subsidiaries’ Volume in the Year 2020-2022

Unit: TEU

Service Type
ปริิมาณตู้้�คอนเทนเนอริ์ตู้่อปี

2020 2021 2022

Export 25,831 25,561 25,851

Import 8,273 7,054 7,757

Total 34,104 32,615 33,608

Sea Freight: 

Can be divided into 2 types as follows:

• Full Container Load (FCL) is to fill the container with the 

products of only one customer without sharing containers 

with other customers. This is suitable for customers who 

transport large volumes of products. After the container is 

fully loaded, the container will not be opened until it reaches 

its destination. The Company will operate by contacting the 

shipping line, negotiating freight, reserving vessels, providing 

suitable containers for cargo, transport route design, 

delivering the products onto the ship, tracking the status of 

the products to the port of destination, handling customs 

clearance documents, as well as coordinating with foreign 

agents to deliver the products to the recipient. In this regard, 

most of the customers are importers and exporters.

• Less than Container Load (LCL) is to not fill the whole 

container. The products in the container will be owned by 

more than one customer, which means they must share 

the same container space. Most of them are customers 

who don’t have enough volume to rent whole containers to 

carry their specific products. The Company will act as a 

collection of products from customers and put them in 

containers. There will be a calculation of the area of 

placement and the consol plan sent to the receiver who 

packs the products into the container at the port. There will 

be a station for loading products into the container or 

separated from the container called the Container Freight 

Station. 

  

2.  Air Freight:

 The Company and its subsidiaries are international 

freight forwarders that focus on air freight management services. 

Air freight is a transport with high potential, suitable for international 

shipments that require speed in a limited time, and it is a transport 

that offers high flexibility and responds well to changes and times 

but has a higher cost than most ships transported by air, with 

relatively small volumes or high value and requiring extra caution. 

The Company will contact and reserve the airline according to 

the schedule and requirements that the customer wants, taking 

into account the speed of punctuality and cost savings for 

customers, which can provide air freight handling services 

covering important trading zones in various countries. The main 

markets will be those in Asia, such as Singapore, Hong Kong, 

China, etc., in which most of the products are electronic 

components. 

 Air freight management focuses on speed and expertise 

in the products, especially for electronic products, for which The 

Company can provide express delivery service within 24 hours 

from Singapore to Bangkok using a door-to-door model which 

is considered to add value to the service. Most of the products 

are electronic components that are imported from Singapore to 

be assembled in Thailand. In addition, The Company also provides 

additional services for customers who need to manage emergency 

transportation, such as hand carrier within 24 hours on the route 

Chiang Mai-Bangkok-Shanghai, etc. The subsidiary also provides 

consulting services in logistics management by joining forces 

with customers to come up with a way to manage logistics 

systems to save transportation costs for customers. In the form 

of combining products from multiple suppliers of one customer 

(Combined Cargo) and delivery at the same time to save 

transportation costs.
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Air Freight Volume in the Year 2020-2022

Unit: Ton

Service Type
Shipping Volume Per Year

2020 2021 2022

Export 14,679 10,745 6,612

Import 3,603 3,570 2,191

Total 18,282 14,315 8,803

Customs Clearance Work Volume in the Year 2020-2022

Catalogue
Annual Work Volume

2020 2021 2022

Shipment Quantity 14,389 16,990 10,111

Container Quantity 27,728 30,675 25,802

3.  Supply Chain Solution consisted of

3.1 Customs Broker and Transport: 

 The Company has the policy to provide customs 

clearance services along with domestic transportation services. 

•  Customs Broker

  International imports or exports must go through 

customs formalities before loading or disembarking products on 

ships/airplanes. The Company and its subsidiaries provide 

customs clearance services and act as agents for issuing 

products, including the preparation of documents and advice on 

tax benefits in import-export. This requires a specialist in customs 

procedures, who have knowledge and understanding of import-

export regulations. Companies that provide customs clearance 

services must have at least one customs specialist in the office 

who must go to the Customs Department for examination. 

Currently, The Company has 8 customs experts and senior 

consultants, who are the former directors of customs formalities. 

 In this regard, being an agent for issuing products is 

divided into 2 types: general standard operators and operators 

with AEO standards (Authorized Economic Operator or AEO). 

Currently, The Company is a representative of AEO standard 

products, which will be accepted internationally. To be upgraded 

to AEO, one must meet the criteria specified by the Customs 

Department, and there is a review every 3 years. In 2021, The 

Company upgraded to be an AEO exporter according to the plan 

to operate with the privileges of the AEO standard level exporters, 

such as exemption from products inspection, exemption from a 

sampling of exported products, and an AEO standardized issuer 

collateral that can be used instead of a carrier’s deposit or 

collateral. This allows faster customs clearance and product 

clearance and creates more credibility for The Company and its 

subsidiaries.

• Transport

  The Company provides domestic freight forwarding 

services to support the international freight forwarding business. 

It is a service to provide convenience to customers. The Company 

provides transportation services in the country by tractor-trailer 

trucks, dump trucks, 6-wheel trucks, 4-wheel trucks, etc., by 

providing transportation services from the port/airport to the 

destination that the customer wants, such as the customer’s 

factory or warehouse, or pick up the product from the factory or 

the warehouse to deliver to port/airport. 

 In this regard, the customers who use the aforementioned 

transportation service will also be those who use the service for 

handling international freight with The Company, because the 

mentioned service is more convenient for customers who want 

to move products from the port or airport to their destination. 

Now, The Company has a service station in Laem Chabang and 

Suvarnabhumi Airport. The Company has transport trucks, which 

can be summarized as follows:

Unit: Ton
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Number of Trucks in the Year 2020-2022
Unit: Truck 

Catalogue
Number of Transport Vehicles

2020 2021 2022

Truck Tractor 31 31 32

Truck Trailer 45 47 47

6-Wheel Truck 3 3 3

4-Wheel Truck 4 4 5

Total Number of Trucks 83 85 87

Domestic Freight Volume in the Year 2020-2022

                Unit: Container

Catalogue
Shipping Volume Per Year

2020 2021 2022

Container Quantity 28,375 28,958 22,144

Safety Standards in Trucking Transportation Services

 The Company has prioritized the safety standard of the 

transportation service coupled with the punctuality that The Company 

and its subsidiaries realize that the selection of high-performance vehicles 

coupled with the selection of qualified personnel is an important part of 

achieving the goals. It can deliver products to the specified destination 

safely without causing damage to the property of customers or The 

Company. All transportation vehicles of The Company and its subsidiaries 

meet the standards as required by law and must be inspected before 

use, which includes having to check the readiness of the driver before 

performing the duty. The Company has been certified for truck service 

quality standards by the Department of Land Transport, Ministry of 

Transport (Q-MARK) as well as has adopted a GPS system for efficient 

vehicle operations and management by installing it on the car to track 

the position of the car while working, record, and control the driving 

speed accordingly, etc.
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3.2 Warehouse Service: 

 In order to expand the full range of logistics services, 

The Company expanded its warehouse services to cover 

customer needs. Currently, The Company provides warehouse 

services in 4 types:

• The Multi-User Warehouse is a warehouse for storing 

products that are in the form of raw materials or finished 

products for storage and delivery to the factory or customers 

of customers or used to store finished goods of customers 

to wait for delivery to customers in the country or shipping 

to foreign countries. 

• The Built-to-Suit Warehouse, The Company has developed 

and managed warehouse buildings that are designed and 

constructed according to customer requirements (Built-to-

Suit Warehouse), such as the design and construction of 

a distribution center for household electrical appliances. 

fashion and clothing based on their experience and expertise 

in such industries. Customers will receive a warehouse that 

meets business needs and increases competitiveness in 

the long term.

•  The Multi-User Facility Warehouse is a warehouse-designed 

storage space that uses multiple shelf technologies and 

improves the warehouse management system to have the 

ability to serve customers with a variety of products and 

needs according to the type of business of each customer. 

Therefore, the warehouse has great flexibility in handling 

high-volume stocks, and the frequency of products coming 

in and out of the warehouse is uneven without affecting the 

service level commitment agreed upon with the customer. 

• The On-Site Warehouse Management, The Company 

provides warehouse management services in the customer’s 

own area by designing operational procedures in the 

warehouse, undertaking warehouse manpower planning, 

recruiting manpower for operations, and controlling the work 

within the customer’s warehouse in accordance with the 

Key Performance Index (KPI) agreed upon with the 

customer.

At present, The Company has warehouses for serving customers 

as follows:

• Multi-User Warehouse in Chonburi, approximately area of 

5,000 square meters.

• Multi-User Facility Warehouse at Bangna-Trad Road KM. 

18, approximately area of 10,000 square meters.

• On-Site Warehouse at Industrial Estate, Rayong Province, 

approximately area of 8,000 square meters.

• Built-to-Suit Warehouse in process

4. Cross-Border Service: CBS

 The Company jointly established Euro Asia Total Logistics 

Company Limited, or “ETL”, currently, has been registered to be 

a public company as Euro Asia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited, to operate a Cross-Border Service business with a holding 

of 51% of shares. Thailand has borders with neighboring countries 

such as Malaysia, Cambodia, Laos, and Burma, which have regular 

business dealings and products along the border. Subsequently, 

further development of transport into countries bordering such 

countries was developed, such as cross-border transport to 

Singapore via Malaysia, and cross-border transport to Vietnam via 

Laos. Multimodal transport has been developed in more connected 

border countries, such as cross-border transport to China via 

Vietnam and Laos. At present, The Company’s cross-border freight 

forwarding from Singapore to China can be arranged by picking 

up products from Singapore and transporting them through Malaysia, 

Thailand, Laos, and Vietnam before entering China. There has 

been a new mode of transport, with more channels now being 
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added via the China-Laos railway, which opened in December 2021. Currently, the service where rail transport continues to increase, 

in order to increase the channel for customers to use more transportation services. Because the border checkpoints in Vietnam and 

China are often closed because of the outbreak of COVID-19 by using the route from China via the train station at Kunming and entering 

the Lao border of Boten-Vientiane to the Thailand border in Nong Khai province.

Road-Rail Routing

Routes that The Company Provides on a Regular Basis at Present
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 The Company focuses on providing services on this 

route since it is already the customer’s main market area. In 

addition, in the past, marine transportation has encountered 

various problems both climatic conditions and the congestion of 

the container volumes causing transportation to be delayed. 

Therefore, Cross-Border Service (CBS) is another option for The 

Company’s customers. 

 Moreover, this route is the main route linking 

transportation between ASEAN-China, and transportation by 

this route will be able to connect freight by China Railways 

Express to various countries in Europe under China’s One Belt, 

One Road (OBOR) project.

 At present, The Company emphasizes Cross-Border 

Service (CBS) in the form of Full Truck Load (FTL) and Less 

than Truck Load (LTL) via two main routes:

 1. Thailand-China 

 2. Thailand-Burma

FTL Thailand-China Cross-Border Transport Service Model
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 The Company’s Cross-Border Service (CBS) in the 

form of Full Truck Load (FTL) differs from other service providers 

in the market as follows:

1. The container that the consignee customers pack at the 

(origin) factory will be the same container that the consignee 

customers receive at the destination.

2. The Company uses the LOLO system at each border 

checkpoint to lift the whole container from one car to another. 

With this method, the products will not be transloaded or 

unloaded from one container to load into another container 

at the border checkpoints in order to reduce the damage 

to the products.

3. The Company’s vehicles are equipped with an Air 

Suspension system to reduce vibration throughout the 

transportation route, which is a system that reduces damage 

to the product.

4. The Company emphasizes product safety by using the 

Smart Log system, which makes The Company’s containers 

not able to be opened by other people from outside the 

cabinet.

5. The Company has a system to monitor and manage the 

travel routes of the trucks 24 hours a day by the Command 

Center.

 It can be seen that The Company’s Cross-Border 

Service (CBS) is another service that makes the customers 

satisfied with the service.

 Currently, Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited, 

or “ETL”, has subsidiaries in many countries to support continuous 

service as follows: 

• Euroasia Transport Company Limited

• Euroasia Total Logistics (M) Private Company Limited in 

Malaysia

FTL Thailand-Burma Cross-Border Transport Service Model
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• Euroasia Integrated Logistics Services (M) Private Company 

Limited in Malaysia

• Euroasia Total Logistics (China) Company Limited in China

• Euroasia Total Logistics (Shenzhen) Company Limited 

in China

• Euroasia Total Logistics (Vietnam) Company Limited 

in Vietnam

(2) Marketing and Competition
(A) Marketing of Essential Services

The Marketing Policies in Recent Year

 Because the management of The Company and its 

subsidiaries are experienced, knowledgeable, and expertise in 

the business of handling international freight both by sea and 

air, including the provision of domestic transportation with tractor-

trailer trucks, can develop The Company to be widely accepted 

and become one of the international freight forwarders with 

standard quality and comprehensive service, both in terms of 

the variety of service types and the coverage of transportation 

routes in many countries, as well as a management system for 

international freight forwarding services certified by standards 

ISO 9001:-2015 from TUV NORD. The Company has a policy 

of maintaining good relationships with customers and business 

partners regularly. The Company has a competitive strategy to 

maintain the existing customer base as well as to increase The 

Company’s market share, as follows:

• Various Types of Services 

 The Company and its subsidiaries provide services in many 

forms by providing international transportation services in both 

the import and export markets by sea (FCL and LCL) and air to 

support the various needs of customers, which is a comprehensive 

service for booking freight at the best cost, conducting customs 

clearance at both origin and destination, sourcing warehousing 

and distribution, preparing all shipping related documents, 

procurement of trucks for pick-up and delivery of products, other 

services such as packing (in case of customer requests), providing 

product insurance, etc. Consulting on Import-Export Supervise 

and track the product’s status until the destination port, as well 

as coordinate with foreign agents to carry out the arrangement 

so that the product reaches the recipient safely and promptly. 

The aforementioned comprehensive service adds value to the 

service and is convenient for customers; it reduces costs and 

the process of communicating with many related departments 

by focusing on door-to-door service, which is to provide 

transportation management services from the factory door to 

the originating customer to deliver to the customer’s factory 

destination, and the ex-work service which is a delivery service 

that the importer is responsible for the freight from the door of 

the exporter’s factory to the recipient’s hand.  

• Quality Service

 The Company pays attention to the quality of the services 

offered to the customers to meet their needs, which must be 

fast, accurate, and reliable, starting from the study of customer 

needs and providing appropriate means of shipping and routes 

of transport. The Company shall offer at least 3 types of 

transportation as an alternative to customers, and when the 

customer has made a choice, The Company will confirm the 

service to the shipping line/airline to reserve and negotiate freight, 

and coordinate with agents abroad, be responsible for all 

documentation related to cargo handling accurately and quickly, 

as well as giving advice and solving problems for customers, 

thus gaining the trust of both domestic and international customers 

continually, to control the quality of service to customers, 

documentation accuracy is important. Moreover, to achieve 

efficiency in the management of service processes, the Company 

has developed an information technology system that increases 

the potential and reduces the duplication of work. The Company 

received a certificate for the improvement of business 

management quality according to logistics quality standards from 

the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, 

in 2013 and an audit certificate according to the logistics quality 

criteria at “good level”, Department of Business Development, 

Ministry of Commerce in 2012. In addition, the Company also 

received the Best Company Performance Awards, and 

Outstanding CEO Award from the 19th Set Award 2022 by The 

Stock Exchange of Thailand which guaranteed outstanding 

operational potential and determination to create continuous 

growth.

• Expanding Branches to Foreign Countries

 The Company’s business covers domestic and international 

services. Therefore, having overseas branches will enable the 

Company to be competitive and provide services to customers 

quickly, especially in ASEAN countries, which are markets with 

potential and continuous growth. Currently, the Company has 

branches in foreign countries which are Singapore, China, Hong 

Kong, and Malaysia. In addition, the Company plans to 

continuously expand its branches to other countries in ASEAN 

as appropriate for the business. 
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• Geography Expertise

 The Company has expertise in geography with expertise in 

the Thailand-USA sea freight route for more than 30 years, and 

is able to receive and deliver goods to all states of the United 

States in door-to-door service, both full container load (FCL) 

and less than container load (LCL). The US government law 

regulating freight handling businesses requires to be bonded with 

the FMC Regulation (Federal Maritime Commission) for 150,000 

USD to protect consumers who may be damaged by 

transportation, which is different from other markets that do not 

have such laws to support. The Company has already taken 

such action with FMC, thus reducing its competitors and being 

considered the Company’s advantage. In addition, in order to 

use the service with shipping lines that run on the Thailand-USA 

route, whether it is an exporter or a freight forwarding Company, 

there must be a service contract with the shipping line in order 

to use the service. At present, the Company has service contracts 

with approximately 7 shipping lines operating on the Thailand-US 

route and has agents in the United States to coordinate customs 

clearance when the goods arrive at the port as well as deliver 

the goods to the recipient. These oversea agents are the 

representatives that the Company has worked with for more than 

30 years. In addition, the subsidiaries also have experience and 

expertise in air transportation services in Southeast Asia and 

China.

• Availability of Expert and Skilled Personnel 

 As the freight forwarding business is a service business, 

personnel are considered an important factor. They should be 

knowledgeable, experienced, and skilled, work with accuracy 

and flexibility in service, and have a service mindset that will 

make customers who come to use the services confident and 

satisfied. The Company’s personnel planning and development 

of knowledge and abilities must be consistent with the business 

expansion by focusing on recruiting qualified personnel that 

meets the needs of the Company and attaching importance to 

personnel development by providing continuous training for 

employees. The Company has prepared an annual employee 

training plan. Each employee must attend at least 5 courses per 

year, or 48 hours per year, to provide knowledge, competence, 

and skills in own work. The Company also provides performance 

assessment to determine and consider appropriate remuneration 

to motivate personnel and create morale in their work. Employees 

of the Company and its subsidiaries have an average work 

experience of approximately 5 years. In addition, as the provision 

of international freight forwarding services requires knowledge 

and understanding of the rules and regulations applicable to 

exports or imports, the Company and its subsidiaries have 

prepared personnel with the knowledge and expertise to provide 

services to customers by having 8 employees licensed as customs 

specialists in the Company to provide advice to employees in 

various departments.

• Building Business Alliances 

 The Company’s business has grown mainly from providing 

international sea freight forwarding services with expertise in the 

Thailand-USA route for more than 30 years. Therefore, it has a 

good relationship with the shipping lines that run on that 

route. Subsequently, the Company has expanded its service 

routes to other routes, resulting in a good relationship with more 

shipping lines. Currently, the Company has procured ships from 

more than 15 shipping lines, and the business of its subsidiaries 

has grown mainly from providing international air freight services, 

resulting in a good relationship with more than 10 airlines. In 

addition, oversea agents are regarded as important business 

alliances or partners acting as representatives of the Company 

and its subsidiaries in coordinating to provide transportation 

management services in the country that each agent 

oversees. Currently, the Company has representatives in various 

countries, covering more than 100 countries around the world. In 

addition, the Company and its subsidiaries also join various other 

associations, both domestic and international, including TIFFA, 

TAFA, CGLN under the WCA Family Network, Globalia Logistics 

Network, and X2 Logistics Network.

• Cost Management Capability

 The Company has been an entrepreneur in the international 

freight forwarding business for a long time. The business has 

continued to grow, resulting in a consistent volume of transport. 

The Company will plan and reserve large volumes of ships/

aircrafts, resulting in the Company being able to negotiate prices 

with shipping lines/airlines to manage freight costs, which is the 

main cost by managing such costs to increase the competitiveness 

of the Company in offering prices to customers. This will reduce 

the cost of transporting goods to customers as well. 

 For the year 2022, the freight charges have decreased 

compared to 2021 but considered high compared to before the 

COVID-19 situation. In addition, the global freight volume has 

decreased, resulting in a decrease in the forecast of Thailand’s 

exports and imports compared to 2022. However, the Company 

still uses the service policy with key partners and increases the 
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amount of use with key customers, resulting in the Company 

being able to manage the service cost well. 

• Maintaining Current Customer Base

 Current customers are the main revenue-generating 

customer base for the Company. Therefore, the Company 

attaches great importance to maintaining such customer base 

as much as possible by focusing on building a relationship 

between the Company and such a base. Employees will be in 

constant contact with current customers, either visiting in person 

or contacting via phone to inquire about the need for services 

and offer services that can keep up with the needs because most 

of the customers are importers and exporters, which have a 

constant demand for services. The Company will try to allow the 

current customer group to increase the amount of service used 

to cover all aspects. The strategy to maintain this customer base 

also includes maintaining service quality, facilitating 

communication, and delivering products on time. The Company 

has prepared a customer satisfaction questionnaire to improve 

the quality of the service.

• Service Expansion

 The Company has the plan to increase service in the form 

of extending the service to any particular customer, such as by 

providing both import and export services, both sea and air 

services, and customs clearance and transportation services, or 

even expanding the boundary of the port. In addition, it has also 

expanded to related businesses such as warehouse services, 

which the Company sees as a business opportunity and a way 

to add value to the service. In addition, the Company has 

expanded branches to foreign countries when there is a suitable 

business opportunity, as well as the customer base to new 

markets to meet the needs of customers in different industries. The 

website of the Company and its subsidiaries has been established, 

www.wice.co.th, to make the services of the Company and its 

subsidiaries known to the general public and to allow customers 

to access them more conveniently.

Customer Characteristics and Relations 
 The Company operates in both domestic and international 

markets for the business-to-business (B2B) group consisting of 

automotive parts industry, tire industry, electrical appliances and 

office equipment industry, electronic component industry, and 

Thai food industry, as well as for the business-to-consumer 

(B2C) group consisting of customers in the home appliance 

industry and products for retail sale.

 The Company listens to customer voices to analyze their 

needs and expectations through various channels such as 

customer visits, onsite and online training seminars, and opinion 

surveys, and receives customer information through online 

channels, etc. 

 The Company also pays attention to the development of 

services and support systems to increase the speed, accuracy, 

and reliability for customers using those services continuously 

with the Company, such as the tracking system via mobile phone 

(E-POD), the inventory online inspection system, and the 

Automated System for AMS.

 The Company has a customer satisfaction and dissatisfaction 

assessment system and a customer engagement program. The 

customer satisfaction and dissatisfaction surveys are conducted 

and analyzed twice a year in order to allow the Company to 

provide prompt service or problem-solving. 

 The impact of the COVID-19 epidemic directly affects the 

implementation of normal customer relationship-building plans, 

such as customer visits and business meetings. Therefore, the 

Company has changed plans by focusing on meeting and online 

communication channels, along with setting a policy for the 

employees to regularly meet and build relationships with 

customers as well as tracking and resolving a problem in various 

aspects for customers instead of meeting directly to maintain a 

high level of customer satisfaction and continuity to use the 

Company’s services in the future.

Target Customer Group

 The target customers of the Company and its 

subsidiaries are medium to large-sized customers, considering 

the amount of service usage, the registered capital of the 

customers, and the Company’s expertise in meeting the needs 

of customers. The customers of the Company and its subsidiaries 

are scattered in various industries. The main products for which 

the Company and its subsidiaries provide international 

transportation services are electronic products and automotive 

parts. This can be divided according to the type of services 

provided to customers as follows:
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Service Type Main Product Type Main Import-Export Country

Sea Freight Service Electrical appliances and office equipment/computers, 
automotive parts, solar cells, canned food, and
construction materials

United States, Japan, China,                   
and ASEAN countries

Air Freight Service Electronic components, automotive parts China, Hong Kong, Singapore

 In addition, the Company can provide international 

transportation management services for customer group in other 

industries such as clothing, plastics, etc. The main customer 

groups of the Company and its subsidiaries can be divided 

as follows: 

(1)  The group of importers and exporters is the main customer 

group of the Company and its subsidiaries. In 2022, the 

proportion is 70% of service revenue. 

(2)  The group of international freight forwarding service 

providers (Freight /Co-Loader) is a group of customers 

operating the same business as the Company to provide 

international freight forwarding services without service 

contracts with shipping lines, or customers being a company 

that does not have enough product volume to use a full 

container so that it is necessary to use the Company’s 

services for both full and smaller containers. In this regard, 

Customer Group
2020 2021 2022

Million Baht Percentage Million Baht Percentage Million Baht Percentage

Group of Customers Using Full 
Services

2,668.25 65 5,522.40 72 5,000.80 70

Group of Customers Using Other Services

1.  Group of Customers Using 
Freight Services Only

944.15 23 1,764.10 23 1,786 25

2.  Group of Customers Using 
Only Warehouse, Customs, and 
Transport Services

492.60 12 383.50 5 357.20 5

Total Service Revenues 4,105 100 7,670 100 7,144 100

Remark : 
*  The group of customers using full services is customers who use freight services and other services such as Door-To-Door /

Door-To-Port/ Port-To-Door services.
** The group of customers using other services is customers who use a specific service, such as freight, warehouse, customs, or transport.

this group of customers is considered business partners 

with the Company. In 2022, the proportion is 30% of service 

revenue.

 The Company is a service provider of domestic 

transportation with tractor-trailers. Such services only supports 

international freight forwarding services. Therefore, the 

Company’s customers will be continuous customers who use 

the service of handling international freight with the Company. 

The Company will provide a truck that is suitable for the goods 

to pick up the goods at the customer’s factory and transport 

them to the port for export or receive goods from the port to 

deliver them to the customer’s factory in the case of importing, 

etc., which adds value to the service and facilitates the customer, 

making the Company able to provide more comprehensive 

services to customers. The Company’s revenue from its full 

services is as follows:

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 25



 The Company and its subsidiaries have customers 

scattered in various industries without relying on any one industry. 

The main served industries are automotive parts, electronic parts 

and equipment, electrical appliances and office equipment, and 

rice and canned food.

Distribution and Distribution Channels

Distribution channels of the Company and its subsidiaries are 

divided into 2 categories as follows:

1. Direct customer contact is direct contact with customers 

through the sales team of the Company and its subsidiaries 

or through the Company’s website, www.wice.co.th. Direct 

customer service offerings account for an average of about 

70 percent of service revenue. The Company will have a 

sales team to contact and meet with customers to offer 

suitable services. Currently, the Company has a sales team 

whose main responsibilities are:  

• Take care of current customers (Active Clients), meet with 

customers to get to know their needs, and plan the service 

development to respond to the changing needs of customers 

and keep up with market and technology developments, 

including communicating service needs in terms of service 

quality with the Company’s team in order to improve the 

quality of service and meet the standards.

•  Focus on expanding new customer bases in specified target 

markets in order to expand customer bases in industries 

where the Company has the expertise to help develop those 

industries to be able to compete with competitors and create 

bargaining power in managing the cost of services. This 

will allow customers to receive good service at a reasonable 

price.

2  Contact customers through oversea agents, accounting for 

approximately 30 percent of service revenue. These oversea 

agents act as coordinating contacts for transportation 

management services in the country that they are in charge 

of for the Company and its subsidiary, which is considered 

a business partner. The oversea agents will also recommend 

or assign the Company to take care of their customers’ 

transportation management services in Thailand as well. 

 In this regard, the Company has joined various 

associations both domestically and internationally, including 

TIFFA, TAFA, CGLN under the WCA Family Network, Globalia 

Logistics Network, and X2 Logistics Network. This is another 

channel of public relations for partners and customers to know 

the Company.

Proportion of Domestic and International Sales 

 The Company and the Company Group have sales 

proportions both domestically and internationally at similar rates 

which are revenue from branches in Thailand accounting for 49% 

of total revenues and revenue from overseas branches accounting 

for 51% of total revenues. The Company plans to expand branches 

and develop a higher proportion of revenues from oversea 

branches.

List of Countries or Groups of Countries With Services Available 

 The Company has always provided services along the 

main routes that correspond with the trade information of Thailand 

and the main trading partners. In 2022, according to the Ministry 

of Commerce, Thailand’s major export markets are the United 

States, China, Japan, Vietnam, Malaysia, and Hong Kong with 

ratios of 15%, 14%, 9%, 5%, 4%, and 4%, respectively. Thailand’s 

major import markets are China, Japan, the United States, and 

Malaysia with ratios of 25%, 13%, 5%, and 4%, respectively.

Ship Transport Volume Ratio of the Company and the 
Company Group

Country Service Ratio

United States 50%

China 16%

Asian Countries 9%

Others 25%

Total 100%

Air Transport Estimated Ratio of the Company and the 
Company Group

Country Service Ratio

China 58%

Singapore 20%

Hong Kong 9%

Others 13%

Total 100%

 The Company has a service volume ratio as follows:
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Pricing Policy

 The Company and its subsidiaries have a policy of offering reasonable prices to customers, which is determined by the 

style of service and the conditions of the service. The process of providing both domestic and international transportation services 

will be tailored to the needs of each customer. The important factors that are taken into account in the service charge are transportation 

mode, route, time, quantity of goods, type of goods, etc. The Company and its subsidiaries will charge according to the type/nature 

of the service as follows:

Service Type Service Charge

Sea Freight (Export/Import) FCL: Based on container quantity, size, and route.

LCL: Based on volume (cubic meters) or weight (tons), whichever is greater.

Air Freight (Export/Import) Based on weight (kilograms) or volume (cubic meters), whichever is greater.

Customs Based on entry declaration quantity, container quantity, and type of goods.

Transport Based on type of vehicle and distance.

Warehouse Based on usage area, handling cost, and duration.

The pricing policy is as follows:

1. Set the price according to the customer’s budget by offering 

various services in accordance with the customer’s needs 

under the budget set by the customer.

2. Set the price based on the service cost plus a gross profit 

appropriate and according to the conditions of supply and 

demand in the market by determining the price to be able 

to compete in the market. 

3. Set the price comparable to competitors but offer more 

services by considering the actual cost and business 

opportunity to acquire a new customer base as the 

deciding factor.

 In this regard, the Company will consider pricing 

based on the competitive market conditions at that time along 

with the needs of each customer.

(b) Competition Conditions

Competition Conditions Within the Industry in the Past Year

 “Logistics management means various work processes 

related to planning, operating, and controlling the organization’s 

work, including managing related information and financial 

transactions, to move, store, collect, and distribute goods, 

raw materials, components, and services at maximum 

efficiency and effectiveness, taking into account the needs 

and satisfaction of the customers.” (Source: Definition of the 

Council of Logistics Management)

Thailand Logistics Report 2021 shows that logistics costs in 

Thailand in 2020 totaled 2.11 trillion baht, an increase of 5.1 

percent from 2019 and accounting for approximately 13.60 

percent of the total mass product in the country. The proportion 

decreased from 13.80 percent in 2017. The logistics cost 

structure consists of the cost of freight, inventory keeping costs, 

and logistics management costs. The cost of freight is a key 

component of Thailand’s total logistics costs, accounting for 

approximately 54.10 percent of the total logistics cost, followed 

by the cost of keeping inventory and management costs, which 

account for 36.80 percent and 9.10 percent of total logistics 

costs, respectively, with these 3 components accounting for 

7.3 percent, 4.9 percent, and 1.2 percent of gross domestic 

product, respectively. (Source: Technology Center Information 

and Communication Office of the Permanent Secretary, 

Ministry of Transport) In this regard, Thailand has trade values 

of both import and export values as shown in the table below:
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        (Unit : Trillion Baht)

Year Trade Value Export Value Import Value

2011 13.69 6.71 6.98

2012 14.89 7.08 7.81

2013 14.57 6.91 7.66

2014 14.72 7.31 7.41

2015 14.13 7.23 6.90

2016 14.45 7.53 6.90

2017 15.64 8.01 7.63

2018 16.19 8.09 8.10

2019 15.07 7.63 7.42

2020 13.68 7.18 6.50

2021 17.09 8.54 8.55

2022 20.58 9.94 10.64

Source: Information and Communication Technology Center, Office of the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce, 
with cooperation from the Customs Department

Unit : Trillion Baht

No. Country
Export Value

2020 2021 2022

1 United States 0.97 1.32 1.65

2 China 0.84 1.17 1.19

3 Japan 0.65 0.79 0.85

4 Vietnam 0.35 0.39 0.46

5 Malaysia 0.24 0.38 0.44

Source: Information and Communication Technology Center, Office of the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce, 
with cooperation from the Customs Department

 Thailand is a country with an open economy, which means it is a country that contacts and trades goods and services 

with neighboring countries. International trade, therefore, plays an important role in developing and driving the country’s economy 

to expand. The top 5 export markets of Thailand with the highest export value can be summarized as follows:

 The above table shows that, in 2022, Thailand has the highest export value to the United States, followed by China, Japan, 

Vietnam, and Malaysia, respectively.

 The structure of Thailand’s exported products consists of industrial products, agricultural products, agro-industrial products, 

and mineral products and fuels. The top 5 export products with the highest value in 2022 are 1) automobiles, equipment, and parts, 

2) computers, equipment, and parts, 3) gems and ornaments, 4) rubber products, and 5) plastic beads. 
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Unit : Trillion Baht

No. Country
Import Value

2020 2021 2022

1 China 1.42 2.13 2.49

2 Japan 0.78 1.14 1.21

3 United States 0.43 0.46 0.63

4 United Arab Emirates 0.16 0.29 0.61

5 Malaysia 0.29 0.38 0.51

Source: Information and Communication Technology Center, Office of the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce, 
with cooperation from the Customs Department

 The structure of Thailand’s imported products consists 

of raw and semi-finished goods, capital goods, fuel goods, 

consumer goods, vehicles, and transport equipment. The top 5 

imported products in 2021 with the highest value are 1) electrical 

machinery and components, 2) mineral fuels and mineral oil, 3) 

machinery, mechanical appliances, and components, 4) iron and 

steel, and 5) precious stones.

 

Future Competition Conditions Industry Trends

 Transportation and warehousing services in 2021 grew 

at a higher rate, as reflected by GDP in 2021 growing by 1.6% 

compared to 2020. The proportion of logistics costs in Thailand 

decreased to 13.8–14.0 percent of GDP which was a result of 

the COVID-19 epidemic situation. It affected businesses around 

the world in terms of consumption, the private sector, exports, 

and tourism so those are disrupted throughout the year 2021. This 

caused the entrepreneurs to adjust their methods of operation 

in accordance with the situation, which had additional costs and 

expenses. However, the Eastern Economic Corridor project and 

infrastructure investment to connect both domestic and 

international trade areas have become clearer, still positively 

affecting the demand for transportation services and storage 

space as it continues to expand, especially businesses that 

provide industrial and urgent cargo transportation services. This 

includes warehousing business with modern product management 

systems (Premium Warehouse), cold storage warehouses, and 

new types of warehouses that do not require large space but 

focus on convenient and fast management to support fast-growing 

e-commerce businesses in 2021, worth 4 trillion baht and 

expanding by 6 percent (%YOY) compared to 2020.

• Land freight services have a tendency to continue to expand 

due to the continued expansion of exports, including the 

growth of e-commerce, that has resulted in the rapid growth 

of express delivery modes.

• Water freight services, according to the international freight 

situation, have seen a downward trend in the third quarter 

and the last quarter of 2022, and the general congestion 

situation at major ports around the world has improved. In 

addition, the increase in the number of ships in 2023 is 

approximately 3.8%. Therefore, the freight rates in 2023 

are expected to decrease by 30–50% from the freight rates 

in 2022. The freight situation on the main routes between 

the United States and Europe has decreased by as much 

as 50% compared to the year 2022. However, when 

compared to before COVID-19 in 2019, it was found that 

freight rates were still higher than before COVID-19, but 

the freight rate difference is not that high. At the same time, 

Asia and the Middle East are also important export markets 

where the Company can expand its services.

 However, the shipping line’s management approach 

to balancing the number of ships with shipping demand is 

also an important factor in freight rates. The shipping line 

may have to do blank sailing (cancellation of service in 

some weeks) in some periods to push up freight rates. 

 However, the Company is still optimistic about 

products in growing groups such as food products, 

electronics, rubber products, and automotive parts.

• Air freight services tend to grow as the COVID-19 

pandemic slows and China relaxes its zero COVID-19 

 The top 5 import markets for Thailand include China, Japan, the United States, the United Arab Emirates, and 

Malaysia. The value of imports, respectively, is as follows:
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policy. As a result, the aviation business began to resume 

operations, including the growth of products in the 

electronic parts industry, which has increased market 

demand.

Risk Factors for Freight and Warehousing Businesses

The freight and warehousing service business in 2022 has the 

following risk factors:

• Domestic consumption has not fully recovered, which may 

affect demand for transportation and warehousing services. 

• In a trade war between China and the United States, the 

anti-trade policy of the US has a positive impact on Thailand’s 

exports. As a result, the value of exports from Thailand to 

the United States has increased. 

• Costs of transportation services tend to decrease, such as 

freight prices, fuel prices, etc. 

• The increasing number of operators in the transport service 

business may create intense competition so that operators 

may need to adjust their profit margins to stay competitive 

in the market.

 However, the warehouse rental business has a 

tendency to grow continuously by an average of 5.7%% over 

the next  3  years, from 2022 to 2024, because of the followings 

support factors:

1) Economic activity is expanded both in production and trade

2) Investment growth is a benefit from accelerated public and 

private investment growth, as reflected by the project value 

of foreign investors at the BOI. 

3) New digital platforms with more variety will support 

e-commerce businesses continuous expansion.

4) Neighboring countries’ economy tends to grow at a high 

rate, supporting trade activities and the storage and 

distribution of goods at border crossings.

 On the supply side, in the next 3 years, entrepreneurs 

are expected to be cautious in investing in expanding warehouse 

space for rent after continuously accelerating investments in the 

previous period (2016–2018, when the average supply increased 

by 4.5 hundred thousand square meters per year). It is expected 

that warehouse space for rent will increase by 3.3 hundred 

thousand square meters per year (an increase of 5.9% percent 

per year), with large entrepreneurs tending to make warehouse 

space for rent more modern as the customer wants (built to suit), 

including receiving management and providing other additional 

services to increase the opportunity to generate income from 

specific customers who often enter into long-term lease contracts. 

Also, the entrepreneurs can charge higher rental rates than 

traditional warehouses. However, some small and medium 

entrepreneurs are still expanding their traditional warehouse 

rental space in the same location or nearby areas, resulting in 

intense competition. It is expected that the occupancy rate will 

drop to 83.4%, while the rent increase is still difficult. 

 Warehouses for rent in potential locations are still 

concentrated in industrial estates, industrial parks, industrial 

areas, and free zones throughout the country in the locations 

with production activity, unloading, and convenient transportation 

routes for distribution products to various regions both 

domestically and internationally, such as Bangkok and its vicinity, 

provinces in special economic zones, especially the eastern 

economic corridor area, regional center provinces, including 

border provinces with border crossings connecting neighboring 

countries.

Organizations Related to International Freight Forwarding 

Service Providers

 FIATA or the “International Federation of Freight 

Forwarders Associations” was established in Vienna, Austria, on 

May 13, 1926, as a non-governmental organization (NGO) and 

is an international organization of freight forwarders, supported 

by the United Nations and member governments. It currently 

represents a business group of more than 40,000 transport and 

logistics companies worldwide. The main purpose of the 

organization is to consolidate businesses in the global 

transportation industry into one and represent the promotion and 

protection of the interests of the transportation industry by taking 

part in being a consultant and an expert at meetings of various 

international agencies on transport. This includes improving the 

quality of transportation services provided by companies in the 

logistics business by developing and promoting transport 

documents and transport standards to be the same around the 

world. Members must support the purposes of FIATA and are 

subject to its regulations. 

 The Company is a member of the Thai International 

Freight Forwarders Association, or TIFFA, which is also a member 
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of FIATA. Members of TIFFA must comply with the requirements 

for professional ethics in order to maintain a good reputation for 

the profession of international freight forwarding company with 

the following principles:

1. Conduct business professionally and protect the interests 

of service users.

2. Compete based on fairness and respect for the rights and 

interests of others.

3. Not disclose the business secrets of own-self, competitors, 

or service users. 

4. Respect laws and association regulations of own country 

and those of other countries in contact.

5. Respect the international principles of international freight 

forwarding business.

 In addition, the Company is legally responsible for any 

loss or damage caused by multimodal transport operators under 

the insurance contract that specifies coverage for compensation 

in accordance with the liability rules of multimodal transport 

operators under the Multimodal Transport Act, B.E. 2548. The 

Company can assure the service users that they will be 

compensated in the event of damage caused by transportation.

Competitive Conditions

 The Office of the National Economic and Social 

Development Board has divided the structure of Thailand’s 

logistics services into 5 types which are freight, storage, non-

asset based logistics services, logistics services related to 

additional services, and parcel and postal services. At present, 

there are 5 main groups of logistics business operators in Thailand 

which are land freight entrepreneurs, water freight entrepreneurs, 

air freight entrepreneurs, customs brokers, and warehouses and 

freight forwarders with more than 10,000 companies, of which 

more than 80 percent are small and medium-sized entrepreneurs 

or SMEs. (Source: www.thai-aec.com)

 According to the database statistics of the Department 

of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, which 

emphasizes the development of logistics services businesses 

located in the Eastern Special Economic Zone (EEC) to support 

the development of economic areas with strong fundamentals, 

at present (information on March 31, 2019), there are 5,015 

juristic persons providing logistics services in the EEC, with a 

total registered capital of 34,465.57 million baht, divided into 

3,560 persons in Chonburi with a registered capital of 22,942.01 

million baht, 933 persons in Rayong with a registered capital of 

3,599.99 million baht, and 522 persons in Chachoengsao with 

a registered capital of 7,923.57 million baht. The number of 

logistics service businesses in the EEC area accounted for 20.18 

percent of the number of logistics service businesses nationwide, 

a total of 24,852.

 At present (information on May 31, 2019), 25,837 

juristic persons are operating logistics businesses, an increase 

of 1,746 persons from 2018 (24,091 persons), representing 7.24 

percent, with a total registered capital of 322,523.03 million baht. 

The top 3 registered logistics service sectors were land freight 

and pipeline systems with 18,494 persons (representing 71.5 

percent), freight forwarders and customs brokers with 3,719 

persons (representing 14.4 percent), and product management 

(for transportation, storage, and packaging services for 

transportation) with 1,191 persons (representing 4.6 percent).

 The Company’s executives estimate the value of the 

international freight forwarding business from the total revenues 

of TIFFA member entrepreneurs, which are approximately 

100,000 million baht. Although the logistics market is large and 

highly competitive because each group of logistics business 

entrepreneurs has specific expertise, business competition will 

focus on expertise in routes and types of products, transport 

speed, speed of responding to customers, including network 

quality and flexibility of service at a reasonable price and meeting 

customer needs. The group of international freight forwarding 

entrepreneurs can be divided into 2 main groups, namely joint 

ventures and local companies. Joint ventures own the market 

due to its size and network advantages, but local entrepreneurs 

have more flexibility in their services, which is why the Company 

is regarded as one of the leaders in international freight forwarding 

services among local entrepreneurs. Currently, the entrepreneurs 

that are considered direct competitors of the Company and its 

subsidiaries are approximately 5-6 foreign entrepreneurs whose 

business sizes are larger than the Company and its subsidiaries. 

However, the Company views that the flexibility of the services 

provided by the Company and its subsidiaries is greater, including 

providing comprehensive services, which makes the Company 

and its subsidiaries have the ability to compete with such 

competitors.
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 In regards to sea freight services, importers and 

exporters can choose to use the service directly from the shipping 

line or choose the service of a shipping agent. However, most 

shipping lines provide port-to-port services with a large amount 

of transportation, while freight forwarders can offer more flexible 

services. Therefore, the importers and exporters is more likely 

to choose a shipping agent for the service of handling international 

air freight because the airline operator will not provide the service 

directly to the customer. Therefore, the importers and exporters 

will use the service of the freight forwarding agent. 

Competitive Advantage

 The competitive strengths of the Company’s freight 

business lie in its ability to provide quality services that cover 

customers’ needs, safely and on time, as well as the availability 

of personnel and vehicles. With knowledge, skills, and past 

experience, this makes the Company ready in various fields to 

compete. Executives believe that the Company has the strengths 

in the competition as follows:

1. The Company has long experience in the business of 

handling international freight, specializes in business, and 

has been trusted by customers for more than 20 years.

2. The Company offers one-stop services with diversity to 

customers. The Company can provide services for 

international freight management, both import and export, 

by sea freight (FCL and LCL) and air freight, and customs 

clearance services to support the diverse needs of 

customers, including door-to-door and  ex-work logistics 

services, as well as consulting on logistics management in 

order to save costs for customers.

3. Personnel are knowledgeable, competent, and has expertise 

in their responsibilities such as having a customs specialist 

to advise on customs procedures and benefits for 

international imports and exports.

4. The Company has good network with shipping companies, 

airlines, and overseas agents, which is considered an 

important business partner. In addition, the Company is 

also a member of international logistics associations, both 

domestic and international, which are TIFFA, TAFA, CGLN 

under the WCA Family Network, Globalia Logistics Network, 

and X2 Logistics Network.

5. The expansion of the Company’s branches in Asia has 

allowed the Company to steadily expand its services in that 

region and build customer confidence in  the service.

6. The Company develops information technology systems to 

help in the working process, increase the potential, and 

reduce redundant work.

7. It has the potential to manage costs to increase 

competitiveness by booking large volumes of containers to 

be able to negotiate prices with shipping lines and offer 

customers competitive prices. This will reduce the cost of 

transporting goods to customers as well.

(3) Provision of Services  
Service Sourcing

International Freight Management Business

 The business of providing freight management services 

in international logistics is one that requires knowledge and 

experience in managing work processes to provide efficient 

service. An important factor in the international freight forwarding 

process is the procurement of ships and airplanes, which is 

considered the main cost of the Company’s freight services, 

and coordinating with oversea agents to provide services to 

customers, which has the following details:

(1) Supply of Ships/Airplanes

 Due to the fact that ship/air freight is the main cost in 

the international freight management business, the Company 

and its subsidiaries, therefore, plan to reserve ships and airplanes 

to manage costs as best as possible. Reservations on the 

Thailand-US route will be made under a service contract with 

the shipping line, which will be renewed every year. The contract 

will specify the price of freight under the minimum quality 

commitment (MQC). The Company will assess the workload 

based on historical data and assess the expected job prospects 

before signing the contract to ensure that the tonnage can be 

sold as agreed in the contract. Large-volume bookings enable 

freight rates to be negotiated and kept competitive. The contract 

prices are subject to change. The shipping line must give at 

least 30 days advance notice for booking ships in other routes, 

and no contracts will be made for booking airplanes. The 

Company will use the information from past customers’ service 

usage patterns to make advance bookings with the shipping 

line. When customers contact them to reserve a shipping line, 

the Company will be able to confirm the reservation with the 

customer immediately. The Company will select the appropriate 

shipping line or airline for the customer. In some cases, the 
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Company and its subsidiaries will coordinate with overseas 

agents to assist the Company in arranging freight in the event 

that it has to provide transportation services in different countries. 

Each year, the Company and its subsidiaries procure ships and 

airplanes from 15 and 10 carrier, respectively. 

Shipping Line/Airline/Co-Loader Selection Policy

1. Provide services on routes that meet the customers’ 

needs with the shipping schedules that meet the 

customers’ needs.

2. Be a reliable service provider. 

3. Be a service provider with a competitive cost.

4. Be a service provider with a job tracking system that can 

monitor the product’s shipping route.

(2) Oversea Agent

 In the event that the Company provides transportation 

management services in foreign areas, the Company will 

coordinate with representatives who are trading alliances in 

different countries to manage the service efficiently, as well as 

be an assistant to the Company in collecting service fees in the 

event that the customer indicates charging the service fee at the 

oversea destination. Therefore, the selection of oversea agents 

is important. The representatives of foreign companies are 

entrepreneurs in the business of handling transportation in various 

countries with experience, expertise, and reliability in providing 

such services. Such agents are considered important alliances 

and partners because they can choose to have the Company 

act as their agent to coordinate and provide services in Thailand 

as well. The Company Group has a policy of selecting oversea 

agents as follows: 

Overseas agents are divided into 3 main groups as follows:

1. The Company Group (WICE Group) consists of companies 

in five countries, including Thailand, Singapore, Malaysia, 

China, and Hong Kong. 

2. The Conference Groups that The Company is a member 

of, such as CGLN under WCA Family Network, Globalia 

Logistics Network, and X2 Logistics Network. These are 

associations with members who are international freight 

forwarders in various countries. The Company must have 

a good reputation and undergo various verifications from 

these associations to become a member. 

3. Other Overseas Agent Group is a networking group that 

The Company has been working with fo

 The Company and its subsidiaries will mainly consider 

the first 2 groups due to the fact that they have credibility and 

responsibility, in which The Company will consider work 

management capability, fast response to answering the inquiry 

and following-up, and efficient operating cost.  

Domestic Transportation Service Business

 The domestic transportation service provided by The 

Company and its subsidiaries is to support the international 

transportation business. It requires knowledge and experience 

in managing the work processes to ensure efficient and high-

standard services and safety. The key factors for quality 

transportation processes include: 

(1) Procurement and Maintenance of Vehicles Used in the 

Transportation Process  

 The essential vehicles for transportation operations 

are truck tractors and trailers. The Company purchases them 

from reputable manufacturers or dealers and ensures that the 

quality of the vehicles complies with legal requirements. 

Currently, The Company purchases vehicles from manufacturers 

or dealers, and each vehicle is a level 1 insurance license and 

has transportation insurance coverage with a higher insurance 

value than potential damages. 

 

 The Company and its subsidiaries conduct regular 

inspections and maintenance according to pre-planned 

schedules to ensure that truck tractors and trailers are in good 

condition. Repairs and replacement of worn parts are performed 

as needed to ensure that the vehicles can operate efficiently 

and have a long service life. The Company has a maintenance 

agreement with Hino Motors Sales (Thailand) Company Limited 

for repairs and maintenance of Hino trucks.

(2)  Driver Recruitment and Training

 Drivers are crucial to safe and efficient transportation 

service. Therefore, The Company and its subsidiaries prioritize 

the recruitment of qualified drivers, based on the following 

criteria: 

• The driver must have at least 2 years of experience driving 

a truck. 

• A driver’s license is required for driving class 3 and class 

4 for tractor-trailers. 

• Must pass The Company’s test.

 When being hired as a driver, the driver must go through 

training before they can actually do the job.
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(3) Fuel Supply

 Currently, The Company’s transport vehicles use natural gas for vehicles (NGV) and diesel. The Company and its 

subsidiaries use the PTT Fleet Card service from Kasikorn Bank as a credit card for payment of limited fuel expenses. Each 

transport vehicle has a specific card that specifies its license plate, and a password must be entered when paying for fuel. The 

Company and its subsidiaries calculate the fuel consumption rate compared to the actual consumption rate to control the use of 

fuel in transportation services.

(4) Outsourcing

 The Company provides transportation services using truck tractors and trailers to customers directly. However, in some 

periods when the number of trucks is insufficient to serve the customers, The Company contacts other outsourced transport 

operators to carry out the service. Currently, The Company has approximately three approved vendors in its Approved Vendor 

List, which have met the following criteria for selection: they are service providers in the form of companies with transportation 

of goods as their primary business, have vehicle and cargo insurance with minimum coverage of 1,500,000 THB, have the ability 

to provide the required service, have an adequate number and quality of vehicles, and meet the requirements set by The Company.

Service Operation Procedures

Service Delivery Process Summary

 In order to achieve efficiency in the transportation service management process, The Company has developed an 

information technology system that enhances capabilities and reduces redundancies in the workflow. An efficient measuring 

system is in place to monitor the time frame of each process and ensure that it meets the quality goals set by The Company. 
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Member Benefits

1. The list of members will be in the list, therefore, it will be easy to access and use.

2. Financial protection plan provides coverage for unpaid debts owed to members.

3. An annual networking meeting for members from each country to meet and negotiate business in the form of a workshop 

to promote relationships and exchange cooperation between them. Each country can make an appointment to meet and 

negotiate at this event, which helps reduce the cost of traveling to negotiate in each country.

4. Help clear disputes between members.

Environmental Impact

 The Company has no environmental disputes or a history of violations related to environmental laws and regulations 

with government agencies. The use of trucks for transportation may cause air pollution from exhaust fumes, but The Company 

and its subsidiaries are aware of these impacts and have educated staff to regularly monitor and inspect the condition of the 

trucks to meet government regulations. 

Benefits from Investment Promotion Certificates from the Board of Investment

 - None - 

Summary of Domestic and International Adhesion Conference

Association Name Emblem Logo
Member 

Company
Membership 

Date

Membership 
Expiration 

Date

Domestic Association

Thai International Freight Forwarders Association: 
(TIFFA) 

WICE February       
6, 2002

Indefinite

Thai Airfreight Forwarders Association 
(TAFA) 

WICE October        
1, 2004

Indefinite

The Customs Broker and Transportation            
Association of Thailand 
(CTAT) 

WICE February      
12, 2014

February  
11, 2024

The Thai Chamber of Commerce Membership WICE August        
17, 2010

Indefinite

Overseas Association

Leading the World in Logistics Partnering WICE October       
26, 2005

October       
25, 2024

WICE December 
27, 2022

December 
26, 2024

WICE December 
29, 2022

December 
28, 2023

Remark: There is an annual membership fee.
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Asset Type
Net Worth

After Deducting Accumulated Depreciation (THB)

1. Property 24,220,000

2. Buildings and places to park trucks and place containers 15,783,625

Furniture and fixtures 30,339,740

Office supplies 5,375,261

Computer equipment 8,854,506

Vehicles 184,950,838

Container and container equipment 61,715,922

Assets under construction 3,701,894

Total 334,941,786

 As of December 31, 2022, The Company entered into the lease of right-of-use assets in the operations of The Company 

Group with lease periods ranging from 3-20 years. The summary of right-of-use assets is as follows:

Asset Type Net Book Value (THB)

1. Right-of-Use Assets, Property 17,490,502

2. Right-of-Use Assets, Building 65,261,215

3. Right-of-Use Assets, Equipment 3,231,922

4. Right-of-Use Assets, Vehicle 81,510,623

Total 167,494,262

Intangible assets used by The Company in business as of December 31, 2022, consist of:

Asset Type Net Book Value (THB)

1. Customer Relationship Groups 216,868,431

2. Computer Software 6,384,604

Total 223,253,053

(4) Operating Assets
4.1 Details of Assets Used in Business Operations

 As of December 31, 2022, the net value of fixed assets used in The Company’s business operations, after accumulated 

depreciation, was 334,941,786 THB. The details of the fixed assets are as follows:

 

4.2 Important Agreements Involved in Business Operations 

4.2.1 Concluding the Agreement with the Shipping Line

 The Company has a service agreement with a shipping line company, which can be summarized as follows:

1. The main transportation routes are the Thailand-USA route.
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2. The shipping line is responsible for arranging ships for The 

Company according to the minimum quantity commitment 

(MQC) specified in the service agreement.

3. The Company will pay the freight charges to the shipping 

line at the rate specified in the service agreement.

4. The service agreement is valid for 1 year and is renewed 

every year.

5. The shipping line is responsible for the cargo as stated in 

the bill of lading.

4.2.2 Concluding the agreement with Oversea Agent

 The key points can be summarized as follows:

1. Work together to develop transportation, which includes 

the exchange of information in terms of service fees, 

competition, sales, and operations, recommending 

transportation, and other businesses that may be able to 

expand the business.

2. Both parties can use each other’s networks to perform 

tasks.

3. Both parties appoint the other as their non-exclusive agent 

in other countries.

4. Both parties will offer the best possible rate. 

5. Both parties agreed not to engage in competing business 

without written consent.

6. Both parties must support the sale, supervision, and 

operations of transportation by land, air, and sea, including 

maintaining relationships with customers, transport 

operators, and various departments. 

7. Both parties shall provide necessary import and export 

services such as customs clearance, cargo storage, 

delivery of goods, in-transit handling, continuation delivery, 

collection of service fees from customers, etc.

8. The Company of the recipient of the goods must inspect 

the goods for damage or loss. If there is any damage to 

the product, the insurance company must be responsible 

for it and inform the source company immediately via fax 

or email to proceed further.

9. Both parties will pay compensation and service fees as 

specified in the agreement.

10. The agreement does not specify an expiration date and 

remains in effect until canceled by either party in writing 

for at least 90 days.

11. The agreement will be terminated immediately if either 

party fails to comply with the terms stated in the agreement.

Other Overseas Agent The key points can be summarized as 

follows:

1. The Company and overseas agent will assist each other 

in promoting and publicizing within their respective 

territories and networks.

2. The Company and overseas agent will coordinate in 

providing transportation management services.

3. The Company and overseas agent will pay for compensation 

and other fees as specified in the agreement.

4. The overseas agent will not release or deliver the goods 

to the consignee until payment has been received by the 

consignee.

5. In the event of a problem, such as being unable to deliver 

the product, product rejection, damaged product, etc., the 

overseas agent must notify The Company immediately to 

find a solution.

6. The agreement does not specify an expiration date and 

remains in effect until canceled by either party in writing.

7. The agreement will be terminated immediately if either 

party fails to comply with the terms stated in the agreement.

4.3 Policy on Investments in Subsidiaries and Associated 

Companies

 The Company has a policy of investing in subsidiaries 

or associated companies with the objective of operating 

businesses that support The Company’s business, which will 

make The Company have more turnover or profit, or synergy 

to The Company which can support The Company’s core 

business operations. In order to be more comprehensive as of 

December 31, 2021, as follows:

1. Investment in WICE Supply Chain Solutions Company 

Limited in the proportion of 99.99%. 

2. Investment in WICE Logistics (Singapore) Private Limited 

Company (formerly Sun Express Logistics Private Limited 

Company (“SEL”)) in the proportion of 100%.  

3.  Investment in WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) (formerly 

Universal Worldwide Transportation Limited (“UWT”)) in 

the proportion of 80%.

4. Investment in Euroasia Total Logistics Public Limited 

Company in the proportion of 51%.

(5) Undelivered Work
 - None -
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1.3 Group Shareholding Structure  
1.3.1 Group Shareholding Structure
 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited engages in innovative logistics service and solution provider which mainly provides 

import and export services by sea, by air, customs clearance services, domestic transport, cross border service and warehousing as 

well as having affiliated companies located in many leading countries to support the needs of customers continuously and quickly. 

Group Shareholding Structure 
 As of December 31, 2022

WICE Logistics Public Company 

WICE Logistics 
(Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd.

WICE Logistics 
(Guangzhou) Ltd.

Euroasia  
Transport  
Co., Ltd.

Euroasia Integrated 
Logistics Services 

(M) Sdn. Bhd

Euroasia Total Logistics 
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Euroasia Total 
Logistics (M) 

Sdn. Bhd.

Euroasia Total 
Logistics (China) 

Co., Ltd.

Euroasia Total 
Logistics (Vietnam) 

Co.,Ltd

WICE Logistics (Guang Zhou) Ltd. 
(Shanghai Branch Company)

WICE Logistics (Guang Zhou) Ltd.  
(Ningbo Branch Company)

WICE Logistics 
(Shenzhen) Ltd.

70% 100% 100% 100% 49% 100% 40%70%

Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company Limited

51%
WICE Logistics

 (Hong Kong) Limited.)

80%
WICE Logistics  

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.)

100%
WICE Supply Chain Solutions 

Co.,Ltd.

99.99%
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Details of juristic persons in which the Company directly holds shares of 10 percent or more of the number of shares issued. 

As of December 31, 2022

Company/Headquarters 
Location

Business 
Type

Shares Type
Registered 

Capital
Paid-up 
Capital

Number 
of Issued 

Shares 
(Shares)

Company Shareholding

Number of 
Shares Held 

(Shares)

Share-
holding 

(percent)

WICE Supply Chain 
Solutions Co.,Ltd
No. 88/8 Nonsi Road, 
Chong Nonsi Sub-District 
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
Tel. (66) 2681 6181

Warehouse 
service

Ordinary 80,000,000 46,750,0000 80,000 79,998 99.99

WICE Logistics (Singapore) 
Pte. Ltd.
Unit 02-03/04 Changi 
Cargo Agents Megaplex 1, 
Box 698 Changi Airfreight 
Centre, 119 Airport Cargo 
Road, Singapore 819454
Tel: (65) 6542 4911
Fax: (65) 6542 3540

Transport 
and 

logistics

Ordinary 700,000 
SGD

70,0000 
SGD

700,000 700,000 100

WICE Logistics (Hong 
Kong) Ltd.
Unit B, 3/F, Mai Wah 
Industrial Building, 1-7, 
Wah Sing Street, Kwai 
Chung, N.T., Hong Kong.
Tel: +852-3188 2233
Fax: +852-2755 5400

Transport 
and 

logistics

Ordinary 1,000,000 
HKD

1,000,000 
HKD

100,000 80,000 80

Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company Limited
No. 19, 21 Motorway Road 
Khlong Song Ton Noon 
Sub-district, Lat Krabang 
District, Bangkok 10520 
Tel. (66) 2-123-1727

Transport 
and 

logistics 

Ordinary 238,448,329 174,067,280 476,896,658 177,548,570 51*

Remark : 

* 51% of shares held by WICE Logistics Public Company Limited (the Company has control) and joint ventures hold 49% of shares.
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1.3.2 Persons Who May Have Conflicts
 - None -

1.3.3  Shareholder 
 List of Major Shareholders of the Company 

 The top 10 shareholders of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited whose names appear in the share register 

as of December 30, 2022 are as follows:

No. Shareholder Number of Shares Proportion (percent)

1. Dr. Araya Kongsunthorn 126,978,780 19.478

2. Mr. Chudet Kongsunthorn 86,939,320 13.336

3. Ms. Thitima Tantikulsunthorn 56,857,280 8.722

4. Ms. Pornpalioa Tantikulsunthorn 36,602,200 5.615

5. Mr. Patadon Kongsoonthorn 15,940,000 2.445

6. Mr. Ram Tantikulsuntorn 11,188,380 1.716

7. Mr. Aphisak Theppacungporn 8,730,800 1.339

8. Thai NVDR Company Limited 8,405,151 1.289

9. Ms. Sasithorn Tantikulsunthorn 8,053,500 1.235

10. Mrs. Saowanee Jariyanuwat 8,000,000 1.227

Total 367,695,411 56.402

Remark : 

Shareholders in the company Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., which holds a Non-Voting Depository Receipt (NVDR) in Item 8, has no right to  

vote at the meeting, except in the case of exercising the right to vote on Delisting of shares from being listed securities in the SET  

 As of December 30, 2022, the Company has 17 foreign shareholders, holding a total of 12,839,361 shares, representing 

1.97 percent of the paid-up capital. 

 The Company has restrictions on the shareholding of foreign shareholders according to the Company’s Articles of Association 

Article 13: “The Company’s shares can be transferred without restrictions unless such transfer of shares causes a foreigner to hold 

shares in the Company for more than forty-nine percent (49) of the total issued shares of the Company.”
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1.4 Amount of Registered and Paid-up 
Capital

1.4.1 Common Stock
 As of December 31, 2022, the Company has a 

registered capital of 325,949,750 baht, divided into 651,899,500 

ordinary shares with a par value of 0.50 baht per share, of which 

325,949,750 baht is issued and paid-up capital, divided into 

651,899,500 ordinary shares. 

1.4.2 Other types of shares with different rights or 
conditions than ordinary shares.  

 - None -

1.4.3 Shares or convertible securities of the 
Company as the underlying securities for the 
issuance of investment units of the mutual 
fund for foreign investors.

 - None -

1.5 Issuance of Other Securities
1.5.1 Convertible Securities 
 - None -

1.5.2 Debt Securities 
 - None -

1.6 Dividend Policy

Policy for the Dividend Payment of the Company
 The Company has a policy of paying dividends to 

shareholders at a rate of not less than 50% of net profit, less 

corporate income tax and legal reserve for the Company’s 

separate financial statements. However, such a dividend payment 

is subject to change depending on the investment plan, liquidity, 

necessity, and other appropriateness in the future. Once the 

Board of Directors has approved the annual dividend payment, 

it must be presented for approval at the shareholders’ meeting 

except for the payment of interim dividends. The Board of 

Directors has the power to approve the payment of dividends 

and then report to the shareholders’ meeting at the next meeting.  

Policy for the Dividend Payment Policy of the 
Subsidiary

Dividend Policy of the Company’s Subsidiaries The Board of 

Directors of the subsidiary will consider and approve and propose 

it to the shareholders’ meeting of each company for approval 

each year. The dividend payment will be determined based on 

the necessary investment plans and the dividend will be based 

on the necessary investment plans and other appropriateness, 

such as the adequacy of the subsidiary’s cash flow after deducting 

the reserves as required by law.

Historical Dividend Payment Information

2020 2021 2022

Earnings per share (Baht per share) 0.15 0.75 0.87

Dividend per share (Baht per share) 0.09 0.14 0.23

Dividend payout ratio per net profit (%) 70.57 94.35 30.81

Remark : 

*  Net profit means profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent company.

** AGM 2022 on April 29, 2022 approved dividend payment at the rate of 0.23 baht per share.
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2.1 Risk Management Policy and Plan  
 The Company recognizes the importance of risk 

management as an integral part of good corporate governance 

and a key foundation that enables the Company to achieve 

sustainable business objectives. Effective risk management 

helps build confidence among investors, stakeholders, 

communities, and the environment. The Company has 

established appropriate and clear objectives, structure, and 

policy for enterprise risk management. 

 The risk management structure of the Company is 

divided into 2 levels which are the organizational level, overseen 

by the Risk Management Committee, and the management 

level, managed by the Risk Management Team. 

 All risk management activities aim to increase 

awareness of risk, responsibility for risk, and the ability to 

manage risk throughout the organization, while maintaining 

good corporate governance standards. Allocating resources 

efficiently based on acceptable risk levels compared to the best 

return for the Company is also key to the Company’s success 

and competitiveness. At the same time, the Company aims to 

maximize long-term shareholder returns by considering the 

risks to shareholders in the long term. 

 Enterprise Risk Management is a process practiced 

by the Board of Directors, executives, personnel at all levels 

within the organization, business partners (suppliers), and 

customers to help define strategies and operations. The risk 

management process is designed to identify potential events 

that may affect the organization and manage risks at levels that 

are acceptable to the organization to ensure confidence in 

achieving the organization’s objectives.

Risk Management Process
1. Manage and seek opportunities under an acceptable risk 

level to achieve the Company’s operational and business 

objectives as well as respond to the expectations of 

2. Risk Management

stakeholders with consideration to both potential risks and 

business returns.

2. Determine the Company’s strategies in accordance with 

the acceptable risk level as set by the Board of Directors.

3. Executives together with employees have set the managerial 

styles and the delegation of duties and responsibilities within 

the corporation resulting in consciousness and awareness 

of risks as well as the control for all employees within the 

corporation.

4. Risks affecting the successful implementation of the 

Company’s strategies include risks associated with important 

business decisions, business plans, and action plans.

5. Arrange to devise, improve, and practice the “Business 

Continuity Plan” handbook regularly.

6. Organize an industry benchmarking and externally 

environmental scan to gain guidelines for risk prevention 

and application of best practices.

7. Provide an analysis of risk indicators and establish a “Red 

Flag” mechanism for urgent prevention and correction to 

increase the effectiveness of KPIs and Risk Indicators. 

Risk Management Policy 
 The overall key risk management policy that the 

Company has adhered to manage risks is as follows: 

1) Overall Risk Management 
 The Company has a risk management policy that 

adheres to overall risk management. The basic risk infrastructure 

is located at the Company, which is the parent company, by 

collecting risk data from various subsidiary operations to evaluate 

and establish risk management strategies that align with the 

Company’s business strategy. Suitable risk management 

practices are also established to manage risks effectively. 

2) Comprehensive Risk Assessment 
 The Company has a policy to assess risks thoroughly 

in all operations and services provided. The risk assessment 

format starts from the use of the discretion of the department 

head, which is the basic method, up to the quantitative and 
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statistical analysis level. This consideration is based on the 

type and complexity of transactions. The risk assessment 

system has significant steps to analyze risks in both normal 

and abnormal situations under changing risk factors that impact 

the Company’s financial base. 

3) Acceptable Risk Management 
 Under appropriate risk management, operational risks 

are controlled within the standards whereas qualitative risk 

assessment is determined by the risk appetite with continuous 

and appropriate control and follow-up. 

4) Risk Management, Risk Diversification, and 
Hedging 

 Risk management is performed continuously with the 

principle of risk diversification being essential because it is a 

method that can reduce risk, considering the rate of return. Top 

executives and managers of each unit will apply the principle 

of risk diversification for appropriate consideration, with various 

practice guidelines and risk thresholds set at the overall level.

5) Culture that Recognizes the Significance of Risk 
Management 

 The Company realizes the significance of risks and 

risk management. The head of all departments must have an 

adequate understanding of existing or emerging risks, as well 

as consider various risks that may affect the Company as a 

whole.  

Risk Management Framework 
 The Company has enterprise risk management, with 

the framework consisting of: 

 
1. Determination of Strategies 
 The Company has clearly defined objectives and risk 

appetite in risk management to keep risk management uniform 

throughout the corporation. 

 
2. S t ructure  and Respons ib i l i t ies  o f  the 

Company’s Enterprise Risk Management
 Enterprise risk management structural chart is as 

follows:

 

Board of Directors 

Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Team

Audit Committee

Internal Audit

Board of Directors and Audit Committee 
 The Audit Committee acts as a representative of the 

Board of Directors to devise policies and supervise the 

Company’s risk management. They are also responsible for 

assessing the effectiveness of risk management to ensure that 

it is carried out with effectively, successfully, and in accordance 

with the determined guidelines. 

Internal Auditors 
 Internal auditors are responsible for reviewing 

operational units and other support functions to ensure that risk 

management is appropriate and for reporting results to the Audit 

Committee. In addition, it provides consultation to the audit 

team and/or auditees, communicates feedback from the Audit 

Committee to the operational team, and works with them to 

make necessary improvements. 
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Risk  Management  Commit tee  and  R isk 
Management Team 
 Risk Management Committee and Risk Management 

Team consist of the managing directors of support division, 

directors of finance and accounting division, and department 

managers. The managing director of support division serves 

as the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee and is 

responsible for the following: 

1. Determine the structure of and people responsible for 

enterprise risk management. 

2. Consider and approve policies, strategies, risk management 

frameworks, and risk management plans.

3. Review risks and follow up on enterprise risk management. 

 

2.2  Risk Factors Affecting Business 
Operations 

2.2.1 Risks to Business Operations of the 
Company or the Company Group Currently 
in Existence and Emerging Risks 

 

1. Strategic and Investment Risk
 •  Risk From Competition in the Industry

 The Company provides logistics services by water, 

air, land, and rail, is a customs broker, and operates as a 

warehouse provider. Currently, there are several service 

providers similar or close to those of the Company. Therefore, 

if there is intense competition or new operators entering the 

market, it may lead to a decrease in customers or a reduction 

in the Company’s profit margins. However, the logistics business 

focuses on expertise in the routes and types of goods 

transported, the ability to provide the required routes for 

customers, the responsiveness and quality of the network. The 

Company responds to the risk by focusing on providing services 

on routes where it has expertise and expanding to other routes 

that customers demand. The Company also elevates its service 

standards to meet the customers’ standards by the agreed KPIs 

(Key Performance Indicators), and develops its own information 

technology system to respond quickly to customers while 

reducing service costs.

 •  Risk From Foreign Investments 

 The Company operates internationally through its 

branches, which may pose risks due to differences in laws, 

regulations, and culture. The Company is aware of these risks 

and conducts business and risk analysis before investing in 

each country. Additionally, the Company hires consultants and 

collaborates with its branches in foreign countries to develop 

risk management plans. The Company also monitors and reports 

on its operations quarterly to the Board of Directors.

• Risk from customers not entering into contracts with 

the company 

 Service contracts are a reliable source of revenue 

for the Company and ensure quality control and customer 

satisfaction. Therefore, the Company prioritizes maintaining 

contract-based customer relationships and meeting or exceeding 

the agreed-upon standards of service quality to retain customers. 

Additionally, the Company manages risk by establishing 

long-term relationships with customers by using the sustainable 

development. The Company also sets goals to attract new 

customers in order to manage the risk and increase the 

Company’s growth opportunity.  

• Risk From the Company Not Renewing the 

Warehouse Management Service Contracts 

 The Company generates revenue from warehouse 

management contracts with some customers. The Company 

manages risk by fulfilling the service agreements and developing 

its capabilities to meet customer needs, which builds customer 

trust in the Company’s business practices. Additionally, the 

Company manages risk by expanding its services to other 

customers to reduce the impact in case of customers not 

renewing their contracts.

• Risk From the Inability to Renew or Terminate the 

Land Lease Agreements  

 In managing its warehouse operations, the company 

enters into agreements to manage warehouse space. However, 

these agreements are made with third-party providers who 

supply warehouse space directly and are not lease agreements 

for land. These agreements are made on a contract-to-contract 

basis with the same term as those made with customers. 

Additionally, the company renews these agreements in advance 

when the space is still suitable for the customer. Therefore, the 

company has no risk related to the inability to renew a lease 

agreement.
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• Risk From the Volatility of Fuel Prices 

 The Company operates transportation services within 

the country, and thus the volatility of fuel prices affects the cost 

of providing services for the Company. To manage this risk for 

the Company, its partners, and customers, the Company 

specifies service rates based on actual fuel costs.

• Risk in Procuring Customers

 The Company has fixed costs in managing various 

operations. To manage this risk, the Company has a sales team 

to develop customers within the main industries of the country, 

thus not relying on any particular industry. This allows the 

Company’s employees to have expertise in these industries 

and respond quickly to customer needs in line with their 

requirements.  

2. Operational Risk
• Risk From the Stability of Information Technology 

Systems 

 The Company utilizes technology in its main 

business processes to provide faster service, reduce costs, 

and minimize work duplication, as well as to ensure the accuracy 

of data. Therefore, if the system experiences errors or is 

attacked, it may affect the Company’s operations and services.

The Company manages this risk as follows:

- Use a 2-factor authentication system, which is an 

accepted standard for authenticating users before 

accessing devices or applications, to prevent 

unauthorized access to data. After entering the 

password, users must confirm their identity with 

a second form of authentication, such as an OTP 

(One Time Password) on their device, to verify 

that they are authorized to use the service.

- Back up data on the main operating system to 

cloud servers every night. 

- Use endpoint protection systems to prevent 

viruses and spyware from compromising the 

network.

- Conduct annual emergency drills for DR Site to 

test readiness in the event of an emergency and 

to ensure continuous operations.

- Provide annual training to employees to raise 

awareness about data security in the Company.

• Risk From the Company’s Insurance Probably Not 

Covering All Losses and/or Obligations 

 The Company has the policy to apply for insurance 

policies covering losses and liabilities related to its business 

operations to mitigate the risk of loss or damage to its services 

or products. However, there is a risk that some losses may not 

be covered by the insurance policies, such as damages caused 

by war or terrorism, or when the value of the loss exceeds the 

insurance coverage. To manage this risk, the Company does 

not provide services in high-risk areas and monitors insurance 

policies annually.

• Accident Risk 

 The Company has the policy to apply for insurance 

policies related to all of its business operations. Additionally, 

the Company clearly specifies the conditions of liability and 

maximum liability of the Company for damages that occur during 

the service contract with customers. The Company also selects 

partners who have accident insurance and provide training to 

their employees to ensure they work safely and correctly.

• Risk of Late Delivery to Customers 

 The Company recognizes the importance of 

delivering products to customers on time and has, therefore, 

developed technology systems for transportation that enable 

both the Company and customers to accurately track the status 

of products and reduce communication issues. This also reduces 

the likelihood of duplicative customer notifications, allowing the 

Company to address any issues that may arise due to late 

delivery and communicate with customers to resolve them in 

a timely manner.

• Risk From Procuring Transport Vehicles 

 The Company uses the Company Group’s vehicles 

and outsources transportation services to external contractors 

to provide sufficient service to meet customer demand. External 

transport contractors are the Company’s primary partners and 

have service contracts in place. Thus, there is adequate capacity 

ans standards to meet customer demand. Additionally, the 

Company manages its own transportation resources and those 

of its partners through a dedicated team, which allows it to 

control the transportation service provided by its personnel.
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• Risk From Reliance

 Due to the nature of the Company’s business, 

knowledge, expertise, and experience from executives and 

personnel are essential in conducting operations. Therefore, it 

is necessary to rely on personnel who have knowledge and 

expertise in various regulations, both domestically and 

internationally, for import and export, as well as licensed customs 

specialists for the Company and its subsidiaries to provide 

guidance to employees in various departments. This will result 

in customers feeling confident and satisfied with the service 

provided. In the event of a shortage of such personnel, it may 

affect the Company’s operations. 

 The Company recognizes the importance of human 

resources, which is the core of business operations. Therefore, 

the Company has the policy to promote employee development 

by increasing knowledge, skills, and performance at work. 

Regular training is provided for both new and existing employees. 

The Company has an annual employee training plan, with each 

position requiring training to enhance their knowledge and skills 

for job performance. Additionally, the Company provides a 

“buddy system” for employees to work and substitute for each 

other, which helps to reduce the risk of relying on one individual. 

Employee performance assessment is also conducted to 

determine appropriate compensation. On average, employees 

of the Company and its subsidiaries have a tenure of 5 years, 

and executives have a tenure of not less than 20 years.

• Risk of Business Interruption

 The Company recognizes the importance of 

business continuity and is aware of the potential for service 

interruptions that may result from uncontrollable factors, such 

as cyber-attacks, epidemics, terrorism, natural disasters, and 

others. 

 Therefore, the Company has developed a Business 

Continuity Plan (BCP) with representatives of each unit. The 

BCP is monitored and managed by the risk management team, 

reviewed, and had drills regularly every year. 

• Risk From Technological Changes

 Technology plays a significant role in logistics 

operations, such as transportation and inventory management 

systems, product tracking systems, and data connectivity with 

partners and customers. Therefore, the Company places 

importance on its operational systems and develops them to 

meet the needs of its partners and customers, resulting in fast, 

accurate, and cost-effective service provision. This also helps 

to reduce errors and respond efficiently to customer needs.

3. Financial Risk
• Risk From Exchange Rates

 As the Company provides international freight 

forwarding services, the Company may be exposed to the risk 

from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates which affect revenues 

and costs in foreign currencies. In the case of a weaker Thai 

Baht, it would result in higher costs. Therefore, fluctuations in 

exchange rates definitely impact the financial position and 

performance of the Company. 

 These foreign currency costs are incurred as a result 

of partnerships with foreign freight forwarding operators who 

act as agents for the Company in coordinating services for 

customers. In turn, the Company also generates revenue from 

being a partner in these businesses. The fact that the Company 

incurs revenue and costs in foreign currencies represents a 

partial natural hedge against exchange rate risks. The Company 

closely monitors news and developments on exchange rates 

at all times to assess the situation and mitigate exchange rate 

risks. However, in the past, the impact of exchange rate 

fluctuations on the overall performance of the Company has 

not been deemed significant.

• Risk From Interest Rate Fluctuation 

 Logistics business operations require significant 

investment. Therefore, the Company may face the risk from 

low-interest rates as most of its financial assets and liabilities 

are subject to market-based or have fixed interest rates close 

to the current market rates.

• Risk From Support Given to Companies in the Group 

 The Company and the Company Group invest in 

expanding their business operations, upgrading their operations, 

and undertaking new business ventures to maintain continuous 

growth in line with their strategic plan. At times, at the initial 

stage of a project, the Company may need financial support to 

implement their plan. Therefore, the Company has a policy to 

provide financial support in the form of loans or capital to carry 
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out their strategic plan. The Company has a well-defined 

investment approval process and monitors the performance of 

companies in the Group through the Executive Committee, the 

Board of Directors, and the Risk Management Committee to 

manage business following the strategic plan, manage risks in 

a timely manner, and minimize the impact on the Company.

• Risk From Breach of Loan Agreements with Financial 

Institutions

 The Company borrows money from banks and enters 

into lease agreements. On December 31, 2022, the Company 

has evaluated the risk of default on loans to be low as it has 

an accessibility to various sources of funding. The Company’s 

debt-to-equity ratio is 0.78:1 and 1.33:1 (The Company, only, 

has a debt-to-equity ratio of 0.30:1 and 0.63:1)

4. Compliance Risk
• The Company may be impacted by the need to 

comply with various regulations which could result 

in high costs.

 The Company operates under Thailand’s laws and 

regulations that protect the environment, safety, and 

occupational health of its employees. The Company follows 

various standards and hires qualified personnel to supervise 

compliance with laws and regulations. Therefore, the Company 

practices compliance with laws and regulations. 

• Risk of Being Sued Due to Its Operations 

 For example, the Company may be sued for 

damages resulting from transportation or loss of goods, or from 

accidents that may cause harm to the Company. The Company 

manages this risk through insurance coverage for goods in 

storage, transportation, and other potential risks resulting from 

employee operations. 

5. Social and/or Environmental Risk
• Risk of Climate Change 

 The Company places importance on social and 

environmental management, particularly on reducing carbon 

dioxide and greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to global 

warming. The Company’s efforts include:

- Install solar panels at all of the Company’s 

headquarters and branch offices to reduce 

electricity usage and greenhouse gas emissions.

- Use electric forklifts instead of gasoline or 

gas-powered equipment.

- Install GPS systems in all transport vehicles to 

calculate transportation routes and reduce energy 

usage.

- Implement the E-Paper Less system in the work 

processes.

- Adopt the transportation services that focus on 

reducing energy usage.

• Risk of Human Rights

 The Company is aware of the importance of taking 

care of human rights issues to ensure that all stakeholders 

involved are treated equally according to the Universal 

Declaration of Human Rights, the United Nations Global 

Compact, the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human 

Rights, and the declaration on fundamental principles and rights 

at work of the International Labor Organization. The Company 

has established policies and practices to prevent human rights 

abuses in all of its business activities, including those involving 

its partners. The Company’s human rights policy covers all 

individuals who may be affected by its operations, such as 

employees, children, women, persons with disabilities, local 

communities, and partners’ workers. This is to ensure that the 

Company is safe from any violation of human rights.

6. Emerging Risk
• Risk From the COVID-19 Pandemic

 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there have been 

significant economic and social impacts, causing damage to 

people’s livelihoods and business operations. It is anticipated 

that future infectious disease outbreaks could occur more 

frequently and become more commonplace. Outbreaks could 

lead to economic stagnation and disrupt business activities, 

resulting in changes in consumer behavior and shifts in economic 

activity. The Company recognizes the importance of the potential 

impact of such situations and has developed a Business 

Continuity Plan (BCP) to manage potential risks. Additionally, 

the Company has implemented systems to enable employees 

to work from home if necessary. 
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• Risk of Personal Data Protection

 According to the Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 

2562, effective on June 1, 2022, regarding criteria or measures 

to protect personal data of customers, partners, employees, 

shareholders, and stakeholders of the Company from being 

violated in terms of their rights and personal freedoms, it is the 

duty of the business operators to establish a proper personal 

data management committee. Therefore, the Company has 

executed and established the personal data protection policy 

and and notification forms for personal data as follows:

1. Personal data protection policy (PDPA)

2. Information technology security policy 

3. Privacy policy for shareholders’ meetings 

4. Notif ication form for personal data of 

shareholders and representatives 

5. Notification form for personal data of directors 

and the highest executive 

2.2.2  Risks to Securities Holders’ Investment 
 To ensure transparency and balance of power, the 

Company has restructured its organization to improve 

management efficiency, including the appointment of 4 

independent directors, consisting of 3 members of the Audit 

Committee and 1 Chairman of the Board. The Company has a 

total of 8 directors, including 4 non-majority shareholder 

directors. In addition, the Company has established an internal 

audit department to work independently and appropriately to 

oversee the internal control system and to audit the operations 

of the management department to ensure transparency. 

Furthermore, in the case of transactions related to major 

shareholders, controlling persons of related businesses, and 

potential conflicting parties, these individuals do not have the 

right to approve such transactions. The approval process must 

adhere to the criteria set by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2.2.3 Risks of Investing in Foreign Securities 
 - None -
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3. Driving Business for Sustainability

3.1 Sustainability Management Policy 
and Target    

 The Company, WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited, is committed to being a leader in innovative logistics 

services that meet the needs of technology industry customers 

in the Asia-Pacific region. The Company operates with a focus 

on social responsibility and environmental sustainability, under 

good corporate governance. At the same time, The Company 

strives to create a balance of benefits for shareholders, in order 

to make The Company a leader in logistics services, with a 

sense of responsibility towards society. The Company also has 

a strategic focus on relationships with shareholders, employees, 

government agencies, partners and collaborators, customers, 

society, communities, and the environment, in jointly developing 

sustainable environmental conditions, maintaining health and 

safety, and developing sustainably. 

 To ensure the sustainability of the organization’s 

management, executives from all departments work together 

to develop policies, targets, strategies, and practices that are 

consistent with The Company’s targets. Data is then collected 

to monitor performance and to prepare sustainability reports, 

which are published to stakeholders and interested parties. 

Furthermore, the data collected is used to evaluate the 

performance of sustainability issues and to improve operations 

for the following year.

 In addition, The Company has policies and management 

practices that meet international sustainability standards, such 

as the International Organization for Standardization (ISO), 

including ISO 9001 for quality management systems. These 

efforts are intended to ensure confidence that The Company 

will achieve its targets in conducting sustainable business.

Sustainability Management Policy and Target
 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited has developed 

and analyzed key sustainability issues related to its business 

operations. The process involved selecting important issues 

based on the needs and expectations of stakeholders from 

each group, as well as identifying key issues that impact The 

Company through internal analysis of business operations and 

direction, and external analysis of sustainability issues from the 
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hotel industry, both locally and abroad, trends in sustainability issues in Thailand and other countries, and sustainability issues 

from international reporting standards (GRI Standards) and the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations. 

From these key sustainability issues, The Company has established strategies, policies, and action plans to address each issue. 

The key sustainability issues of The Company are divided into 3 dimensions.

 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited has developed and analyzed key sustainability issues related to its business 

operations. The Company has a process for selecting important issues based on the needs and expectations of each stakeholder 

group, along with critical issues that impact The Company’s operations. In addition to analyzing current key sustainability issues, 

The Company has also examined sustainability trends in Thailand and other countries, as well as sustainability issues from the 

Global Reporting Initiative’s 2021 (GRI Standards) and the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Based on 

these analyses, The Company has developed strategies, policies, and action plans to address its key sustainability issues, which 

are divided into 3 dimensions.

Corporate Governance and Economic Dimension

Strategy Direction Economic Dimension Environmental Dimension Social Dimension

Strategy • The Company’s revenue and 
distribution of revenue to 
stakeholders.

• Compliance with good 
corporate governance 
principles and ethics.

• Anti-corruption and 
whistleblowing practices.

• Energy management 
practices. 

• Developing low-carbon 
society and environmentally 
friendly business practices. 

• Climate change and air 
pollution management. 

• Sustainable procurement 
and supplier selection based 
on environmental and social 
criteria.

• Caring for and developing 
employees based on human 
rights principles.

• Occupational health and safety. 
• Training and development of 

personnel to support future 
business growth. 

• Diversity and equal 
opportunities. 

• Non-discrimination practices. 
• Participation in developing 

and improving quality of life 
in society.

• Customer health and safety. 
• Customer privacy.  

 Moreover, The Company is committed to achieving Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) that are relevant and aligned 

with its business operations, including: 

• SDG 3: Good Health and Well-Being 

• SDG 6: Clean Water and Sanitation 

• SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy 

• SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth 

• SDG 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities 

• SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production 

• SDG 13: Climate Action 

• SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and Strong Institutions
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 In addition to the above-mentioned key sustainability 

issues, The Company places great importance on protecting 

human rights. The Company strictly adheres to laws and 

international standards, particularly in supporting and 

complying with the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 

(UDHR), the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC), the 

United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human 

Rights (UNGP), and the International Labor Organization 

Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work 

(ILO) to ensure that its business operations are free from 

human rights violations. 

 The Company has established policies and guidelines 

to prevent human rights violations in all business activities 

of The Company, subsidiaries, and joint ventures, as well 

as in business partners in the value chain. These policies 

and guidelines are communicated to the Board of Directors, 

executives, and employees at all levels of The Company to 

raise awareness of the importance of and respect for human 

rights in all aspects of individuals, society, and communities, 

in accordance with the laws of each country and the terms of 

the relevant agreements. The Company also communicates, 

educates, provides guidance, monitors, and supports all 

stakeholders involved.

3.2 Managing Impacts on Stakeholders 
in the Business Value Chain

3.2.1 Business Value Chain 
 The Company recognizes the importance of 

stakeholder engagement, with a firm commitment to efficiently 

manage business processes and activities that support the 

business value chain, in order to become a sustainable and 

growing organization that maximizes benefits for all 

stakeholders. To achieve this, The Company communicates 

continuously with stakeholders to understand their interests 

and listens to their feedback to improve and develop its business 

planning process. 

 In 2022, The Company reviewed its stakeholder 

engagement and identified and ranked the key stakeholders in 

the entire value chain. The Company also identified ways to 

respond to stakeholder expectations and issues effectively and 

appropriately to develop criteria for ranking and to develop 

guidelines for stakeholder engagement in the future. 

 

 The Company analyzed the effectiveness and linkage 

of stakeholders who are affected by activities within the value 

chain, which consists of fundamental activities and support 

activities as follows:

Employee Government

Trade Partner & 
Collaboration

Customers Investors

Society, Community 
& Environment
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 The fundamental activities include logistics services 

and value-added services, which support services such as 

transportation, warehousing, distribution, and consulting on 

logistics management. These activities include developing 

employee knowledge and internal management, and the added 

value of each activity combines to provide quality services that 

result in increased convenience and satisfaction for customers 

while reducing social and environmental impacts. By doing so, 

The Company can also reduce losses and expenses. The 

Company has identified six main stakeholder groups as follows: 

1) customers, 2) partners and collaborators, 3) society, 

communities, and the environment, 4) government agencies, 

5) investors, and 6) employees. The Company has integrated 

stakeholder interests and concerns into its plans and sustainable 

issues, including finding various ways to communicate and 

engage with each stakeholder group efficiently and effectively, 

both formally and informally throughout 2022. 

3.2.2 Stakeholder Analysis in the Business 
Value Chain

 The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining 

relationships with stakeholders to foster mutual benefits within 

the framework of good corporate governance, efficient operations, 

respect for rights, fair and equal treatment, transparent business 

practices, ethical values, and compliance with The Company’s 

established norms. The Company acknowledges the importance 

of feedback from stakeholders and strives to incorporate their 

opinions, suggestions, and concerns into its operations to meet 

their needs and expectations.

 The Company uses the international standard, AA1000 

Stakeholder Engagement Standards (AA1000SES), as a 

framework for identifying stakeholders related to the value chain 

of the organization. The Company then analyzes the needs and 

expectations of stakeholders, assesses their participation, and 

prioritizes them based on the influence of stakeholders on The 

Company’s operations. This process is used to develop practices 

that effectively respond to the needs and expectations of each 

stakeholder group through various channels. The Company has 

identified six main stakeholder groups as follows: investors, 

employees, customers, government agencies, partners and 

collaborators, and social communities and the environment.

 The Company regularly reviews stakeholder needs, 

expectations, participation channels, and response strategies, 

and tailors them to each stakeholder group’s appropriateness.

Stakeholder Participation Methods Needs and Expectations Response Approaches

Customers - Interacting with customers 
while providing service 

- Interacting and receiving 
feedback through social media 
mobile application and live 
chat

- Having customer satisfaction 
surveys, telephone calls to 
customer service centers 
(Call Center), emails from 
customers

- Conducting monthly market 
research 

- Having survey and 
examination of service 
satisfaction quarterly 

- Having meeting network and 
business visits 

- Organizing activities to build 
relationships with customers

- Having quality of service
• Delivering goods and/or 

services in accordance with 
standards, expectations,         
and related laws.

• Having responsiveness, 
creditability, consistency, 
carness, reassurance,           
and suitable modifications 

- Having price transparency and/or 
reasonable and fair prices

- Having responsibility in delivering 
services as agreed

- Introducing suggestions to 
develop and improve the services

- Being easily reachable once 
being in need

- Protecting customers’ personal 
information and privacy

- Training employees to provide 
excellent customer service

- Delivering services that meet 
standards including safety

- Inspecting and guaranteeing the 
quality of the service

- Improving service or having new 
service channels that responds to 
customer needs

- Having communication via social 
media as well as improvement and 
development of the Company’s 
website consistently

- Conducting survey on customer 
opinions and answering questions 
through various communication 
channels 

- Reviewing promotional programs 
and selling prices consistently

- Being honest to the promise made 
to the customers

- Driving sustainability in the business
- Developing and implementing data 

and cyber security systems, including 
personal data and customer privacy
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Stakeholder Participation Methods Needs and Expectations Response Approaches

Partners  
and 

Collaborators

- Having regular meetings
- Training for partners and 

organizing activities to ensure 
regular engagement

- Having seminar           
Conducting opinion survey 
consistently

- Treating partners fairly and 
equally

- Having fair and transparent 
procurement process that is easy 
to understand

- Having commitment to customers 
and partners in matters of clear 
and consistent orders

- Sending orders in advance or 
estimating weekly or monthly 
orders to let partners provide 
service in time

- Having flexibility to adjust service 
prices as appropriate

- Having the intention to create 
innovation together

- Building a long-term relationship
- Creating value and business 

benefits together
- Having a willingness to provide 

instant support when problems 
occur

- Having business ethics as well 
as being a strategic leader and 
long-term business partner

- Having an available working 
system along with building a 
brand with a good reputation

- Having an exchange of 
knowledge on business 
improvement and innovation of 
new services

- Establishing a framework for 
sustainable procurement which 
consists of partners selection, 
risk assessment, and inspection 
of partners including developing 
and strengthening the potential of 
partners

- Having principles of conduct and 
business ethics of partners

- Conducting a survey of partners’ 
opinions

- Reviewing and improving 
procurement processes and 
communication methods to meet 
common needs

- Exchanging knowledge and 
technology to improve the 
procurement process

- Seeking innovation opportunities 
to improve the service

- Inspecting and solving problems 
that arise instantly

- Organizing supply chain seminars 
to provide new information to 
partners on the Company’s 
business and direction in 
procurement

- Ensuring executives regular 
participation in business meetings 
with partners to present business 
picture, understand problems, and 
plan business operations together

Society, 
Community, 

and 
Environment

- Having regular community 
visits and meetings with 
community leaders

- Having community 
engagement through 
employment and other 
community development 
activities

- Becoming a member of a local 
organization or community 
board

- Having employment
- Participating in development 

of economy, society, and 
environment of the community

- Reducing negative impacts on 
society and environment in the 
community

- Respecting norms of the 
community

- Listening to the voice of the 
community and communicating 
with the community regularly

- Being a responsible member of 
the community

- Hiring local workers and promoting 
the career development of people 
in the community

- Promoting local procurement
- Developing community-related 

projects
- Educating, encouraging, and 

supporting local communities in 
various nature and environmental 
conservation projects
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Stakeholder Participation Methods Needs and Expectations Response Approaches

Government 
Authorities

- Being a member of the 
cooperation committee 
initiated by the government 
sector

- Having the Company’s senior 
officials accepted as a guest 
speaker for a government 
seminar to exchange 
knowledge and experience

- Participating in relevant local 
industry associations or 
chambers of commerce with 
ongoing communications with 
government authorities

- Becoming a partner in 
government projects

- Participating in new government 
policies and programs as well as 
sharing knowledge of operational 
excellence

- Supporting and complying 
with government measures 
or activities both locally and 
nationally

- Having environment protection

- Developing cooperation projects 
between the public and private 
sectors

- Providing knowledge on best 
practices to relevant government 
agencies

- Complying with and participating 
in government measures and 
activities as appropriate

Investors - Arranging the Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders and 
the Extraordinary General 
Meeting of Shareholders

- Organizing investor relations 
activities, business visits, and 
Road Shows

- Organizing quarterly analyst 
meetings and other meetings

- Organizing meetings and 
communicating with financial 
institutions and bond holders 
to obtain financing and provide 
information on the status of 
the business

- Having notification of news 
to shareholders via the 
Company’s website and by 
e-mail regularly

- Having good performance and 
good return on investment

- Having good liquidity 
management

- Having good corporate 
governance

- Having environmental, social and 
governance issues considered in 
the development of strategies, 
operations, and management of 
financial instruments

- Having good risk management 
and crisis management

- Having transparency of business 
information

- Having timely disclosure of 
accurate information

- Complying with terms, conditions, 
and obligations as well as having 
timely payments

- Having effective communication 
with shareholders, investors, and 
creditors

- Providing opportunity for 
shareholders and investors to 
participate in expressing opinions 
on the business performance of 
the Company

- Responding to climate change, 
e.g. waste management 
greenhouse gas emissions, use 
of water according to or more 
than required by law

- Having sustainable procurement 
and service

- Ensuring human rights protection, 
safety, and occupational health

- Conducting annual report and 
sustainability report

- Creating good performance and 
paying dividends where possible 
as well as having liquidity 
management and repaying debt

- Having transparent and updated 
disclosure of the Company’s 
information through the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand and other 
channels including the Company’s 
website

- Committing to have sustainable 
development including responding 
to climate change and human 
rights issues

- Preparing and improving policies 
and procedures related to good 
corporate governance on an 
ongoing basis

- Being certified as a member of the 
Thai Institute of Directors Association 
to be a coalition against corruption 
in the private sector

- Inviting shareholders to set the 
agenda for the Annual General 
Meeting of shareholders as well as 
sharing opinions in the meeting

- Collaborating with financial 
institutions in seeking financial 
opportunities related to 
environmental, social and 
governance (ESG) performance

- Having clear and consistent 
communication with shareholders, 
investors, and creditors especially 
during economic volatility
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Stakeholder Participation Methods Needs and Expectations Response Approaches

Employees - Conducting survey to assess 
employee satisfaction as well 
as having Annual 
Performance Evaluation and 
individual development plans

- Organizing activities to meet 
and talk between employees 
and executives regularly e.g., 
training for new employees, 
manager’s meeting, annual 
employee party, and 
communication from 
executives to employees 
(Town hall)

- Organizing online seminars, 
training sessions, and regular 
business visits

- Preparing newsletters and 
constantly reporting on the 
latest news on the intranet

- Organizing meetings at the 
department level as well as 
activities of the Company

- Having arrangement of 
internal channels to receive 
complaints from employees

- Recruiting interns and 
conducting surveys to assess 
the satisfaction of intern 
students

-  Organizing CSR and 
sustainable development 
activities to promote 
awareness of social 
responsibility

- Having stable and progressive 
career

- Attracting talented employees       
to work in the organization and 
work for long term

- Having appropriate compensation 
and other benefits

- Having work-life balance
- Having reasonable working hours 

and payments
- Being respected for rights and 

receiving fair treatment
- Having opportunity to receive 

higher education during work
- Having occupational health, 

safety, and well-being

- Indicating the Company’s 
regulations, policies, and practices 
of the Human Resources 
Department to be in accordance 
with relevant laws

- Indicating human rights policy and 
organizing comprehensive human 
rights audits as well as following 
up on issues

- Organizing annual training and 
having review of compliance with 
the Code of Conduct and 
Anti-Corruption Policy

- Encouraging good working 
behavior and promoting diversity, 
equality, and inclusion of 
employees through relevant 
policies and internal 
communications

- Promoting career advancement for 
employees in the organization as 
well as providing appropriate 
compensation and other benefits

- Providing an on-board program for 
new employees

- Providing training courses according 
to international standards

- Organizing courses to promote 
and develop the potential of 
talented people

- Conducting employee engagement 
survey and annual performance 
assessment

- Improving the working 
environment by providing activities 
that promote health and well-being

- Organizing activities that promote 
the participation of employees in 
each department of the organization

- Providing a safe channel for 
feedback and complaints

- Organizing comprehensive human 
rights audits

- Preparing various social projects 
to promote social responsibility 
and good relationships among 
employees
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Sustainability Assessment 
 The Company has established a process for assessing 

key sustainable issues in accordance with the GRI Standards 

2021 (Global Reporting Initiative) to reflect environmental, 

social, and governance issues that have significant impacts on 

creating value throughout the value chain. This includes impacts 

on stakeholder expectations and decision-making. The process 

involves identifying key issues, assessing them, and seeking 

approval from the Board of Directors annually as follows: 

Identification of Organizational Key Issues 
 The Company selects key issues that are consistent with 

the context and strategy of the organization, such as standards, 

requirements, and best practices in sustainable management, 

global trends, and related risks. The key issues of peer 

companies in the same industry are also considered. In addition, 

feedback from stakeholders in the 6 main stakeholder groups of 

The Company is analyzed, including customers, partners and 

collaborators, society and communities, government agencies, 

investors, and employees. 

Assessment of Importance Level 
 The importance level is evaluated based on 2 factors: 

the importance of the issue for The Company’s operations 

and its importance to stakeholders. The assessment considers 

opportunities and impacts on The Company’s value creation, 

financial performance, business processes, and reputation. 

It also takes into account the impact on customers, partners, 

and employees, as well as the level of interest and impact on 

creating value for stakeholders. The results of the assessment of 

the importance level of sustainable issues in 2022 are presented 

in the table of key sustainable issues. 

Review and Certification of Assessment Results 
  The assessment results on sustainability issues was 

reviewed with stakeholders and presented to the Sustainable 

Development and Governance Committee for approval, in order 

to incorporate observations and suggestions for continuous 

improvement of operations.

 Based on the 2022 sustainability issue assessment, a total of 8 important issues were identified, as shown in the table of 

important sustainability issues. The top 4 important issues include: 

 1. International Service Standards 

 2. Occupational Health and Safety 

 3. Sustainable Organizational Culture

 4. Greenhouse Gas Management

Priority / Impacts on Business
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Occupational Health & Safety

Global Service Standard

Greenhouse Gas Management

Sustainable Organization Culture

Human Rights Respect

Innovation & Technology

Community Support & Development

Community’s Social and Environmental 

Negative Impact Prevention

• Environmental Issue
• Social Issue
• Governance Issue
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3.3 Sustainability Management in the 
Environmental Dimension 

3.3.1 Environmental Policies and Practices 
 The Company sets policies and practices for 

conserving energy and preserving the environment as part of 

its logistics business operations, ensuring that The Company 

manages and utilizes resources effectively and without causing 

environmental impact.

 The Company has established resource management 

practices as follows:

• Strictly operate and manage resources, and energy, 

along with preserving the climate and environment 

at all procedures of business operations in 

accordance with the law and other related 

requirements.

• Define objectives and targets for managing 

resources, energy, waste, climate, and environment 

in a manner that is appropriate to usage levels, 

with a focus on reducing resource consumption 

and minimizing environmental impact.

• Assign resource, energy, public utility, and 

environmental management responsibility to 

executives and employees at all levels, who will 

collaborate in implementing the specified measures.

• Develop employee awareness of resource, energy, 

public utility, and environmental management by 

communicating and providing the necessary 

knowledge to ensure the proper care and 

maintenance of environmental quality.

• Provide necessary support as well as allocate 

personnel, budget, time, training, and support 

engagement in presenting employees’ useful 

opinions to improve the management of resources, 

energy, and utility, including climate and environment 

conservation.

• Committed to developing knowledge in environment, 

energy, and natural resource conservation to create 

innovations that are beneficial to The Company’s 

business operations.

• Evaluate the impact on the environment and report 

the risks related to the ecosystem and biodiversity 

with a suitable process before, during, and after 

implementing projects according to the relevant 

laws.

• Provide a selection of office equipment and/or 

environment-friendly energy and reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions.

3.3.2 Environmental Performance 
Targets
 The Company plans to carry out efficient energy 

management and environmental management by setting targets 

for energy use and environmental management as follows: 

1. Efficient Energy Management
 The Company places great importance on energy 

management by planning for energy conservation and the use 

of alternative energy sources. Moreover, in 2022, there were 

no cases of environmental law violations. As the global demand 

for electricity increases and with the promotion from the 

government to support the production of electricity from 

renewable energy sources to reduce environmental impact and 

community problems caused by fossil fuel power generation, 

The Company aims to achieve the targets of the 15 Years 

Alternative Energy Development Plan B.E. 2551-2565, and the 

Renewable Energy Development Plan B.E. 2558-2579. The 

Company recognizes the potential of solar energy, which is a 

clean and renewable energy source, and is aware of global 

warming issues, The Company has studied the technology and 

investment as well as the impact on the environment and 

communities. As a result, The Company has decided to install 

solar panels for the WICE GO GREEN project at WICE Place 

Headquarters, the Laem Chabang Office, and the truck yard to 

produce clean energy for its own use and reduce the purchase 

of electricity from external sources. This will reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions and promote a better quality of life for nearby 

communities.
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Electricity Cost Table
(Unit: THB)

Location 2020 2021 2022

Headquarters        904,898.22 690,043.73 797,140.26

Laemchabang Office        129,517.48 117,500.98 62,835.52

Transport Office        115,749.56 112,234.88 84,380.63

Electricity Bill     1,150,165.26 919,779.59 944,356.41

WICE Go Green Solar Project
 In 2022, The Company set a target to reduce 

electricity usage by 2% from 2021 for its headquarters, 

branches across Thailand, and warehouses. The following 

operations were carried out: 

1. Solar panels were installed at the headquarters building, 

WICE Place, the Laemchabang Office, and the truck yard 

to produce clean energy for The Company’s own use. This 

also helped reduce the purchase of electricity from the state 

and greenhouse gas emissions into the atmosphere, while 

promoting a better quality of life for nearby communities. 

2. A campaign was launched to raise awareness about energy 

conservation. 

3. A campaign was launched to encourage energy conservation 

by turning off lights and air conditioners for one hour during 

lunch break and using stairs instead of elevators. 

4. The air conditioning system was optimized by increasing 

the frequency of air filter cleaning to once per quarter.

Performance Results of Energy Management
1. Based on the data, the overall energy consumption in 2022 

decreased by 16% compared to 2021, but the energy costs 

increased due to the following reasons:

a. Adjustments of the FT rate of government agencies 

in 2022.

b. Employees at the headquarters started to return to work 

more frequently after The Company’s Work From Home 

policy was lifted in response to the relaxation of 

COVID-19 measures by government agencies.

Electricity Consumption Table
(Unit: Kilowatt-hour)

Location 2020 2021 2022

Headquarters N/A 143,666 147,821 

Laemchabang Office N/A  26,587  12,583 

Transport Office N/A  25,434  23,531 

Electricity Bill N/A  195,687  183,935
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Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions: 

Direct Emissions (Scope 1)   Indirect Emissions (Scope 2)

• Fuel consumption of transport vehicles and cars 

• Refrigerant gas in air conditioning units 

• Refrigerant gas in air dryer 

• Refrigerant gas in refrigerators and coolers 

• LPG burning from fire extinguisher training

• Leakage of wastewater from the septic tank

• Electricity

2. Greenhouse Gas Management 
 Climate change is a direct threat to the environment 

and ecosystems, and its severity has increased dramatically. 

It is an urgent matter that requires cooperation from all sectors 

to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The Company is aware 

of the importance of reducing the impact on the environment 

to sustain the business operation and is committed to protecting 

the environment and reducing global warming. Measures include 

conserving energy and reducing electricity used through rigorous 

and continuous operations. In 2022, The Company’s greenhouse 

gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2) were audited by an independent 

agency specializing in business strategy and environmental 

sustainability, Faculty of Environment, Kasetsart University 

(Bangkhen Campus). The agency is an external watchdog 

registered as an external assessor for carbon footprint 

certification for organizations by the Greenhouse Gas 

Management Organization. The Company’s greenhouse gas 

emissions in the transport sector in 2021 were 1,812 tons of 

carbon dioxide. Scope 1 emissions were 1,706 tons of carbon 

dioxide and scope 2 emissions were 106 tons of carbon dioxide. 

 In 2022, The Company’s greenhouse gas emissions 

were 1,723 tons of carbon dioxide. Scope 1 emissions were 

1,622 tons of carbon dioxide and scope 2 emissions were 101 

tons of carbon dioxide. This data is being reviewed by an 

independent agency and will be disclosed on the website: www.

wice.co.th.

 Therefore, The Company is committed to reducing carbon dioxide emissions from its operations in the transportation sector 

by setting targets to use electric vehicles (EVs) in 2023 and reducing both direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by 2% by 

2031, from the base year average in 2021.

3.  Waste Management 
  The Company recognizes the increase in waste and 

leftover materials, which can lead to environmental problems 

in the future. In order to efficiently manage waste, The Company 

has initiated the “Waste Sorting for a Sustainable Workplace” 

project. The project includes the use of color-coded bins to 

clearly separate different types of waste, with yellow bins for 

recyclables, green bins for organic waste, and red bins for 

hazardous waste. The type of waste is indicated and the bins 

are prepared in various locations around the office. The 

Company aims to instill a good sense of waste management 

among its employees and to educate them on the importance 

and benefits of waste sorting through training programs. 
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3.4 Sustainability Management in 
Social Dimension 

3.4.1  Social Policy and Practice
 The Company, including its subsidiaries and joint 

ventures, has a mindset of conducting business with integrity 

and a strong commitment to social responsibility and human 

rights for all groups, in accordance with The Company’s 

corporate governance principles and ethics. In terms of human 

rights protection, The Company strictly adheres to laws and 

international standards, especially in supporting and 

implementing the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 

(UDHR), the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC), the 

United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human 

Rights (UNGP), and the International Labor Organization 

Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work (ILO) 

to ensure that its business operations are free from human 

rights violations.

 The Company has established policies and guidelines 

to prevent human rights violations in all business activities of 

The Company, subsidiaries, and joint ventures, as well as in 

business partners in the value chain. These policies and 

guidelines are communicated to the Board of Directors, 

management, and employees at all levels of The Company to 

raise awareness of the importance of and respect for human 

rights in all aspects of individuals, society, and communities, 

in accordance with the laws of each country and the terms of 

the relevant agreements. The Company also communicates, 

educates, provides guidance, monitors, and supports all 

stakeholders involved. 

 In addition, The Company has provided employees 

and stakeholders with channels to report grievances or 

complaints. Proper management of these complaints is ensured 

with measures in place to protect the complainant or anyone 

who cooperates in reporting human rights violations. The 

Company also provides appropriate remedies for those affected, 

such as medical care, compensation, and follow-up care to 

ensure that they receive adequate redress. The Company 

reviews and revises its human rights policy and practices at 

least once a year.

3.4.2 Performance in Social Aspect
 In 2022, The Company conducted social activities that 

covered both operational and various activities related to 

employees, customers, communities, and all stakeholder groups. 

These activities included The Company’s policies on social 

responsibility in the process of conducting business and the 

activities that separated from business operations, both in the 

area of project development and regular operations. 

 The Company has established a strategy for 

sustainable social project development covering all 3 

dimensions: knowledge development, community and social 

care, and environmentally appropriate practices in line with 

community needs and concerns. In addition, The Company has 

assessed the needs of neighboring communities and the social 

and environmental impacts on the surrounding community. The 

assessment showed that The Company has appropriate 

management strategies in place to mitigate the impacts through 

various communication channels such as telephone, email, 

participation in community activities, the appointment of 

community representatives in the area, and channels for 

reporting any inappropriate actions. All suggestions, comments, 

and complaints will be reviewed by the Social Committee to 

determine appropriate development strategies before being 

reported to The Company’s Board of Directors. 

The Company’s recent social activities included: 
• Social and health promotion activities such as 

training transport drivers on safe driving rules and 

social responsibilities, testing for alcohol and drug 

use among drivers to reduce accidents, training 

employees on topics related to business operations, 

promoting annual health check-ups, and helping 

fruit orchard farmers distribute their products through 

online platforms and advertising to increase their 

revenue and reduce transportation problems.

• Environmental activities such as providing education 

and training on environmental issues, campaigning 

for energy conservation, and reducing net 

greenhouse gas emissions to zero (Net Zero).

• Educational activities such as sharing knowledge 

about logistics with educational institutions and 

universities. 

 For more details on The Company’s sustainable 

business operations in 2022, please refer to the sustainability 

report on The Company’s website: https://www.wice.co.th/

sustainability-reports/.
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4.1 Analysis of Operations and Financial Position 
Overview of The Company’s Performance 

 Unit: Million THB

Detail 2021 2022
Increase (Decrease)

Percentage

Sales 7,636.60 7,102.50 (6.99)

EBITDA 916.83 882.71 (3.72)

Net Profit 535.53 554.06 3.46

Profit per Share (THB per Share) 0.82 0.85 3.66

Company Limited in the amount of 2.7 million THB (MYR 

0.3 million). Such a capital increase does not affect the 

shareholding proportion of Euroasia Total Logistics Public 

Company Limited following the Euroasia Total Logistics 

(M) Private Company Limited changes.

5. On May 24, 2022, the Extraordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders No. 1/2022 of Euroasia Total Logistics Public 

Company Limited approved the following resolutions:

• Converted from a limited company to a public 

company limited and changed its name to “Euroasia 

Total Logistics Public Company Limited.”

• Changed the par value of ordinary shares from 10 

THB per share to 0.50 THB per share, causing the 

number of ordinary shares of Euroasia Total Logistics 

Public Company Limited to increase from the original 

amount of 12,244,898 shares to 244,897,960 shares.

• Increased the registered capital from the original 

122,448,980 THB (244,897,960 ordinary shares at 

the par value of 0.50 THB per share) for the Initial 

Public Offering.

• Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited 

registered the conversion and the capital increase with 

the Ministry of Commerce on May 25, 2022.

4. Management Discussion and Analysis: (MD&A) 
Performance in 2022

Important Events During the Year 

1. On February 22, 2022, the Board of Directors of Euro Asia 

Transport Company Limited (a subsidiary company) passed 

a resolution to call for the payment of unpaid ordinary 

shares of 4,500,000 shares at a value of 7.50 THB per 

share. The Company made a total payment of 33.75 million 

THB on February 25, 2022.

2. On March 16, 2022, the Annual Ordinary Meeting of 

Shareholders of WICE Supply Chain Solution Company 

Limited resolved to increase the registered capital from 

13.5 million THB to a newly registered capital of 80 million 

THB by issuing 66,500 additional ordinary shares at a par 

value of 1,000 THB per share. The Company paid for the 

capital increase shares totaling 33.25 million THB on March 

16, 2022, and recorded them as accrued expenses 

classified in accounts payable and other payables.

3. On April 29, 2022, the Annual Ordinary Meeting of 

Shareholders of The Company passed a resolution 

approving the dividend payment from the operating results 

for the year 2021 to shareholders at the rate of 0.23 THB, 

amounting to 149.9 million THB. The dividend was paid 

on May 13, 2022.

4. On May 18, 2022, Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited invested more in Euroasia Total Logistic (M) Private 
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and The Company Group are as follows:

The Company Group Name Characteristic of Business Established in
Proportion 
of Shares 

(Percentage)

WICE Supply Chain Solution 
Company Limited
(formerly known as “Sun Express 
(Thailand) Company Limited”)

Arrange all types of transportation and 
procurement of freight, both domestic 
and international

Thailand 99.99

Euroasia Total Logistics Company 
Limited

Cross-border transport services Thailand 51

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte.Ltd Arrange all types of transportation and 
procurement of freight, both domestic 
and international

Singapore 100

WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited Arrange all types of transportation and 
procurement of freight, both domestic 
and international

Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region        

of the People’s Republic 
of China

80

Subsidiary of WICE Logistics (Singapore) Private Limited Company

- WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Private 
Limited Company

Arrange all types of transportation and 
procurement of freight, both domestic 
and international

Malaysia 70

Subsidiary of WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited

- Guangzhou WICE Logistics Limited Arrange all types of transportation and 
procurement of freight, both domestic 
and international

People’s Republic            
of China

100

- WICE Logistics (Shenzhen) Limited 70

Subsidiary of Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited

- Euroasia Total Logistics (M)       
Private Limited Company

Cross-border transport services Malaysia 49

- Euroasia Integrated Logistics (M) 
Private Limited Company

Malaysia 100

- Guangxi Euroasia Total Logistics People’s Republic           
of China

100

- Euroasia Transport Company 
Limited

Thailand 100

Subsidiaries of Guangxi Euroasia Total Logistics

- Euroasia Total Logistics (China) 
Company Limited

Cross-border transport services People’s Republic           
of China

100
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Performance Analysis in 2022
 From the summary of The Company’s operating results 

for the year 2022, revenue from services was 7,102.50 million 

THB, a decrease of 534.10 million THB from the previous year, 

representing 6.99%. The reasons for the decline in revenue 

were in line with slower global economic growth and lower 

imports and exports, especially for The Company’s main trading 

partners, the US market and the Chinese market. In addition, 

the freight rate has decreased by 50-70%, with most of The 

Company’s revenue coming from marine transportation services, 

thus affecting The Company’s revenue decline this year. Gross 

profit for the year 2022 was 1,266.07 million THB, an increase 

of 22.79 million THB from the previous year, representing 1.83%, 

and the net profit for the year 2022 was 554.06 million THB, 

an increase from the previous year in the amount of 18.53 

million THB, representing 3.46%. From the performance, 

although the revenue has declined, the gross profit and net 

profit have grown better than the previous year due to The 

Company’s cost management strategy, resulting in the gross 

profit margin for this year compared to last year improving from 

16.29% to 17.83% and the net profit margin for this year 

compared to last year improving from 8.09% to 8.34%.

 Business operations can be classified into the following types of services:

Service Revenue

Service Cost

 Unit: Million THB

 2021  2022

Unit: Million THB

 2021  2022

3,730 3,758

Sea Freight Air Freight 

1,758 1,616 
1,927

1,534 

420 417 

Cross Border Services Supply Chain Solution 

Sea Freight Air Freight Cross Border Services Supply Chain Solution 

3,105 3,034

1,487 1,346
1,672

1,324  

336  355 
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Gross Profit

Unit: Million THB

Records
Year

Increase (Decrease) Percentage
2021 2022

Service Revenue

Sea Freight 3,730 3,758 28 0.75

Air Freight 1,785 1,616 (169) (9.47)

Cross-Border Service 1,927 1,534 (393) (20.39)

Supply Chain Solutions 402 417 15 3.73

Elimination Inter-Company Transaction (207) (222) (15) 7.25

Total Service Revenue 7,637 7,103 (534) (6.99)

Service Cost

Sea Freight 3,105 3,034 (71) (2.29)

Air Freight 1,487 1,346 (141) (9.47)

Cross-Border Service 1,672 1,324 (348) (20.81)

Supply Chain Solutions 336 355 19 5.65

Elimination Inter-Company Transaction (207) (222) (15) 7.25

Total Service Cost 6,393 5,837 (556) (8.69)

Gross Profit 

Sea Freight 625 724 98.95 15.83

Air Freight 298 270 (28.18) (9.45)

Cross-Border Service 255 210 (45.00) (17.65)

 625
724

Sea Freight Air Freight

 298 270 255
210

66  62 

Cross Border Services Supply Chain Solution 

1,244 1,266

Total of Gross Profits

Unit: Million THB

 2021  2022
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Performance per Segment
• Revenue from Sea Freight

 Sea freight revenue for the 4th quarter of 2022 was 481 

million THB, a decrease of 813 million THB, representing 63% 

of the previous year for the same period. And for 2022, it was 

3,758 million THB, an increase of 28 million THB, representing 

0.8% of the previous year for the same period. As for sea freight 

services, the volume of freight services in the 4th quarter 

decreased due to the economic slowdown, which caused the 

volume of freight to decrease toward the end of the 

year. However, for this year, the revenue from sea freight still 

grows and is not lower than the previous year. The gross profit 

from sea freight for the 4th quarter of 2022 was 116 million 

THB, a decrease of 103 million THB, representing 47% of the 

year before for the same period, and for the year 2022, it was 

724 million THB, an increase of 99 million THB, representing 

16% of the previous year for the same period. Although the 

revenue from freight services has grown slightly, the gross profit 

in 2022 has increased due to The Company’s efficient cost 

management from 16.8% to 19.3%.

• Revenue from Air Freight

 Air freight revenue for the 4th quarter of 2022 was 389 

million THB, a decrease of 113 million THB, representing 23% 

of the previous year for the same period, and for 2022, it was 

1,616 million THB, a decrease of 169 million THB, representing 

10% of the previous year for the same period. The reason is 

that in the previous year, there was a COVID-19 situation, and 

The Company had made a lot of charter flights, so it had relatively 

high revenues and costs compared to this year, thus reducing 

the revenue from air services for the year 2022 from last year. 

The gross profit from air freight for the 4th quarter of 2022 was 

83 million THB, an increase of 9 million THB, representing 12% 

of the previous year for the same period, and for 2022, it was 

270 million THB, a decrease of 28 million THB, representing 

9% of the previous year for the same period.

• Revenue from Cross-Border Service

 Revenue from cross-border land transport for the 4th quarter 

of 2022 was 372 million THB, a decrease of 178 million THB, 

representing 32% of the previous year for the same period. And 

for 2022, it was 1,534 million THB, a decrease of 393 million 

THB, representing 20% of the previous year for the same 

period. The cause is the closure of the checkpoint in China in 

early 2022, which will be an obstacle to cross-border land 

transportation, making it impossible to transport, resulting in a 

decrease in revenue. Gross profit from cross-border land transport 

for the 4th quarter of 2022 was 50 million THB, a decrease of 

12 million THB, representing 19% of the previous year for the 

same period, and for 2022, it was 210 million THB, a decrease 

of 45 million THB, which was 18% of the previous year for the 

same period.

• Revenue from Supply Chain Solutions

 Revenue from supply chain solutions for the 4th quarter of 

2022 was 112 million THB, an increase of 14 million THB, 

representing 14% of the previous year for the same period, and 

for 2022, it was equal to 417 million THB, an increase of 15 

million THB, representing 4% of the previous year for the same 

period. The reason is that The Company started recognizing 

revenue in July 2022 with a new project, warehouse management, 

involving an area of 15,000 square meters, thus increasing 

revenue. The gross profit from supply chain solutions for the 4th 

quarter of 2022 was 25 million THB, an increase of 9 million 

THB, representing 56% of the previous year for the same period, 

and for 2022, it was equal to 62 million THB, a decrease of 4 

million THB, representing 6% of the previous year for the same 

period.

 Supply Chain Solutions 66 62 (4.00) (6.06)

Total Gross Profit 1,244 1,266 21.77 1.75

Gross Profit Margin 

Sea Freight 16.76% 19.27% 2.51%

Air Freight 16.70% 16.71% 0.00%

Cross-Border Service 13.23% 13.69% 0.46%

Supply Chain Solutions 16.42% 14.87% (1.55%)

Total Gross Profit Margin 16.29% 17.82% 1.53%
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 Other revenue of The Company for the year ending on December 31, 2022, was 34.22 million THB compared to the same 

period last year of 34.13 million THB, an increase of 0.08 million THB or 0.24%. Other revenue consisted of profit from sales and 

revaluation of investments in debt instruments and profit on exchange rates, which slightly increased compared to the previous year.

 The summary of proportion changes in service revenue is as follows:

                  

Unit: Million THB

Cross 
Border  
Services
5%

Sea 
Freight
47%

Air 
Freight

23%

Logistics
25%

2021 2022

Sea 
Freight
51%

Air 
Freight

22%

Cross 
Border  
Services
6%Logistics

21%

Other income    

34.13

34.22

2021 2022

Unit: Million THB

 2021  2022

115.79
135.95

379.01 390.85

15.31 19.60

147.48 158.63

Selling Expenses Administrative Expenses Financial Cost Corporate Income Tax
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The Company’s Selling Expenses

 For the years ending on December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, the amounts were 135.95 million THB and 

115.79 million THB, respectively, which increased by 20.16 

million THB, or 17.41%. This is due to the increase in selling 

expenses, mostly commissions paid to salespeople, in line with 

the increase in gross profit in 2022.

The Company’s Administrative Expenses

 For the years ending on December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, the amount was 390.85 million THB and 

379.01 million THB, respectively, an increase of 11.84 million 

THB, representing 3.12%. The cause was due the fluctuating 

THB currency situation, which caused The Company to 

recognize a loss from the exchange rate at the end of the year, 

resulting in an increase in administrative expenses from the 

previous year.

 

The Company’s Financial Cost

 For the years ending on December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, equal 19.60 million THB and 15.31 million 

THB, respectively, an increase of 4.29 million THB or 28.05%. As 

a result of The Company borrowing money at the end of 2021 

to invest in investments in subsidiaries, Euroasia Total Logistics 

Company Limited has borrowed more money from institutions 

to expand its business, which is growing continuously. Resulting 

in interest being recognized in full throughout the year. In 

addition, The Company has borrowed money to buy a tractor 

to support work expansion, resulting in a higher financial cost 

this year than last year.

The Company’s Income Tax Expenses

 For the years ending on December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, the amount was 158.63 million THB and 

147.48 million THB, respectively, an increase of 11.15 million 

THB, representing 7.56%. Increased corporate taxes from higher 

profits from the previous year.

Unit: Million THB

Records

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements
Change

2021 2022 Amount Percentage

Other income 34.13 34.22 0.08 0.24

Selling Expenses 115.79 135.95 20.16 17.41

Administrative Expenses 379.01 390.85 11.84 3.12

Financial Cost 15.31 19.60 4.29 28.05

Corporate Income Tax 147.48 158.63 11.15 7.56

Net Profits

Unit: Million THB

535.53
554.06

2021 2022
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 The Company Net Profit

 For the years ending December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, which equaled 554.06 million THB and 535.53 million 

THB, respectively, compared to the previous year, revenues increased by 18.53 million THB or 3.46%. Although The Company’s 

revenue in 2022 decreased from the previous year, its profits still increased. Because The Company has effective cost management, 

there is a cost management strategy. As can be seen from the increased profitability, the net profit margin improved this year 

from 8.09% to 8.34%.

3. Other current financial assets as of December 31, 2022, 

and December 31, 2021, were 353.22 million THB and 

410.67 million THB, respectively, a decrease of 57.45 

million THB or 13.99%. This is because The Company 

has invested some of the money invested in open-ended 

funds into deposits at a commercial bank with higher returns 

and lower risk.

4. Right-of-use assets as of December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, were 167.49 million THB and 99.75 

million THB, respectively, an increase of 67.74 million THB 

or 67.91%. This year, The Company purchased more 

tractors and trailers to support its expansion through 

hire-purchase, increasing its vehicle right-of-use assets.

5. As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the 

goodwill was 225.50 million THB and 139.84 million THB, 

respectively, an increase of 85.65 million THB or 61.25%. 

It is the goodwill from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

6. The purchase price is higher than the asset value as of 

December 31, 2022, than as of December 31, 2021, which 

Assets
 The Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2022, 

and December 31, 2021, were equal to 3,332.38 million THB 

and 3,495.44 million THB, respectively, which decreased by 

163.07 million THB or 4.67% as follows:

1. Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, were 852.47 million THB and 428.55 

million THB, respectively, which increased by 423.92 million 

THB, or an increase of 98.92%. Since The Company has 

cash flow from operations by receiving payment from trade 

accounts receivable. Most of which is the amount generated 

from operations in 2022.

2. Trade accounts receivable as of December 31, 2022, and 

December 31, 2021, were 1,069.40 million THB and 

1,667.01 million THB, respectively, a decrease of 597.61 

million THB or 35.85%. The decrease in debtors was 

caused by a decrease in revenue from services this year 

compared to the previous year, as well as The Company’s 

timely collection of debt from debtors.

Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalent

Trade & Other Receivables

Long-term Loans to related individuals & companies - current portion

Current financial assets

Other current assets

Guaranteed Deposit

Long-term Loans to unrelated companies 

Joint venture investment

51%

26%

32%

11%

10%

7%
7%

5%

2%

1%
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Liabilities
 The Company has total liabilities as of December 31, 

2022, and as of December 31, 2021, equal to 1,460.74 million 

THB and 1,993.37 million THB, respectively, a decrease of 

532.63 million THB or 26.72% with the following observations: 

1. Trade payable and other payable as of December 31, 2022, 

and as of December 31, 2021, were 813.43 million THB 

and 1,280.2299 million THB, respectively, a decrease of 

466.79 million THB or 36.46%. Caused by a decrease in 

service revenue, resulting in a decrease in the cost of 

services according to the variable factors. As a result, trade 

payable decreased from the previous year.

2. Finance lease liabilities due within one year as of December 

31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, were 59.07 million THB 

and 30.14 million THB, respectively, an increase of 28.93 

million THB or 96.00%. In addition, finance lease liabilities 

net from the portion due within one year as of December 

31, 2022, and as of December 31, 2021, equal to 100.77 

million THB and 59.33 million THB, respectively, increased 

by 41.44 million THB, or equivalent to 69.86%. The reason 

is due to borrowing money from banks to invest in the 

purchase of container trucks by Euro Asia Total Logistics 

Company Limited and WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited to support business expansion. As a result, finance 

lease liabilities increased in the financial statements.

Liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions

Trade & other receivables

Long-term Loans to related individuals & companies that are due in 1 year

Current Long-term loans portion from financial institutions

Liability for the purchase of investments in subsidiary companies

Current portion of finance lease liabilities

Liability for business acquisition

Unpaid income tax

Other current financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Long-term bank loans - Current portion

Long-term loans from related parties - Current portion

Finance lease liabilities - Current portion

Business acquisition payables

Long-term employee benefits reserve

Accrued income tax payable

Other non-current liabilities

56%

3%

3%

4%

6%

6%

8%

7%

2%

2%

2%

is equal to 0.00 million THB and 85.86 million THB, respectively, a decrease of 85.86 million THB or 100.00%. As a result 

of the year 2022, the fair value measurement was performed, and The Company recorded the fair value of the asset arising 

from the purchase price allocation and recorded the difference between the compensation for the purchase of the business 

and the fair value of the asset as goodwill.
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Shareholder’s Equity
 As of December 31, 2022, The Company had shareholders’ equity equal to 1,871.64 million THB and 1,502.08 million THB, an 

increase of 369.56 million THB or 24.60%. As a result of the increase in operating profit, the shareholders’ equity increased this year.

Suitability of the Capital Structure
Debt-to-Equity Ratio

 Debt-to-equity decreased from 0.89 times to 1.33 times as of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, respectively. At present, 

the debt-to-equity ratio is still at an appropriate level. This is because The Company has the policy to invest and spend most of its business 

capital on shareholders’ equity. For this reason, it results in low financial risk, which can be analyzed from the liquidity ratios as of December 

31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, which were equal to 1.99 times and 1.58 times, respectively. It shows that The Company still has a 

relatively high level of liquidity.

Cash Flow Statement 2022 

Unit : MB837.85

Cash Flow from 
Financing Activities

-101 -293

Cash Flow from 
Investing Activities

Cash Flow from 
Operating Activities

Shareholder’s Equity    

Registered Capital

Share Premium

Surplus from the Merge under Common Control

Surplus (Deficit) of Capital from the Change in the Shareholding Proportion in Subsidiaries

Retained Earnings - Appropriated Legal Reserve

Retained Earnings - Unappropriated

Other Components of Equity

50%
6%

16%

15%11%
1%

1%
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Liquidity 
Cash Flows Liquidity

 Net cash flow from operating activities for the year 2022 is 837.85 million THB, which is positive. Therefore, it shows that The 

Company’s cash inflow from operating activities is good and is greater than net profit according to the accrual basis of the financial 

statements, which reflect the current operation with relatively high cash inflows.

 Net cash flow from investing activities for the year 2022 is -101.34 million THB. This was due to The Company’s cash 

outflow for the purchase of fixed assets, mainly for the purchase of tractor vehicles and trailers to support The Company’s growth 

and expansion.

 Net cash flow from financing activities for the year 2022 was -293.20 million THB. This was due to the fact that The Company 

had paid dividends of 173 million THB, paid to repay loans of 170 million THB, and received cash from borrowings of 50 million THB.
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4.2 Factors that May Affect Future 
Performance 

4.2.1 Factors affecting financial position or future 
performance 

 The overall Thai economy in 2023 will still face pressure from 

a variety of negative factors, especially the global economic slowdown 

and the direction of the THB appreciation, at least in the 1st quarter 

of 2023. In addition, with the base factor in 2022 at a high level, it 

is estimated that the overall Thai economy in 2023 may grow less 

than in 2022. However, The Company still views that China’s 

zero-tolerance of COVID-19 measures, leading to the opening up 

of China’s country, will allow Chinese economic activities in both 

production and consumption to improve and help drive exports and 

imports between Thailand and China as well as markets in Asia. 

1. Freight Rates: According to the international freight 

situation, there is a direction toward lower freight rates in 

the 3rd quarter and the last quarter of 2022, and the 

general congestion situation at major ports around the 

world has improved. In addition, the increase in the number 

of vessels in 2023 is approximately 3.8%. Therefore, it 

is expected that the freight rates in 2023 will decrease by 

30-50% from the freight rates in 2022. The freight situation 

on the main routes between the United States and Europe 

has decreased by as much as 50% compared to the year 

2022. However, compared to before COVID-19 in 2019, 

it was found that the freight rate was still higher than 

before COVID-19, but the freight rate difference was not 

very high. At the same time, Asia and the Middle East 

are also important export markets where The Company 

can expand its services.

  However, the management approach of the shipping 

lines to balance the number of ships with the demand for 

cargo is also an important factor in the freight rates, and 

the shipping lines may have to do blank sailing (cancellation 

of service in some weeks) in some periods to push up 

freight rates. The Company is also optimistic about 

products in growth groups such as food, electronics, 

rubber, and auto parts products.
 Unit: Million THB

Company Currency Limit

Support Provided

Outstanding Loan 
Balance

Others

WICE Supply Chain Solutions Company Limited บาท 20.00 15.55 -

Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited บาท 10.00 1.95 -

  The Company views this as a product group in which 

it has the expertise, can offer a variety of services, and 

responds to the growing needs of customers. This will 

result in an increase in service volume, which will help 

offset the decline in freight rates and ensure that The 

Company’s financial position is less affected by the decline 

in freight rates. 

2. Oil Price: According to the analysis of major economic 

research offices around the world, it is expected that the 

oil price trend in 2023 will decrease. The global economic 

recession caused the demand for oil to decrease. It is 

expected that the oil price trend in 2023 will be between 

90 and 100 dollars per barrel, a decrease of 5-10% from 

2022, but The Company still needs to monitor consumption 

and production volumes as well. If the consumption 

increases in the second half of 2023, it may result in the 

oil rate coming closer to or exceeding that of 2022. The 

degree to which the oil price fluctuates will directly affect 

the freight rate. The Company views the fluctuation of 

5-10% in the freight rate that it can manage as not 

significant. 

  At the same time, the fuel rate also results in a 

decrease or increase in The Company’s cost of 

transportation services. However, since The Company 

provides services at different rates depending on the fuel 

price, The Company believes that the fluctuation in oil 

price does not significantly affect The Company’s financial 

position.

4.2.2 The obligation of providing financial support 
to its affiliates

 On December 31, 2022, The Company has an 

obligation to provide financial support to The Company Group; 

details are as follows: 

 Provide financial support in the form of short and 

long-term loans
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4.2.3 Policy and Credit Term 
 The Company has a credit management policy that establishes rules and procedures for giving loans that are competitive 

and comparable to those of competitors, considering the overall average receiving and payment time is consistent and does not 

affect financial liquidity, considering costs and financial risks that may arise from exchange rates. 

 Financial ratios related to trade credit terms over the past 3 years are as follows: 

      Unit: Day

Financial Ratio 2020 2021 2022 3-Year Average

Accounts Receivable Days (AR days) 67 60 67 64.66

Accounts Payable Days (AP Days) 65 57 65 62.33

4.3 Financial Highlights 
 The presented financial position and operating results 

consist of the operating results from the financial statements 

for the year ending on December 31, 2022, which were audited 

by the certified public accountant, EY Company Limited, by 

showing the comparison of the financial base and results. 

Operate from the financial statements for the years ending 

December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021. 

New Financial Reporting Standards
 During the year, The Company Group has adopted 

several revised financial reporting standards and interpretations. 

It was effective for financial statements with accounting periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2022. The aforementioned 

financial reporting standard has been revised or made available 

to be consistent with International Financial Reporting 

Standards. It mainly clarifies accounting practices and provides 

accounting practices to users of the standard. The adoption of 

these financial reporting standards does not have any significant 

impact on The Company Group’s financial statements. 

Financial reporting standards that will become 
effective for financial statements with accounting 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
 The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued 

several revised financial reporting standards. They are effective 

for financial statements for accounting periods beginning on or 

after January 1, 2022. Such financial reporting standards have 

been reviewed or made available to be equivalent to international 

financial reporting standards. Most of them clarify accounting 

practices, and some financial reporting standards provide 

practical waivers or temporary exemptions to standard users. 

The Company Group’s management believes that the revised 

standard will not have a significant impact on its financial 

statements.

The Auditor and Summary of Audit Report

Financial statement for the year ending on December 31, 2020

 Aud i ted by EY Company L imi ted , in wh ich 

Mr. Chayaphol Suphasethanon, Certified Public Accountant 

Registration No. 3972, is an auditor licensed by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission to perform an audit by generally 

accepted auditing standards. He expressed the opinion that 

The Company’s financial statements on December 31, 2020, 

operating results, and cash flows for the year ending on the 

same date were presented correctly as they should in material 

respects under the financial reporting standards.

Financial statement for the year ending on December 31, 2021

 Aud i ted by EY Company L imi ted , in wh ich 

Mr. Chayaphol Suphasethanon, Certified Public Accountant 

Registration No. 3972, is an auditor licensed by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission to perform an audit by generally 

accepted auditing standards. He expressed the opinion that 

The Company’s financial statements on December 31, 2021, 

operating results, and cash flows for the year ending on the 

same date were presented correctly as they should in material 

respects under the financial reporting standards.

Financial statement for the year ending on December 31, 2022

 Audited by EY Company Limited, in which Ms. Pimjai 
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Manitkajohnkit, Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 

4521, is an auditor licensed by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission to perform an audit by generally accepted auditing 

standards. She expressed the opinion that The Company’s 

financial statements on December 31, 2022, operating results, 

and cash flows for the year ending on the same date were 

presented correctly as they should in material respects under 

the financial reporting standards.

Summary of the Auditor’s Audit Report for the Past 

3 Years

In 2020, the auditor has audited the financial 

statements with an unconditional opinion.

In 2021, the auditor has audited the financial 

statements with an unconditional opinion.

In 2022, the auditor has audited the financial 

statements with an unconditional opinion.

4.3.1 Statement of Financial Position 
               Unit: Million THB

Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated            
Financial Statements

Change         
as                

Percentage
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022

Amount Per-
centage Amount Per-

centage Amount Per-
centage

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 263.33 12.87 428.55 12.26 852.47 25.58 98.92

Temporary Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Trade Accounts Receivable and Other Receivable 953.06 46.59 1,667.01 47.69 1,069.40 32.09 (35.85)

Short-Term Loans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Current Portion of Long-term Loans from 
Related Parties Due within One Year

0.00 0.00 1.42 0.04 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Current Financial Assets 144.71 7.07 410.67 11.75 353.22 10.60 (13.99)

Other Current Assets 40.71 1.99 64.37 1.84 64.11 1.92 (0.41)

Total Current Assets 1,401.82 68.53 2,572.02 73.58 2,339.19 70.20 (9.05)

Non-Current Assets

Collateralized Deposits 2.98 0.15 2.87 0.08 2.88 0.09 0.30

Long-Term Loans to Related Parties 2.20 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Long-Term Loans to Unrelated Parties 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 0.75 100.00

Investment in Associates 0.10 0.00 0.80 0.02 1.40 0.04 74.89

Net Total Property, Plant, and Equipment 207.68 10.15 350.39 10.02 334.94 10.05 (4.41)

Right-of-Use Assets 39.53 1.93 99.75 2.85 167.49 5.03 67.91

Goodwill 139.84 6.84 139.84 4.00 225.50 6.77 61.25

Net Intangible Assets 249.81 12.21 236.67 6.77 223.25 6.70 (5.67)

Deferred Tax Assets 0.14 0.01 0.69 0.02 2.90 0.09 318.37

Business Price that are Higher than the Asset Value 0.00 0.00 85.86 2.46 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Other Non-Current Assets 1.39 0.07 6.54 0.19 9.82 0.29 50.10

Total Non-Current Assets 643.68 31.47 923.43 26.42 993.19 29.80 7.55

Total Assets 2,045.50 100.00 3,495.44 100.00 3,332.38 100.00 (4.67)
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Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated            
Financial Statements

Change         
as                

Percentage
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022

Amount Per-
centage Amount Per-

centage Amount Per-
centage

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Short-term Loans from Financial Institutions 11.68 0.57 7.88 0.23 49.66 1.49 530.58

Trade Payable and Other Payable 726.99 35.54 1,280.22 36.63 813.43 24.41 (36.46)

Current Portion of Long-term Loans from 
Related Parties Due within One Year

1.86 0.09 2.17 0.06 0.33 0.01 (84.95)

Long-Term Loans from Bank Due within One Year 32.25 1.58 81.89 2.34 82.00 2.46 0.14

Creditors of Payable for Purchase of 
Investment in Subsidiaries

0.00 0.00 68.79 1.97 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Current Portion of Finance Lease Liabilities 7.79 0.38 30.14 0.86 59.07 1.77 96.00

Creditors of Business Acquisitions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 49.97 1.50 100.00

Current Income Tax Payable 47.39 2.32 101.37 2.90 91.80 2.75 (9.44)

Other Financial Liabilities 0.04 0.00 0.13 0.00 0.04 0.00 (67.14)

Other Current Liabilities 17.13 0.84 52.00 1.49 26.53 0.80 (48.98)

Total Current Liabilities 845.12 41.32 1,624.57 46.48 1,172.82 35.19 (27.81)

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-Term Bank Loans-Net of Portion Due 
within One Year

99.93 4.89 201.16 5.75 119.16 3.58 (40.76)

Long-Term Loans from Related Parties-             
Net of Portion Due within One Year

2.01 0.10 0.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Liability under Finance Lease Agreement-          
Net of Portion Due within One Year

21.64 1.06 59.33 1.70 100.77 3.02 69.86

Creditors of Payable for Purchase of 
Investment in Subsidiaries

48.58 2.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Creditors of Business Acquisitions 0.00 0.00 47.46 1.36 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Provision for Long-Term Employee Benefits 20.33 0.99 27.53 0.79 31.60 0.95 14.77

Deferred Tax Liability 32.20 1.57 33.15 0.95 33.94 1.02 2.37

Other Non-Current Liabilities 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.45 0.07 100.00

Total Non-Current Liabilities 224.77 10.99 368.80 10.55 287.92 8.64 (21.93)

Total Liabilities 1,069.90 52.30 1,993.37 57.03 1,460.74 43.83 (26.72)
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Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated            
Financial Statements

Change         
as                

Percentage
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022

Amount
Per-

centage
Amount

Per-
centage

Amount
Per-

centage

Shareholder’s Equity

Registered Capital 325.95 15.93 325.95 9.32 325.95 9.78 0.00

Issued and Fully Paid Capital 325.95 15.93 325.95 9.32 325.95 9.78 0.00

Premium on Ordinary Shares 347.78 17.00 347.78 9.95 347.78 10.44 0.00

Surplus from Business Combination under 
Common Control

5.60 0.27 5.60 0.16 5.60 0.17 0.00

Surplus (lower than) the Capital from Change 
of Shareholding in Subsidiary

(51.42) (2.51) (90.08) (2.58) (131.67) (3.95) 46.18

Retained Profit-Allocated as a Legal Reserve 
Fund

32.59 1.59 32.59 0.93 32.59 0.98 0.00

Retained Profit-Unappropriated 238.84 11.68 680.06 19.46 1,084.20 32.54 59.43

Other Components of Shareholders’ Equity (22.30) (1.09) (4.16) (0.12) (25.03) (0.75) (502.30)

Non-Controlling Interests of the Subsidiary 98.56 4.82 204.33 5.85 232.22 6.97 13.65

Total Equities 975.60 47.70 1,502.08 42.97 1,871.64 56.17 24.60

Total Liabilities and Equity 2,045.50 100.00 3,495.44 100.00 3,332.38 100.00 (4.67)
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4.3.2 Statement of Comprehensive Revenue 
               Unit: Million THB

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated            
Financial Statements

Change         
as                

Percentage
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022

Amount Percent-
age Amount Percent-

age Amount Percent-
age

Main Revenue from Service 3,995.53 99.75 7,636.60 99.55 7,120.55 99.52 (6.99)

Cost of Service 3,378.04 84.33 6,393.32 83.35 5,836.43 81.78 (8.71)

Gross Profit 617.50 15.42 1,243.28 16.21 1,266.07 17.74 1.83

Other Revenue 10.04 0.25 34.13 0.45 34.22 0.48 0.24

Total Revenue 4,005.57 100.00 7,670.74 100.00 7,136.72 100.00 (6.96)

Profit Before Expenses 627.53 15.67 1,277.41 16.65 1,300.29 18.22 1.79

Selling Expenses 32.55 0.81 115.79 1.51 135.95 1.90 17.41

Administrative Expenses 260.15 6.49 379.01 4.94 390.85 5.48 3.12

Loss on Valuation of Derivatives 0.06 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Loss on Sales and Changes in Value of 
Investments in Debt Instruments

0.95 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Expenses 293.71 7.33 494.88 6.45 526.79 7.38 6.45

Operating Profit 333.83 8.33 782.53 10.20 773.50 10.84 (1.15)

Share of Loss from Investments in Associates (0.75) (0.02) 0.66 0.01 0.62 0.01 (5.82)

Financial Revenue 0.39 0.01 0.39 0.01 2.96 0.04 655.43

Financial Cost (9.80) (0.24) (15.31) (0.20) (23.17) (0.32) 51.40

Profit (Loss) before Corporate Income Tax 323.66 8.08 768.27 10.02 753.90 10.56 (1.87)

Corporate Income Tax 48.42 1.21 147.48 1.92 158.63 2.22 7.56

Net Profit for the Year 275.24 6.87 620.79 8.09 595.26 8.34 (4.11)

Profit Sharing

Shareholder’s Equity 201.08 5.02 535.53 6.98 554.06 7.76 3.46

Non-Controlling Interests of the Subsidiary 74.15 1.85 85.26 1.11 41.21 0.58 (51.67)

Profit for the Year 275.24 6.87 620.79 8.09 595.26 8.34 (4.11)
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated           
Financial Statements

Consolidated            
Financial Statements

Change         
as                

Percentage
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022

Amount Percent-
age Amount Percent-

age Amount Percent-
age

Other Comprehensive Revenue:

Records that May Recorded as Profit or Loss

Exchange Differences from Financial 
Statement as Foreign Currency

(3.97) (0.10) 18.91 0.25 (20.03) (0.28) (205.91)

Share of Other Comprehensive Revenue 
from Investments in Associated Companies

(0.01) 0.00 0.04 0.00 (0.02) 0.00 (145.86)

Records that are Subsequently Recorded as 
Profit or Loss, Net of Tax Expense

(3.98) 0.00 18.95 0.00 (20.05) 0.00 (205.78)

Estimation of Loss by Actuarial Science 0.00 0.00 (3.77) (0.05) 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Deduction: Tax Expense Impact 0.00 0.00 0.69 0.01 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Records that are not Subsequently Recorded 
as Profit or Loss, Net of Tax Expense

0.00 0.00 (3.08) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)

Profit on Valuation of Investments in 
Securities for Sales

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Comprehensive Revenue for the Year (3.98) (0.10) 15.87 0.21 (20.05) (0.28) 226.32

Total Comprehensive Revenue for the Year 271.26 6.77 636.66 8.30 575.22 8.06 (9.65)

Total Comprehensive Revenue Sharing

Shareholder’s Equity 197.22 4.92 550.59 7.18 533.18 7.47 (3.16)

Non-Controlling Interests of the Subsidiary 74.04 1.85 86.07 1.12 42.04 0.59 (51.16)

Profit Per Share 

Basic Profit Per Share

The Company’s Shareholders’ Profit as  
THB: Share

0.31 - 0.82 - 0.85 - 3.66

The Number of Balancing Ordinary Shares 
(Million Shares)

651.90 - 651.90 - 651.90 - -
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4.3.3 Cash Flow Statement  
              Unit: Million THB

Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

2020 2021 2022

Cash Outflows from Operating Activities

Profit before Corporate Income Tax Expense 323.66 768.27 753.90

Adjustments to Reconcile Profit Before Corporate Income Tax as Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activities:

 Depreciation and Amortization 61.33 72.97 109.22

 Expected Credit Loss (Reversal) 5.90 28.74 (18.90)

 Loss (Gains) From Sales and Amortization of Equipment 0.00 3.21 10.05

 Profit from Amortization of Lease Agreements 0.00 0.00 (0.04)

 Loss (Profit) from Sales of Other Current Financial Assets 1.40 (1.07) (1.47)

 Increase in Fair Value of Other Current Financial Assets  (0.46) (0.34) (0.20)

 Loss on Amortization of Rights to Purchase Additional Shares 0.18 0.00 0.00

 Share of Loss (Profit) from Investments in Associates  0.75 (0.66) (0.62)

 Long-term Employee Benefit Expenses (Reversal) 1.15 4.11 4.61

 Unrealized (Profit) Loss on Exchange Rate (0.45) 14.24 (2.79)

 Loss on Valuation of Derivatives  0.06 0.09 (0.09)

 Additional Cost for Purchase of Investment in Subsidiaries  0.00 17.20 0.00

 Financial Revenue (0.39) (0.39) (2.96)

 Financial Cost 9.80 15.31 23.17

Operating Profit Before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 402.94 921.68 873.90

Operating Assets (Increase) Decrease 

 Trade Accounts Receivable and Other Receivable (351.64) (750.87) 617.01

 Other Current Financial Assets (1.14) (4.13) 0.25

 Other Current Assets (7.93) (23.66) 0.36

 Other Non-Current Assets (1.06) (5.15) (3.28)

Liabilities of Operating Activities Increase (Decrease)

 Trade Payable and Other Payable 261.25 542.76 (462.18)

 Other Current Liabilities 2.49 34.86 (20.53)

 Other Non-Current Liabilities (7.20) (0.08) 2.45

Cash from Operating Activities 297.71 715.42 1,007.98

 Income Tax Payment (22.35) (93.11) (169.62)

 Provision for Long-Term Employee Benefits (0.74) (0.85) (0.50)

Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities 274.62 621.46 837.85
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Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

2020 2021 2022

Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

 Temporary Investment (Increase) Decrease 0.60 0.00 0.00

 Collateralized Deposits with Additional Guarantee (0.14) 0.11 (0.01)

 Long-Term Loans to Related Parties (2.57) 0.00 0.00

Long-Term Loans to Unrelated Parties 0.00 0.00 (25.00)

 Proceeds from Long-Term Loans from Related Parties 3.35 1.02 1.43

 Buying Equipment (19.35) (63.55) (38.89)

 Purchase of Acquisitions  0.00 (150.00) 0.00

 Buying Intangible Assets (0.24) (1.41) (2.72)

 Increasing Right-of-Use Assets (4.10) (0.68) 0.00

 Cash from Equipment Sales 0.00 1.00 7.93

 Increase Investment in Subsidiaries  (122.83) (4.21) (106.31)

 Increase Investment in Associated Companies  (0.87) 0.00 0.00

 Cash Paid for Debt Instruments (567.14) (721.00) (1,032.13)

 Cash Received from the Debt Instruments Sales 575.39 460.56 1,090.98

 Cash Received from Interest 0.39 0.39 3.38

Net Cash Used in Investment (137.52) (477.76) (101.34)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

 Cash Received from Banks’ Short-Term Loans  5.08 37.45 49.66

 Reimbursement in Banks’ Short-Term Loans  0.00 (42.58) (7.45)

 Cash Received from Banks’ Long-Term Loans  90.00 200.00 0.00

 Reimbursement in Banks’ Long-Term Loans  (17.30) (49.30) (81.92)

 Reimbursement in Long-Term Loans from Related Parties  (4.62) (1.77) (2.23)

 Repayment of Principal of Lease Liabilities (19.68) (23.56) (60.44)

 Cash Received from Non-Controlling Stakeholders 18.00 0.00 0.00

 Interest Payable (6.97) (11.51) (17.87)

 Dividend Payout (77.45) (104.42) (172.94)

Net Cash from Financing Activities (12.93) 4.30 (293.20)

Increase (Decrease) Difference from Interpretation of Financial Statements (10.17) 17.21 (19.40)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents-Net 114.00 165.22 423.92

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 149.33 263.33 428.55

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 263.33 428.55 852.47
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4.3.4 Financial Ratio 
             

Financial Ratio

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

Consolidated 
Financial 

Statements

2020 2021 2022

  Liquidity Ratio

 Liquidity Ratio (Times) 1.66 1.58 1.99

 Quick Liquidity Ratio (Times) 1.61 1.54 1.64

 Cash Flow Liquidity Ratio (Times) 0.32 0.26 0.71

 Accounts Receivable Turnover Ratio (Times) 5.50 5.83 5.19

 Average Collection Period (Days) 67 60 67

 Accounts Payable Turnover Ratio (Times) 5.67 6.37 5.58

 Average Payment Period (Days) 65 57 65

 Cash Cycle (Days) 2 3 2

  Profitability Ratio

 Gross Profit Margin (Percentage) 15.45% 16.28% 17.83%

 Operating Profit Margin (Percentage) 8.36% 10.20% 10.83%

 Cash-to-Profit Ratio (Percentage) 136.57% 80.00% 108.28%

 Net Profit Ratio (Percentage) 5.02% 6.98% 8.34%

 Return on Equity (Percentage) 24.07% 49.25% 37.73%

  Operating Efficiency Ratio

 Return on Assets (Percentage) 11.11% 19.31% 22.76%

 Return on Fixed Assets (Percentage) 91.96% 192.10% 161.99%

 Asset Turnover (Times) 2.21 2.77 2.09

  Monetary Policy Analysis Ratio

 Debt-to-Equity Ratio (Times) 1.10 1.33 0.89

 Dividend Yield (Percentage) 94.36% 30.81% 50.32%

 Fully Dilute (THB) 0.31 0.82 0.85
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5.1 General information 
 Juristic person in which the company holds shares Details are in Section 1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Group of 

Companies. 

5.2 Legal disputes
 As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries does not have any legal cases or disputes that may negatively 

affect the Company’s assets, and subsidiary companies with an amount greater than 5percent of the shareholders’ equity 

and has an impact on the Company’s business operations and subsidiary companies significantly, including cases that 

are not caused by the Company’s normal business operations and subsidiary companies.

5.3 Secondary Market
 - None -

5.4 Financial institutions that regularly contact (Only in the case of issuing debt 
instruments)
 - None -

5. General Information and 
other Important Information 
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 • Governance Structure and Key Data on the Board of 
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6. Corporate Governance Policy 

6.1 Overview of Corporate Governance 
Policy and Practice 

 The Company, which is under the supervision of the 

Board of Directors, is committed to maintaining the standard 

of good corporate governance equivalent to the international 

level throughout the Company’s business operations by adhering 

to the ideals and has been practiced continually within a 

framework of the business ethics, adhering to the principles of 

good corporate governance, and recognizing the importance 

of it. This guideline will help promote the Company’s 

competitiveness both in the short term and the long term. In 

addition, good corporate governance helps to build confidence 

among investors, financial institutions, business partners, and 

all stakeholders.

 The Company is committed to developing the 

organization to be a role model for good corporate governance 

compliance with the belief that good corporate governance is 

a management system that creates fairness, builds confidence 

in investment and long-term value for the shareholders, builds 

confidence in all stakeholders, and enable the organization to 

have proper management, have the most efficiency and effective, 

and to promote the competitiveness of the organization for 

sustainable growth. 

 The Board of Directors has always placed importance 

on good corporate governance by setting a policy on business 

ethics as well as the code of conduct of the Board of Directors, 

the senior executives, the management team, and the 

employees and providing the standard and correct guideline 

for the organization in the Company’s Articles of Association. 

Also, it has set up the corporate governance policy for all 

directors, executives, and employees to sign for acknowledgment 

and comply with. These guidelines are reviewed regularly to 

be in line with the good corporate governance principles of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand (SET), and the recommendation from 

the Corporate Governance Assessment Report of the Thai 

Institute of Directors (IOD). The current version is the 3rd revision, 

namely, “Corporate Governance Policy”. 

 The Company has set the good corporate governance 

policy as part of our vision, mission, and values with a goal to 

be a Company that creates the driving power of every life with 

sustainable business. 

Corporate Governance Policy 
 The Company has set the corporate governance policy 

under the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and 

the requirements of the Organization for Economic Cooperation 

and Development (OECD), as well as being adjusted to be in 

line with the corporate governance code for Listed Companies 

2017 (CG Code) issued by the Office of the Securities and 

Exchange Commission. This policy is to be used as a guideline 

for conducting business for all directors, executives, and 

employees of the Company. The policy and practice are required 

to be reviewed annually to be suitable for a change that may 

occur from business operations, environment, situations, or 

laws. The Board of Directors has set the good corporate 

governance policy as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors, executives, and all employees are 

committed to applying the good corporate governance 

principles of the Company to their works. There is a 

management structure with fair relationship between the 

Board of Directors, executives, and shareholders. 

2. The Board of Directors shall perform their duties with 

dedicated to works responsibly and be independent. The 

roles and responsibilities between the Chairman of the 

Board and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly separated 

including the structure, composition, and qualifications of 

the Board of Directors in order to allow them to perform 

their duties efficiently and effectively.

3. The Board of Directors and executives play an important 

role in determining the Company’s vision, strategies, 

policies, and important plans by considering risk factors 

and impacts, monitoring, and determining management 

guidelines as well as appropriate allocation of important 
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resources. The Board will be taking steps to ensure that 

the accounting systems, financial reports, and audits are 

reliable. The Board will conduct a business with ethics, 

have social and environmental responsibility, promote 

the creation of innovation to be able to adapt under 

changing factors, and strengthen long-term sustainable 

competitiveness.

4. The Board of Directors and executives shall be a leader 

in ethical matters, be a role model in conduct themselves 

with compliance with the Company’s good corporate 

governance guideline, and oversee the management of 

conflicts of interest and related transactions.

5. The Board of Directors may appoint a sub-committee as 

appropriate to carefully assist with their important tasks. 

6. The Board of Directors shall conduct an annual self-

assessment to be used as a framework for examining their 

performance. 

7. The Board of Directors is responsible for determining a 

policy on corporate governance and code of conduct for 

the Board of Directors, executives, employees, and all 

staff to use as a guideline for their conduct along with the 

regulations and rules of the Company. 

8. The Board of Directors shall provide adequate, reliable, 

and timely disclosure of the Company’s information both 

financial and non-financial, so that shareholders and 

stakeholders of the Company can equally receive those 

information. This includes setting up a public relations unit 

and an investor relations unit to be responsible for providing 

information to the investors and the general public. 

9. The Board of Directors, executives, and employees shall 

ensure that the Company’s shareholders are treated 

equally, have the right to access information, and have an 

appropriate channel to communicate with the Company. 

This includes supporting the participation of shareholders 

with the Company. 

10. The Board of Directors shall set up an appropriate system 

for nominating personnel to assume responsibilities in key 

management positions with a transparent and fair 

nomination process. 

11. The Board of Directors shall set an effective anti-fraud and 

anti-corruption support system to ensure that the 

management team realizes and places importance on 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption including complying with 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures. 

 In this regard, the Board of Directors requires regular 

overseeing of compliance with the corporate governance policy 

and the best practice and publicizing to all employees about 

the corporate governance policy and guidelines. The Company 

has issued the corporate governance policy and code of conduct 

of Wise Logistics Public Company Limited on the Company’s 

website: www.wice.co.th under the topic of “Corporate 

Governance” for investors and interested persons including 

stakeholders to take advantage of or use as a reference.

6.1.1 Policy and Guideline Related to the Board 
of Directors 

 The Board of Directors consists of personnel with 

knowledge, expertise, and experiences that can benefit the 

Company as well as being dedicated to the work. The Board 

of Directors is appointed by shareholders to oversee the 

Company’s business operations, appoint the management team 

to take charge of business operations, appoint sub-committees 

to be responsible for specific matters assigned, appoint the 

Company’s auditor, and appoint the Company Secretary to be 

responsible for arranging a meeting and compliance with laws. 

Topics about the policy and practice related to the Board of 

Directors are as follows:

1.  Director Nomination and Appointment  
 Director Selection Criteria and Process 
 The Company realizes that the composition of the 

Board of Directors plays an important role in supporting the 

performance to be efficient and effective. Therefore, the 

Company requires that the process of appointing a director 

should be in accordance with applicable laws and regulations 

as well as the Company’s corporate governance policy and 

code of conduct. The Company sets criteria for selecting 

directors to have qualifications in accordance with the laws and 

specified criteria by considering their experience, knowledge, 

and ability that will benefit the Company and does not bring 

differences in gender, race, ethnicity, nationality, or place of 

origin as a limitation on qualifications. The Company also places 

importance on the independence of directors and conflicts of 

interest (COI), as well as considering the diversity of expertise 

in the overview. The Company has prepared the Board Skill 

Matrix for consideration so that the Board of Directors has a 

wide range of expertise and is consistent with the Company’s 

business strategies. A qualified person is searched from the 

list of professional directors in the IOD (Directors’ Pool), which 

is the list that has compiled names of people with knowledge, 

abilities, and expertise in various fields. 
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2. Independence of the Board of Directors 
 The Board of Directors shall decide, comment, and 

vote on matters that the Board has decision-making power. If 

the Board’s decision is under pressure from their work, family, 

or having an interest in that matter, it will distort the decision 

to judge in favor of themselves, close people, or for their own 

benefit. Therefore, the independence of directors is a matter 

that must be taken into account greatly in order to protect the 

interest of the Company’s shareholders. A director who lacks 

independence should not be responsible for making a decision. 

3. Roles, Responsibilities, and Power of the Board 
of Directors 

 The Board of Directors is like a representative of the 

shareholders who are responsible for the performance of their 

duties towards shareholders, determine the direction of business 

growth, and make important decisions with carefulness and 

honesty for the Company. They also play an important role in 

corporate governance for the best interest of the Company. 

The Board of Directors has to act professionally to protect the 

interest of all parties and be independent of the management 

team in order to oversee the management team’ works and 

performance, risk management, and the determination of the 

compensation. 

4. Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman 
 The Chairman of the Board plays an important role in 

supervising and supporting the Board of Directors to perform 

their duties fully in accordance with the Company’s directions 

and strategies for the utmost benefit of the Company and the 

shareholders as a whole. The Chairman of the Board plays a 

leading role in the Board of Directors. The duties of the Chairman 

of the Board, at least, cover the matters as follows: 

• Oversee, follow up, and ensure that the Board of Directors 

performs their duties effectively and achieve the main 

objectives and goals. 

• Oversee the performance of the Board of Directors to be 

effective, support and give advice to help the management 

team to do the tasks under their authority assigned by the 

Board of Directors in order to achieve the Company’s 

objectives and goals.

• Encourage directors to adhere to a scope of their authority 

and responsibilities toward shareholders and stakeholders 

in accordance with good corporate governance principles 

and code of conduct of the Company, including promoting 

and supervising all directors to participate in fostering an 

organizational culture with ethics and good corporate 

governance. 

• Set an agenda for the Board of Directors’ meeting by 

discussing with the Chief Executive Officer and having 

measures to ensure that important matters are included 

in an agenda of a meeting. 

• Effectively act as the chairman of the Board of Directors’ 

meeting and the shareholders’ meeting. 

• Allocate enough time for the management team to allow 

them to present information and for directors to be able 

to give opinions on important issues carefully. Also, 

strengthen good relationship within the Board of Directors 

and between the Board of Directors and the management 

team.  

5.  Sub-Committee Appointment 
 To carefully and efficiently consider important 

operations, the Board of Directors sets 4 sub-committees, 

namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the Corporate Risk Management Committee, and 

the Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development 

Committee. 

6. The Board of Directors’ Meeting and Document 
Receiving 

 All directors should attend the Board of Directors’ 

meeting. The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing 

documents, setting a location, and coordinating for the meeting. 

Each director must be informed of the meeting date, meeting 

agenda, and meeting information to be studied in advance as 

appropriate. 

7. Company Secretary 
 The Board of Directors will appoint the Company 

Secretary to take care of the Board of Directors’ meetings and 

the shareholders’ meetings to ensure a smooth and transparent 

process and to comply with the regulations and laws. 

8. The Board of Directors’ Performance Evaluation 
 The performance of the Board of Directors shall be 

evaluated annually. This is to serve as a framework for examining 

the performance of the Board of Directors and for reviewing 

and analyzing it in order to develop and improve further works.
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9. Remuneration of the Board of Directors, Chief 
Executive Officer, and Top Executives

 The Board of Directors has set up a system for 

consideration and determination of remuneration for the 

Company’s directors under an appropriate and verifiable process 

to build confidence among shareholders. In this regard, the 

Board of Directors has assigned the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee to consider the remuneration for the 

Company’s directors instead of the Company’s directors, 

including compensation in other forms and special bonuses 

(if any), to be proposed to the Board of Directors for consideration 

and review before proposing to the shareholders’ meeting for 

approval, respectively. In determining the remuneration for the 

Company’s directors, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee will consider comparing references from companies 

in the industry and businesses of similar size. The remuneration 

must be appropriate and consistent with the duties, performance, 

and responsibilities including being able to persuade directors 

with qualifications and abilities to become directors of the 

Company or perform their duties to achieve objectives, goals, 

and business directions set by the Company. 

 As for the remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer 

and top executives, the Company shall consider from the 

individual duties, responsibilities, and performance together 

with the Company’s performance. The Company shall consider 

to improve the remuneration as appropriate when compared 

with the same industry. The remuneration shall be at a level 

that can motivate and retain the qualified directors and 

executives.  

10. Succession Plan 
 The Board of Directors must ensure that the Company 

has a personnel selection system for recruiting the employees 

to take responsibility for important management positions at all 

levels appropriately. The recruitment of the Chief Executive 

Officer and Managing Director will be in accordance with the 

nomination process considered by both internal and external 

parties. The Company must prepare personnel for succession 

planning, especially for the executive positions, by setting a 

policy or guideline for management and executive development 

as well as preparing individual development plans for qualification 

for taking up higher positions when there are any vacancies, 

including the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director 

positions, or equivalent.

11. Director Development 
 The Company encourages directors to develop their 

knowledge, competence, and skills in performing duties as a 

director both in the nature of the Company’s business, good 

corporate governance principles, and other courses that are 

beneficial to the performance of their duties.The Company 

encourages directors to consider attending training courses 

with the Thai Institute of Directors and other institutions. In 

addition, the Company also supports internal training (In-housing 

Briefing) by regularly inviting experts and consultants to present 

useful information for the business. The Company requires an 

orientation for a new appointed director every time. The new 

director will be provided with a director’s handbook, documents, 

and useful information for being a director of the Company, 

including lectures to introduce the Company’s business 

operations, to build knowledge and understanding of business 

and operations in various fields that are necessary and beneficial 

to the performance of their duties as a director of the Company 

as well as the policy and guideline of good corporate governance 

of the Company within three months from the appointment.  

Policy on Taking Other Directorships for Directors 
and Executives 
 In 2022, the Company has 15 associated companies 

investing and holding shares. Therefore, the Company has given 

importance and set a management style to achieve efficiency 

in business operations together (Synergy). The Board of 

Directors has considered the appointment of executives to hold 

a position as a director in an associated company in order to 

supervise the aforementioned company to set policies and 

conduct business in line with the Company’s policy and to 

provide the benefit and create a value for all stakeholders. The 

objectives of nominating a person to be a director in other 

companies are as follows: 

1. To oversee the management to be in accordance with the 

Company’s policy and to follow up and evaluate the overall 

business performance of the companies in the Group in 

accordance with the Company’s policy to have the same 

direction and similar standards.

2. To create synergy for the business of the companies in 

the Group in order to synergize benefit and create a value 

for all related organizations, including Thailand. 

3. To apply experiences and specific skills to provide support, 

such as applying their financial knowledge to improve and 
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develop accounting and finance for the Company to grow 

strongly. This includes going to help companies that are 

not in the Group, being able to apply the knowledge and 

experiences gained to serve as a supervisory board of 

those leading companies for the benefit of the Company, 

and building good relationship to strengthen the network 

of business alliances for the Company. 

4. This is considered one of responsibilities of directors and 

executives.

 

 The Board of Directors has set a policy to limit a 

number of the listed companies in which an independent director 

can serve as a director. In order for the Company to gain the 

utmost benefit from directors being able to fully devote their 

time to perform their duties efficiently, the Company has set a 

policy for independent directors to hold positions in no more 

than 5 other listed companies, and the Chief Executive Officer/

Executive Directors hold no more than 2 positions in other listed 

companies outside the business group with approval from the 

Board of Directors.

6.1.2 Policy and Guideline Related to Shareholders 
and Stakeholders 

1. Rights of Shareholders 
 As the owner of the Company, shareholders have the 

rights to determine the direction of the Company’s business 

operations or can make a decision on matters that have a 

significant impact on the Company. Therefore, the shareholders’ 

meeting is an important forum for the shareholders to express 

their opinions, make inquiries, cast votes, and select the Board 

of Directors to supervise the Company on behalf of them. 

Therefore, shareholders have the rights to attend the 

shareholders’ meeting and have sufficient time for consideration 

and acknowledgment of the meeting results. 

Shareholders’ Meeting Schedule 

 The Company has scheduled an annual general 

meeting of the shareholders within 4 months from the end of 

the Company’s fiscal year. In case of an urgent necessity that 

a special agenda must be proposed, if it is related to or affects 

the interest of the shareholders, or related to the conditions, 

rules, or applicable laws that require approval from the 

shareholders, the Company will call for the Extraordinary General 

Meeting of Shareholders on a case by case.

 In 2022, the Company scheduled the Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders via Electronic Media (E-AGM) on 

Friday, April 29, 2022, at Chong Nonsi Room, 12th Floor, Eastin 

Grand Hotel Sathorn Bangkok, No. 33/1 South Sathorn Road, 

Yannawa District, Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120. It strictly 

followed the measures to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and 

complied with the guideline of the AGM Checklist project of the 

Thai Investors Association, the Association of Listed Companies, 

and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(SEC). In 2022, the Company had a full score of 100 for the 

5th consecutive year and no Extraordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders was called. 

Advance Meeting Invitation 

 In 2022, at the meeting of the Board of Directors No. 

1/2022 held on February 23, 2022, the Board of Directors 

resolved to hold the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 

on April 29, 2022, by disclosing the meeting resolutions, the 

meeting date and agenda, and notifying the shareholders of 

the announcement on the website of the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand in advance on the day the Board of Directors resolved 

before sending the meeting invitation letter. The Thailand 

Securities Depository Company Limited, the Company’s 

securities registrar, delivered the meeting invitation with details 

of the meeting agenda, important supporting information and 

necessary for decision making/opinion of the Board, minutes 

of past meetings with complete details, annual registration 

statement/annual report (Form 56-1 One Report) together with 

meeting documents, documents required for proxy, and specified 

how to use it clearly as determined by the Company which was 

sent to shareholders more than 14 days in advance of the 

meeting date. The meeting invitation letter was sent out on 

April 14, 2022. The Company delivered the meeting registration 

form via electronic means for shareholders to accept their 

attendance at the meeting. The Company sent a link for 

shareholders to attend the meeting including username & 

password before the meeting date and published in a Thai daily 

newspaper for 3 consecutive days prior to the meeting date 

(April 20 - 22, 2022) in order to notify the shareholders of the 

meeting to have sufficient time to prepare themselves for the 

meeting via electronic media. 

 Regarding the General Meeting of Shareholders, the 

Company posted the information of the meeting invitation letter 
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and supporting documents on the Company’s website 30 days 

in advance of the meeting date (starting from March 28, 2022). 

Conducting the Shareholders’ Meeting 

 Before the beginning of each shareholders’ meeting, 

the chairman of the meeting will introduce the Board of Directors, 

executives, the Company’s auditors, and a legal adviser who 

act as a mediator and a witness at the meeting; then, clarify 

all the rules including the method of counting votes and voting 

of shareholders who have to vote in each agenda in accordance 

with the Company’s regulations as well as the exercise of voting 

the rights in each agenda clearly. When information on the 

agenda is provided, the chairman will allow all attendees to 

express their opinions, suggestions, and ask questions on each 

agenda. This year, with electronic meeting, shareholders can 

submit questions via chat in the system. The chairman and 

executives will answer questions clearly to the point, and pay 

attention to every question; then, let the meeting vote on that 

agenda. For the agenda for the election of directors, the chairman 

will allow the shareholders to vote individually. 

 The chairman will conduct the meeting according to 

the order of the agenda and does not add any agenda without 

notifying the shareholders in advance. Unless the meeting 

resolves to change the order of the agenda with a vote of not 

less than two-thirds of the number of shareholders attending 

the meeting, or the shareholders collectively holding not less 

than one-third of the total number of shares sold, they may ask 

the meeting to consider matters other than those specified in 

an invitation letter. The meeting has already considered the 

agenda as specified in the Company’s articles of association. 

In the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, there 

were no changes in the order of the agenda and no requests 

for the meeting to consider any other matters not specified in 

the meeting. 

 In addition, in every meeting, the minutes of the 

meeting will be accurately and completely taken and summarized 

with resolutions and vote counting. The time spent at each 

general meeting of shareholders is approximately 1 - 1.5 hours. 

In this regards, the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 

is scheduled the meeting at 10:00 A.M. with registration starting 

at 9:00 A.M. At the opening of the meeting, there is a total of 

443 shareholders attending the meeting, 30 in person and 413 

by proxy, holding a total of 449,282,417 shares, representing 

68.9190 percent, more than 1/3 of the total number of shares 

sold of the Company which is 651,899,500 shares, with the 

attendees and clarified information as follows: 

• A total of all 8 directors, with the Chairman of the Board 

acting as the chairman of the meeting, the Chairman of all 

sub-committees, directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the 

Director of Accounting and Finance, along with the 

Company’s executive, attends the meeting to clarify and 

provide information in case of any related inquiries. In 

addition, independent directors also serve as proxies for 

minority shareholders. 

• The auditors from EY Office Company Limited are (1) 

Mr. Chayapol Suphasetthanon, (2) Mr. Wanchat 

Pipattanakul, and (3) Ms. Onuma Kijnawasin.

• A legal advisor from Dherakupt International Law Office 

Limited (acting as a witness, inspecting, and examining the 

voting in case of disputes throughout the meeting) is 

Ms. Narisara Sawaisanyakorn.

Shareholders (at the close of the meeting at 11:30 A.M.) 

 There were a total of 449 shareholders attending the 

meeting, 36 of whom present in person and 413 present by 

proxies, holding a total of 449,827,328 shares, representing 

69.0026 percent of the total number of shares sold. 

Guideline on Conflicts of Interest 

For the Meeting

 The Company’s corporate governance policy requires 

that the directors, executives, and all employees to prepare a 

conflict of interest report both in the form of an annual report 

and a new report during the year. In case of changes and at 

any meeting, persons with vested interest or have the conflicting 

interest with the Company must notify the meeting and refrain 

from participating in the consideration or abstaining from voting 

on that matter.

 In the shareholders’ meeting, if any director has an 

interest or is involved in any agenda, that director will inform 

the meeting to abstain from attending the meeting and abstain 

from voting on that agenda.

Disclosure of Shareholders’ Meeting Results 

 In 2022, the Company sent a report summarizing the 

resolutions at the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand and the Board of Governors of the Stock 
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Exchange of Thailand in the evening after the meeting ended 

(April 29, 2022) and delivered the minutes of the Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders (which the Company had taken the 

minutes of the meeting by clearly separating the agenda, 

specified the number of directors attending the meeting, 

questions from shareholders and clarifications from the Board 

of Directors, how to count votes, and the result of vote counting 

in each agenda completely) to the SET and the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) within 14 days, including 

disseminating the minutes of the meeting and VDO of the 

meeting on the Company’s website. 

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders 
 The Company treats each shareholder equally (even 

if they hold unequal shares and have unequal rights in voting 

according to the number of shares held). All shareholders have 

the same fundamental rights as a shareholder regardless of 

gender, age, race, nationality, religion, belief, social status, 

disability, or political opinions. In this regard, the Company 

issues the Company’s shareholders’ meeting information in 

advance of the shareholders’ meeting date and prepares in 

English and Thai language, including requiring directors who 

have interest to refrain from participating in the meeting to 

consider that agenda which includes organizing other activities. 

For shareholders, the Company offers opportunities without 

limitations. 

Proposal of Additional Meeting Agendas and Nomination of 

Persons Appointed as Directors 

 For the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 

2022, the Company set criteria and procedures for considering 

granting minority shareholders the rights to propose agenda 

items and/or names of persons to be appointed as a director 

in advance for the Board of Directors to consider as an agenda 

item. This is to provide an opportunity for shareholders to 

participate in the governance of the Company and to select a 

qualified person to perform his/her duties efficiently for the 

utmost benefit of shareholders and all stakeholders. The 

Company gave the rights to one or more shareholders holding 

shares not less than 5 percent of the total number of voting to 

propose an agenda item or to nominate a suitable person to 

be a director before the annual general meeting of shareholders 

from October to December 2021. This is to prepare for the 

nomination of the directors for obtaining an approval from the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee on February 9, 2023. 

 In this regard, the Company has posted such criteria 

on the Company’s website and notified news announcements 

on the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The period 

was from October 1 to December 30, 2021. However, no 

agendas were proposed by the shareholders and no persons 

were nominated for appointment as a director during that period. 

The Company Secretary already reported to the Board of 

Directors’ meeting for their acknowledgment. 

 

Facilitating Shareholders in Shareholders’ Meetings 

 Even though the meeting was held under the situation 

of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic, the 

occupational health and safety of the attendees were considered. 

The Company, therefore, changed the format of the 2022 Annual 

General Meeting of Shareholders to an electronic shareholders’ 

meeting (E-AGM) in order to refrain from mass gatherings. 

Proxy forms and meeting registration forms were prepared via 

electronic means for shareholders to accept their attendance 

at the meeting. The Company sent a link to attend the meeting 

including username & password before the meeting date and 

opened the registration system one hour before the meeting 

time. The Company organized the meeting via electronic media 

through the system of Quid Lab Company Limited, which is a 

system that complies with the announcement of the Ministry of 

Digital Economy and Society regarding meeting security 

standards through electronic media 2020 as well as being 

certified for the meeting control system by the Electronic 

Transactions Development Agency (ETDA). 

 Although most of the shareholders attending the 

Company’s Annual General Meeting of Shareholders were Thai 

and the shareholders’ meeting was conducted in Thai language, 

the Company had prepared documents for the shareholders’ 

meeting and other relevant documents in two languages as 

Thai and English for both Thai and foreign shareholders. The 

Company has the Company’s website in two languages, as 

well as provided staff who are proficient in both languages to 

facilitate the shareholders’ meeting. In this regard, in the event 

that there are shareholders who cannot communicate in Thai 

and would like to ask a question or discuss in the shareholders’ 

meeting, the Company provided appropriate communication 

and translations into Thai for both questions and answers for 

other attendees at the meeting in order to maintain the benefit 

and facilitate the foreign shareholders. 
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Towards Customers Create customer satisfaction and customer engagement through providing quality services at 
international standards with fair prices.

Towards Business 
Partners and Allies

Conduct a business together on basis of fairness and aim to build trust, good relationships, and 
cooperation in order to develop the potential and efficiency of business operations together in the 
long term.

Towards Society, 
Community, and 
Environment

Be a good corporate for society, conduct business with standard environmental impact management, 
and participate in the development of good quality of life for the community and society.

Towards          
Government Sector

Strictly comply with applicable laws, including the environment, safety, labor, tax and accounting 
management, as well as rules and various government notifications related to the Company’s 
business.

Towards Investors Operate a commercial business, which can generate good returns and expand the business to grow 
continuously and sustainably.

Towards Employees Continuously support the development of professional competence and ensure the quality of 
work-life of employees at the level of leading companies in order to promote a good relationship 
with the organization.

Granting Proxy 

 In order to maintain the rights of shareholders who are 

unable to attend the 2022 Annual General Meeting of 

Shareholders in person, the shareholders could authorize one 

of the shareholders or independent directors of the Company 

to attend the meeting on their behalf. The Company shall specify 

the name in the proxy form as determined by the Ministry of 

Commerce for a proxy to be able to attend the meeting and 

vote on behalf of the shareholder unconditionally. In this regard, 

in the event that a shareholder authorizes a person on his/her 

behalf, the Company will grant and treat that proxy as a 

shareholder. In addition, the Company has posted a proxy form 

with details and procedures on the Company’s website 30 days 

in advance of the meeting date, where shareholders can ask 

for more information either by phone or other channels such 

as website, email, etc.

3 Responsibility to Stakeholders 
 The business operations of the Company and its 

subsidiaries involve many parties from the shareholders, 

directors, executives, employees, creditors, customers, trading 

partners, and competitors to the community, the nation, and 

the world society. The Company, therefore, has realized the 

importance of taking care of and taking into account all groups 

of stakeholders. In the business operations of the Company, 

we also take into account the right of all stakeholders and aims 

for transparency, clarity, and fairness in the management and 

operations. To be a clear guideline for conducting business and 

developing a sustainable organization, we divide the Company’s 

stakeholders into 6 groups and determine the mission as our 

goal to meet the needs of and keep a balance between the 

stakeholders as follows:

Treatment of 6 Stakeholder Groups

1.  Customers 

 The Company operates in both domestic and 

international markets which are the Business to Business (B2B) 

customers consisting of the automotive parts, tire, home 

appliances, and electronics part customers, and the Business 

to Consumer (B2C) customers consisting of the home appliance 

customers and retails.

 The Company listens to customer voices in order to 

analyze their needs and expectations through various channels 

such as the customer visits, onsite and online training seminars, 

opinion surveys and receive customer information through online 

channels, etc. 
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 The Company has developed services and support 

systems to increase the speed and accuracy for the customers 

in using service with the Company, continuously, such as the 

mobile tracking system (E-POD), the inventory on-line, the 

automate system for AMS, etc.

 The Company has a customer satisfact ion, 

dissatisfaction, and engagement assessment system. The 

customer satisfaction and dissatisfaction survey are conducted 

and analyzed 2 times a year in order to allow the Company to 

provide a prompt service or problem solving. 

 The impact of the COVID-19 epidemic directly affects 

the implementation of customer relationship-building plans, 

such as customer visits and business meetings. Therefore, the 

Company has changed plans by focusing on meeting and online 

communication channels, along with setting a policy for the 

employees to regularly meet and build relationships with 

customers as well as tracking and resolving a problem in various 

aspects for customers instead of meeting directly to maintain 

a high level of customer satisfaction. 

 The Company has categorized complaints according 

to the severity of the impact and established the Service Level 

Agreement for each type of complaint. In this regard, the relevant 

departments shall resolve the problem within the specified 

timeframe. All complaints shall be initially responded to within 

24 hours and shall be responded to every customer after 

resolution. The customers will be asked for their satisfaction 

with solving problems. The Company will also inform the plan 

to solve problems in the long-term, build customer confidence, 

and ensure that customers are satisfied with the solution and 

will continue to use the service of the Company in the future.

Customer Satisfaction Survey Results

Satisfaction Level in 2022 97.80%

Satisfaction Level in 2021 97.63%

Satisfaction Level in 2020 97.50%

2. Business Partners and Allies

 The Company adheres to the framework of honest 

and transparent trade competition by strictly following the trade 

conditions and agreed contracts with the trading partners. The 

prices are fairly considered concerning reasonableness, quality, 

and service. The regulations in procurement and operations 

are clearly provided as well as no demand for any assets from 

partners. The Company supports environmental-friendly 

procurement and does not conduct business with partners who 

have engaged in illegal activity.

3. Society, Community, and Environment

 The Company is committed to being an organization 

that drives the country through the creation of transportation 

security and economic growth, enhancing the country’s 

competitiveness, and taking care of the community society for 

a good quality of life through the use of knowledge and 

technology. The Company applies the Sustainable Development 

Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations (UN), the National Strategy 

2018-2037, the survey results of the needs of the stakeholders, 

the community social group, information on important economic, 

social, and environmental directions including the impact trend 

of the COVID-19 epidemic to define as a guideline for sustainable 

social and community development.   

 Please see details in Part 1 Business Operations and 

Performance, “Section 3 Driving Business Towards 

Sustainability”.

4. Government Sector

 The Company adheres to strictly comply with 

applicable laws in various fields which are towards the 

environment, safety, labor, tax, and accounting management 

including regulations and government notifications relating to 

the Company’s business operations.

5. Investors

 The Company is still committed to being an 

organization that generates economic growth, enhances 
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competitiveness, develops society and improves the quality of 

life, creates innovations, and uses technology in business 

operations.

Activity for Institutional and General Investors 

 In 2022, due to the continuous situation of COVID-19, 

the Company, therefore, organized activities for institutional 

investors and general investors by communicating through 

various online channels. It brought modern technology to 

organize activities to increase the convenience, speed, and 

efficiency of access to information for analysts and institutional 

investors. 

 

6. Employees

 Please see Part 7 Corporate Governance Structure, 

“Section 7.5 Employee Information”.

 

Respect for Laws and Universal Human Rights Principles

 The Company requires the directors, the executives, 

and all employees to respect laws, regulations, customs, 

traditions, and different good cultures as well as strictly respect 

the principles of universal human rights as the basis for the 

Company’s operations. In 2022, there were no complaints about 

human rights issues. 

Major Disputes With Stakeholders 

 Please see Part 1 Business Operations and 

Performance, “Section 5.2 Legal Disputes”.

Information Disclosure and Transparency 

 Information disclosure is an important measure of 

transparency in operations. It is an important factor in building 

trust among all investors and stakeholders. The Company, 

therefore, places importance on disclosing accurate information 

and creating a variety of information disclosure channels for all 

stakeholders to easily access information. The Company also 

encourages directors, executives, and employees to realize the 

importance of information disclosure and transparency in the 

work and creates appropriate mechanisms for receiving 

complaints that are fair to both complainants and respondents, 

as the following. 

Financial and Non-Financial Report of the Board of Directors

 The Company discloses information on the performance 

regarding sustainability, which considered all stakeholders, 

including the environment, the society, and the governance, 

through the annual disclosure/annual report (Form 56-1 One 

Report ), on the topic of Business Drive for Sustainability, as 

well as integrates the information on its performance regarding 

sustainability as mentioned in the topics of Risk Management, 

Management Analysis and Explanation, and additional corporate 

governance. The Form 56-1 One Report of 2022  was sent to 

the shareholders and disclosed on the Company’s website. 

Investor Relations 

 The Company was converted and privatized in April 

2015 and shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

in July 2015. The Company has assigned the Company 

Secretary to act as a center and disseminate corporate 

information both financial and general information to shareholders 

and investors both domestically and internationally. This includes 

financial information such as operating performances and 

quarterly financial statements, management discussion and 

analysis (MD&A) as quarterly reports, strategies, and future 

trends of the Company to be informed regularly, equally, and 

completely based on facts. The Investor Relations Department 

can be contacted directly at Tel. 02-681-6181 ext.3501 or 

E-mail: wice-ir@wice.co.th. The Company’s information can 

be followed through the website on www.wice.co.th in both Thai 

and English which has been updated regularly. The important 

information is as follows: 

• Company Information

• Form 56-1 One Report 

• Information for Ordinary Shareholders 

• Publication and Webcasts 

• Analyst Research

• Calendar of Events

• Code of Conduct for Investor Relations 

• Important Plans

• Good Corporate Governance Policy 

• Financial Performance

• Non-Financial Performance 

• Important Corporate Social Responsibility

• Procurement

• Investor Relations Contact Information 

 The Company places importance on the disclosure of 

information that is accurate, complete, transparent, and 

thorough, including the presentation of the work and the 

notification of the organization’s information to investors, 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 93



shareholders, and those who are involved both directly and 

indirectly in a regular basis as summarized as below.

• Direct: The Company regularly presents its operating 

performance, investment budget, and industry trend 

situation to analysts, institutional investors, and employees 

in the form of analyst meetings and institutional investors 

(Analyst Meeting) quarterly. In 2022, the information was 

presented through the virtual conference system using the 

Microsoft Team in the form of hybrid meetings. There was 

also participation in an activity organized by the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand (Opportunity Day) via a virtual 

conference system using the Microsoft Team every quarter. 

The goal is to let the investors and the analysts know about 

new directions and opportunities to run the Company’s 

business according to the vision. In 2022, the important 

activities of the Investor Relations Department were 

organized as follows:

Activity 2022 (Number : Times)

Analyst Meeting (Microsoft Team) 3

Analyst Meeting (Hybrid) 1

Company Visit / Conference Call 21

Press Meeting 2

Quarterly Opportunity Day 4

• Indirect: The Company has disclosed information about 

the Company, its performance, financial statements, and 

information presented in various formats including 

information reports that the Company has notified the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand. Those who are interested 

can obtain information through the SET’s website at www.

set.or.th or on the Company’s website at www.wice.co.th.

• If investors and related parties have any questions and 

would like to inquire, please contact the Investor Relations 

Department, Tel. 02-6816181 ext. 3501, email: wice-ir@

wice.co.th, or through the Company’s website at www.

wice.co.th which publishes press releases, business 

movement, operations progress, and the projects as well 

as providing answering service and facilitating continuous 

contact with the media and the public. 

4. Supervision of the Inside Information Utilization 
 The Company has set the best practice on 

confidentiality, data retention, and the use of inside information, 

and the best practice in accordance with the principles of good 

corporate governance on the use of inside information for 

personnel to follow. The Company’s personnel shall keep the 

Company’s internal information or confidential information that 

has not yet been disclosed to the public and shall not disclose 

information they have learned from their works or use the inside 

information to seek their benefits wrongfully or to reduce the 

Company’s benefits. 

 In addition, the Company has announced a policy 

prohibiting the Board of Directors, executives, and related 

persons from using inside information (Insider Trading) by 

avoiding trading the Company’s securities. If it is necessary to 

trade the Company’s securities, they shall notify the Company 

Secretary at least 2 days in advance. In this regard, the personnel 

will be notified and campaigned against the use of inside 

information through the Company’s channels, especially, when 

there is an important event such as the issuance of shares to 

increase capital, etc. 

5. Conflicts of Interest
 The Company requires disclosure of information to 

prevent conflicts of interest with the Company. This is to prevent 

activities that may cause conflicts of interest, illegal, and 

inappropriate activities. The Board of Directors has set the 

conflict of interest policy based on the principle that any decision 

of personnel at all levels in conducting business activities shall 

be done for the best interest of the Company only. And, it is 

the duty of personnel at all levels to avoid financial involvement 

and/or relationships with other third parties that will result in a 

loss of interest in the Company, create a conflict of loyalty or 

interest, or interfere with effective operations. It is required that 

those who are involved or connected with the considered 

transaction shall notify the Company of their relationship or 

their connection with such transaction, and must not participate 
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in any decision. In addition, the Company shall take steps to 

ensure that the person involved does not have the authority to 

approve or be involved in that transaction.

Preparation of Report Disclosing Transactions With Possible 

Conflicts of Interest With the Company 

 The Company requires all directors, executives, and 

employees to prepare a report to disclose the transactions that 

may have conflicts of interest with the Company by disclosing 

suspected transactions that may be in conflict with the interests 

of the Company and in making any approvals through the 

Conflict of Interest Reporting System. In such cases, it is to 

adhere to the principle that no abnormal conditions or special 

terms are imposed and considered as the Company’s internal 

control process. The Company assigned the internal audit unit 

and the Audit Committee to oversee and manage such conflicts 

of interest. 

Preparation of Report of Interest of Directors, Executives, or 

Related Persons

 In the first quarter of 2022, the Board of Directors 

prepared a report on the interest of directors to be used as a 

basis for supervising the interest at the levels of directors and 

top executives. The Board of Directors and all top executives 

have prepared such reports annually, sent them to the Company 

Secretary for records, and sent a copy version to the Chairman 

of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit Committee to be 

used in the audit and supervision of the conflicts of interest. In 

addition, during the year, there were no reports on the interest 

of directors, executives, and related persons.

Preparation of Report on Changes to Securities Holding 

 To supervise the use of inside information of the 

Company, it has been determined that the Board of Directors 

and executives, including spouses or those living together as 

husband and wife, and minor children must notify the Company 

and/or the Company Secretary to know, when there is a change 

in the holding of the Company’s securities, and report changes 

in securities holding to the Office of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission according to Section 59 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and its amendments within 3 business 

days from the date of purchase, sell, transfer, or accept transfer. 

The Company has also set a policy for disclosure reports on 

purchases, sales, transfers, and changes in securities holdings 

of directors and executives to the Board of Directors when there 

is a change in the quarterly meeting. This is a regular agenda 

in the Board of Directors’ meeting calendar in advance. 

 In addition, one week before the closing date of the 

quarterly or annual financial statements, the Company Secretary 

will prepare a letter to notify the directors, executives, or 

departments receiving inside information (Insider) to not disclose 

inside information to third parties or persons who are not involved, 

and not trade the Company’s securities during 30 days for 

quarterly and annual statements (from the closing date until 

the date the financial statements are reported to the SET), that 

is before the financial statements are publicly disclosed, to 

prevent the use of inside information in the wrong way (Insider 

Trading). 

Notification of Interest in the Meeting

 The Board of Directors has established a stakeholder 

policy. In every meeting of the Board, the chairman will inform 

the meeting to ask directors to cooperate in complying with the 

policy on conflicts of interest in any agenda in which a director 

is involved or has interest and ask that director to inform the 

meeting to abstain from voting or giving any opinions. 

Consideration and Review of Related Party Transactions 

 The Audit Committee is responsible for considering 

and reviewing related party transactions or transactions that 

may have conflicts of interest that may affect the Company’s 

operations. This is in accordance with the laws and regulations 

of the Stock Exchange of Thailand before submitting to the 

Board of Directors for approval. 

6. Management of the Rights of Shareholders
 The Company has determined methods to protect the 

right of all shareholders equally and fairly. The policy on corporate 

governance and guideline on shareholders’ engagement and 

communications have been provided in writing for all directors, 

executives, and employees to adhere to and comply with the 

corporate governance policy and code of conduct of the 

Company.

7. Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
 The Company is committed to conducting business 

with honesty, transparency, and fairness to be in accordance 

with the principles of good corporate governance. It does not 

tolerate any fraud and corruption in all forms both directly and 
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indirectly. The Company has initiated continuous development 

as follows: 

• The Company has prepared an annual plan to be in line 

with the National Anti-Corruption Strategy Phase 3 (2017-

2021) to drive the Company’s corporate governance and 

anti-corruption strategies. The aim is to be a model 

organization for business management with transparency 

and ethics. 

• In 2016, the Company signed the intention to join Thailand’s 

Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption 

(CAC), which is a project organized by the Thai Institute of 

Directors. The Company received support from the 

government and the Office of the National Anti-Corruption 

Commission (NACC). The Company was certified as a 

member of the CAC (CAC Certified Company) on November 

10, 2017, valid for 3 years. On December 30, 2020, the 

Company renewed the certification (CAC Re-Certified 

Company) for the 2nd time, valid continuously until now. 

• In 2017, the Company announced the Company’s anti-

corruption policy throughout the organization. In 2020, the 

Company’s anti-corruption policy and measures were 

revised to make it material and to be the practice in line 

with the law, practice, and standards of leading companies. 

The Company also adjusted the definition of corruption to 

be clearer and more complete. The Company has set the 

anti-corruption policy and the measures as part of the good 

corporate governance policy. 

For more information for anti-corruption policy and 

measures, please go to https://www.wice.co.th/anti-

corruption-policy/.

• The anti-corruption policy and the measures of the Company 

provided that the Company’s personnel shall not take any 

action or participate in any fraud and corruption in all forms, 

both directly and indirectly. The Company’s personnel shall 

strictly follow the practices in the policy, covering various 

operational processes such as charitable donations, human 

resource management, procurement, and internal control. 

• In 2019, the Company announced the “No Gift Policy” in 

the festival continuing until now, and announced the guideline 

about accepting and giving gifts, entertainment, or any other 

benefits. This is in line with the policy of not accepting such 

gifts to create a good standard in the performance of 

personnel. This aims is to encourage personnel at all levels 

to work to their full potential without expecting any benefit 

in return. The Company prepared a letter to notify partners 

and external agencies including public relations within the 

Company’s office and various channels. 

• Key Communication, Training, and Operations  

- The Company requires communications of the anti-

fraud and anti-corruption policy and guidelines to 

persons related to the Company, subsidiaries, 

associated companies, and other companies in which 

the Company has control over business partners, and 

stakeholders including the public through various 

communication channels such as email, website, 

Facebook, etc. so that all groups of stakeholders are 

informed and acted in accordance with the guidelines 

set by the Company. 

- The Company continuously communicates and 

organizes training for its personnel to make them 

understand the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

measures, the Company expectations, and penalties 

if they do not comply, such as orientation, etc. as 

well as encouraging executives and employees to 

attend an anti-fraud and anti-corruption training 

course organized by an external agency.

- The use of information technology systems is an 

important tool for all personnel to show their 

transparency, such as a reporting system for receiving 

gifts, assets, or the other benefit of personnel 

according to the No Gift Policy. This system is for 

employees to report in case of it is necessary to 

receive items and cannot be returned to the recipient. 

Such items will be delivered to the responsible 

department to gather and donate for the benefit of 

the public. 

• Supervision, Monitoring, and Evaluation of Performance

- The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing 

the Company to have an effective anti-fraud and anti-

corruption support system to ensure that the 

management team realizes and places importance on 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption including complying with 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures. 

- The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the 

efficiency and effectiveness of the good corporate 

governance process, the risk management process, 

the internal control process, and reviewing the 

preparation of financial reports and other processes 

related to anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures to 

ensure that anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures 

are sufficient and effective. The Audit Committee shall 

provide an internal audit report on the Company’s anti-

fraud and anti-corruption measures to the Board of 
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Directors regularly and advise to the Board of Directors 

and executives. 

- The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible 

for approving objectives, goals, and management 

framework strategies, along with providing a policy and 

guideline for anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures, 

providing advice and suggestions, supervising, 

monitoring, and evaluating relevant performance 

annually. This includes supporting the operations of 

fraud and corruption risk management by assessing 

fraud and corruption risks and reviewing various internal 

control measures to be sufficient and appropriate. 

- Executives are responsible for determining the risk 

assessment of fraud and corruption in the work 

processes, reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness 

of various internal control measures, acting as an 

example, and communicating to the employees and all 

related parties. 

- The Company has a procedure for maintaining 

documents and records to be ready for the audit to 

confirm the accuracy and suitability of financial 

transactions, a procedure for internal control of 

accounting processes and data retention, and a 

procedure for internal audits to verify the effectiveness 

of anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures and to ensure 

that the recording of the financial reports has sufficient 

evidence to be used for the audit. 

- The internal audit unit shall review the items that may 

have conflicts of interest, create the potential for fraud, 

and the organization’s effectiveness in managing fraud 

risks within the organization and at the operational level, 

including reviewing the code of conduct for executives 

and employees. In addition, they shall immediately 

consider and report to the Audit Committee and top 

executives when a transaction or action found may 

seriously damage the Company’s performance, 

including any act of corruption. 

8. Measures to Deal With Non-Compliance With 
Regulations, Requirements, and Practices

• Measures, Scope, and Mechanisms to Protect Whistleblowers 

- The Company has established a human resource 

management process that reflects its commitment to 

anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures. The Company 

has the policy not to demote, punish, or harm personnel 

who deny corruption even if that action will make the 

Company lose a business opportunity. 

- The personnel of the Company should not neglect or 

ignore when encountering actions that may violate 

anti-fraud and corruption measures. The Company 

provides channels for whistle-blowing and safe 

protection of whistleblowers when personnel wants to 

provide information or clues as well as advise on 

compliance with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

measures.

- The Company has provided regulations regarding 

complaints and clues about corruption, malpractice, 

misconduct, and non-compliance with the Company’s 

rules to establish criteria and guidelines for complaints 

about malpractice (Whistleblowing) to be appropriate 

and in the same direction throughout the organization. 

There are also measures to protect and provide fairness 

to complainants or those who cooperate in providing 

relevant clues.

• Penalty

- The Company has a process to appropriately and fairly 

punish personnel who do not comply with anti-fraud 

and corruption measures. Any action that breaks or 

does not comply with this policy either directly or 

indirectly will receive a penalty as determined by the 

Company. The Company has procedures for 

investigating the facts, disciplinary investigation, 

punishment and clear appeal, or penalty by law. The 

personnel shall make understand and strictly comply 

with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy in every 

work process.

6.2 Business Ethics (if any) 
Code of Conduct
 The Company has established written policies and 

regulations regarding the Company’s code of conduct in 

accordance with international standards, which is a collection of 

plans that determine the scope of behavior and behavior standards 

that the Company’s personnel, including directors, executives, 

and employees, are required to do in the business operation and 

practice under a moral framework, including integrity, equality, 

and equity, to build the foundation and maintain the image of 

the Company as an organization with sustainable growth. 

Executives in higher positions are in charge of supervising and 

encouraging their subordinates to follow the Company’s code of 

conduct. If anyone neglects or disobeys, that person shall be 

penalized.
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Important details of the Company’s Code of Conduct are 

as follows: 

1. Respect the law and universal human rights principles.

2. Prevent money laundering.

3. Maintain a political neutrality. 

4. Have no conflict of interest 

5. Maintain confidentiality and avoid using inside information 

for personal gain.

6. Satisfy the needs of customers and take responsibility for 

customers. 

7. Compete in a free and fair manner.

8. Ensure that the procurement process is transparent and 

that trading partners are treated fairly.

9. Be responsible for the community and society. 

10. Support the rights of employees and establish a good 

relationship within the organization. 

11. Comply with the terms of the contract with creditors in a 

strict, transparent, and equitable manner. 

12. Have an effective internal control and internal audit system.

13. Have guidelines for receiving and giving gifts, assets, or 

any other benefits. 

14. Maintain security, promote hygiene, and protect the 

environment. 

15. Respect intellectual property and make proper use of 

information technology. 

 In this regard, you can study information on Good 

Corporate Governance and the Company’s business ethics in 

complete version at https://www.wice.co.th/good-corporate-

governance-and-code-of-conduct/.

6.3 Significant Changes and 
Developments in Policies, 
Practices, and Corporate 
Governance Systems in the       
Past Year

 In 2022, the Board of Directors approved the review of 

the important improvements, policies, guidelines, corporate 

governance system, and business ethics as follows:  

• Improvement of the Company’s corporate governance 

policy to have appropriate content Complies with the good 

corporate governance principles of the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC), the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand (SET).

• Improving good practices according to the company’s 

business ethics to comply with laws, rules, regulations, 

and international standards and practices of leading 

international companies 

• Improvement of procurement policy in accordance with 

the selection of partners according to sustainability 

practices 

 In addition, in 2022, the Board of Directors of the 

Company Approved the review of the regulations on 

complaints and whistle blowing. malpractice Misconduct and 

non-compliance with the law organization rules in order to 

consider complaints related to malpractice and misconduct 

in a transparent, fair and efficient manner in line with the 

principles of good governance 

Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate 
Governance in Other Matters 
 The results of the Company’s Corporate Governance 

Survey of the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) according to the 

2022 Corporate Governance Survey of Listed Companies, 

overall, the Company is in the category of “Excellent” and 

received an average overall score in each category higher than 

the average score of the 750  surveyed companies. 

 In 2022, the company has complied with the principles 

of good corporate governance but may not cover the criteria 

of the corporate governance survey of Thai listed companies 

in 2 issues, which can be explained as follows. 

1. Companies should set and disclose water resource 

management goals.

 The Company’s business process, the main factor is fuel 

type. The use of water resources It is something used in 

everyday life. to cover sustainability principles  

2. Companies should consider assigning responsible persons. 

or compliance unit to supervise compliance with laws, 

regulations, requirements, standard policies

 Board of Directors is in the process of considering the 

said matter

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)98



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

7. Corporate Governance Structure and Important 
Information of the Board of Directors, Sub-Committees, 

Executives, Employees, Etc.  

7.2 Board of Directors Information
7.2.1 Composition of the Board of Directors 
 According to the articles of association of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited, the Board of Directors shall consist 

of at least five (5) directors, comprising capable persons who are generally accepted and be appointed through election by the 

Sales and 
Marketing Division  

Human Resources 
Department Division 

Information 
Technology Division 

Logistics and 
Supply Chain 

Operations Division  

Logistics 
Operations Division  

Accounting and 
Finance Division  

Administration 
Division  

Director of Customer 
Development Development 

Development 

Human Resources 
(HR) Manager 

Logistics Operations 
Manager

Information Technology 
(IT) Manager  

Director of 
Accounting 
and Finance 

Director of Logistics 
and Supply Chain 

Operations

Corporate Support 
Managing Director 

Auditors Shareholders

Board of Directors

Audit Committee Executive Committee Risk Management 
Committee

Corporate Governance 
and Sustainable 

Development Committee
Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee

Chief 
Executive Officer 

Internal Audit Company Secretary 

Managing Director of 
Business Development 

7.1 Corporate Governance Structure  
 The management structure of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited on December 31, 2022, consists of the Board 

of Directors by divided into 5 sub-committees, taking care of specific issues and screening crucial tasks, which are the Audit 

Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance and 

Sustainable Development Committee, and the Executive Committee. The Chief Executive Officer, the highest executive of the 

Company, shall manage through the Company’s management team. 

Organizational Structure 
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shareholders at the annual general meeting of shareholders. In 

this regard, the Company has determined the diversity of 

directors based on experiences, knowledge, and abilities that 

will benefit the Company and do not bring any differences in 

sex, race, race, nationality, or origin as a limitation on 

qualifications. The Company has prepared the Board Skill Matrix, 

which consists of skills, knowledge, and expertise that are 

necessary for business operations. Such as logistics, 

transportation, supply chain, accounting and finance, information 

technology, international business, innovation and environment, 

law, etc. It should consist of at least 3 persons with business 

knowledge of the Company and at least 1 person in accounting 

and finance. In addition, it must also consist of independent 

directors who shall be independent according to the Company’s 

determination about qualifications.

 In addition, for the Company to receive maximum 

benefit from devoting time to perform duties of a director 

efficiently, the Board of Directors has established a policy to 

limit the holding of office and determine the term of office of the 

Company’s directors as follows: 

1. Independent directors hold positions in other listed 

companies not more than 5. Executive directors hold 

positions in other listed companies outside the business 

group not more than 2 places.

2. The term of office of directors is 3 years per term. 

Independent directors are not holding a position of more 

than 9 consecutive years or 6 years, as appropriate.

Board of Directors (Information on December               
31, 2022) 
 The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 8 

directors as follows: 

• 4 non-executive directors, representing 50 percent of the 

total number of directors

• 4 independent directors, representing 50 percent of the total 

number of directors 

• 4 executive directors 

• 3 female directors, representing 37.5 percent of the total 

number of directors

Gender 

3 Female

5 Male

Proportion

Independent 
directors :
A total number 
of directors

Executive 
directors :
A total number 
of directors
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Name Position Date of Appointment as Director 

1 Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon Independent Director
Chairman of the Board

August 14, 2014 (1st Term of office)
April 20, 2017 (2nd Term of office)
April 25, 2019 (3rd Term of office)
April 30, 2021 (4th Term of office)

2 Professor Ruth Banomyong 
(PhD)

Independent Director
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

August 14, 2014 (1st Term of office)
April 25, 2018 (2nd Term of office)
April 29, 2020 (3rd Term of office)

3 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot Independent Director
Director of the Audit Committee
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 
Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

August 11, 2020 (1st Term of office) 
April 29, 2022 (2nd Term of office)

4 Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin Independent Director
Director of the Audit Committee 
(Has knowledge and experience to review the 
reliability of financial statements.) 
Chairman of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

May 14, 2021 (1st Term of office) 

5 Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Director
Chief Executive Officer
Director of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

August 14, 2014 (1st Term of office)
April 25, 2018 (2nd Term of office)
April 30, 2021 (3rd Term of office)

6 Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn Director
Managing Director of Business Development

August 14, 2014 (1st Term of office)
April 20, 2016 (2nd Term of office)
April 25, 2019 (3rd Term of office)
April 29, 2022 (4th Term of office)

7 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Director 
Director of the Risk Management Committee 
Director of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 
Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee
Corporate Support Managing Director 

August 14, 2014 (1st Term of office)
April 20, 2016 (2nd Term of office)
April 25, 2018 (3rd Term of office)
April 30, 2021 (4th Term of office)

8 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Director
Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee
Director of Accounting and Finance 

February 22, 2018 (1st Term of office)
April 29, 2020 (2nd Term of office)
April 29, 2020 (3rd Term of office)

7.2.2 Board of Directors and Authorized Persons Information  
 The list of the Board of Directors on December 31, 2022, consists of: 
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7.2.3 Roles and Duties of the Board of Directors 
Authorities of Directors 
• The Board of Directors has the authority to supervise and 

manage the Company to comply with laws, objectives, 

regulations, and resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting. 

• The Board of Directors has the authority to appoint one 

director as the Chairman of the Board and may appoint 

the Vice-Chairman of the Board as deemed appropriate. 

• The Board of Directors has the authority to appoint the Chief 

Executive Officer who is recruited from the procedures and 

methods as determined by applicable laws and regulations. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
• The Board of Directors has the duties according to the 

Company’s article of association, including overseeing 

and managing the Company by laws, objectives, 

regulations, and resolutions of the shareholders’ 

meeting. 

• The Board of Directors shall report their interests or 

related persons who are related to the management 

of the Company or subsidiaries which can be verified. 

• The Board of Directors defines visions, policies, goals, 

strategies, plans, and directions of operations related 

to corporate governance and anti-corruption, as well 

as supervises operations to achieve the set goals 

along with evaluating and improve for the efficiency 

of business operations. 

• Approve a corporate governance policy and oversee 

the corporate governance as well as disclose its 

information. 

• Approve mergers and acquisit ions, investments, 

liquidation, and transactions relating to asset transfers 

that have a high risk and impact on the Company 

under the policy and risk management strategy, as 

well as risk appetite. 

• Ensure and monitor the whistleblowing policy and 

internal control system effectively. 

• Approve a good risk governance framework and 

oversee the installation of an organizational culture 

that realizes risks, as well as a compensation structure 

that conforms with the corporate culture that takes 

into risks.

• Establish a reliable accounting, financial reporting, 

and auditing system, and monitor financial liquidity 

and debt repayment ability, including plans or tactics 

to fix if problems occur.

• Supervise and manage information technology and 

security measures of information technology systems.

• The Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, 

and top executives behave as role models in creating 

an organizational culture and adhering to laws with 

honesty.

• Inform the Company about own conflicts of interests 

and those involved about the management of the 

Company or its subsidiaries’ stakes.

• Develop knowledge and ability to perform continual 

work, attend training or participate in courses related 

to the performance of directors’ duties or seminar 

activities to increase knowledge in continuous work 

operations.

• Support the Company to carry out anti-corruption at 

all forms to progress and grow sustainably.

• Consider selecting and appointing suitable persons 

to hold the position of chairman and director from 

those nominated by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

• Oversee the annual performance assessment of 

the Board of Directors and individually, in both the 

self-assessment method and the cross-assessment 

method or an evaluation by an external assessor (if 

required). 

• Consider selecting, appointing, and evaluating suitable 

candidates for the position of Chief Executive Officer, 

as well as succession plans from those nominated by 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

• Determine the overall direction and strategy of the 

Company, along with the Chief Executive Officer and 

top executives, regarding sustainable operations and 

ensure that tactics are performing under the good 

corporate governance policy to create long-term value 

for the shareholders. 

• Consider appointing sub-committees which are the 

Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the Risk Management Committee, and the 

Executive Committee to perform duties as assigned 

by the Board of Directors. 

• Consider appointing a company secretary to take care 

of various tasks regarding the Board of Directors and 
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manage the important tasks of the Company by the 

relevant laws and regulations, responsibilities, as well 

as monitoring the operations to ensure compliance 

with the resolutions of the Board of Directors. Also, 

organize meetings of the Board of Directors and 

shareholders’ meetings, send invitation letters, record 

the minutes of the meeting, and perform other duties 

under relevant laws and regulations.

In addition, the Board of Directors has the authority to 
take additional actions as follows: 
• Authorize to approve the use of money for long-term 

investments such as investments in ordinary shares, 

preferred shares, bonds, debentures, and warrants, or other 

financial instruments.

• Authorize to approve financial support to companies in 

which the Company holds shares in the form of funding, 

lending money, or providing other forms of financial support 

as appropriate. 

• Consider the annual budget.

• Authorize to make related party transactions and the 

acquisition or disposition of important assets of the 

Company as determined by laws and the Capital Market 

Supervisory Board. 

• Authorize to approve the sale or transfer of the Company’s 

business wholly or partly which is important to another 

person. 

• Authorize to approve a purchase or accept a transfer of 

other company’s business to the Company.

• Authorize to approve an addition or amendment of the 

Memorandum of Association or the Company’s articles of 

association. 

• Authorize to approve increase/decrease of registered 

capital.

• Authorize to approve the issuance of debentures for sale 

to the public. 

• Authorize to approve the dissolution of the Company/the 

merger with other companies.

• Announce annual dividend payment.

Authorized Directors to Sign on Behalf of the Company 
 According to the Company’s articles of association, 

the directors authorized to sign on behalf of the Company as of 

December 20, 2022, consist of (1) Mrs. Araya Kongsoontorn or 

(2) Mr. Chudet Kongsoontorn or (3) Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn 

or (4) Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem. Two of these four directors shall 

jointly sign and affix the Company’s seal.

Appointment and Removal of Directors  
1. Directors are elected by the shareholders’ meeting. There 

must be no less than 5 directors and no more than 8 

directors with no less than 3 independent directors. Not 

less than half of the total number of directors must reside 

in the Kingdom of Thailand. At least 1 of directors must 

know accounting and finance. The selection of the Board 

of Directors still takes into account the balance between the 

diversity of expertise and qualifications of the Board without 

restrictions on gender, race, or religion. Directors must have 

qualifications as required by laws and regulations. In this 

regard, the Company has 4 independent directors with 3 

female directors, all of whom residing in Thailand, and 1 

director who is an expert experienced in accounting and 

finance namely Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin. 

2. At the shareholders’ meeting to elect directors, the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee selects and 

nominates qualified persons to the Board of Directors 

according to the following criteria: 

(1) One shareholder has votes per the number of shares 

they hold. 

(2) Each shareholder may use all their votes under (1) to 

elect one person or more persons as directors, but 

cannot divide the votes to any person.

(3) Persons receiving the highest number of votes in 

descending order shall be elected as directors as the 

number of directors to be elected in that time.

(4) If the persons elected in descending order have equal 

votes exceeding the number of directors to have or to 

elected at that time, the chairman of the meeting shall 

have a casting vote. 

3. At every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third 

of the directors shall retire by rotation. If the number of 

directors cannot be divided into three, the closest number 

will be settled. Directors who must retire from office in the 

first and second year after registration will leave by 
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lot drawing. In the third and subsequent years, the 

longest-serving directors shall retire. 

4. In the case where the position of the director is vacant 

for reasons other than the term expiration, the Board of 

Directors may elect a qualified candidate who does not have 

any prohibited characteristics under the Company’s article 

of association to fill the vacant position at the meeting next 

time unless the remaining term of the retiring committee 

is less than 2 months. The Board of Directors must have 

votes to appoint not less than three-fourths of the remaining 

directors. The position is only valid for the remaining term 

of the director they replace. 

5. A director who wishes to resign from office shall submit a 

resignation letter to the Company. It shall be effective on 

the date the Company receives the letter. 

6. In the vote for any director to retire from the position before 

his/her expiration of term, the vote must reach the total of not 

less than three-fourths of the total number of shareholders 

who attend the meeting, have the right to vote and, hold 

shares in a total of not less than half of the number of shares 

held by shareholders attending the meeting and having the 

right to vote.  

Qualifications of Directors 
1. Fully qualified and does not have any prohibited 

characteristics by the Public Limited Companies Act, 

requirements of the Office of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2. Have knowledge, expertise, and experience that can be 

the benefit of the Company well, are dedicated and able to 

devote their full time to perform duties by responsibilities, 

leadership, and broad vision. Have moral and ethics, as 

well as have a good work history.

3. Independent directors must have qualifications related to 

independence as announced by the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand about qualifications and scope of work of the Audit 

Committee.

4. Never been sentenced to imprisonment according to a final 

judgment unless it is a penalty for an offense committed 

carelessly or a petty offense. 

 

7.3 Sub-Committee Information 
 The sub-committees consist of: 

(1) Audit Committee 
 The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing 

financial reports by meeting with the Finance Director and the 

auditor (EY Office Company Limited) every quarter. The Board 

of Directors is responsible for the Company’s and subsidiaries’ 

financial reports, including financial information appearing in the 

annual report. Those are prepared by accounting standards, 

audited, and certified by Ms. Pimjai Manitkhajornkit, Certified 

Public Accountant No. 4521, affiliated with EY Office Company 

Limited. Disclosure of important information both financial and 

non-financial are conducted based on facts completely and 

consistently. 

 The Board of Directors approved the establishment of 

the Audit Committee on August 14, 2014, by appointing directors 

of the Board qualified as specified by the Securities and Exchange 

Act at least 3 persons. On December 31, 2022, it consists of 3 

independent directors as follows: 

Name - Surname Position in the Audit Committee Position in the Board of Directors

1 Professor Ruth Banomyong (PhD) Chairman of the Audit Committee Independent Director 

2 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot Director of the Audit Committee Independent Director 

3 Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin Director of the Audit Committee Independent Director 

With an internal audit officer as a secretary
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee 
1. Prepare the Audit Committee Charter in accordance with a 

scope of the Company’s operational responsibilities which 

must be approved by the Board of Directors. The suitability 

of the aforementioned regulation shall be reviewed at least 

once a year. 

2. Review the efficiency and effectiveness of the good 

corporate governance process, risk management process, 

and internal control process.

3. Review the Company’s financial reporting to be accurate 

and reliable.

4. Review operations of the Company to comply with laws, 

rules, regulations, the Securities and Exchange Act, 

announcements, or orders related to the operations of 

the Company. 

5. Review to ensure that the Company has effective internal 

audit systems, consider the sufficiency of the budget, 

personnel, and the independence of the internal audit unit. 

6. Consider related party transactions, acquisition or 

disposition of assets, or transactions that may have 

conflicts of interest to comply with laws and requirements 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand. 

7. Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors for 

consideration of appointment, transfer, promotion, and 

evaluate the work of the head of the internal audit unit.

8. Consider and nominate an independent auditor, and 

propose the removal of the auditor in the case when 

they are unable or neglect to perform duties, or perform 

duties improperly. Also, propose the remuneration for 

the Company’s auditors and the assessment of auditor’s 

performance to the Board of Directors. 

9. Coordinate with auditors about audit findings and may 

recommend reviewing or examining any items deemed 

necessary. 

10. Receive complaints through the channels and methods 

specified in the anti-corruption policy regarding the 

complaints and whistleblowing, corruption, misconduct, 

and non-compliance with laws and organization rules. 

11. Evaluate internal audit performance of the Audit Committee 

at least once a year and inform the Board of Directors for 

their acknowledgement. 

12. Disclose the annual performance of the Audit Committee 

and the auditor’s remuneration in the Company’s annual 

report.

13. The Chairman of the Audit Committee or a director of the 

Audit Committee shall attend the shareholders’ meeting 

to clarify the matter of the Audit Committee or the 

appointment of the auditors.

14. Review the Company’s risk management and working 

process, controls, operational and governance, oversight 

in information technology and security, effective 

communication networks, and compliance with the 

international standards. 

15. Review the Company to have the effective anti-corruption 

process under the guidelines of the various regulatory 

agencies which are Thailand’s Private Sector Collective 

Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC), the Thai Institute 

of Directors (IOD), and the National Anti-Corruption 

Commission by promoting and raising awareness, risk 

assessment, internal control, building preventive system, 

reporting offenses, audits, to reviewing the self-assessment 

of anti-corruption measures as reviewed and assessed. 

16. Review the Company’s process to control and monitor 

its operations under the Securities and Exchange Act, 

regulations, and other laws related to the Company’s 

business. 

17. Review to ensure that the Company has an internal control 

system suitably and effectively by generally accepted 

international methods and standards, and consider the 

“Internal Control System Sufficiency Assessment Form”, 

which has been checked and evaluated, to ensure that 

the Company has an adequate internal control system 

and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration.

18. Review the results of corruption investigations and 

establish preventive measures internally as well as review 

the Company’s internal processes regarding whistleblowing 

and receiving complaints.

19. Review to have a preventive and beneficial work system 

for the unit to increase efficiency and effectiveness of 

operations. 

20. Prepare a report of the Audit Committee by disclosing it in 

the Company’s annual report. That report must be signed 

by the Chairman of the Audit Committee with opinions on 

various matters according to the regulations of the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand. 

21. The Audit Committee must meet together at least once a 

quarter. In this regard, there must be a meeting with the 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 105



auditors without the management team at least once a year. 

22. The Audit Committee shall hold an official meeting with 

the management team at least once a year. 

23. Consider and approve the internal audit work plan, budget, 

as well as endorse the appointment, removal, transfer, or 

termination of the internal audit officers. 

24. Consider the independence of the internal audit unit by 

considering from performance and reports including the 

line of command. Review to have an assessment of the 

audit under international standards.

25. Review the Audit Committee to assess its overall 

performance and evaluate its performance annually.

26. Perform other tasks as required by laws or assigned by the 

Board of Directors. In this regard, it shall be in the scope of 

duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee.  

 In performing duties within the scope of authorities, 

the Audit Committee has the authority to order the management, 

heads of departments, or related employees to give their 

opinions, attend a meeting, or submit documents that are 

deemed relevant and necessary. The Audit Committee operates 

within the scope of duties and responsibilities as instructed by 

the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is responsible 

for the Company’s operations directly to shareholders, 

stakeholders, and general individuals.

 In the case where the auditor finds suspicious 

circumstances that a director, manager, or person responsible 

for the Company’s operations has committed an offense under 

the Securities and Exchange Act, Section 281/2, Paragraph 

Two, Section 305, Section 306, Section 308, Section 309, 

Section 310, Section 311, Section 312, or Section 313, the 

Audit Committee shall conduct an audit and report the preliminary 

audit results to the SEC Office and the auditor within 30 days 

from the date notified by the auditor. 

 If the following transactions which may significantly 

affect the Company’s financial position and performances are 

discovered or suspected during the operations, the Audit 

Committee shall declare to the Board of Directors in order to 

improve and amend within the time period that the Audit 

Committee considers appropriate. 

(1) Transactions with conflicts of interest 

(2) Fraud, abnormality, or any major defect in the internal 

control system 

(3) Violation of the Securities and Exchange Act, the SET 

regulations or laws related to the Company’s business 

 

 If the Board of Directors or the management team has 

commit no action in addressing the issues within the specified 

period, any director of the Audit Committee may report those 

issues against the Securities and Exchange Commission or the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand.

 In 2022, the Audit Committee held  4 meetings and 

1 meeting with the Company’s auditor specifically to perform 

duties under the scope of authorities, duties, and responsibilities 

specified in the charter, and reported performance to the Board 

of Directors quarterly and the annually in the Audit Committee’s 

report.

(2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
 The Board of Directors approved the establishment of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on February 24, 

2015, by appointing 3 directors from the Board. In this regard, 

on December 31, 2022, it consists of 3 directors as follows: 

Name - Surname 
Position in the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee  
Position in the Board of Directors

1 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot Chairman of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee  

Independent Director 

2 Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Director of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee  

Director 

3 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Director of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee  

Director 

With the company secretary as the secretary
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1. The Nominating and Remuneration Committee determines 

the qualifications of the directors who are replacements 

in order to provide elements and qualifications according 

to relevant laws/regulations as well as to be in accordance 

with the strategy and business operations of the Company, 

and determines the method for nomination of qualified 

candidates. 

2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee summarizes 

the results of the nomination, nominates suitable candidates 

for the Board of Directors along with supporting reasons, 

and proposes to the Board of Directors.

3. The Board of Directors selects qualified candidates 

according to the list proposed by the Nominating and 

Remuneration Committee to consider for appointment as 

a director or to propose names to the shareholders’ meeting 

for approval to be appointed as a director.

Remuneration Consideration 

1. Set criteria or methods for determining remuneration as well 

as consider proposing fair and reasonable remuneration for 

the directors and specific directors to the Board of Directors 

and the shareholders’ meeting for approval.

2. Consider proposing an assessment guideline of performance 

and remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer to the 

Board of Directors for consideration.

3. Acknowledge and give suggestions on organizational 

restructuring and job levels including evaluating and 

considering remuneration for top executives.

4. Responsible to the Board of Directors directly according 

to their roles and responsibilities. The Board of Directors 

is responsible for the operations of the Company to all 

groups of stakeholders. 

5. Evaluate the performance of the Nominating and 

Remuneration Committee, arrange it to be reported to 

the Board of Directors for acknowledge, and disclose in 

an annual report. 

6. Disclose the performance report of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee in the annual report. 

7. Perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of 

Directors. 

 In performing duties within the scope of authorities, 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall have the 

authority to summon and order the management team, heads 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
Nomination 

1. Determine the policies, rules, and procedures for selecting 

directors and the highest executive of the Company to 

be transparent and propose to the Board of Directors for 

approval. 

2. Select a person who deserves to be nominated as a new 

director when there is a vacancy (by resignation or term 

completion) to propose to the Board of Directors or the 

shareholders’ meeting in order to perform the appointment 

by taking into account the composition of the Board of 

Directors, knowledge, ability and experience that are 

beneficial to the Company, according to the elements in the 

Board Skill Matrix of the Company and the Director’s Pool 

database of the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD), including 

having no conflicts of interest with the Company as well as 

being consistent with the Company’s business strategy. 

3. Consider nominating directors to act as a specific director 

by considering the composition of specific committees, 

qualifications, knowledge, and abilities of the directors that 

are suitable for the performance of specific committees, 

and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration and 

appointment, except for the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee which will be appointed by the Board of 

Directors. 

4. Responsible to the Board of Directors directly according 

to their roles and responsibilities. The Board of Directors 

is responsible for the operations of the Company to all 

groups of stakeholders.

5. Evaluate the performance of the Nominating and 

Remuneration Committee and arrange it to be reported 

to the Board of Directors for acknowledge and disclose 

in an annual report. 

6. Disclose the performance report of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee in the annual report. 

7. Prepare a succession plan for the Chief Executive Officer 

or managing directors to propose to the Board of Directors 

for consideration.

8. Perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of 

Directors. 

 In this regard, the method for nominating persons to 

be appointed as directors is determined as follows: 
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Risk Management 
Committee 
1. Determine and review policy, corporate risk management 

framework, and organizational stakeholders management 

framework. 

2. Supervise and support the implementation of corporate 

risk management and stakeholders management in line 

with business strategies and goals including changing 

circumstances. 

3. Provide suggestions, follow up, and evaluate the results 

of risk management and stakeholders management to the 

Risk Management Committee for their implementation.

4. Consider to report the corporate risk management results 

and provide comments on potential risks including providing 

a guideline for determining measures to control, mitigate, 

and develop a corporate risk management system to the 

Risk Management Committee to be continually effective. 

5. Consider the report of stakeholder management results 

and provide comments on the action plan to amplify the 

positive results or reduce/compensate potential impacts 

on the stakeholders.

6. Report results of the corporate risk management and 

stakeholder management to the Board of Directors for 

acknowledgment at least once a quarter. In case of any 

significant factors or events which may have an impact 

on the Company or the stakeholders of the Company 

significantly, it must report to the Board of Directors for 

acknowledgment and consideration as soon as possible.

7. Consider and provide comments on the agenda related to 

the contract that must be proposed to the Board of Directors. 

Be an approver for a sophisticated business and a business 

in which has a risk that may affect the Company or may 

have an impact on the Company’s stakeholders significantly, 

as approved by the Board of Directors.  

8. Supervise top management and the risk management 

working group to comply with risk management policy and 

strategies, including acceptable risk levels. 

9. Support and develop risk management entire the 

organization including various tools continuously and 

effectively. Promote the development of risk management 

culture in the organization.

10. Supervise, monitor, and review plans and reports on key 

risk management, along with providing advise to ensure 

that the risk management is efficient and appropriate at an 

acceptable level under the risk management policy. 

11. Report important corporate risk management results to the 

Board of Directors. If some significant factors or events that 

may affect the Company occur, it must report to the Board 

of Directors for consideration as soon as possible. 

12. Perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of 

Directors. 

 

Name - Surname Position in the Risk Management Committee  Position in the Board of Directors

1 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot Chairman of the Risk Management Committee Independent Director 

2 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Director of the Risk Management Committee  Director 

3 Ms. Somjai Purachako Director of the Risk Management Committee -

With the company secretary as the secretary

of departments, or related employees of the Company to give 

their opinions, attend meetings, or submit documents deemed 

relevant and necessary.

 In 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

held 2 meetings to perform duties under the scope of authorities, 

duties, and responsibilities specified in the charter, and reported 

the annual performance in the the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee’s report. 

(3) Risk Management Committee 
 The Board of Directors approved the establishment 

of the Risk Management Committee on August 11, 2016, by 

appointing 2 directors from the Board and 1 director from the 

management team. In this regard, on December 31, 2022, it 

consists of 3 directors as follows:
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 In 2022, the Risk Management Committee held 4 meetings 

to perform duties under the scope of authorities, duties, and 

responsibilities specified in the charter, and reported the 

performance to the Board of Directors quarterly and annually 

in the Risk Management Committee’s report.

(4) Corporate Governance and Sustainable 
Development Committee

 The Board of Directors approved the establishment 

of the Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development 

Committee on November 11, 2021, by appointing 4 directors 

from the Board. In this regard, on December 31, 2022, it consists 

of 4 directors as follows: 

Name - Surname 
Position in the Corporate Governance and 

Sustainable Development Committee
Position in the Board of Directors

1 Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin Chairman of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

Independent Director 

2 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

Independent Director

3 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

Director

4 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Director of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainable Development Committee

Director

With the company secretary as the secretary

Duties and Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance 
and Sustainable Development Committee
1. Consider, set, give an opinion on policies/guidelines on 

business morals and ethics as well as anti-corruption 

policies/measures, according to the good corporate 

governance system for the Board of Directors and 

management team to define the rules and regulations of 

the organization as standardized and correct guidelines. 

2. Supervise, consult, evaluate and review policies and 

compliance with the good corporate governance code 

and code of conduct, including taking action on social 

and environmental responsibility as well as sustainable 

development operations to develop and upgrade the 

corporate governance system of the Company to 

international standards. 

3. Recommend policy/practice on social and environmental 

responsibility, along with supervising, consulting, and 

monitoring the progress of the organization’s sustainable 

development actions, and evaluating the effectiveness of 

the implementation.  

4. Review the suitability of the Corporate Governance and 

Sustainable Development Committee Charter annually. If 

any amendment occurs, it will be presented to the Board 

of Directors for approval.  

5. Perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of 

Directors.   

 

 In 2022, the Corporate Governance and Sustainable 

Development Committee held 1 meeting to perform duties 

under the scope of authorities, duties, and responsibilities as 

specified in the charter, and reported the annual performance 

in the Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development 

Committee’s report.
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Name – Surname Position

1 Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Chief Executive Officer 

2 Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn Business Development Managing Director 

3 Ms. Thitima Tantikulsunthorn Corporate Support Managing Director 

4 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Director of Accounting and Finance 

5 Ms. Somjai Purachako Commercial Director - Sales&Marketing

6 Mr. Prasert Jirapivatthanakul Operation Director - Logistics and Supply Chain Solution

7 Mr. Amnat Phuangrod General Manager of Information Technology Department

8 Ms. Saovadee Asavamana Regional

9 Ms.Suntaree Pulsombut Assistant General Manager

Remark :  Listings 1-6 are the Company’s executives according to the announcement of the SEC.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer 
 According to the company’s regulations The Chief Executive 

Officer is responsible for the management of the company. As 

assigned by the Board of Directors and to manage the Company 

in accordance with the work plan or budget approved by the 

Board of Directors strictly, honestly, honestly and cautiously. 

Protect the best interests of the company and its shareholders. 

The authority and duties of the Chief Executive Officer include 

the following matters or activities.

• Operations and/or day-to-day management of the company.

• Recruitment, appointment, removal, transfer, promotion, 

reduction, cut of salary or wages. disciplinary action Officers 

and employees, as well as removing employees and 

employees from their positions in accordance with the 

regulations prescribed by the Board.

• Prepare and deliver the Company’s business policy. as well 

as plans and budgets to be submitted to the Board of 

Directors for approval. and is responsible for reporting 

progress according to the approved work plan and budget 

to the Board of Directors every 3 months.

• Work or implement policies. Plans and budgets approved 

by the Board of Directors.

 Board of Directors Has authorized the management of 

the company. to the Chief Executive Officer with principles and 

scope of authority as follows 

• Having authority to manage the company’s affairs according 

to objectives, regulations, policies, rules, regulations, orders 

and resolutions of the Board of Directors’ meeting. and/or 

resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting of the Company 

in all respects

• A person with the authority to command, contact, direct, 

execute, and sign any juristic acts, contracts, orders, notices 

or letters. used to communicate with government agencies 

and other persons, as well as to have the power to take 

any action necessary and appropriate In order to complete 

the above operations

• Is the authority to supervise employees and employees of 

all positions. Including recruitment, appointment, removal, 

promotion, reduction, salary cut or wages, disciplinary action 

as well as being dismissed from the position in accordance 

with the regulations Requirements or instructions set by the 

Board of Directors of the company.

7.4 Information Related the Executives
7.4.1 The list of executives as of December 31, 2022
 The organization chart of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited has been reported in “Section 7.1 Corporate 

Governance Structure”
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• To have the power to authorize the range. and/or assign 

other persons to perform specific tasks on their behalf By 

authorizing the range and/or such assignment shall be 

within the scope of such power of attorney. and/or in 

accordance with the rules, regulations or orders of the 

Board of Directors and/or specified by the company

 However, the exercise of the authority of the Chief 

Executive Officer as mentioned above cannot be done. If the 

Chief Executive Officer has a vested interest or may have a 

conflict of interest in any form with the Company in exercising 

power, in 2022 there was no action taken. that is beyond the 

scope of such jurisdiction

Duties and Responsibilities of the Top Executives Team 
 To consult and suggestions to the Chief Executive 

Officer. in making strategically important decisions business 

direction long-term action plan operating results, investment 

plans, budgets, resource allocations for the Company and its 

subsidiaries Including managing the work system of the group of 

companies to be in the same direction. to include consultation 

Recommendations drive and promote operations in the 

following areas.

• Defining the vision and main mission of the company.

• Organizational strategic direction and business goals of 

the company as well as the operating results of the 

Group as a whole.

• Determining the direction of corporate governance of the 

company. and group companies

• Scrutinize the budget and resource allocation structure. 

for investment and business support of the Company

• Scrutinizing the Company’s investment management.

• Scrutinizing and following up on overseas investment 

expansion of the group of companies.

• Policy making/decision making in human resource management 

Preparedness and development of company executives

• Consideration, scrutinizing, setting policies and corporate 

governance principles Including pushing for practical 

results according to the established guidelines.

• Progress tracking. and the results of operations of the 

Company and its group companies compare the target

• Consideration and screening of risk management in the 

Company’s business operations.

• Screening of the meeting agenda before proposing to the 

Board of Directors.

• Prioritization of decisions made by the Board of Directors. 

to lead to effective implementation

• Perform other tasks as assigned by the Chief Executive Officer. 

Succession for Executives
 The Company has a succession plan that covers the 

position by the position of Chief Executive Officer and top 

executives to ensure that the Company’s executives have 

knowledge, abilities, and experiences that can inherit crucial 

positions in the future, and arrange for a review, report, succession 

plan as appropriate, to promote and prepare top executives for 

a succession of important jobs and positions of the Company. 

Training in the Director Certification Program (DCP) or Director 

Accreditation Program (DAP) organized by the Thai Institute of 

Directors Association to create a fundamental for understanding 

the criteria duty and responsibilities of directors of listed 

companies. In addition to preparation, it is also beneficial to the 

executives in their work to support the Board of Directors.  

Labor Dispute 
 The Company has not had any labor disputes in the past 

3 years. 

7.4.2 The Policy of the Remuneration of the 
Board of Directors and Managements 

Managements Remuneration 
 The Company has established key performance indicators 

(KPIs) in the short and long term as the criterion for evaluating the 

performance of the Chief Executive Officer and top executives. 

Consist of performance indicators such as continuous growth 

for the organization every year by setting indicators for financial 

results, sales, and net profits, including determining appropriate 

financial ratios, developing an existing customer base, new 

customers, expanding investments, building networks to provide 

comprehensive services and meeting customer needs. By setting 

the indicators to maintain and build relationships with customers 

as customer loyalty and conduct business with integrity, social 

and environmental responsibility, by defining the indicators as 

customer, partners, and business partners satisfaction to the 

success of these performance indicators, reflects the short-term 

and long-term compensation for the Chief Executive Officer, and 

top executives, which the Company has transparency and an 
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Total remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and top executives of the Company according to the SEC definition 

(6 persons) in 2021 - 2022

Unit : Baht

Remuneration for Chief Executive Officer 
and Company’s senior management

Year 2021 Year 2022

Amount Amount

 Total Compensation 27,194,625 29,193,460

 Bonus 3,395,625 9,607,885

Total 30,590,250 38,801,345

Remark : 

Total compensations include the remuneration of executives as directors of the Company

appropriate process in considering the remuneration. The short-term payment consists of salary, bonus, and other benefits, for the 

long-term compensation, will be given to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management throughout the tenure within 5 years.

 The number of executives according to the SEC definition consists of 6 persons according to positions are chief executive 

officer, managing director of business development, managing director of corporate support department, director of the financial 

accounting department, director of the customer development department, and director of logistics and supply chain operations 

which will receive compensation from the Company according to the details as follows:

Provident fund contributions for the Company’s top executives for 2020-2022

Unit : Baht

Compensation

Year 2020 Year  2021 Year 2022

Number of Income 
by Position

Amount
Number of Income 

by Position
Amount

Number of Income 
by Position

Amount

Provident Fund 
Contributions  

7 747,360 9 838,860 9 943,560

Other non-monetary compensation 
 In addition to compensation for directors as meeting allowances There are also other non-monetary compensation as follows: 

 1. Director and Executive Officer Liability Insurance

Total remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and top executives of the Company according to the SEC definition 

(6 persons) in 2021 - 2022

Unit : Baht

Compensation

Year 2021 Year 2022

Executives (According to 
the SEC Definition)

Amount
Executives (According to 

the SEC Definition)
Amount

 Total Compensation 6 22,792,600 6 24,879,400

 Bonus 6 4,395,625 6 8,606,035

Total 27,188,225 33,485,435
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7.5 Employee Information 
 All personnel of the Company is considered the most 

crucial resource in running the business. The Company is 

confident that organizational growth depends on the quality of 

employees. Therefore, the Company has the policy to focus on 

improving and modernizing the human resource management 

process as equivalent to the international level and in line with 

changing technology. This is to strengthen and develop 

employees to be both good and talented, as well as to participate 

in the development and helping our whole society and focus 

on employees as a key for the Company’s development to be 

a sustainable organization, enhance competitive ability, and 

respond to the organization’s changes with the purpose to 

  Number of personnel divided by divisions/sections in 2020 - 2022 is as follows: 

 Unit: Persons

Department /Section 2020 2021 2022

Sex Male Female Male Female Male Female 

1. Management 1 4 1 4 3 6

2. Sales & Marketing Department 22 29 17 18 15 24

3. Sea Freight Operations Department 5 24 4 22 6 16

4. Air Freight Department 21 23 17 19 18 14

5. LSP Operations Department 70 27 62 35 68 41

6. Distribution Center Department - - - - - -

7. Accounting and Finance Department 3 16 3 15 3 16

8. Information Technology Department (IT) 2 1 2 1 3 1

9. Human Resources Department (HR) 3 5 1 4 - 5

10. Building and Administrative Department - 10 - 9 - 9

Total 123 139 107 127 116 132

  Remark : The Company’s employees only

become a leading company in transportation and logistics 

services. 

Personnel Number and Remuneration 
 The Company’s employee number on December 31, 

2022, is 248 people, divided into 116 male employees and 132 

female employees, with 1 disabled employee. In this regard, 

the Company continues to prepare the manpower plan to be 

in line with business operations under economic fluctuations 

by focusing on resource allocation in areas that will generate 

added value or necessary areas as a result of investments as 

following details:
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 The Company determines the remuneration for employees 

to be in line with the Company’s performance both in the short 

term and long term through the performance management 

process. Performance management is a continuous and 

systematic process to drive the organization’s performance to 

achieve business goals. This focuses on linking performance 

goals at the organizational level, the department level, and the 

individual level to be in the same direction and in accordance 

with the Company’s strategic direction to drive its performance 

by the Company’s business plan. 

 The Company determines to consider the salary increase 

of employees according to individual performance 1 time a 

year by using key performance indicators (KPIs) in the 

management process, an evaluation of individual performance, 

and consideration of employee remuneration. This is divided 

into 2 main categories which are corporate performance 

indicators (Corporate KPIs) and individual performance 

indicators (Functional KPIs). This Functional KPIs must be 

linked with the Balance Score Card for all 4 perspectives which 

are a financial perspective, a customer perspective, an internal 

process perspective, and a learning and development 

perspective.  

Provident Fund
 At present, the Company’s employees are participating 

in the provident fund, General Pooled Fund by TISCO Master 

(the “Fund”) for 173 registered employees out of 248 eligible 

employees, representing 69.75 percent. The information has 

been disclosed by TISCO Fund Management Company Limited 

according to the Investment Governance Code (I Code). 

 The Fund has promoted investment by taking into account 

environmental, social, and governance factors  (ESG) in 

collaboration with the management company to set policies 

and assign fund managers to invest in organizations that care 

for stakeholders in all aspects, including shareholders, 

employees, customers, trading partners, society, and the world. 

Also, there are also criteria for corporate governance in selecting 

securities to be included in the group of securities to be invested 

to ensure that the Fund invests in businesses that operate 

honestly and in accordance with good governance principles. 

In addition, the Fund committee has also required the fund 

manager to present a report on the securities currently invested, 

by comparing the list of securities in the SETTHSI (Thailand 

Sustainability Investment) of the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

with the list of sustainable stocks every time the Fund’s 

performance is reported.

Other Remunerations 
 None

Human Resource Development and Improvement 
 To develop the organization into a sustainable organization, 

the Company continues to develop and improve the human 

resource management and development system to be more 

efficient continuously. The objective is to develop the potential 

of personnel to fully utilize their knowledge and abilities to lead 

the organization to achieve its business objectives including 

having the opportunity to advance in careers and grow together 

with the success of the organization. 

 The Company has focused on executives and employees 

at all levels to jointly formulate work plans in line with the 

direction and goals of the organization. This will effectively result 

in business operations throughout the organization towards the 

same goal. Top executives of the Company and all related 

companies in the Group, including the support line, have joined 

Remuneration for Personnel (excluding the chief executive officer and top executives) in 2020 - 2022  
                             Unit : Baht

Remuneration 2020 2021 2022

Total Salary 58,899,833.30 62,559,166.69 68,694,474

Total Bonus 4,624,333.33 9,118,100 16,238,007

Provident Fund Contributions 2,222,372 2,267,274.33 2,395,183

Others (if any) 21,681,722.94 60,776,505.96 100,909,181

Total 87,428,261.57 134,721,046.98 188,236,845
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the meeting to discuss and determine the vision and direction 

of the organization together, and transfer that direction to 

departments within various lines of work, from business 

strategies to business plans and budget plans that are consistent 

in the same direction. The Company’s employees at all levels 

have set objectives and indicators (Key Performance Indicators:  

KPIs) which are transmitted down respectively from the levels 

of organization, departments, to employees. These will be used 

as a framework and standard for the individual employee 

performance assessment which can reflect differences in 

employee performance. 

Employee Development and Management Policy 
 To enhance the image and identity of the Company, the 

Company has established a general policy on human resources 

covering all companies to have the same standards level and 

to increase the efficiency of management and the continuity of 

work, such as the salary structure management system, payroll 

system, preliminary collection of information about employees, 

and the development of the basic human resource management 

system to be strong. These systems are important mechanisms 

to increase its competitiveness, increase the ability to drive the 

Company’s business to operate effectively, and support the 

expansion of investment both domestically and internationally 

for the Company. The Company has planned and formulated 

a human resource management action plan for its business 

operations, and carried out the restructuring of the management 

of various departments.

 In this regard, the Company places importance on 

recruiting personnel in groups necessary to drive the 

organization’s strategy to success, being prepared to recruit 

employees in management, operations, etc. To get ready for 

retirement and support new businesses, the Company also has 

a strategic plan to enhance its image and reputation to be 

known throughout the Company. The Company has set a 

performance assessment policy, starting from setting annual 

goals, having a follow-up on mid-year performance, and 

operating assessment at the end of the year for the organization’s 

goals to be distributed to the individual level. The Company 

has set up a process to set goals in the same direction (KPIs) 

within each line of work to be transparent and fair. Therefore, 

there is a policy for supervisors and employees to discuss and 

check their performance periodically after conducting the 

mid-year performance assessment. There will be a standard 

review process for evaluating performance within each unit for 

the work in the same standard. The results will be used in the 

employee performance comparison to compare the performance 

and available to identify differences in the assessment result 

that will affect the annual salary increase according to the 

Company’s policy. 

Hiring Employees 
 To meet the diversified image of the business and to 

maintain the Company’s culture, the Company uses 3 

competencies as criteria for hiring employees which are 

enterprise competence, ability to work, and leadership. Along 

with considering the consistency with the corporate values, the 

Company has the policy to hire employees with the right 

professional attitude and competencies and help employees 

develop their potential to work with the Company in the 

long term. 

 Human resources department is responsible for providing 

the right tools for recruiting and hiring employees. As for the 

employment decision, it is the responsibility of the executives 

in that affiliation. The Company has a policy to promote or 

relocate internally if there is a vacancy. However, executives 

and the human resources department are also responsible for 

recruiting external personnel with knowledge and ability, if 

considered appropriate, to maintain the quality standard of 

human resources at a good level. Employees must have skills, 

abilities, and behavior that blends seamlessly with the 

Company’s culture.

Working with WICE 
 To promote the standards of good corporate governance, 

the Company has set up the Code of Conduct to show its 

commitment to being a good citizen of society. These guidelines 

must be respected and adhered to at all places and occasions. 

The management will take necessary actions to ensure that 

these guidelines are followed at all levels. The Company has 

a long-term employment policy. Termination of employment 

will occur only in the event of a violation of the Company’s 

principles, business offenses, retirement, voluntary resignation, 

and actions that fall within the scope of having to leave work 

as prescribed in the rules and regulations of the company 

registered with the Ministry of Labor only. 
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Personnel Development and Assessment 
• Assessment

Employee assessment takes place at every stage from 

recruiting to promotion, development of working knowledge, 

and succession planning. Assessment is conducted in 

various areas, such as assessing knowledge and 

performance, key performance indicators, leadership, and 

compliance with corporate values because the creation of 

personnel values starts with the quality of personnel that 

must be suitable for the Company’s strategy, culture, 

technology, and environment.

• Personnel Development 

Employee development is the most crucial resource to 

define as the Company’s important policy to keep the 

organization growing continuously to create a learning 

culture. The Company has the policy to support the 

development of both enterprise needs and personal 

development to achieve sustainable development through 

continuous self-learning. This learning culture of employees 

will result in the Company continually developing into a 

highly efficient organization.

Scope of Employee Development Training 

1. It is the duty and responsibility of employees to attend 

self-development training, according to the project or 

course that the Company has set or by any methods 

appropriate to enhance higher knowledge, abilities, or skills 

to work. 

2. All employees of the Company are required to undergo a 

mandatory training program to increase knowledge 

competencies or necessary skills and perform tasks in that 

particular position. This are jointly determined by employees 

and supervisors as necessary and appropriate to the 

position, duties, or goals of the Company’s operations. 

3. Participating in self-development training projects or 

courses that create opportunities through the voluntary 

training program is conducted by the needs of employees 

with the approval of supervisors to provide employees 

participation in that course, regard or regardless of the 

necessity and the opportunity to apply the knowledge 

gained directly to the work of the Company.

Employee Remuneration and Benefits 
 The Company regards its employees as the most 

important resource that must be taken care of in terms of health 

and safety so that they can work happily. Therefore, the 

Company arranges an annual health checkup for employees 

to make them aware of proper healthcare.

 the Company has a good remuneration policy as a fair 

and effective incentive structure for employees. The Company 

uses a combined remuneration structure to match the nature 

of the job as well as labor market demand and supply. Such 

remuneration includes salary, bonuses, fixed and variable 

incentives, provident fund contributions on the part of the 

employer, medical expenses, travel expenses, and other welfare 

benefits. 

 The Company uses a wage management system 

comparable to the market by a structure combining the 

classification and the nature of the type of work to make this 

system suitable and adapt to changing market conditions. The 

structure is flexible enough to reward professional performance 

and expertise, as well as the potential of both specialist and 

general employees. 

Human Resources Operations 
 To strictly comply with labor law and regulations, any 

action of the human resources of the Company concerning 

labor law shall be included in the human resources department 

to be properly managed. Any policies and/or actions against 

the labor law of the country shall be automatically canceled. 

This includes setting up rules and regulations under the new 

labor law.

 Keeping employee information records of the Company 

shall be included in the human resources department for 

personnel management at both high and general levels. Transfer 

or change of employee status within the Company must be 

operated by the Company’s human resource guidelines and 

practices.

Occupational Health and Safety  

 The Company has established an occupational health, 

safety, and work environment policy and guideline for operating 

occupational health, safety, and environment for employees to 
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Type of injury, occupational disease, and number of 
occupational fatality of employees during 2021

Number of Times Number of Lost Days

Male Female Male Female

Injuries

•  Minor Wound Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

Occupational Diseases

• Hearing Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

• Musculoskeletal Injuries Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

• Vision Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

• Pulmonary Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

Fatality

• Occupational Fatality Head Office 0 0 0 0

Suvarnabhumi Branch 0 0 0 0

Laem Chabang Branch 0 0 0 0

be safe and healthy in the workplace, complying with the 

Occupational Health, Safety, and Environment Act, B.E. 2554, 

and the ministerial regulations with the provision of safety officers 

in the workplace, personnel, agencies or groups to perform 

safety operations in the workplace, 2022.

  Occupational health, safety, and work environment 

are the responsibility and participation of all employees. All 

employees must understand and work together under safe 

working procedures properly. To reduce the risks that may 

cause various hazards both for themselves and others, the 

Company requires all new employees to attend classes on 

accident prevention and security in the office. Also, there is an 

inspection for a workplace and the amount of light in the office 

and working environment, electrical system check, annual 

inspection and testing of lift components, emergency notification 

system inspectation, etc.

 According to the statistics of injury, occupational disease, 

and occupational fatality of employees in 2022, it is found no 

occupational fatality, divided into various cases as follows:
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Succession Plan for the Management
 The succession plan for the management of WICE 

Logistics Public Company Limited is prepared for manpower 

management system development and personnel development 

to increase the efficiency of the organizational system in the 

strategic workforce plan to be appropriate. Developing and 

managing manpower has been planned to increase the 

competency of personnel and the efficiency of the management 

system, including promoting the system to prepare for the 

replacement of personnel both in the short and long term and 

to be able to accommodate changes and be in accordance with 

the direction of organization’s development. In addition, the 

Company has established strategies for manpower management 

and development to be a framework for managing and developing 

manpower for efficiency and effectiveness, in particular, 

management positions that affect potential manpower shortages 

and the loss of manpower from retirement. 

 The Company’s succession plan has used a process tool 

by conducting a workshop that allows the relevant personnel 

to jointly consider and determine the following criteria: 

• Selection of Targeted Positions and Determination of the 

Criteria for Selecting Potential Candidates to Replace 

 Selecting a target position to find a potential candidate to 

replace (a successor) is regarded as the first important step of 

preparing the succession plan. In this regard, it may choose 

from the position where career path has been established. In 

preparing the succession plan for the management of the 

Company, a target position has been chosen by selecting from 

a position that has already been established its career path and 

selecting additional targeted positions as appropriate in each 

positions as follows: 

Occupational Health and Safety Information

Details Unit

January - December 2022

By Gender By Area

Total
Male Male

Head 
Office

Head 
Office

Laem 
Chabang 
Branch

Injury Rate Number of workers 
per working hours of 
477,888 hours

0 0 0 0 0 0

Rate of Lost Time Injury Number of workers 
per working hours of 
477,888 hours

0 00 0 0 0 0

Injury Severity Rate Number of workers 
per working hours of 
477,888 hours

0 0 0 0 0 0

Rate of Occupational 
Illness/Diseases

Number of workers 
per working hours of 
477,888 hours

0 0 0 0 0 0

Absenteeism Rate Percentage 5.33 4.67 4.67 3.66 1.66 9.99

Number of Sick Leaves Days 693 905 1,002 183 413 1,598

Number of Absenteeism 
Hours Due to Illness Not 
Related to Work

Days x 8 Hours 5,544 7,240 8,016 1,464 3,304 12,784
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 Successor Selection Committee means a committee 

appointed by the Chief Executive Officer to consider a potential 

candidate, comprising the following:

-  All executives by direct line

-  1 cross-functional executive (an executive in a line of work 

related to the position in which the successor will replace that 

key position)

-  1 human resources executive

 In this regard, directors considering a successor in each 

key position must hold a position higher than the successor at 

least 1 level. (HR will determine and consider the position of 

the committee director who will consider the successor in each 

key position.)

 Each targeted posit ion has been defined main 

responsibilities, main achievement, key performance indicators, 

knowledge, skills and competencies, as well as preliminary 

criteria for selecting potential candidates. 

• Consideration and Selection of Potential Candidates to 

Replace 

Step 1 Determine a targeted position that will have a succession plan.

Objectives : To determine job positions that must have a 

succession plan and respond to vision, mission, and goals of 

the organization. A group of these positions can be called as 

“Key Position”.

Procedures :  HR propose a key position determination policy 

to executives in all lines for their approval. It will be approved 

by the Chairman of the Executive Committee to define it as the 

position that must have a succession plan.

Key Position

1. Top executives

 • Top executives, E7 (Director)

2. Executives of main divisions, i.e. operations and sales

 • All first-line executives, E3 (Senior Manager)

3. Executives of support divisions

 • All first-line executives, E3 (Senior Manager)

4. Positions that have a difficulty in finding a candidate, take 

time to qualify, or has to compete in the market

5. Positions that are important to operations and have high 

turn over rate

6. Positions that take a long time to train to has the ability 

as needed

Step 2 HR cooperates with the executive of the line in order to 

prepare the job description and competency of a key position 

as determined in Step 1.

Objectives :

1. To determine qualifications and abilities of the position that 

must has a succession plan.

2. To have the successors know the qualifications and abilities 

of the position to be replaced in the future, including the 

development of their own abilities in order to meet the 

expectations of that position.

3. To be a guideline for preparation of a training plan for a 

successor.

4. To have the successors know strengths and where they 

want to develop themselves in order to have skills and 

knowledge in the position to replace.

5. To have the successors and the supervisors prepare for 

the development according to the individual development 

plan (IDP) from the defined training roadmap.

Procedures :  HR prepares the training roadmap and individual 

development plan (IDP) for the successor to be developed in 

accordance with the competency of the key position.

Step 3 Select an outstanding talent (Talent Spotting) to be 

developed and selected as a successor in case there is a key 

position vacancy in the future.

Objectives :

1. To select internal employees with outstanding talent to be 

considered for their growth, advancement, and an 

opportunity to be selected to replace the key position 

vacancy in the future.

2. To encourage employees to develop and have opportunities 

to advance in their jobs. Regardless of whether the talent 

in any position is selected as a successor or not, employees 

are still being developed continuously and have the 

opportunity to advance or may grow in other suitable fields.

Procedures : Selection of outstanding talents to be developed 

and selected as successors is as follows:
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Procedures for Talent Selection

1.   HR prepares the employee information in key position groups of those who will retire within 5 years and the key 

positions that may be vacant in the future. This is for supervisors to consider and select the talent according to the 

following criteria: 

 1.1 Job Description

 1.2 Performance

- Performance assessment in the past 2 years

- History of promotion and/or position in the past 5 years

 1.3 Potential

- Notable achievements in the past 2 years

 1.4 Talent Core Competency

- Language

- Strategic management

- Creativity

- Policy implementation

- Commitment, dedication

- People management (subordinates, supervisors, persons, or team to coordinate with)

 1.5 Work History and Disciplinary Practice

2. HR submits criteria. Direct supervisors, then, will consider selecting by filling the information in the form and indicating 

the following:

- Reasons for the selection

- Special projects which will be assigned to be completed within a period of 1 year and additional assignments every 

year. This may be an ongoing project or a new project for use in the normal performance assessment.

Once all the details have been filled in the form, the direct supervisors will sign and propose to the line of work 

by order and propose to the top of their line in order to further propose to the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

3. The Chairman of the Executive Committee signs for approval.

4. HR signs and keeps as the record of a person who is selected to be a talent.

5. HR prepares the training roadmap and IDP for a talent group.

6. Talents participates in a training as a continuous and complete planned development. HR organizes training for the 

talent according to plan, records, and monitors with the executives in the line of the talent group.

7. Executives in the line assess the performance, development, and specific assignments continuously every year by 

considering the work as usual.

Procedures for Talent Spotting Selection

 In the recruitment process for successors who will replace in a key position vacancy in the future, it must select candidate(s) 

with outstanding talents that may be more than one person in the key position for development and measurement according 

to the plan. When the suitable time comes, the committee will select only one successor from the talent pool according to the 

selection process as follows:
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• Monitoring, Evaluating, and Adjusting Development Methods  

 To provide the development of potential people to replace 

the target position, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee should provide the successor with a career coach 

by a job advisor, primary level commander, or a person assigned 

to take care of a person who has the potential to replace the 

position. The performance of potential candidates should be 

followed up and periodically evaluated by discussing what has 

been developed and what has not been developed and providing 

feedback straightforwardly. The aim is to allow those who have 

been developed to acknowledge their strengths and weaknesses 

to be able to develop knowledge, skills, and competencies in 

working both in the duties currently assigned and in the future. 

Including adjusting development methods and improving abilities 

as appropriate as well as making a work plan for further 

development. 

Organization Development  

 The Company continues to develop continuously, and 

has planned to develop and arranged learning courses to 

enhance knowledge and abilities through the development of 

potential and effectiveness, leadership development by evolving 

enterprise, and all personnel to develop and empower 

themselves to work potentially. These have caused a significant 

change to the enterprise and led to continuous strategic 

development. The Company has organized employee 

development courses, training, and seminars such as the 

following:

In-House Training

- Share Point Microsoft 360, the browser-based content 

management system and web application platform for new 

employees

- Facilitator Workshop, the process leader for sales and 

marketing teams

- Code of Conduct for Business, Class 1

- Code of Conduct for Business, Class 2

- Turning Taxes into Savings and Investments

- First Aid, Resuscitation (CPR), and Using of an AED

- Fire Drill and Fire Evacuation Training

- Facilitator Workshop #1

- Facilitator Workshop -2nd

- ISO 9001:2015 and Internal Audit

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA for Working 

Groups and DPO

- Workplace With No Boundaries

- Lead More Sales with Sales Lead, the 10 x strategy to create 

a sales model and be free from the original trap with the 

Successor Selection Procedures

Procedures for Successor Selection

1.    Executives in the line select only 1 talent with the most suitable qualifications and abilities to be proposed as 

a successor for further development and prepare to be considered by the committee within the specified time.

- HR will arrange the time for considering the selection of successors and notify the committee.

2. The successor gathers works and prepares for interviews and presentations.

-    HR informs the date and time of an interview to the successor and the committee.

3. The committee conduct an interview with the successor in order to consider approving the position.

- In the event that a result of consideration is passed, HR will proceed according to the replacement promotion 

process.

- In the event that a result of consideration is not passed, the successor will remain in the talent group and continue 

to further development. In this regard, HR will propose to the committee regarding external recruitment to replace 

the vacant position in a timely manner.

Remark :    Talents who are not selected will continue to be developed in order to have the opportunity to grow and advance 

in the same field or other suitable fields in the future.
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classic model that seizes the market in every term of sales

- Sales Experience Sharing in Air Freight

- Growth Mindset can Overcome Business Disruption

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Final Round

- Golden Goose Customers, Special Edition: Testimonials of 

success by a father goose owner who introduces how to 

choose a gosling and how to care for it to lay golden eggs 

continuously for a long time

- Reasons Change: Finding great secrets from Knight of 

Canned Fish, Key Success, to win customers in crisis time

- Stepping to Global Bidding: Hearing the story of conquest 

that challenges every step to international competition

- Solutions Made, April Changed: A story that changed the 

history of April into a comfortable April with no longer lost 

balance

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 10

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 6

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 3 

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 4

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 1

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 2

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, Class 5

- Sales Module 7-8

- How to Use Draw.io Program for Flow Chart Writing

- Share Point Microsofe 360, the browser-based content 

management system and web application platform

- Code of Conduct for Business, Class 1

- IT Security Awareness for Employees #1

- IT Security Awareness for Employee #2

- IT Security Awareness for Employee #3

- IT Security Awareness for Employee #4

- IT Security Awareness for Employee #5

- Insurance Preparation for 2022

External Training

- Anti-Corruption the Practical Guide (ACPG 61/2022)

- Good Distribution of Drugs Guideline According to GDP       

Thai FDA

- Budgeting for Performance Control

- How to Write Monthly and Quarterly Earnings Lists for 

Presentation

- Customs Brokers (Online)

- Uplifting Worksheets, Expertising in Review, and Anti 

Corruption, Class 3/2022

- The Board ‘s Role in M&A

- IR New Normal

- PDPA for Accounting and Finance

- Personal Data Protection Act, B.E. 2562, PDPA, for internal 

auditors

- Thailand’s Internal Auditor Certificate

Summarized Number of Employee Development  

           Unit : Hours Per Person Per Year

Training Hours Per Person Per Year 2020 2021 2022

Employees 4.5 7.6 14.79

Executives 5 21 20

    

     Unit : Hours Per Person Per Year

Training Cost Per Person Per Year 2020 2021 2022

Employees and Executives 148,782 313,479.10 210,344.50

Summary of the Personnel Engagement to the Organization 

in 2022

 The assessment of personnel engagement to the 

organization is to analyze and summarize the participation of 

employees in the organization to measure and see trends in 

engagement with the organization both in the past and present 

and what aspects should be promoted to increase higher 

relationships. Also, cooperation with the organization in every 

aspect, a true sense of belonging to the Company, and a sense 

of ownership of the organization together lead to loyalty to the 

organization and create sustainability for the organization 

eventually.  
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 The assessment of personnel engagement to the 

organization is conducted by all personnel in WICE Logistics 

Public Company Limited throughout 2022, through the following 

factors: 

1. Duties and Responsibilities : This is the assessment of 

employees’ satisfaction through the performance appropriate 

to their knowledge, abilities, and suitable assignments, 

challenging works that help employees learn more experience, 

and the assessment of the organization’s knowledge 

management system leading to efficient operations. 

2. Team and Colleagues : This is the assessment of the team’s 

environment to provide operational assistance that employees 

can discuss problems and get help from their colleagues. 

Employees are also be recognized for their knowledge, 

performance, and ability to perform tasks from personnel 

within the unit to create cooperation and quality work. 

3. Leadership : This is the assessment of the employees’ 

satisfaction with the supervisors overseeing that the policies 

and operating guidelines have been explained to employees 

to understand clearly; opinions have been exchanged with 

employees to provide advice and coach them to achieve 

the goals in working; and, employees have been promoted 

and supported to plan their development to learn continually. 

4. Development and Performance Assessment : This is the 

assessment of personnel development policy and work to 

motivate employees to increase workplace morale. The 

organization has a specified method and performance 

assessment. The assessment results of personnel merit in 

the department for consideration of salary increases are 

appropriate and fair. Employees have the opportunity to 

develop their knowledge and work experience through 

training or on-the-job activities. 

5. Working Environment : This is the assessment of good 

relationship with colleagues and executives to motivate 

employees to have morale in the work environment and the 

general atmosphere in the workplace such as noise, light, 

ventilation appropriate to promote good performance and 

provide enthusiasm for work. The organization provides 

services or facilities such as drinking water, dining rooms, 

restrooms, etc. sufficient to meet their needs. The number 

of materials, equipment, and tools in operation is sufficient 

and easy to use, as well as employees feel safe in their 

lives and properties while working in the department.  

6. Remuneration and Welfare : This is the assessment of 

income and remuneration to motivate employees to have 

morale in working, suitable for the workload of employees, 

employees’ satisfaction with salary and welfare other than 

income or remuneration, and the employees’ balance 

between work and personal life. 

7. Pride and Loyalty to the Organization : This is the assessment 

of employees’ pride towards the organization. In case of 

having more companies, employees behave as good role 

models that consistently promote the organization’s image 

with honesty and loyalty by realizing the benefits of the 

organization as the main priority, participating in the 

organization’s various activities regularly, and feeling like a 

part of the organization. 

Factors of Personnel Engagement 
to the Organization

2020
(Percent)

2021
(Percent)

2022
(Percent)

1. Duties and Responsibilities 93.96 96.07 96.40

2. Team and Colleagues 98.08 99.58 98.83

3. Leadership 97.08 91.42 93.39

4. Development and Performance Assessment 90.87 92.20 94.37

5. Working Environment 89.80 88.57 91.17

6. Remuneration and Benefits 79.50 88.30 85.85

7. Pride and Loyalty to the Organization 95.00 95.06 94.77

Assessment Results 92.04 93.03 93.50

 In conclusion, compared to the assessment results of personnel engagement to the organization for 2020 - 2022, with the 

pass criteria being more than 93.50 percent (KPI > 95%), details are as follows: 
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7.6 Other Important Information
Company Secretary 
 To comply with the principles of good corporate governance, 

the Company will be registered in the category of the Board of 

Directors’ responsibility and to follow the requirements of the 

Securities and Exchange Act. The board appointed a company 

secretary with an obligation to provide legal and regulatory advice 

that the Board of Directors must know and act on, organizing 

meetings and supervising various activities of the Board, so that 

directors can perform their duties with efficiency and effectiveness, 

and create the maximum benefit to the Company. Including the 

Company Secretary Profile

preparation and storage of documents such as the registration 

of directors, a notice of the shareholders’ meeting, company 

annual report, notice of the shareholders’ meeting, minutes of 

the shareholders’ meetings, and keep the stakeholder report 

reported by directors or executives. 

 The Board has appointed the Company secretary since 

2015, respectively, since November 11, 2015, until the present, 

has appointed Ms. Poramaporn Chamnongsuk as the 

Company Secretary

 

• Company Secretary Program (CSP 84/2017) from the Thai 

Institute of Directors (IOD)

• Board Reporting Program (BRP 26/2018) from Thai Institute 

of Directors (IOD)

• Effective Minutes Taking (EMT 42/2018) Course from the 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

• Corruption Risk & Control Course: Technical Update (CRC 

3/2019) from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

• Company Secretary Forum (R-CSF 1/2019) Seminar from 

the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

• Anti-Corruption : the Practical Guide (ACPG 52/2020) from 

the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). 

• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 18/2021) from 

the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). 

• CGR Workshop Seminar No. 1/2021 ; Thai Institute of 

Directors (IOD)

• The Board’s Role in Mergers and Acquisitions (BMA1/2022) 

from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

• ESG 101 Course The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

Working Experience 

November 2, 2015 -  Present  Company Secretary,        

WICE Logistics Public 

Company Limited 

Current Holding of Important Director Positions 

 None

Relationship between Management 

None 

Ms. Paramaporn Chamnongsuk 
Company Secretary 
(Since 11 November 2015) 
32 years old 

Shareholding Ratio :   0.0000007

Educational background :  Bachelor’s degree in Law, Faculty of 

Law, Rattana Bundit University

Training background of Company Secretary :

• Fundamentals for Corporate Secretaries (3 day course) 

Class 1/2016 from the Thai Listed Companies Association

• Advances for Corporate Secretaries (4 days course) Class 

1/2016 from the Thai Listed Companies Association

• Thai Intelligent Investors Program (TIIP-17) from Thai 

Investors Association

• Company Reporting Program (CRP19/2017) from Thai 

Institute of Directors (IOD)

• Collective Action Against Corruption Conference 

(C-Conference 1/2017) from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
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Persons Assigned to be Directly Responsible for 
Accounting Supervision 
 The assigned person directly responsible for the supervision 

of the Company’s accounting is the person holding the director 

of accounting and finance position, which is currently appointed, 

Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem has been appointed since January 1, 

2018, to be an accounting supervisor. Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem 

is an accountant who has the qualifications and conditions of 

being an accountant by the rules prescribed in the notification 

of the Department of Business Development. Further details 

show in the details of the executive profile in Attachment 1.

Head of Internal Audit 
 The person assigned to be responsible is the Company’s 

head of the internal audit department is holding the internal 

auditor position. Currently, Ms. Nipapan Dulanee takes 

responsibility for the internal audit. Further details show in the 

details of the internal audit unit in Attachment 3. 

 

Head of Investor Relations and Contact Information 
 The person assigned as head of investor relations is 

Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn, who is the managing director of the 

business development department. Investors or the general 

public can contact the Investor Relations Department at Tel. 

02-681-6181 ext. 3501, E-mail : wice-ir@wice.co.th, or through 

the Company’s website www.wice.co.th

Audit Fee 
 The Company and subsidiaries paid the audit fee to the 

audit firm with an auditor affiliated with the previous account 

year. The total amount is 4,550,000 baht and no non-audit fee 
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8.1 Summary of the Board of Directors’ 
Performance in the Past Year

8.1.1 Recruiting, Developing, and Evaluating the 
Performance of the Board of Directors

(1) Independent Director 
 The Board of Directors’ meeting No. 5/2014, held on 

August 14, 2014, has come to a resolution to approve the 

proposal by the Company Secretary to define the director’s 

independence. This in line with the rules of the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand (SET). The Board also resolved to stipulate the roles, 

duties and responsibilities of independent directors. 

Qualifications of Independent Directors  

1. An independent director shall hold no more than 1% of the 

total number of shares with voting rights of the Company, 

parent company, subsidiary companies, associated 

companies, major shareholders, or authority figures of the 

Company, including shares held by persons connected to 

the independent director. 

2. An independent director shall not currently be or have 

never been a director who participates in management, 

an employee, an advisor who receives a regular salary, 

or an authority figure of the Company, parent company, 

associated companies, subsidiary companies of the same 

tier, major shareholders, unless the foregoing characteristics 

have been vacated for no fewer than two years after being 

appointed as an independent director. Such prohibited 

characteristics do not include cases where the independent 

director used to be a government official or a government 

consultant who is a major shareholder or an authority figure 

of the Company. 

3. An independent director shall not be a person who is related 

by blood or by legal registration as a father, mother, spouse, 

sibling, child, or child’s spouse with the executives, major 

shareholders, authority figures, or persons who have been 

nominated for executive or authoritative positions of the 

Company or its subsidiaries. 

4. An independent director shall not currently have or never 

has a business relationship with the Company, parent 

company, subsidiary companies, associated companies, 

major shareholders, or authority figures of the Company 

in a manner that may obstruct the exercise of ones 

independent judgment. Also, they shall not currently be or 

have never been a significant shareholder, authority figure 

who has a business relationship with the Company, parent 

company, subsidiary companies, associated companies, 

major shareholders, or authority figures of the Company, 

unless the foregoing characteristics have been vacated 

for no fewer than two years after being appointed as an 

independent director.

 Business relationships under the first paragraph include 

making ordinary trade transactions that are carried out for 

business operations, renting or renting out real estates, making 

transactions related to assets or dependents, giving or receiving 

financial assistance by accepting, lending, guaranteeing, or 

providing assets as collateral for liabilities, and other similar 

actions. Consequently, the Company or the contracting party 

has an obligation to pay to the other party at least three percent 

of the Company’s net tangible assets or 20 million baht or more. 

However, the calculation of such debts shall be in accordance 

with the methods of calculating the value of connected 

transactions according to the announcement of the Capital 

Market Supervisory Board regarding the regulations of connected 

transactions mutatis mutandis. However, such debts shall 

include debt obligations incurred during one year prior to the 

date of business relationship with the same person. 

5. An independent director shall not currently be or have 

never been an auditor of the Company, parent company, 

subsidiary companies, associated companies, major 

shareholders, or authority figures of the Company, and is 

not a significant shareholder, authority figure, or a partner 

of an audit firm which auditors of the Company, parent 

8. Report on key performance in corporate governance
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company, subsidiary companies, associated companies, 

major shareholders, or authority figures of the Company 

is affiliated with, unless the foregoing characteristics have 

been vacated for no fewer than two years after being 

appointed as an independent director.

6. An independent director shall not be or have never been 

a professional service provider of any kind. This includes 

a legal advisory service provider or a financial advisor who 

receives service fees of more than two million Baht per 

year from the Company, parent company, subsidiary 

companies, associated companies, major shareholders, 

or authority figures of the Company. Additionally, they shall 

not be a significant shareholder, authority figure, or partner 

of such service providers, unless the foregoing characteristics 

have been vacated for no fewer than two years after being 

appointed as an independent director. 

7. An independent director shall not be a director who is 

appointed to represented the directors of the Company, 

major shareholders, or shareholders who are associated 

with major shareholders.

8. An independent director shall not operate a business of a 

like nature and is a significant competition to the businesses 

of the Company or its subsidiaries. They shall also not be 

a partner in a partnership, a director involved in the 

management, an employee, an advisor who receives a 

regular salary, or a shareholder hold shares exceeding 

one percent of the total number of shares with voting rights, 

of another company which operates a business of a like 

nature and is a significant competition to the businesses 

of the Company or its subsidiaries.

9. An independent director shall not possess any other 

characteristics that may prevent them from expressing 

opinions freely on the Company’s operations. 

 After being appointed as an independent director with 

characteristics in accordance with paragraphs 1 to 9, the 

independent director may be assigned by the Board of Directors 

to make judgments on business operations of the Company, 

parent company, subsidiary companies, associated companies, 

subsidiary companies of the same tier, major shareholders, or 

authority figures. Any decision may be made in the form of a 

collective decision.

Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Company’s 

Independent Directors 

1. Recommend important and useful matters to the Company, 

shareholders, and minority shareholders to the Board 

of Directors and/or chief executive officer (CEO), as the 

case may be. 

2. Provide opinions on the roles and duties of the Board of 

Directors to be practiced, as well as providing opinions as 

appropriate with the roles and duties of independent 

directors for the benefit of the Company, shareholders, 

and minority shareholders. 

3. Ensure that the Company complies with the law related to 

independent directors, as well as review the definition of 

independent directors to be appropriate and comprehensive 

according to the law. 

4. Perform any other task as assigned by the Board of 

Directors without affecting the ability to perform duties 

independently. 

5. An independent director’s term shall start after they are 

fully qualified according to the definition of independent 

directors in the Company’s good corporate governance 

code. They shall be removed from the position when they 

lack any qualification under the aforementioned definition 

or is retired from the Company director position.

6. Independent directors must hold a meeting at least 

once a year.

Separation of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive 

Officer Positions  

 In order to segregate duties of determining the Company’s 

policies and routine management apart and allow board directors 

to monitor, supervise, and evaluate the management 

performance effectively, the Company has determined that the 

chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer will always 

be separate persons. The chairman of the Board shall monitor 

and supervise the management and provide suggestions but 

must not participate or interfere in the daily management 

process, which are the duties of the chief executive officer under 

the authority framework received from the Board of Directors.  

 Currently, the Chairman of the Board is an independent 

director who has a great leadership skill. The Chairman has a 

duty to supervise directors not to be influenced by the 

management and ensure that attendees in a meeting exercise 
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their voting rights in accordance with the principles of good 

corporate governance rigorously. 

Independence of the Chairman of the Board 

 The Board of Directors’ meeting No. 5/2014, held on 

August 14, 2014 has resolved to appoint Mr. Ekaphon 

Pongsataporn, an independent director, as the chairman of the 

Board, which will be effective from August 14, 2014 onwards. 

The Chairman can perform his duties independently. This can 

build confidence in the transparency of Company operations 

and the fair treatment of all stakeholders. 

(2) Nomination of Directors and Executives
Nomination of directors 

 In 2022, the Company nominated and appointed new 

directors to replace former directors who resigned / retired from 

office / completed their terms in the general meeting of 

shareholders. There is a total of 4 new directors as follows: 

• Mr. Komol Rungruanyot 

Independent Director/Audit Committee/Chairman of 

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

/Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee/

Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee

• Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn 

 Director 

• Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem  

 Director 

 and consider three former directors whose terms expired 

at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 

re-appointment as directors for another term.

 Methods of nominating persons to be appointed as 

directors are already reported under Part 2 Corporate 

Governance “Title 7.3 (2) Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee”.

Nomination of directors and top management/succession  

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall select 

and screen skilled and qualified persons to hold the position of 

chief executive officer (CEO). The preliminary factors for 

consideration are qualifications, knowledge, competence, and 

experience in the logistics field. Those selected for the position 

should have the same management concept and vision as the 

Board of Directors to help make the Company’s operations 

successful and achieve their goals. The executive managers 

and the Board of Directors must have mutual trust and close 

coordination. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

shall nominate the selected persons to the Board for 

consideration and appointment. 

 For executive manager positions, the chief executive 

officer shall present the qualifications to the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and propose to the Board of Directors 

for consideration and approval for further appointment.

 Information related to the executive succession plan is 

reported under Section 2 Corporate Governance, “Section 7.4 

Executive Information”.

(3) Director Development
Training / seminar / participation in company activities  

 The Board of Directors and high-ranking executives 

regularly attend training and seminar courses related to the 

development of their knowledge and competency in performing 

their duties as a director. (Training details are shown in the 

biographies of each director in Attachment 1). All directors have 

a history of attending training courses with the Thai Institute of 

Directors Association (IOD) as well as other leading organizations 

/ institutes. and attending various seminars on related topics

 At present, there are company directors. who participated 

in the training courses related to the duties of directors of the 

IOD, namely Director Certification Program (DCP), 3 persons 

and Director Accreditation Program (DAP), 6 persons, in total 

8 out of 8 directors, or representing a percentage 100 

 In addition, the company supports and subscribes to IOD 

membership for all directors. To be a channel to receive news 

and increase knowledge that can be applied to being a director. 

In addition, the company sends training information to the Board 

of Directors. to consider joining the training in additional courses 

of interest Including training courses of other institutions in all 

relevant courses continuously throughout the year Including 

lectures by experts from leading consulting companies. 

To regularly present useful information for the business 

(In-house Briefing), as well as arrange for the Board of Directors 

to observe work from other departments or organizations as 

appropriate. In order to create perspectives and ideas that are 

useful to apply to the business of the company. to grow sustainably
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(4) Board of Directors Self-Assessment    

Guidelines 

 According to the Company’s corporate governance policy, 

the Board of Directors has been assigned to prepare a 

self-assessment form. To be used as a framework for regularly 

examining the performance of the Board of Directors. to improve 

operational efficiency The Board of Directors conducts a 

self-assessment once a year, using the Board of Directors’ 

self-assessment guideline. from the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

to be adapted to suit the nature and structure of the Board of 

Directors To give an opportunity for the directors to consider 

the performance of the Board of Directors and propose various 

issues (if any) and persons with specified criteria to consider 

and recommend assessment guidelines to the Board of Directors 

for approval.

 The performance assessment is an important tool in 

assessing the suitability of the Board of Directors’ structure. 

and efficiency in performing duties of the Board of Directors 

according to the principles of good corporate governance. The 

committee will analyze the evaluation results, make 

recommendations, and observe various observations. in order 

to be taken into consideration for use in accordance with the 

environment and business operations in the future

Procedure

 For the self-assessment of the Board of Directors for the 

year 2022, the Company Secretary has arranged for the 

self-assessment of the Board of Directors in 2 ways: the 

self-assessment of the Board of Directors as a whole. and 

individual performance appraisal (self-assessment) and 

gathered to present to the Nomination and Remuneration 

 In 2022, directors have attended training courses / seminar activities to increase knowledge in conducting the Company’s 

operations and activities as follows:

List of directors Training courses / seminar topics / activities

Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon •  Attended the  in the seminars of the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) as follows:
- Director’s Briefing 1/2022: What Director Should Know About Quantum?
- Director’s Briefing 2/2022: Workplace Health & Safety: New Priorities for Board
- Director’s Briefing 6/2022: Reimagining Boardroom in the Web 3.0 Era
- Director’s Briefing 8/2022: What is Business Transformation Actually?
- Director’s Briefing 11/2022: Derisking the CEO Transition
- Director’s Briefing 10/2022: Financial disputes in current cryptocurrencies
- Director’s Briefing 12/2022: ESG as a vehicle for Business Transformation
- Director’s Briefing 15/2022: The essential guide to startup boards

•   Attended the in discussion activities on the topic “Chairing The Unknown Future”                  
at the Chairman Forum 1/2022

• Instructor for the Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)
• Instructor for the Director Leadership Certification Program (DLCP)

Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin • Attended the Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 28/2022) Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Attended the Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 20/2022) Thai Institute of 

Directors (IOD)

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn • Attended the  in the seminars of the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) as follows:
- Director’s Briefing 6/2022: Reimagining Boardroom in the Web 3.0 Era

Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn •  Attended the The Board’s Role in Mergers and Acquisitions (BMA1/2022) Thai Institute 
of Directors (IOD)

•  Instructor for the Internal Control for IPO No. 3 Stock Exchange of Thailand

Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem • Attended the Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 20/2022) Thai Institute of 
Directors (IOD)
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Committee. to perform performance evaluations and bring the 

evaluation results to discuss at the Board of Directors’ meeting. 

This is for various suggestions. received from the assessment 

The performance of the Board of Directors will be used to 

improve the effectiveness of the Board of Directors’ work. in 

order to maximize the benefit of corporate governance

 company secretary Summarize the assessment results 

The assessment results were presented to the Board of Directors 

at the Board of Directors Meeting No. 2/2023 on February 24, 

2023. The assessed committee members were the directors 

who held positions during the assessment period as of December 

2022 in total. 8 people

Summary of the performance assessment of the Board of 

Directors for the year 2022

1. Self-assessment of the Board of Directors’ performance 

(by group) 

 Questions consisted of 6 main categories:

1) Structure and Qualifications of the Board of Directors

2) Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors

3) Board meetings

4) Duties of Directors

5) Relationship with management

6) Self-development of directors and development of 

executives 

 Summary of self-assessment results of the committees 

as a whole in 2022, it was found that the assessment results 

were in excellent with an average score of 93.1%

2. Individual performance appraisal (self-assessment)  

 Questions consisted of 3 main categories:

1) Structure and Qualifications of the Board of Directors 

2) Board meetings

3) Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors

 Summary of individual performance appraisals 

(Self-assessment) In 2022, it was found that the assessment 

results were excellent with an average score of 98.53%.

Evaluation of the performance of sub-committees  

Guidelines  

 The Board of Directors Arrange for a self-assessment of 

each committee’s performance annually. at least 1 year by 

using the self-assessment guideline of the Board of Directors 

from the Stock Exchange of Thailand There are topics about 

the structure and qualifications of each sub-committee. that is 

suitable Sub-committee meetings and roles, duties and 

responsibilities of each sub-committee has given importance 

take time to consider Review and comply with various matters 

adequately. 

Procedure

 The Company conducts an annual assessment of the 

performance of each sub-committee. to assess the performance 

in the past year The Company Secretary will deliver the 

assessment form to each sub-committee. Make a performance 

appraisal and discuss the results at the Board of Directors’ 

meeting.  

 In conclusion, the results of the self-assessment of the 

sub-committees for the year 2022 are in excellent criteria. and 

have the following averages: 

- Audit Committee has a grade point average of 96.51%

- Nomination and Remuneration Committee   has a grade point average of 90.93%

- Corporate Risk Management Committee   has a grade point average of 91.67%

- Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee has a grade point average of 94.64%  
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(5) Evaluation of the performance of the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO)

Guidelines

 The Board of Directors Evaluate the performance of the 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) annually. At least once a year 

on the topic about leadership Defining and implementing a 

strategic plan Financial Planning and Performance Relationship 

with the Board external relations Management and relations 

with personnel inheritance service knowledge Risk Management 

and Internal Control corporate governance and personal 

attributes by using the evaluation guidelines from the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand  

Procedure  

 The Company arranges for the performance evaluation 

of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) annually. to assess the 

performance in the past year The company secretary will deliver 

the evaluation form to the independent directors of the company. 

or all non-executive directors to perform performance 

evaluations and bring the evaluation results to discuss at the 

Board of Directors’ meeting. and determine the appropriateness 

of the remuneration further The company There is a policy to 

determine the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer based 

on current (short-term) performance and long-term strategic 

performance. To lay the foundation for future growth at a level 

that is attractive and at a level comparable to companies in the 

same industry. under clear and transparent guidelines 

Summary of the evaluation of the performance of the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO) for the year 2022 is in excellent criteria.

Directors Orientation 

 Newly appointed directors in the Board of Directors to 

allow new directors to acknowledge the Company’s business 

policies. Including relevant information such as organizational 

structure, capital structure, shareholders, operating system data 

used within the company, including laws, regulations. Director’s 

Guide It is useful information for performing duties as a director. 

It is useful information for performing duties as a director of the 

Company. It contains the following information. 

-  Public Company Limited Act

-  Securities and Exchange Act

-  Company Certificate

-  company objectives

-  Company Articles of Association

-  Corporate Governance Policy

-  Company Profile Company

-  Principles of good corporate governance for listed 

companies

-  Connected transactions of listed companies

-  Annual registration statement / annual report 

 (Form 56-1 One Report)

-  Director Fiduciary Duty Check List

- Presentation introducing the company’s business 

operations 

 Orientation for new directors Organize a lecture from the 

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. and senior 

management about the nature of business and business 

practices of the Company related regulations and necessary 

and useful information for the performance of duties so that 

directors can see a clear overview of the business

8.1.2 Meeting attendance and remuneration of 
individual committees 

(1) Board of Directors’ Meeting 
 The Board of Directors has scheduled the meeting 

schedule of the Board of Directors and sub-committees in 

advance. so that each director can manage time and attend 

meetings In the event that there is a special agenda, additional 

meetings may be held as appropriate. In addition, the Board of 

Directors has assigned the Company Secretary or the secretary 

of sub-committees to Delivery of the meeting invitation letter 

together with supporting documents for the Board of Directors’ 

meeting agenda. The documents contain accurate, complete 

and sufficient information for consideration. It is clearly stated 

that the matter is proposed for acknowledgment, approval, or 

consideration, as the case may be, by requiring delivery to the 

Board of Directors at least 7 days in advance of the meeting, 

along with notifying various departments in the organization of 

the meeting date. Board of Directors in each round of meetings 

at least 7-14 days in advance. 
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Summary of meeting attendance in the year 2022 of the Board of Directors/ 4 sub-committees

List of directors 1/2022 2/2022 3/2022 4/2022 5/2022 6/2022 7/2022

1. Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon / / / / / / /

2. Professor Ruth Banomyong (PhD) / / / / / / /

3. Mr. Komol Rungruanyot / / / / / / /

4. Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin / / / / / / /

5. Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn / / / / / / /

6. Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn / / / / / / /

7. Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn / / / / / / /

8. Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem / / / / / / /

Total number of directors attending the meeting 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Total number of directors 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

 At the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 6/2021 on 

November 11, 2021, the schedule of the Board of Directors and 

sub-committee meetings for the year 2022 was approved in 

advance. which may change and not including the case of 

meetings on special agendas

 In the Board of Directors meeting There must be at least 

three-fourths of the total number of directors attending the 

meeting. Therefore, a quorum was formed according to the 

corporate governance policy. and before every meeting The 

chairman of the committee will inform the meeting that Directors 

who may be involved or have interests in any agenda must 

abstain from voting. Abstain from making any comments on 

that agenda. or leave the meeting room As for other 

sub-committee meetings, namely the Audit Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Enterprise 

Risk Management Committee At least two-thirds of the total 

number of directors must be present in order to constitute a 

quorum. According to the corporate governance policy And 

when the Board of Directors’ meeting is over. and 

sub-committees The company secretary or the secretary of 

the committees is responsible for recording the minutes of each 

agenda for the preparation of the minutes of the meeting, which 

contains comments/remarks in writing. Minutes of meetings 

that have been certified by the Board of Directors are kept for 

review by the directors and related parties. Each meeting takes 

about 2-3 hours.

 Because in the year 2022, the situation of the epidemic 

of COVID 19 in Thailand is still severe and has continued to 

spread and spread. The Board of Directors, through the Chairman 

of the Board, has allowed the meeting to be held via electronic 

media. To comply with safety prevention measures and control 

the spread of COVID-19. In 2022, there were 7 meetings in 

total, and the Board of Directors and executives participated in 

reviewing the vision and mission. and approve the direction and 

strategy of the Company’s business operations To be used as 

a framework and guidelines for business units, subsidiaries and 

associated companies to use in planning and budgeting. In 

addition, there was one board meeting without executives in 

December 2022 where the topic of the meeting was discussion 

about the company’s operations. the to discuss various issues 

and make recommendations for the management to consider 

for further improvement of operations. The meeting was 

summarized as follows:

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)132



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

List of directors

Board of Directors meetings in 2022

Board of 
Directors

Audit 
Committee

Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee

Corporate Risk 
Management 
Committee (3)

Corporate 
Governance and 

Sustainability 
Committee

Total number of meetings (times)
(percent)

7 
(100)

4
(100)

1
(100)

4
(100)

1
(100)

1. Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon  
7/7

(100%)
- - - -

2. Professor Ruth Banomyong   
(PhD)

7/7
(100%)

4/4
(100%)

- - -

3. Mr. Komol Rungruanyot
7/7

(100%)
4/4

(100%)
1/1

(100%)
4/4

(100%)
1/1

(100%)

4. Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin 
7/7

(100%)
4/4

(100%)
- -

1/1
(100%) 

5. Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn
7/7

(100%)
-

1/1

(100%)
- -

6. Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn
7/7

(100%)
- - - -

7. Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn
7/7

(100%)
-

1/1
(100%)

4/4
(100%)

1/1
(100%)

8. Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem
7/7

(100%)
- - -

1/1
(100%)

Remark :
(1)   Ms. Somjai Purachako, top executive of the Company, holding the position of a member of the Corporate Risk Management 

Committee. Has attended the meeting 4 times out of 4, adding up to 100% attendance rate.

 

(2)   Remuneration of the Board of Directors 

 The Company has established a fair and reasonable 

remuneration policy for directors. There is a remuneration 

committee, responsible for reviewing directors’ remuneration 

as appropriate. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

uses guidelines for considering the remuneration of directors 

and sub-committees of the Company for the year 2022. This 

is done by taking into consideration important factors such as 

practices of listed companies in the same industry, leading 

companies, good corporate governance principles, business 

performance, business size, responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors, as well as economic growth data. The remuneration 

are in the forms of meeting allowances and special bonuses. 

Director’s Remuneration

 The 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held 

on Friday, April 29, 2022, has resolved to approve the 

remuneration of the Board of Directors and sub-committees, 

which are divided into the following: 

1.  Remuneration in the form of meeting allowance for the 

year 2021, which is paid at the same rate as before.

1.1  Remuneration in the form of meeting allowance 

for the Board of Directors (only for directors who 

attended the meeting), which consisted of: 

 The Chairman of the Board 40,000 baht 

  per meeting

 Director 20,000 baht 

  per time meeting
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1.2 Remuneration in the form of meeting allowances 

for sub-committees (only for committee members 

who attended the meeting), which consisted of:

 The Chairman of the Board 25,000 baht 

  per meeting

 Director 20,000 baht 

  per time meeting

 Remark: 

 Sub-committees are comprised of audit committee, 

nomination and remuneration committee, corporate 

risk management committee, and corporate 

governance and sustainability committee.

Remuneration received by each director in 2022 

Unit : Baht

Number List of directors
Special bonus 

2022

Board of 
Directors 
meeting 

allowance 

Sub-committees 
meeting 

allowance

Total Board of 
Directors and 

sub-committees 
meeting 

allowance

Total 
remuneration

1 Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon 332,831.25 360,000 - 360,000 692,831.25

2 Professor Ruth Banomyong 
(PhD)

332,831.25 180,000 100,000 280,000 612,831.25

3 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot 332,831.25 180,000 225,000 405,000 737,831.25

4 Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin 332,831.25 180,000 105,000 285,000 617,831.25

5 Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn 332,831.25 160,000 20,000 180,000 512,831.25

6 Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn 332,831.25 160,000 - 160,000 492,831.25

7 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn 332,831.25 160,000 120,000 280,000 612,831.25

8 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem 332,831.25 160,000 20,000 180,000 512,831.25

Total 2,662,650 1,540,000 590,000 2,130,000 4,792,650

Executive remuneration as a committee member for 2022

Number List of directors
Special 
bonus 
2022

Board of 
Directors 
meeting 

allowance 

Sub-
committees 

meeting 
allowance

Total Board of 
Directors and 

sub-committees 
meeting 

allowance

Total 
remuneration

1 Ms. Somjai Purachako - - 80,000 80,000 80,000

Total - - 80,000 80,000 80,000

1.3 Other benefits: None

 In this regard, the Company shall provide an office 

vehicle for the chairman during their office term, 

which shall be used for convenience while 

performing duties only.

Special bonus for the Board of Directors for the year 2022

 Determine remuneration which is a special bonus for 

directors for the year 2022 in accordance with the Company’s 

operational results at the rate of 1% of the annual performance 

results. The payment will be calculated according to the 

length of the directors’ office terms within the limit of 

2.6 million baht.
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 In 2022, the Company has paid remuneration for the 

Board of Directors, audit committee, nomination and 

remuneration committee, corporate risk management 

committee, and corporate governance committee, to 8 members 

in total, amounting to 4,792,650 Baht. and 1 executive in the 

Risk Management Committee amounting to 80,000 Baht, which 

is in the forms of meeting allowances and special bonus 

according to the resolution of the general meeting of 

Name Position Full year remuneration

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte., Ltd. (the Company owns 100% of the shares)

1.   Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon The Chairman of the Board 12,000 Singapore dollars

Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited (Joint venture, holding 51% shares ) 

1. Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Director  120,000 baht 

2. Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn Director  180,000 baht  

3 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Director 140,000 baht  

8.1.3 Supervision of Subsidiaries and Associated 
Companies 

 The Corporate Governance and Sustainability 

Committee is responsible for overseeing, monitoring and 

evaluating the Company’s performance regarding good 

corporate governance and anti-corruption. The Corporate 

Governance and Sustainable Development Committee assigns 

policies and guidelines to the management to supervise 

compliance with good governance principles. Operational Risk 

Management internal control and supervision of legal compliance 

corporate regulations which has a duty to supervise compliance 

with good governance principles Operational risk management, 

internal control and compliance with laws, rules and regulations 

of the organization.

 in the management supervision of the company and 

companies in the group The Board of Directors will determine 

the governance structure. Administration, monitoring and 

supervision of companies in the business group All include 

Business Group Risk Management Internal control audit of 

business groups Business Group Compliance and the 

management of the business group. The company is aware of 

the importance of disclosure of information in accordance with 

the principles of corporate governance. The Board of Directors 

has assigned the Compliance and Corporate Governance 

Department to be responsible for ensuring that companies in 

the business group comply with laws and regulations. and report 

to the Board of Directors for acknowledgment

 The Board of Directors has assigned the Audit Committee 

to be responsible for ensuring that the Company and companies 

in the business group There is an internal control system (Internal 

Control) that is suitable and effective. with the Company’s 

internal audit department Be in charge of the internal audit 

system and report to the Audit Committee. To ensure that there 

are adequate and appropriate internal controls.

 The company has improved the company management 

guidelines of the business group. Including policies and 

announcements relating to the supervision of the Company’s 

operations. and companies in the business group to make the 

work process efficient Prevent potential conflicts of interest. 

and in accordance with the law Regulations imposed by 

regulators such as the SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, 

such as policies on corporate governance principles 

Anti-Corruption Policy Personal Information Protection Policy 

shareholders Therefore, the total amount of remuneration is 

4,872,650 baht. 

Remuneration received by directors for holding directorship in 

a subsidiary / joint venture company 

 A director holding directorship in a subsidiary of the 

Company has a duty to ensure that the subsidiary’s business 

to operates in accordance with the Company’s business policies.
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Information Technology Policy Including various risk 

management policies. In addition, the rules and regulations 

related to good corporate governance, such as making related 

reports and shareholding distribution reports, have also been 

revised. The practice of giving and receiving gifts, hospitality 

or other expenses with outsiders so that the company and 

companies in the group have good governance

8.1.4 Monitoring to ensure compliance with 
corporate governance policies and 
guidelines

(1) Prevention of Conflicts of Interest
 The Board of Directors and executives of the Company 

are wary of potential conflicts of interests and have taken steps 

to prevent executives or related persons to use the Company’s 

internal data for personal benefits. Additionally, directors and 

executives of the Company must report their interests in 

accordance with the criteria prescribed by law and the Board 

of Directors.

 In conducting related party transactions between the 

Company and persons who may have conflicts of interests in 

the future, the Board of Directors has assigned the Audit 

Committee to give suggestions on the necessity and suitability 

of such transactions. In the event that the Audit Committee 

does not have an expertise in related party transactions that 

may occur, the Committee may employ independent experts 

or the Company’s auditor to give suggestions about such related 

party transactions to the Board of Directors or the shareholders 

for consideration, as the case may be. This is done to prevent 

conflicts of interests that may occur. The Board of Directors 

has established policies and guidelines in preventing directors 

and employees of the Company from seeking personal gain by 

stipulating that directors and employees avoid conducting 

transactions related to themselves which may cause conflicts 

of interest with the Company. 

 Additionally, in order to prevent conflicts of interest, the 

Company has set a clear policy to supervise items that may 

cause conflicts of interest. In the event that a director who has 

a conflict of interest in any agenda, that director will not be 

eligible to vote or participate in the consideration of that agenda. 

Also, the Company has established policies and procedures to 

prevent executives and related persons from using the 

Company’s internal data for personal gain.

 In 2022, no significant conflicts were found. The disclosure 

of conflicts of interest of the Company will be a confirmation of 

acknowledgment that any violation of the Company’s Code of 

Business Conduct is a disciplinary offense. Violators shall be 

subjected to disciplinary penalty which shall be considered in 

accordance with the punishment procedure and the severity of 

the act. 

 Detailed reports of directors, executives, and related 

persons’ stakes are already included under Part 2, “Topic 

6 Good Corporate Governance Policy” 

(2) Exploitation of internal information
 Supervision of the use of internal information is a 

crucial responsibility of all directors, executives, and employees 

of the Company. They must strictly protect the Company’s 

confidential information, especially internal information that has 

not yet been disclosed to the public or information that affects 

business operations or share prices. It is determined that 

directors, executives, or employees of the Company shall not 

use opportunities or information which come from their held 

positions for personal gain, as well as limit access of information 

only to directors and high-ranking executives related to the 

Company. Additionally, the Company requires executives to 

report their securities holdings and any change in securities 

holdings to the Office of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC) per Section 59 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act B.E. 2535. Moreover, the Company has 

established written policies forbidding directors, executives, and 

employees of the Company who are members of departments 

which have access to internal information, as well as spouses 

and underage children, from trading in the Company’s securities. 

They shall also maintain a quiet period of 30 days before the 

announcement of earning results or quarterly and annual 

financial statements. If any executive or employee violates 

these policies, they shall receive a punishment which ranges 

from a warning to a termination of employment and legal 

proceedings. The policies shall be notified to executives and 

employees of the Company in advance every time.
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 The Company provides a reporting system for any 

advance purchase and sale of the Company’s securities. If 

there is a necessity for the Company’s personnel to trade the 

Company’s securities, they must inform the secretary or the 

person assigned by the Board at least 1 day in advance. In 

2022, it is reported that there are 35 advance trades of securities 

by persons involved with internal information, which were not 

considered at risk enough to notify a cease of securities trade 

or cause an important incident which may affect the Company.  

(3)  Anti-corruption
 The Company has an anti-corruption policy to support 

and promote personnel at all levels to realize the importance 

and be conscious of preventing corruption and committed to 

following the laws on anti-fraud, corruption, and bribery of 

government officials both domestic and abroad or private 

agencies. The policy supports and promotes personnel of all 

levels to be conscious of preventing all forms of corruption by 

having an internal control system to prevent corruption in any 

action that is susceptible to corruption and money laundering 

to prevent the Company from being used as a channel or a tool 

to embezzle, transfer, or conceal sources of unlawful assets. 

Personnel at all levels of the Company and affiliated companies 

shall perform their duties with transparency, prudence, caution, 

and must not get involved in any form of corruption whether 

directly or indirectly. Additionally, the Company has established 

guidelines on anti-corruption which are designated as the 

Company’s code of conduct. The details of such policy is 

disclosed officially on the Company’s website.  

Anti-corruption actions include: 

1.  Jointly sign a declaration of intent to become part of 

Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition (CAC) 

in 2010 and on December 31, 2020, the Company has 

extended the first round of certification for another 3 years 

from the first certification on November 10, 2017.

2. Establish anti-corruption policies and guidelines to prevent 

and reduce the chances that the Company will be used 

as a channel for corruption. The relevant policies and 

guidelines are regularly reviewed for their effectiveness. 

The essence of the policies and guidelines are communicated 

to executives and employees through various channels, 

such as announcements on the internal computer network 

system, via the Company’s website, and via email. 

3. Establish and implement stricter guidelines on No Gift 

Policy, by establishing a policy not to accept and give gifts 

or any form of reward of any type from customers, partners, 

and business stakeholders in the festival. In the event gifts, 

rewards, or any other benefits cannot be refused and must 

be accepted, they must be given through supervisors in 

the line of work using the “Give or receive gifts, rewards, 

and other benefits of the Company report form” and 

submitted to the human resources department. In the event 

that the authorized person or supervisor deemed that it is 

not appropriate to receive such gifts, have the recipient 

return them immediately. If it cannot be returned, it shall 

be given to human resources department to be rewarded 

to employees or charitable donations on behalf of the 

company. In addition, gifts, rewards, or any other benefits 

are considered rights and properties of the Company.

4.  The Board of Directors shall assign the Corporate Risk 

Management Committee to oversee and assess business 

risks related to corruption and process, monitor, and report 

those risks to the Board of Directors.
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5. Invite partners, trade partners, related companies, and 

general companies to join the network of the Thai Private 

Sector Collective Action Against Corruption (CAC)

6. Organize training courses on anti-corruption policy for 

employees at all levels every year. New employees shall 

also participate in the courses which are included as part 

of the new employee orientation.

(4) Whistle Blowing Policy
 The Company has established regulatory measures 

and channels for all stakeholders, which also includes 

employees, in reporting clues or complaints of suspected 

violations or actions that do not comply with laws, rules, 

regulations, or good corporate governance policies. They shall 

also report inaccurate financial reporting or defective internal 

control system to the Audit Committee directly through a variety 

of channels, which can be found through the Company’s website 

under the topic “Investor Relations” as follows:

Whistleblowing or Complaints Filing Channels  

 Any wrongdoing and corruption clues can be reported 

through these following channels as appropriate:

Channel 1 Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit 

Committee 

Channel 2 Trustworthy supervisors at every level of the 

Company 

Channel 3 Website : www.wice.co.th (Topic : Investor 

Relations / Investor Inquiries / Whistleblowing)

 or (Topic : Contact Us /Complaint Filing) 

Channel 4 By E-mail : Chairman of the Audit Committee 

banomyong.ruth@gmail.com

Channel 5 By phone : 02 681 6181 ext. 3501

Channel 6 Send a letter to the chairman of the Audit 

Committee (who is an independent director) at 

the following address:

  WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 

  88/8 WICE PLACE Building, Nonsi Road, 

 Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yan Nawa District, 

  Bangkok 10120

 *In cases involving top executives or directors of the 

Company, report the matter directly to the Chairman of 

the Audit Committee.”

 The Company has guidelines for the protection of 

whistleblowers or complainants. Information about whistleblowers 

or complainants is kept confidential and the Company will not 

disclose their names unless it is required by law and relevant 

regulatory agencies. The Company also has a policy of not 

harassing or punishing any whistleblower or complainant who 

is an employee for providing information unless such acts are 

done in bad faith, has malicious intent to destroy the Company 

or certain persons, or is in violation of the law or the Company’s 

regulations. 

 The Board of Directors has assigned the Audit Committee, 

which consists of independent directors, to be in charge and 

set guidelines on the management of complaints and whistle-

blower information which pass through the aforementioned 

channels. The committee shall also assign an internal audit unit 

which is an independent entity to perform its tasks and report 

directly to the Audit Committee, support the tasks of the Audit 

Committee such as screening, managing, and auditing 

complaints and whistle-blower information. If the information is 

legitimate, the audit results shall be considered to find solutions 

or reported to the Board of Directors. After the consideration 

and actions are taken to correct incidents reported from 

complaints and whistle-blower information, the Company shall 

informs complainants and whistle-blowers for acknowledgement 

according to procedures and within the appropriate period 

of time.

 For the year 2022, no whistleblowing and ethical 

complaints were found. or human rights

5) Preparation of a report on changes in securities 
holdings. 

 In 2022, the Company, through the Company 

Secretary, has prepared a letter notifying the directors, 

executives, and employees of the Company with the subject 

of the prohibition period of the purchase and sale of the 

Company’s securities, and the prohibition of reporting news on 

directors and executives There were a total of 4 notifications, 

namely (1) between 24 January and 23 February 2022 (Fiscal 

Year 2021) (2) between 11 April and 10 May 2022 (Fiscal 

Quarter 1, 2022) (3) Between 8 July and 10 August 2022 

(Financial Quarter 2, 2022) (4) Between 7 October and 
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Report of securities holdings of the Company directors for the year 2021 & 2022

Number List of directors 

Company’s ordinary shares (number of shares)

as of 
December 31, 2021

as of 
December 31, 2022

Increase / 
(Decrease)
during the 
fiscal year

Remarks

1 Mr. Ekaphol Pongstabhon - 145,000 145,000 -

Spouse and minor children - - -

2 Professor Ruth Banomyong (PhD) - - - (not holding 
company 
shares)

Spouse and minor children - - -

3 Mr. Komol Rungruanyot - - - (not holding 
company 
shares)

Spouse and minor children - - -

4 Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin - - - (not holding 
company 
shares)

Spouse and minor children - - -

5 Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn 126,978,780 126,978,780 - -

Spouse and minor children Spouse: Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn -

6 Mr.Chudet Kongsoonthorn 86,139,320 86,939,320 800,000 -

Spouse and minor children Spouse: Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn -

7 Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn 56,857,280 56,857,280 - -

Spouse and minor children - - - -

8 Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem 200,000 200,000 - -

Spouse and minor children - - - -

9 November 2022 (Financial Quarter 3, 2022) outside of the aforementioned periods. All directors and executives have strictly 

adhered to the notifications. However, if there is a necessity to purchase the Company’s securities, one must notify the Company 

secretary at least 1 day in advance. 
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6) Notification of conflicts of interest at the meeting
 The Board of Directors has established a stakeholder 

policy in every Board meeting. The chairman will inform the 

meeting to ask the directors to cooperate in complying with the 

policy on conflicts of interest in any agenda in which the directors 

are involved or have interests. Ask the directors to notify the 

meeting to refrain from voting or giving any opinions. In 2022, 

there was no notification of conflict of interest in the meeting 

(7 meetings).

7) Consideration and review of connected 
transactions

 The Audit Committee is responsible for considering 

and reviewing connected transactions or transactions that may 

have conflicts of interest that may affect the Company’s 

operations. This is in accordance with the laws and regulations 

of the Stock Exchange of Thailand before proposing to the 

Board of Directors for approval.

Securities holdings of executives for the year 2021 &2022 

Number List of directors 

Company’s ordinary shares (number of shares)

as of 
December 31, 2021

as of 
December 31, 2022

Increase / 
(Decrease)
during the 
fiscal year

Remarks

1 Ms. Somjai Purachako 300 300 - - 

Spouse and minor children - - -

2 Mr. Prasert Jirapivatthanakul N/A 470,900 - - 

Spouse and minor children N/A - -

3 Mr. Amnat Phuangrod N/A 2,000

Spouse and minor children N/A - -

4 Ms. Saovadee Asavamana 255,000 270,000 15,000 -

Spouse and minor children - - -

5 Ms.Suntaree Pulsombut  172,800 172,800 -

Spouse and minor children - - -
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8.2 Report on the performance of the 
Audit Committee 

 

Audit Committee Report 
  The Audit Committee of Wise Logistics Public Company 

Limited consists of 3 qualified independent directors, namely 

Professor Dr. Ruth Banomyong as the chairman of the Audit 

Committee, Mr. Komol Rungruangyot as a member of the Audit 

Committee, and Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin as a member of 

the Audit Committee. Their terms of office in 2022 are summarized 

as follows:  

January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

• Professor Dr. Ruth Banomyong

 Chairman of the Audit Committee  

• Mr. Komol Rungruangyot  

 Audit Committee

• Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin  

 Audit Committee 

 Additionally, Ms. Nipapan Dulanee, internal auditor, 

serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee.  

 In 2022, the Audit Committee performed its duties as 

assigned by the Board of Directors. and according to the Charter 

of the Audit Committee This is in line with the best practices of 

the Securities and Exchange Commission. by reviewing and 

pushing the Company Follow the principles of good corporate 

governance. There is an organizational risk management system. 

and adequate internal control Compliance with regulations Focus 

on being a transparent organization There is an efficient and 

effective internal audit. by linking the goals of the organization 

and the internal audit department to be the same goal to enhance 

the quality of internal auditing able to create sustainable added 

value for the Company taking into account the needs of all groups 

of stakeholders in all aspects  

1. Encourage the enhancement of the risk management 

governance process. internal control and supervision of 

compliance Focusing on raising awareness for operators 

to operate cautiously and cautiously, including reviewing 

rules and regulations relating to the operation as appropriate, 

along with supervising the implementation of the internal 

control process to be concise. It also emphasizes on the 

review. investigative process and disciplinary action to be 

appropriate and fair.

2. Encourage the management to set goals for becoming a 

model organization in information technology supervision. 

To achieve continuous development of operations and 

increase confidence in the potential of the company By 

considering operations in the field of cyber security. 

(Cybersecurity) and personnel retention mainly

3. recommendations to management regarding foreign 

investments. To direct a study to understand those countries 

in depth. Both in terms of political systems, laws, culture 

and related traditions. in order to be able to determine 

appropriate investment guidelines It also encourages the 

management to follow up. and assessing the impact of the 

COVID-19 epidemic situation, the freight situation 

continuously in conjunction with various operations 

4. Provide a policy to improve the quality of internal auditing 

of the company. To make internal audits efficient, effective, 

reliable and professional. Including increasing the role of 

consulting to add value to the company and companies in 

the group Meet stakeholder expectations It also promotes 

obtaining professional certifications of internal auditors. 

Along with the continuous development of personnel as 

well as the improvement of operational processes. 

Technology was used in the operation of additional 

inspections.

Professor Dr. Ruth Banomyong
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited. 141



 In 2022, the Audit Committee held a total of 4 

meetings with details of meeting attendance as follows:  

January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

There were a total of 4 meetings. 

• Professor Dr. Ruth Banomyong

 attended the meeting 4 times 

• Mr. Komol Rungruangyot 

 attended the meeting 4 times 

• Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin  

 attended the meeting 4 times 

Summary of Key Performances of the Audit Committee
1.  Review of Financial Statements

 The Audit Committee reviewed key information of 

the Company’s quarterly financial statements and annual 

financial reports. and consolidated financial reports together 

with the management internal audit department and auditor 

He inquired from the auditor about the correctness and 

completeness of the financial report. important accounting 

items adjustments including accounting estimates which 

affects financial reports Adequacy of accounting methods 

and audit scope Accurate, complete and sufficient disclosure 

of information and the independence of the auditor. To ensure 

that the preparation of financial reports complies with legal 

requirements and accounting standards according to 

generally accepted accounting principles. It is reliable and 

timely. Including sufficient disclosure of information. Useful 

for Financial Reporting Users  

2. Good Corporate Governance Review  

 The company is committed to conducting business in 

accordance with the principles of the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the 

Thai Institute of Directors Association. The Audit Committee 

has reviewed the efficiency and effectiveness of good corporate 

governance and found that the Company’s directors, 

management and employees strictly follow the specified policies 

and the Company has implemented the Anti-Corruption Policy. 

seriously and extending the results to business partners Jointly 

practice together with corporate governance that takes into 

account the society and the environment in a concrete way 

beyond what is required by law. Including reviewing the process 

of receiving complaints and reporting clues about corruption 

(Whistleblowing)

3. Review of the risk management assessment system  

 The Audit Committee reviewed the risk management. 

According to the report of the audit results of the internal audit 

agency and auditor and acknowledge the report on corporate 

risk management. The Risk Management Committee is 

responsible for overseeing specific risks. which covers the 

approval of risk management policies and frameworks follow 

up risk assessment Approval of risk management measures 

And report the progress of risk management to the Risk 

Management Committee to the Board of Directors. regularly  

4. Review of Internal Control System   

 The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy and 

appropriateness of the internal control from the assessment of 

the sufficiency of the internal control system formulated by the 

management in accordance with the internal control system 

sufficiency assessment form of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Thailand (SEC). It is found that the Company 

has an organizational structure that takes into account the 

division of duties in important areas, has a good corporate 

governance policy, has supervision of operations in accordance 

with the rules, has policies in place and implemented risk 

management throughout the organization, has ongoing activities 

to raise awareness about corruption, has guidelines and 

processes to supervise and monitor the operations of 

subsidiaries and associated companies. Additionally, the 

Committee shall ensure that the Company provide channels 

for employee communication within the corporation and with 

external stakeholders. Controls are assessed at the 

organizational level, including internal control assessment by 

the operators themselves and internal control audit of various 

activities. by the internal audit unit.

 In 2022, from the review of internal control performed 

by internal audit departments and auditors There was an 

adequate internal control system and no significant issues or 

defects could be found that could affect the achievement of the 

Company’s object ives and goals. according to the 

recommendations of the audit committee, the auditor and the 

internal audit department continuously   
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5. Supervision of internal audit work  

The audit committee has reviewed the annual audit plan 

strategic plan. and long-term audit plan the implementation 

of the plan Audit results of the internal audit department by 

giving advice and following up on corrective action on 

significant issues To achieve good governance and adequate 

internal control. Consider revising the internal audit charter. 

Review the annual budget of the Internal Audit Department, 

development plans, recruitment and personnel rotation plans. 

personnel training confirmation of independence Assessment 

of the adequacy and suitability of resources Performance 

indicators and to supervise the continuous improvement of 

the quality and improvement of the work of the internal audit 

department

6. Maintaining the quality of the Audit Committee  

 The Audit Committee has reviewed the Charter of the 

Audit Committee. as well as evaluating the performance of the 

visual inspection committee as a whole individual self According 

to the best practices of the Stock Exchange of Thailand to 

ensure that Performance of the Audit Committee is efficient. 

and achieve the specified results In this regard, the results of 

the overall evaluation of the Faculty were in excellent criteria. 

There are guidelines for improving the performance of the audit 

committee. and the Audit Committee reported its performance 

to the Board of Directors. know every quarter by giving comments 

to add value and improve corporate governance processes Risk 

Management and Internal Control and supervision of compliance 

with the Company’s rules and regulations 

7. Consideration of the appointment of auditors and audit 

fees for the year 2022  

 The Audit Committee has considered and approved 

the auditors from the company EY Office Limited as the 

Company’s auditor for the year 2022 and proposed to the Board 

of Directors for approval at the annual shareholders’ meeting. to 

consider the appointment of the auditor and approve the audit 

fee for the year 2022. The Audit Committee held one specific 

meeting with the auditor without the participation of the 

management. To discuss the scope, approach and audit plan. 

independence in performing duties and opinions of the auditor 

By giving importance to the presentation of accurate, complete 

and sufficient information. 

8. Consideration of Connected Transactions or 

Transactions That May Have Conflicts of Interest to 

Comply With the Laws and Regulations of the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand 

 The Audit Committee has reviewed and commented 

on connected transactions that are significant, 

especially transactions that may have conflicts of 

interest, as well as reports of the relevant directors. 

Those comments are disclosed to the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand for acknowledgement within 

the specified time limit.  

Report on the Audit Committee Performance  

 The Audit Committee has performed the duties and 

responsibilities specified in the Audit Committee Charter. by 

adhering to righteousness, prudence, prudence, independence 

as well as giving comments, observations and suggestions 

creatively taking into account the equality of stakeholders and 

the utmost benefit

 The Audit Committee viewed that the Company had 

accurate and reliable accounting systems and financial reports. 

Sufficient information was disclosed in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting standards. Compliance with laws, rules 

and regulations related to the Company’s business operations. 

There is good corporate governance with adequate and suitable 

internal control for business operations. There is a good risk 

management and internal audit system. Various changes are 

tracked. To prepare to face risks that may occur in the future.

 In this regard, the performance of duties of the Audit 

Committee during the year 2022 received good cooperation 

from the Board of Directors, executives, auditors and all relevant 

parties.
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8.3 Summary of the performance of 
other sub-committees 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee  

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 

WICE Logist ics Publ ic Company Limited consists of 

3 members, one of which is an independent director, 

with Mr. Kamol Rungruangyos acting as the Chairman, 

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn as a director and Ms. Thitimar. 

Tantikulsuntorn is a director and has a company secretary. Acting 

as secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 

performed its duties as assigned by the Board of Directors. with 

prudence, transparency and fairness, as well as improving the 

operational guidelines to cover In line with the current situation 

and business strategy of the company. Including realizing the 

best interests of shareholders and stakeholders. In 2022, the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee held a total of 2 

meetings, having considered the following important matters:

• Consider the appointment of directors to replace those 

who have completed their terms by using various 

information to support the selection of persons from diverse 

occupations who are qualified according to the law. related 

regulations Articles of Association good corporate 

governance principles as well as knowledge, competence, 

experience that is suitable and responds to the Company’s 

strategy And considering the necessary skills that are 

lacking by analyzing the Board Skill Matrix as well as 

considering the Director’s Pool database of the Thai 

Institute of Directors Association (IOD), work performance 

and roles in the past to the present that can build confidence 

for stakeholders They must also have no flawed history 

and no conflict of interest with the Company. to propose 

to the Board of Directors Consider and approve the 

nomination of suitable persons to the Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and appointment 

as the Company’s directors. 

• Consider appointing a director to replace the resigned 

director. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

has exercised prudence in considering the recruitment of 

Mr. Komol Rungruangyot
Chairman of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

persons with knowledge, ability and suitable qualifications 

in accordance with the above criteria. to propose to the 

Board of Directors for consideration and appointment as 

a director 

• Consider nominating directors to serve as members of 

sub-committees. By considering the composition of sub-

committees, qualifications, knowledge, expertise, abilities, 

including skills relevant and suitable for the performance 

of sub-committees (skill matrix) and proposing to the Board 

of Directors for consideration and appointment.

• Consider reviewing the skills and knowledge assignments. 

Expertise and experience of the elements of the Board of 

Directors (Board Skill Matrix) and 4 sub-committees, 

considering more suitable than the Skill Matrix, is still in 

line with the Company’s strategy.

• Determine the remuneration for the Board of Directors and 

sub-committees for the year 2022 based on the Company’s 

operating results and business size. Guidelines that listed 

companies in the same industry and leading companies 

Including the responsibilities of the Board of Directors. 

together with the results of the annual assessment It has 

been proposed to the Board of Directors for approval. To 

propose to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 

for the year 2022 

• Improve the performance of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee to ensure completeness and 

appropriateness. up-to-date with current situations and in 

accordance with the Company’s corporate governance 

policies and principles 
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 In addition, in 2022, the Board of Directors Minority 

shareholders were given the opportunity to nominate suitable 

persons to be elected as directors. It turned out that no 

shareholder nominated a person for the 2022 Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders and disclosed the remuneration of 

1.  Supervise risk management to reduce the impact on 

the Company’s business operations. 

 Following up on important situations that may affect 

the business operations of the Company There are proactive 

measures that focus on management to reduce the likelihood 

of every risk event occurring. And there are defensive measures 

if a risk event occurs. To reduce the impact from affecting the 

goals of the organization. In 2022, the “Risk Appetite Statement” 

has been revised to be in line with the changing situation in order 

to ensure that the Company’s risk management process The 

company is appropriate and can be implemented effectively.  

2.  Supervise the management of the organization’s 

stakeholders. 

 In order for the stakeholder management process to 

be complete and cover the management of all groups of 

stakeholders by agreeing on the following matters

2.1 Company Stakeholder Management Strategy 

2.2  Objectives and Scope of Stakeholder Management 

of the Company 

Mr. Komol Rungruangyot
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 

directors and sub-committees. Including executive compensation 

and disclosed the remuneration of directors and sub-committees 

Including executive compensation All details have been 

disclosed for transparency in auditing in this Annual Registration 

Statement/ Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report).  

Report of the Risk Management Committee 

  WICE Logistics Public Company Limited gives 

importance to corporate risk management supervision as an 

important tool in dealing with various risk factors. Both from 

internal and external factors such as the volatility of the global 

economy. Including uncertain situations and new risk factors. 

that tend to be more complex and more violent than in the past 

which affects the operations of the company Including the 

situation of the epidemic of the Coronavirus Disease or 

COVID-19 which affects the import and export of Thailand and 

around the world. risk Including continuously raising awareness 

of risk management among employees at all levels in order to 

create a risk management culture throughout the organization. 

And it is an important part in driving the organization to achieve 

its objectives and business goals. can prevent and reduce 

potential losses Including being used as a tool to efficiently 

seek business opportunities from certain risks. This will help 

build confidence among investors and stakeholders in the 

Company’s business operations.

 The Risk Management Committee has supported the 

operations of the Board of Directors. under the principles of 

good corporate governance for the Company’s risk management 

to be efficient and effective in achieving business goals 

Consistent with the vision and direction of the organization, 

reducing the impact of the uncertainty of the business 

environment. Able to build confidence and credibility to 

shareholders and stakeholders in business operations that the 

company has a risk management system that can handle risks 

in all dimensions.

 In 2022, the  Risk Management Committee totaled 

4 meetings, which can be summarized as follows:
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2.3 Group of stakeholders of the company

2.4 Issues that stakeholders prioritize at the 

organizational level and operational guidelines

 as well as driving performance and management 

assessment results. along with giving comments and 

suggestions to achieve the goals  

3.  Supervise corporate innovation management 

 In order to complete the organizational innovation 

management process The management of innovation and 

technology is efficient and systematic, able to increase the 

effectiveness of innovation in accordance with the strategic 

objectives and main goals of the company. Including the use of 

resources for maximum benefit. lead to sustainable growth 

Including pushing for ideas and suggestions for the company’s 

innovation management. to get tangible results Able to expand 

business according to goals

4.  consider, scrutinize and give opinions investment 

related agenda 

 The risk issues and risk management guidelines are 

strictly considered. Advise on the pros and cons of business 

decisions. To make the investment worth the opportunity cost 

and suitable for the business context. including giving opinions 

on various projects Both current business and new business that 

the company Want to grow in the future according to the direction 

of the business strategy carefully before presenting for approval 

to the Board of Directors 

5.  Follow up on corporate risk management for the 

year 2022  

 Following up closely on a quarterly basis by prescribing 

risk indicators for surveillance and early warning and risk indicators 

to measure the effectiveness of risk management. Provide 

suggestions to management to improve management by 

reviewing risk management plans in line with strategies and the 

changing business environment. In addition, the performance of 

the Enterprise Risk Management Committee was reported to 

the Board of Directors. In 2022, the Board of Directors Has 

pushed and followed up the results of the freight risk management 

process. and fuel continuously under highly volatile market 

conditions closely  

6.  Consider screening the list of corporate risks for the 

year 2023 

 and presented for approval from the Board of Directors. 

By integrating the risk inventory process and the enterprise risk 

management plan together with the preparation of the annual 

plan Make a clear risk management plan Consistent with strategic 

directions and business goals. which has been transferred to 

practice throughout the organization in order to be able to 

effectively manage risks in a timely manner

 In summary, the  Risk Management Committee and 

the Risk Management Working Group of the Company Will 

strive to maintain and devote to improving the efficiency of 

risk management. in order to be able to manage risks 

effectively appropriate and controlled to an acceptable level 

And able to support the achievement of the business goals 

that have been set in a sustainable manner under a 

challenging environment.  
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Report of the Corporate Governance and 
Sustainability Committee

  The Corporate Governance and Sustainability 

Committee of Wise Logistics Public Company Limited consists 

of 2 independent directors and 2 executive directors, namely Mr. 

Boongrieng Thanaphansin, Chairman of the Corporate 

Governance and Sustainable Development Committee, Mr. 

Komol Rungruangyot Corporate Governance and Sustainable 

Development Committee Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Corporate 

Governance and Sustainable Development Committee Member 

and Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Corporate Governance and 

Sustainable Development Committee Member with the company 

secretary Acting as secretary 

 Board of Directors There is determination and 

persistence in driving the organization towards becoming a 

transparent and ethical organization. Manage business with 

honesty, verifiability, and do not accept all forms of fraud and 

corruption. Ready to adhere to the principles of good corporate 

governance. have ethical standards and business ethics as well 

as the company’s sustainability management standards To 

develop and upgrade the good corporate governance of the 

company to be effective continuously. which creates fairness 

and confidence to all groups of stakeholders and push important 

policies to companies in the group to develop towards sustainable 

growth throughout the value chain 

 Board of Directors has assigned the Corporate 

Governance and Sustainability Committee Serves to propose 

guidelines for good corporate governance. to the board Supervise 

the performance of directors and management in accordance 

with the principles of good corporate governance of the Company 

And in line with the good corporate governance principles of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand (SET), recommendations from the Corporate 

Governance Assessment Report. 

 In 2022, the Corporate Governance and Sustainability 

Committee held one meeting according to the plan. To supervise, 

follow up and evaluate the performance according to the good 

corporate governance plan. Operational Risk Management and 

Internal Control Compliance with laws, rules and organizational 

regulations and anti-corruption Social, Community and 

Environmental Responsibility Plan and develop sustainability 

The important points can be summarized as follows: 

Disclosure and Transparency
• Prepare annual information disclosure form/annual report 

(Form 56-1 One Report) as well as disclose the Company’s 

operating results. quarterly and important information for 

shareholders Investors and the general public which are 

complete, sufficient, reliable and timely. through various 

channels such as the system of the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand (SET) and the Company’s website www.wice.

co.th The company secretary is the main unit for 

disseminating information.

• Disclosure of sustainability performance data covering 3 

dimensions: environmental, social and governance. 

(Environmental, social, and Governance: ESG) through 

Form 56-1 One Report on the topic of driving business for 

sustainability. as well as integration into the topic of risk 

management Analysis and explanation of management 

and corporate governance Including disclosure through 

the company’s website at Sustainable Development Topics 

By referring to international standards for information 

disclosure, namely the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), 

as well as presenting the company’s commitment. In 

support of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) in 

accordance with the United Nations framework, the 

Company encourages and supports the disclosure of 

Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin
Chairman of the Corporate Governance 

and Sustainability Committee
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information. This is in line with the direction of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand (SET) that aim for listed companies to disclose 

information on sustainability performance in accordance 

with disclosure guidelines. internationally  

Rights of Shareholders and Equitable Treatment of 
Shareholders
• Organize the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 

by providing information on date, time, venue and agenda. 

as well as all information relevant to the matters to be 

decided at the meeting to the shareholders in advance in 

a sufficient and timely manner. Inform the shareholders of 

the rules and regulations used in the meeting and 

disseminating such information on the Company’s website. 

It is in advance before sending documents. This is to give 

shareholders an opportunity to study the information for 

the meeting sufficiently in advance. Including facilitating 

shareholders to fully exercise their rights to attend meetings 

and vote. In attending the meeting under the situation of 

the COVID-19 epidemic, the Company also received a full 

score from the AGM Checklist assessment of 100 points 

or at an excellent level.

• Allows shareholders to propose additional agenda items 

and nominate candidates for directorship in advance 

between October 3, 2022 and December 30, 2022 

according to the criteria set by the company.

• Directors and executives are required to disclose 

information about their own interests and those of their 

related persons for the year 2022 so that directors can 

consider the company’s transactions that may have 

conflicts of interest and make decisions for the benefit of 

the company as a whole. And requires that directors who 

have interests or have conflicts of interest in any agenda 

must abstain from voting. Refrain from expressing opinions 

and not attending the meeting on that agenda.

• Arrange for directors, executives and employees at all 

levels to prepare a conflict of interest report in 2022. 

The process was completed and no significant conflicts 

were found.

• Requiring all directors and executives who have a duty to 

report their securities holdings according to the law. And 

the company secretary collects and reports at the board 

meeting on a quarterly basis.

• Supervise the implementation of guidelines on the use of 

inside information (Insider Trading) by requiring directors, 

executives and persons related to information to avoid 

trading the Company’s securities. If there is a necessity 

to trade, inform the company secretary in advance. to 

create transparency

Board Responsibilities 
• Assess the performance of the Board of Directors, which 

is comprised of the assessment of the Board as a whole, 

self-assessment, assessment of sub-committees. and 

assessment of the roles, duties and performance of the 

chief executive officer (CEO). 

• Participate in various training courses to develop 

knowledge, competence, and expertise in performing 

duties, such as courses provided by the Thai Institute of 

Directors Association and related institutions. 

• Arrange a meeting among independent directors at least 

1 time. 

• Arrange a meeting of directors without the presence of 

management at least 1 time.

Corporate governance operational risk management 
and internal control compliance with laws, rules and 
regulations of the organization and anti-fraud and 
corruption
• Consider and approve the Company’s good corporate 

governance policy. Company’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Policy and business ethics in conducting business of the 

company as well as setting goals to convey to practice at 

all levels By following up and giving advice continuously. 

to raise the standard of corporate governance of the 

Company equality at international level

• Provide policies and recommendations to the Enterprise 

Risk Management Committee. It is responsible for 

overseeing compliance with good governance, operational 

risk management and internal controls, overseeing 

compliance with laws, rules and organizational regulations. 

• Provide an assessment of the internal control of the 

operational processes within the company. and companies 

in the group by assessing risks and the efficiency and 

effectiveness of their control activities. as well as developing 

control activities to reduce risks to an acceptable level. 
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• Continuously support and drive compliance with laws and 

regulations in the organization. and provide management 

of non-compliance with laws and regulations. by 

establishing a concrete reporting process and follow-up 

on corrective action This is to prevent and reduce the 

chance of repeating inconsistent practices with laws and 

regulations in the future. At present, there is no incident 

of non-compliance with the law that has a significant impact 

on the organization. 

• Promote and encourage business partners of the Company 

to declare their intention to join the Private Sector Collective 

Action Coalition against Corruption (CAC). 

Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development 
• The Company has established a sustainability management 

framework. By giving importance to 3 principles, namely 

Environmental, Social and Governance, as a policy to 

operate in parallel with the business. along with setting 

guidelines for operating social enterprises focus on meeting 

needs and improving the quality of life for communities in 

all areas where the company operates. including human 

resource development elevate the quality of life of 

community society Including promoting the economy for 

society, communities and the environment, for example 

creating awareness of the conservation of natural resources 

and the environment. Including emphasizing waste 

management and using pure energy. to reduce the amount 

of carbon footprint

Pride Award 
• Ranking in the “Excellent” group of the Corporate 

Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies 2022 (for 

the 4th consecutive year)
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9.1 Internal Control
 The Company recognizes and values risk management 

and the adequacy of a good internal control system to enable 

the Company to operate the business to achieve the set objectives 

with sustainable efficiency and effectiveness. The Company 

started by establishing an organizational culture in order to 

conduct business under the principles of good governance and 

transparency with a balanced management structure. The 

Company also determines the policies and guidelines for important 

operations in writing so that they will be implemented under the 

same standards and control system that are of the same practice, 

including establishing employee codes of conduct, disciplinary 

penalties, as well as establishing appropriate channels and 

procedures for receiving complaints.

Governance and Internal Control Systems and Risk 
Management  
 The supervision of business operations and the 

adequacy of the Company’s internal control system is under the 

supervision of the Board of Directors through the Executive 

Committee and the Audit Committee with a corporate governance 

structure with important structure as follows: 

1.  The Board of Directors oversees all the risk management 

and internal control systems of the Company by appointing 

the Corporate Risk Management Committee and/or working 

group and assigning the committee to supervise the risk 

management and control according to the assigned 

responsibilities and supervise risks and monitor related 

operations in accordance with the importance and 

complexity of the relevant businesses as necessary and 

appropriate. The operations are under the policies, which 

cover the internal control policy, corporate governance 

policy, and risk management.

1. The Audit Committee acts independently in assessing the 

sufficiency and suitability of the internal control system set 

out and supervised by the Board of Directors, including the 

efficiency of the audit process. The Company’s Audit 

Committee considers the internal control sufficiency 

assessment form annually prepared by the Company’s 

management before presenting it to the Board of Directors 

for consideration in the governance section. The Audit 

Committee reviews the policies and operating guidelines 

of the internal audit unit and the corporate risk management 

unit of their operations as well as supervises the performance 

of the Board of Directors of subsidiaries. To assess the 

accuracy of the Company’s financial reports, business 

transparency, sufficiency and suitability of the internal control 

and audit system of all operations, and operations to ensure 

that the Company operates in accordance with applicable 

legal and regulatory requirements.

Overview Summary of Internal Control System and 
Risk Management 
 The Company has set up a system of internal control 

and corporate risk management, from the overall corporate level 

to the operational level in accordance with international standards 

to ensure that the corporate can achieve the goals in operating 

effectively and efficiently as well as being able to comply with 

the law and present the report appropriately and reliably. The 

risk management is the setting of a framework for risk 

management and the defining of corporate strategy objectives 

that coordinate and interrelate to risk management processes, 

which assess and manage risks to support to achieve the strategy 

objectives. The risk management supervises operation as well 

as communication and reporting. The internal control system is 

one of the crucial aspects of corporate risk management and it 

is the part that creates value and enhances the efficiency of all 

operations. 

 The Company has provided an environment that 

promotes internal control by defining integrity and ethical conduct 

as part of our corporate core values, determining policies and 

practices related to internal control, providing a balanced reporting 

structure, and defining authorities and responsibilities appropriate 

to the nature of the work in order to achieve the corporate 

objectives. The Company also provides training to educate its 

employees to improve their skills, knowledge, and expertise in 

9. Internal Control and Connected Transactions

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)150



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

performing tasks in the operation supervision. The Board of 

Directors is responsible for overseeing the performance of the 

Executive Committee as well as the effectiveness of risk control 

and management. The Audit Committee acts independently 

through the work of the internal audit department in assessing 

the effectiveness of risk management and control and risk 

management systems. 

 The Company has established good risk management 

and internal control system. The Company’s Risk Management 

Committee will be established to take the responsibility of issuing 

corporate risk management policies, risk management guidelines 

for major risks, setting risk limits, and monitoring and controlling 

risks. The Risk Management Committee conducts an assessment 

and measures the level of major risks, including operational risks, 

financial risks, legal risks, and environmental risks, as well as 

information technology risks. management under the risk 

management framework is assigned to the Company’s 

departments and/or the Company’s risk working committee to 

take the responsibilities for monitoring the implementation of risk 

management practices and regularly reporting risks to the 

executives and the corporate Risk Management Committee for 

acknowledgment. This is to ensure that compliance with the risk 

management policy will be regularly audited by the internal audit 

unit to ensure that the Company’s business operations are 

operated under an effective control system appropriate to the 

environment and operations and to be able to appropriately 

reduce the risk that may hinder the Company from achieving the 

objectives and / or may cause damage to the corporate. 

 The Company has continually developed information 

systems to improve the quality of information and to communicate 

information efficiently and in a timely manner as well as 

established the Risk Management Working Group and assigned 

it to take care of information technology in order to supervise 

and support the implementation of appropriate technology 

guidelines. The Company has established appropriate and 

necessary channels and procedures for communicating 

information internally and externally to communicate information 

to relevant parties both internally and externally concisely, 

completely, and in a timely manner. 

 In order to ensure that internal control continues to 

operate effectively, the Company monitors and evaluates the 

results of internal control. The Company also provides a channel 

to report and communicate deficiencies in the internal control 

system to the responsible person so that measures for corrective 

action can be established in a timely manner, including setting 

up an audit process through the duty of the audit department 

and the Company’s Risk Management Working Group as specified 

in the plan. The results of supervision and audit of compliance 

with internal control are required to be regularly reported to senior 

management and the relevant board of directors. 

Opinion of the Board of Directors on the Internal 
Control System 
 In the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2023, held on 

February 24, 2023, 4 independent directors, including 3 audit 

directors, attended the meeting. The Board of Directors has 

considered the Company’s internal control assessment form 

prepared by the management and has been approved by the 

Audit Committee. The assessment of the Company’s internal 

control system covers all 5 components, namely, internal control 

of the corporate, risk assessment, control, operation of information 

systems, and data communication and tracking system. The 

Board of Directors is of the opinion that The Company’s internal 

control system is sufficient and appropriate for its business 

operations. The Company has established a sufficient internal 

control system and personnel to effectively implement the 

specified operating system. There is also a process to monitor 

and supervise the operations of the subsidiaries so that they can 

operate their business under a good internal control system and 

have appropriate measures to prevent transactions that may 

cause conflicts of interest. 

9.1.3  Opinion of the Audit Committee in the Event 
That the Opinion Differs from the Opinion of 
the Board of Directors or the Auditor 

 The Audit Committee has no different opinion from the 

Board of Directors. In addition, EY Office Limited, which is the 

Company’s auditor, has no further comments regarding the 

Company’s internal control system in 2022 

Company’s Internal Auditors
 The Company places importance on internal control 

systems for both management and operational levels. Therefore, 

an internal audit department has been established. and clearly 

define the scope of duties and authority in writing There is a 
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control over the use of assets for the greatest benefit. There is 

a separation of duties and responsibilities for approving 

accounting transactions and information technology. and keeping 

the property apart In order to create a balance and check between 

each other appropriately. In addition, there is an internal control 

on the financial system. The Internal Audit Department is 

responsible for auditing the internal control system. and report 

directly to the Audit Committee has appointed Ms. Nipaphan 

Dulanee, who is qualified Knowledge, skills and experiences in 

auditing that are suitable for holding the position of internal 

auditors. They can work independently under the support of the 

Audit Committee. and acts as the secretary of the Audit Committee 

The details appear in Attachment 3 “Detail of Head of the Office 

of Corporate Audit.”

9.2 Connected Transactions 
9.2.1 Connected transactions with persons who 

may have conflicts 
 The Board of Directors values the consideration to 

approve of related party transactions or connected transactions 

or items that may have conflicts of interest. Therefore, the 

transaction policy is set as follows:

Transactions between the Company and Its Subsidiaries  
 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited consists of 

several subsidiaries and those companies are engaged in 

business transactions with each other, such as the use of 

services, financial assistance, technical support, personnel, etc. 

Therefore, in conducting business or performing transactions 

among companies, the laws, regulations, and authority of the 

companies, as well as the rules and conditions set forth, must 

be taken into account.

Transactions with Third Parties
 Transactions with third parties must strictly comply with 

the rules and procedure required by laws, the Company’s rules 

and policy as well as received approval under the authorization 

of the Company. In addition, the agreed terms must be complied 

in a straightforward, transparent, and verifiable manner by 

avoiding transactions that may cause damage to the Company 

or third parties.

 The Company has established a stakeholder engagement 

policy and guidelines for treating various stakeholder groups 

by requiring the Company to comply with the framework of 

honest trade competition. The Company shall consider a 

reasonable and fair selling price, taking into account the 

reasonableness of the price, quality, and service received 

as well as being able to give reasonable reasons when 

investigated.

 In addition, the Company has established guidelines and 

procedures for considering and approving related party 

transactions, connected transactions, or items that may have 

conflicts of interest in order to maximize the benefits of the 

Company in accordance with the rules prescribed by law. 

Directors and executives shall inform the Company of the stake 

first, and the Company shall consider various items. In the event 

that it is an item that must be approved according to the rules 

and procedures of the law, the management will bring the matter 

to the Board of Directors or the shareholders’ meeting, as well 

as disclose information to investors transparently. The directors 

or executives who have a conflict of interest will not take 

part in the consideration and approval of the transaction in 

any way.  

Policy or Trend of Related Party Transactions 
 Connected transaction of the Company in the future will 

be transactions that can be normally processed by using the 

bargaining policy according to the market price mechanism of 

the logistics business. There will be no transfer of benefits 

between the Company and related businesses or persons.

Connected Transactions 
 The Company has a policy to operate in accordance with 

the rules of the announcement of the Capital Market Supervisory 

Board regarding rules for connected transactions and the 

announcement of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand regarding disclosure of information, and acts of 

listed companies in connected transactions, as well as related 

laws, regulations, announcements or orders in a strict manner.

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)152



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

Details of Related Party Transactions with Related Persons and Companies  

Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

1. Dr. Araya 

Kongsoonthorn

2. Mr. Chudet 

Kongsoonthorn

Directors and 

shareholders 

of the 

Company

Rental fee

(Headquarters)

1,412,904 None The Company has rented a land from the We Land 

Group Committee (with common directors and 

shareholders, namely Mrs. Araya Kongsoonthorn and 

Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn) to build a building and 

use it as the headquarter with the title deed no. 53901 

with an area of 1 ngan 70 2/10 square wah, located at 

Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yan Nawa District, Bangkok. 

A lease agreement has been made for a period of       

20 years from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2034 with the 

rental fee charged per month as detailed below: 

Year 1-2, 92,674 baht per month

Year 3-5, 101,941 baht per month

Year 6-8, 112,135 baht per month

Year 9-11, 123,349 baht per month

Year 12-14, 135,684 baht per month

Year 15-17, 149,252 baht per month

Year 18-20, 164,177 baht per month

The rental fee rate is assessed by an independent 

appraiser for public purposes which is a company on 

the list that has received an approval from the SEC. 

The aforementioned appraiser is Agency for Real 

Estate Affairs Company Limited.

Rental fee 420,000 None The Company has leased a land to use as a parking 

lot for employees by the title deed no. 53902, volume 

540, page 2, land number 977, survey page 9146, 

located at Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yannawa District, 

from January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022 with          

a rental fee of 35,000 baht per month, with the rental 

fee rate based on the price estimated from the rent of 

the land of the Company’s office building whose land 

area is adjacent.

175,000 None The Company has leased a land to use as a parking 

lot for employees by the title deed no. 52273, volume 

523, page 73, land number 264, survey page 8029, 

located at Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yannawa 

District, from August 1, 2022 - July 31, 2025 with        

a rental fee of 35,000 baht per month, with the rental 

fee rate based on the price estimated from the rent of 

the land of the Company’s office building whose land 

area is adjacent.
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

WICE Logistics 

(Singapore) Pte.Ltd.

A subsidiary

(100 percent 

held by WICE)  

Revenue from 

services/trade 

accounts 

receivable

7,158,492 722,990 WICE Logistics(Singapore) Pte.Ltd.is one of the 

Company’s international representatives which 

serves as liaison to provide services in foreign 

countries that they oversee. It employs a service 

charge using the cost plus pricing method that acts 

in coordination to provide services in Thailand, 

which will have a service charge between each 

other. This is considered as income from the 

Company’s services. WICE Logistics (Singapore) 

Pte.Ltd. has entered into an agency agreement.
Cost of 

service/trade 

accounts 

payable

23,885,811 1,677,310

Other income 

paid instead 

of collecting

93,139 None It is an income that is paid instead of collecting, 

including the cost of uniform shirts, service fees, 

cost of Kovic disinfectant.

222,988 None It is an expense paid instead of collecting such as 

marine insurance.

Dividend 

income

93,249,254  -  Dividend received from subsidiaries Since the 

subsidiary has announced a dividend payment in 

March 2022 in the amount of 3,810,042 Singapore 

dollars. Dividends are due in March/Jul and Nov, 

received in March 2022 in the amount of SGD 

1,500,000 / in July 2022 in the amount of 

1,200,000. Singapore dollars and in September 

2022 in the amount of 62,464.07 Singapore dollars 

and in October 2022 in the amount of 52,242.56 

Singapore dollars and in November 2022 in the 

amount of 995,335.37 Singapore dollars
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

WICE Supply Chain 

Solutions Co.,Ltd.

A subsidiary

(99.99 percent 

held by WICE)

Revenue from 

services/trade 

accounts 

receivable

5,643,777 1,156,712 The Company provides customs transport and sea 

freight management services to its subsidiaries as it 

has a service agency located in Laem Chabang.

Therefore, it is convenient to manage charged fees 

using the cost plus pricing method.
Cost of 

service/trade 

accounts 

payable

14,898,304 13,387,449

Revenue from 

management 

of financial 

accounting/

other 

receivables

720,000  -  Service income for management of financial and 

accounting systems in order to work efficiently The 

fee for financial and accounting management is 

charged at the rate of 60,000 baht per month for 

the period from  January 1, 2022 -  December 31, 

2022 using the Allocation Cost method.

Dividend 

income

8,821,386  -  Dividend received from subsidiaries Since the 

subsidiary announced dividend payment in March 

2022 and paid all in March 2022.

Loans 

Earned 

interest / 

accrued 

interest 

receivables

20,000,000

374,566

8,888,888

-

WICE Supply Chain Solutions Co., Ltd. borrowed 

money from WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited for warehouse expansion. The loan period 

starts from April 20, 2021 to April 30, 2024. The 

interest rate is 3.00 percent, referring to the interest 

rate. Company’s cost of borrowing 2.62 %

10,000,000

225,000

7,222,222

-

WICE Supply Chain Solution Company Limited 

borrowed money from WICE  Logistics Public 

Company Limited to purchase equipment for 

warehouse expansion. The loan period starts from 

February 23, 2022 to February 28, 2025. The 

interest rate is 3.00 percent, referring to the interest 

rate. Cost of borrowing of the company 2.62 %

capital 

increase of 

common 

shares / 

share payable

66,496,000 33,248,000 The company paid a 50% capital increase on March 

16, 2022.
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

WICE Logistics 

(Hong Kong) Co.,Ltd.

It is a 

subsidiary  

(80 percent 

held by WICE) 

 

Revenue from 

services/trade 

accounts 

receivable

6,402,638 411,614 WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) is one of the 

Company’s foreign agents that serves as liaison       

to provide services in foreign countries that they 

oversee with a service charge using the cost plus 

pricing method, acting in coordination to provide 

services in Thailand. This will have a service charge 

between each other and it is considered as income 

from the Company’s services. WICE Logistics  

(Hong Kong) has entered into an Agency Agreement

Cost of 

service/trade 

accounts 

payable

78,663,087 5,331,145

Dividend 

income

72,430,883 - Dividend received from subsidiaries Since the 

subsidiary has announced a dividend payment         

in March 2022 in the amount of HK$ 21,483,154,  

which is 80% of the company’s dividend income, 

equal to HK$ 17,186,523 and the dividend payment 

is scheduled in June/Aug/Oct. and Dec. 2022,          

in June 2022 received a payment of HK$ 4,296,630 / 

in July 2022 received a payment of HK$ 1,660,495 /  

in August 2022 received a payment of 2,636,135 

Hong Kong/in September received 888,931 HKD/       

in October received HKD 1,487,836/in November 

received HKD 3,296,336 and in December Received 

2,920,161 Hong Kong dollars
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

Euroasia Total 

Logistics Public 

Company Limited

This is a 

subsidiary 

(with 51 

percent of 

shares held 

by WICE, in 

which WICE 

purchased 

additional 

ordinary 

shares from 

40 percent to 

51 percent in 

September 

2021.)

Revenue from 

services/trade 

accounts 

receivable

93,783 - Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited is 

one of the representatives of the company. Acting in 

coordination to provide services Service fees are 

charged by using the Cost Plus Pricing method. 

Euroasia Total Logistics Co., Ltd. has entered into  

an Agency Agreement.Cost of 

service/trade 

accounts 

payable

45,094,300 9,028,143

Income 

from IT HR 

management/

other 

receivables

720,000 None Service income for managing IT work systems and 

personnel management salary preparation in order 

to work efficiently The service fee is charged at the 

rate of 60,000 baht per month using the Allocation 

Cost method, period from January 1, 2022 - 

December 31, 2022.

Revenue from 

internal audit 

services/other 

receivables

720,000 None Service income for management of the internal 

audit system in order to work efficiently The service 

fee is charged at the rate of 60,000 baht per month 

using the Allocation Cost method, period from 

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022.

Guarantee 

contract fee/

guaranteed 

burden on 

credit limit

1,400,000 None Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited 

borrowed money from Kasikorn Bank by Wise 

Logistics Public Company Limited as a credit 

guarantor in the amount of 70,000,000 baht.          

The loan period is 5 years. On March 7, 2019,        

by Wise Logistics Public Company Limited,             

a contract guarantee fee of 2% from the loan 

amount must be paid every year for a guarantee  

of 1,400,000 baht per year.

200,000 None Euroasia Total Logistics Co., Ltd. borrows money 

from Kasikorn Bank, with Wise Logistics Public 

Company Limited as a guarantor in the amount of 

10,000,000 baht, a loan period of 3 years, contract 

date July 22, 2020 by Wise Logistics Public 

Company Limited, charge a contract guarantee       

fee of 2% from the loan amount, having to pay         

a guarantee fee every year, amounting to 200,000 

baht per year.
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

Guarantee 

contract fee/

guaranteed 

burden on 

credit limit

600,000 None Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited borrowed money from Kasikorn Bank, 

with Wise Logistics Public Company Limited as 

a credit guarantor in the amount of 30,000,000 

baht, a loan period of 5 years, entering into a 

contract. On January 22, 2021, by Wise 

Logistics Public Company Limited, a contract 

guarantee fee of 2% from the loan amount must 

be paid every year for a guarantee of 600,000 

baht per year.

Loans 

Earned 

interest / 

accrued 

interest 

receivables

5,000,000

100,000

69,444 Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited 

borrowed money from Wise Logistics Public 

Company Limited to be used as working capital in 

the company. The loan period starts from August 

1, 2019 to January 31, 2023. The interest rate is 

4.00 percent, referring to the agreed interest rate 

in the group, which uses the same interest rate in 

all countries. 

5,000,000           

116,667

81,019 Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited borrowed money from Wise Logistics 

Public Company Limited to be used as working 

capital in the company. The loan period starts 

from August 9, 2019 to January 31, 2023.       

The interest rate is 4.00 percent, referring to  

the agreed interest rate among the group,  

which uses the same interest rate in all 

countries.
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Persons/Juristic 
Persons with 

Possible Conflicts
Relationship

Item                     
Characteristics

Transaction 
Value 
(Baht)

Outstanding 
Balance
(Baht)

Executives’ Statement on Necessity                              
and ReasonablenessYear Ended

As of December          
31, 2022

Euroasia Transport 

Co.,Ltd.

It is a 

subsidiary 

of Euroasia 

Total Logistics 

Company 

Limited (with 

100 percent 

holding of 

shares)

 

Revenue from 

services/trade 

accounts 

receivable

36,000 - Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited 

is one of the representatives of the company. 

Acting in coordination to provide services Service 

fees are charged by using the Cost Plus Pricing 

method. Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited has entered into an Agency Agreement.

Cost of 

service/trade 

accounts 

payable

- -

Income 

from IT HR 

management/

other  

receivables

720,000 None Service income for managing IT work systems 

and personnel management salary preparation 

in order to work efficiently The service fee is 

charged at the rate of 60,000 baht per month 

using the Allocation Cost method, period from 

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022.

Loans 

Earned 

interest / 

accrued 

interest 

receivables

1,400,000 None Euroasia Transport Co., Ltd. borrows money 

from Kasikorn Bank, with Wise Logistics Public 

Company Limited as a credit guarantor in the 

amount of 70,000,000 baht, a loan period of    

5 years, contract dated September 29, 2021  

by Wise Lo. Logistics Public Company Limited 

charges a contract guarantee fee of 2% from 

the loan amount, having to pay a guarantee  

fee every year, amounting to 1,400,000 baht 

per year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Shareholders of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited  

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of WICE Logistics Public 

Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of 

financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the related consolidated statements of income, 

comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of WICE Logistics Public Company 

Limited for the same period. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and                        of 

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2022, their financial performance and 

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the Federation 

of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are relevant to my 

audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance 

in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in           

the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, 

and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of          the 

Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters.             Accordingly, 
my audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, 

including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit 

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole. 

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below. 

Revenue recognition 

Since the revenue from service is the most significant amount in the income statement and is also 

the key indicator of business performance. In addition, the Group has services with a number of 

customers and there are a variety of commercial term. I have therefore focused on the audit of  the 

actually occurring and timing of revenue recognition.   

I have examined the revenue recognition of the Group by  

• Assessing and testing the Company’s internal controls with respect to the revenue cycle by 

making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of the controls and 

selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls. 

• Applying a sampling method to select service income transactions during the year to assess 

whether revenue recognition was consistent with the services conditions, and in compliance 

with the Company’s policy.  

• On a sampling basis, examining supporting documents for actual sales transactions occurring 

near the end of the accounting period.  

• Reviewing credit notes issued after the period-end.  

• Performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible irregularities in 

sales transactions throughout the period, particularly for accounting entries made through 

journal vouchers. 
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Goodwill and customer relationship 

I have focused my audit on the consideration of the impairment of goodwill and customer 

relationship which acquired in a business combination, as discussed in Notes 16 and 17 to           the 

consolidated financial statements, because the assessment of impairment is a significant 

accounting estimate requiring management to exercise a high degree of judgment in identifying the 

cash generating units, estimating the cash inflows that are expected to be generated from that 

group of assets in the future, and setting an appropriate discount rate and long-term growth rate. 

There are thus risks with respect to the amount of goodwill and customer relationship.  

I assessed the identification of cash generating units and the financial models selected by 

management by gaining an understanding of management’s decision-making process and 

assessing whether the decisions made were consistent with how assets are utilised. In addition,            
I tested the significant assumptions applied by management in preparing estimates of the cash 

flows expected to be realised from the assets, by comparing those assumptions with information 

from both internal and external sources and comparing past cash flow projections to actual 

operating results in order to evaluate the exercise of management judgement in estimating the cash 

flow projections. I also evaluated the discount rate applied by management through analysis of the 

moving average finance costs of the Company and of the industry, tested the calculation of the 

realisable values of the assets using the selected financial model and considered the impact of 

changes in key assumptions on those realisable values, especially changes in the discount rate 

and long-term revenue growth rate. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the 

information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements 

and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available 

to me after the date of this auditor’s report. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

When I read the annual report of the Group, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction 

of the misstatement. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 

process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as             a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, I exercise professional 

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 

to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 

or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements. I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 

audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that I identify during my audit. 

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 

of such communication. 

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report. 

Pimjai Manitkajohnkit 

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4521 

 

EY Office Limited 

Bangkok: 21 February 2023  
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022 

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 852,468,251       428,548,390      446,437,622      126,342,779       

Trade and other receivables 6, 8 1,069,396,997    1,667,005,444   345,150,351      631,427,838       

Current portion of long-term loan to related party 6 -                         1,420,811          10,150,463        8,472,223           

Other current financial assets 9 353,220,632       410,671,910      338,631,422      395,807,809       

Other current assets 64,105,003         64,371,396        18,012,306        20,293,675         

Total current assets 2,339,190,883    2,572,017,951   1,158,382,164   1,182,344,324    

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits 10 2,882,085           2,873,433          2,000,000          2,000,000           

Long-term loan to related party - net of current portion 6 -                         -                         6,111,111          9,039,352           

Long-term loan to unrelated party 11 25,000,000         -                         25,000,000        -                          

Investments in subsidiaries 12 -                         -                         812,581,584      673,590,383       

Investment in associate 13 1,397,634           799,150             -                         -                          

Property, building and equipment 14 334,941,786       350,387,268      108,887,557      104,426,118       

Right-of-use assets 15 167,493,255       99,752,606        30,594,454        29,324,435         

Goodwill 16 225,496,442       139,842,134      -                         -                          

An excess of business purchase price over

   the fair value of assets 2.4                               - 85,862,205        -                         -                          

Intangible assets 17 223,253,038       236,672,170      3,351,027          4,469,675           

Deferred tax assets 25 2,896,798           692,403             1,956,679          6,053,363           

Other non-current assets 9,824,180           6,544,898          1,561,345          1,982,496           

Total non-current assets 993,185,218       923,426,267      992,043,757      830,885,822       

Total assets 3,332,376,101    3,495,444,218   2,150,425,921   2,013,230,146    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Statement of financial position
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2022

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 167



WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions 18 49,664,000         7,875,975          -                         -                          

Trade and other payables 6, 19 813,425,923       1,280,219,224   240,943,049      422,175,486       

Current portion of long-term loan from 

   related person 6 326,622              2,170,387          -                         -                          

Current portion of long-term loans from banks 20 82,001,596         81,890,180        45,012,000        45,012,000         

Payable for purchase of investment in a subsidiary 12 -                         68,785,606        33,248,000        68,785,606         

Current portion of lease liabilities 15 59,065,545         30,135,083        5,370,190          1,323,039           

Payable for business acquisition 2.4 49,970,650         -                         -                         -                          

Income tax payable 91,795,621         101,367,555      48,080,437        65,992,776         

Other current financial liabilities 32.1 41,862                127,378             41,862               127,378              

Other current liabilities 26,528,180         51,996,390        21,492,621        37,747,866         

Total current liabilities 1,172,819,999    1,624,567,778   394,188,159      641,164,151       

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans from banks - net of current portion 20 119,155,659       201,157,254      47,883,000        92,895,000         

Long-term loan from related person - net of current portion 6 -                         167,338             -                         -                          

Lease liabilities - net of current portion 15 100,772,004       59,327,685        23,762,608        17,296,052         

Payable for business acquisition 2.4 -                         47,459,978        -                         -                          

Provision for long-term employee benefits 21 31,602,202         27,534,551        26,687,123        24,135,878         

Deferred tax liabilities 25 33,937,545         33,150,582        -                         -                          

Other non-current liabilities 2,448,000           -                         -                         -                          

Total non-current liabilities 287,915,410       368,797,388      98,332,731        134,326,930       

Total liabilities 1,460,735,409    1,993,365,166   492,520,890      775,491,081       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Statement of financial position (Continued)
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Shareholders' equity

Share capital

   Registered

      651,899,500 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each 325,949,750       325,949,750      325,949,750      325,949,750       

   Issued and fully paid

      651,899,500 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each 325,949,750       325,949,750      325,949,750      325,949,750       

Share premium 347,778,911       347,778,911      347,778,911      347,778,911       

Surplus on business combination under common control 5,597,942           5,597,942          -                         -                          

Deficit on change in percentage of shareholding

   in subsidiaries (131,669,989)     (90,076,339)       -                         -                          

Retained earnings 

   Appropriated - statutory reserve 22 32,594,975         32,594,975        32,594,975        32,594,975         

   Unappropriated 1,084,201,939    680,059,745      951,581,395      531,415,429       

Other components of shareholders' equity (25,032,275)       (4,156,121)         -                         -                          

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,639,421,253    1,297,748,863   1,657,905,031   1,237,739,065    

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 12.2 232,219,439       204,330,189      -                         -                          

Total shareholders' equity 1,871,640,692    1,502,079,052   1,657,905,031   1,237,739,065    

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,332,376,101    3,495,444,218   2,150,425,921   2,013,230,146    

-                         -                         -                         -                          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Statement of financial position (Continued)
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Profit or loss:

Revenues

Service income 6 7,102,504,377   7,636,601,859   3,464,937,090   3,443,402,570    

Dividend income 6, 12 -                         -                         200,826,848      150,306,390       

Gain on measurement of derivatives 85,517               -                         85,517               -                          

Gain on sale and changes in value of 

    investments in debentures 1,668,457          1,462,407          1,668,457          1,423,182           

Other income 32,461,885        32,672,536        28,597,812        35,331,878         

Total revenues 7,136,720,236   7,670,736,802   3,696,115,724   3,630,464,020    

Expenses

Cost of services 6 5,836,431,565   6,393,324,002   2,820,742,952   2,844,286,077    

Selling expenses 135,945,919      115,785,634      109,017,174      96,905,784         

Administrative expenses 390,845,508      379,007,180      95,547,686        109,609,762       

Loss on measurement of derivatives -                         88,398               -                         88,398                

Total expenses 6,363,222,992   6,888,205,214   3,025,307,812   3,050,890,021    

Operating profit 773,497,244      782,531,588      670,807,912      579,573,999       

Share of profit from investment in an associate 13 617,888             656,096             -                         -                          

Financial income 2,956,175          391,325             2,042,029          675,342              

Finance cost 23 (23,173,348)       (15,306,071)       (5,477,251)         (5,931,937)          

Profit before income tax expense 753,897,959      768,272,938      667,372,690      574,317,404       

Income tax expense 25 (158,634,604)     (147,484,949)     (97,291,850)       (87,703,434)        

Profit for the year 595,263,355      620,787,989      570,080,840      486,613,970       

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 554,057,068      535,526,078      570,080,840      486,613,970       

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 12.2 41,206,287        85,261,911        

595,263,355      620,787,989      

Earnings per share 26

Basic earnings per share

   Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.85                   0.82                   0.87                   0.75                    

   Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 651,899,500      651,899,500      651,899,500      651,899,500       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Income statement
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Profit for the year 595,263,355      620,787,989      570,080,840      486,613,970       

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified 

   to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Exchange differences on translation of 

   financial statements in foreign currency (20,026,136)       18,908,236        -                         -                          

Share of other comprehensive income from

   investment in an associate 13 (19,404)              42,308               -                         -                          

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified

   to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax (20,045,540)       18,950,544        -                         -                          

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified 

   to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Actuarial loss -                         (3,767,146)         -                         (3,135,580)          

Less: Income tax effect 25 -                         685,859             -                         627,113              

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

   to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax -                         (3,081,287)         -                         (2,508,467)          

Other comprehensive income for the year (20,045,540)       15,869,257        -                         (2,508,467)          

Total comprehensive income for the  year 575,217,815      636,657,246      570,080,840      484,105,503       

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 533,180,914      550,589,700      570,080,840      484,105,503       

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 42,036,901        86,067,546        

575,217,815      636,657,246      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2022

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 171



W
IC

E 
Lo

gi
st

ic
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

om
pa

ny
 L

im
ite

d 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s

St
at

em
en

t o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s'
 e

qu
ity

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2

(U
ni

t: 
Ba

ht
)

Ex
ch

an
ge

 

Su
rp

lu
s 

(d
ef

ic
it)

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 o

n
Sh

ar
e 

of
 lo

ss
 o

n

 o
n 

ch
an

ge
tra

ns
la

tio
n 

of
 

 o
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

To
ta

l o
th

er
To

ta
l e

qu
ity

Eq
ui

ty
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le

Is
su

ed
 a

nd
Su

rp
lu

s 
on

 b
us

in
es

s
in

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
fin

an
ci

al
 in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e
to

 n
on

-c
on

tro
lli

ng

fu
lly

 p
ai

d
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
un

de
r

sh
ar

eh
ol

di
ng

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
d 

-
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

'
to

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f

in
te

re
st

s 
of

To
ta

l

N
ot

e
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l

Sh
ar

e 
pr

em
iu

m
co

m
m

on
 c

on
tro

l
in

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
se

rv
e

U
na

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

 fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 
an

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
eq

ui
ty

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

th
e 

su
bs

id
ia

rie
s

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

' e
qu

ity

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

1
32

5,
94

9,
75

0
   

   
   

34
7,

77
8,

91
1

   
   

   
5,

59
7,

94
2

   
   

   
   

 
(5

1,
41

7,
64

1)
   

   
   

 
32

,5
94

,9
75

   
   

   
  

23
8,

84
1,

18
0

   
   

   
(2

2,
28

9,
27

7)
   

   
   

   
(1

1,
75

3)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
2,

30
1,

03
0)

   
   

   
 

87
7,

04
4,

08
7

   
   

   
98

,5
59

,8
17

   
   

   
  

97
5,

60
3,

90
4

   
   

   
   

Pr
of

it 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
5,

52
6,

07
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

5,
52

6,
07

8
   

   
   

85
,2

61
,9

11
   

   
   

  
62

0,
78

7,
98

9
   

   
   

   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,0
81

,2
87

)
   

   
   

   
18

,1
02

,6
01

   
   

   
   

  
42

,3
08

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,1

44
,9

09
   

   
   

  
15

,0
63

,6
22

   
   

   
  

80
5,

63
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,8

69
,2

57
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
2,

44
4,

79
1

   
   

   
18

,1
02

,6
01

   
   

   
   

  
42

,3
08

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,1

44
,9

09
   

   
   

  
55

0,
58

9,
70

0
   

   
   

86
,0

67
,5

46
   

   
   

  
63

6,
65

7,
24

6
   

   
   

   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d

12
.2

, 2
9

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

1,
22

6,
22

6)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

1,
22

6,
22

6)
   

   
   

 
(1

8,
14

3,
92

4)
   

   
   

 
(1

09
,3

70
,1

50
)

   
   

   
  

D
ef

lic
t f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
in

   
in

te
re

st
 in

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y

12
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
8,

65
8,

69
8)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
8,

65
8,

69
8)

   
   

   
 

36
,1

48
,7

18
   

   
   

  
(2

,5
09

,9
80

)
   

   
   

   
   

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

ha
re

 c
ap

ita
l o

f s
ub

si
di

ar
y

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

69
8,

03
2

   
   

   
   

 
1,

69
8,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

32
5,

94
9,

75
0

   
   

   
34

7,
77

8,
91

1
   

   
   

5,
59

7,
94

2
   

   
   

   
 

(9
0,

07
6,

33
9)

   
   

   
 

32
,5

94
,9

75
   

   
   

  
68

0,
05

9,
74

5
   

   
   

(4
,1

86
,6

76
)

   
   

   
   

  
30

,5
55

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
,1

56
,1

21
)

   
   

   
   

1,
29

7,
74

8,
86

3
   

   
20

4,
33

0,
18

9
   

   
   

1,
50

2,
07

9,
05

2
   

   
   

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

2
32

5,
94

9,
75

0
   

   
   

34
7,

77
8,

91
1

   
   

   
5,

59
7,

94
2

   
   

   
   

 
(9

0,
07

6,
33

9)
   

   
   

 
32

,5
94

,9
75

   
   

   
  

68
0,

05
9,

74
5

   
   

   
(4

,1
86

,6
76

)
   

   
   

   
  

30
,5

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,1
56

,1
21

)
   

   
   

   
1,

29
7,

74
8,

86
3

   
   

20
4,

33
0,

18
9

   
   

   
1,

50
2,

07
9,

05
2

   
   

   

Pr
of

it 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
4,

05
7,

06
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

4,
05

7,
06

8
   

   
   

41
,2

06
,2

87
   

   
   

  
59

5,
26

3,
35

5
   

   
   

   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
0,

85
6,

75
0)

   
   

   
   

(1
9,

40
4)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

0,
87

6,
15

4)
   

   
   

 
(2

0,
87

6,
15

4)
   

   
   

 
83

0,
61

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

0,
04

5,
54

0)
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
4,

05
7,

06
8

   
   

   
(2

0,
85

6,
75

0)
   

   
   

   
(1

9,
40

4)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
0,

87
6,

15
4)

   
   

   
 

53
3,

18
0,

91
4

   
   

   
42

,0
36

,9
01

   
   

   
  

57
5,

21
7,

81
5

   
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d

12
.2

, 2
9

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

49
,9

14
,8

74
)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

49
,9

14
,8

74
)

   
   

  
(1

8,
10

7,
72

1)
   

   
   

 
(1

68
,0

22
,5

95
)

   
   

   
  

D
ef

lic
t f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
in

   
in

te
re

st
 in

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

1,
59

3,
65

0)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

1,
59

3,
65

0)
   

   
   

 
1,

14
3,

55
6

   
   

   
   

 
(4

0,
45

0,
09

4)
   

   
   

   
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

ha
re

 c
ap

ita
l o

f s
ub

si
di

ar
y

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

81
6,

51
4

   
   

   
   

 
2,

81
6,

51
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2

32
5,

94
9,

75
0

   
   

   
34

7,
77

8,
91

1
   

   
   

5,
59

7,
94

2
   

   
   

   
 

(1
31

,6
69

,9
89

)
   

   
  

32
,5

94
,9

75
   

   
   

  
1,

08
4,

20
1,

93
9

   
   

(2
5,

04
3,

42
6)

   
   

   
   

11
,1

51
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

5,
03

2,
27

5)
   

   
   

 
1,

63
9,

42
1,

25
3

   
   

23
2,

21
9,

43
9

   
   

   
1,

87
1,

64
0,

69
2

   
   

   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

Eq
ui

ty
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pa

ny

R
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 

O
th

er
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s'
 e

qu
ity

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e

St
at

em
en

t o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s’
 e

qu
ity

W
IC

E 
Lo

gi
st

ic
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

om
pa

ny
 L

im
ite

d 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

2

Form 56-1 One Report 2565172



Business Operations and
Performance

Corporate 
Governance

Certification of
Information AttachmentFinancial 

Report

W
IC

E 
Lo

gi
st

ic
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

om
pa

ny
 L

im
ite

d 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s

St
at

em
en

t o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s'
 e

qu
ity

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2

(U
ni

t: 
B

ah
t)

Is
su

ed
 a

nd
To

ta
l

fu
lly

 p
ai

d
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

-
sh

ar
eh

ol
de

rs
'

N
ot

e
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l

S
ha

re
 p

re
m

iu
m

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

se
rv

e
U

na
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

d
eq

ui
ty

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

1
32

5,
94

9,
75

0
   

   
   

34
7,

77
8,

91
1

   
   

   
32

,5
94

,9
75

   
   

   
  

13
8,

53
6,

15
2

   
   

   
84

4,
85

9,
78

8
   

   
   

P
ro

fit
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
6,

61
3,

97
0

   
   

   
48

6,
61

3,
97

0
   

   
   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,5
08

,4
67

)
   

   
   

   
(2

,5
08

,4
67

)
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
4,

10
5,

50
3

   
   

   
48

4,
10

5,
50

3
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d

29
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(9
1,

22
6,

22
6)

   
   

   
 

(9
1,

22
6,

22
6)

   
   

   
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

32
5,

94
9,

75
0

   
   

   
34

7,
77

8,
91

1
   

   
   

32
,5

94
,9

75
   

   
   

  
53

1,
41

5,
42

9
   

   
   

1,
23

7,
73

9,
06

5
   

   

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

2
32

5,
94

9,
75

0
   

   
   

34
7,

77
8,

91
1

   
   

   
32

,5
94

,9
75

   
   

   
  

53
1,

41
5,

42
9

   
   

   
1,

23
7,

73
9,

06
5

   
   

P
ro

fit
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
0,

08
0,

84
0

   
   

   
57

0,
08

0,
84

0
   

   
   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
0,

08
0,

84
0

   
   

   
57

0,
08

0,
84

0
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d

29
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
49

,9
14

,8
74

)
   

   
  

(1
49

,9
14

,8
74

)
   

   
  

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2

32
5,

94
9,

75
0

   
   

   
34

7,
77

8,
91

1
   

   
   

32
,5

94
,9

75
   

   
   

  
95

1,
58

1,
39

5
   

   
   

1,
65

7,
90

5,
03

1
   

   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

Se
pa

ra
te

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

R
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 

St
at

em
en

t o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s’
 e

qu
ity

W
IC

E 
Lo

gi
st

ic
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

om
pa

ny
 L

im
ite

d 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

2

WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 173



WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flows statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 753,897,959         768,272,938         667,372,690         574,317,404         

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to 

   net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

   Depreciation and amortisation 109,221,368         72,971,511          16,372,114          15,983,249          

   Loss on expected credit losses (reversal) (18,904,960)         28,744,793          20,254                 703,492               

   Loss (gain) on disposal and write-off equipment 10,054,411          3,212,511            3,504,735            (999,999)              

   Gain on write-off right-of-use (36,505)                -                           -                           -                           

   Gain from sale of other current financial assets (1,469,363)           (1,069,141)           (1,469,363)           (1,089,526)           

   Increase in fair value of other current financial assets (199,094)              (341,400)              (199,094)              (333,655)              

   Share of profit from investment in an associate (617,888)              (656,096)              -                           -                           

   Long-term employee benefits expense 4,614,231            4,108,891            3,054,671            3,670,552            

   Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange (2,789,077)           14,239,520          (1,533,471)           3,208,251            

   Loss (gain) on measurement of derivative (85,516)                88,398                 (85,516)                88,398                 

   Additional cost arising from acquisition of 

      investment in subsidiary -                           17,196,404          -                           17,196,403          

   Finance income (2,956,175)           (391,325)              (2,042,029)           (675,342)              

   Dividend income -                           -                           (200,826,848)       (150,306,390)       

   Finance cost 23,173,348          15,306,071          5,477,251            5,931,937            

Profit from operating activities before  

   changes in operating assets and liabilities 873,902,739         921,683,075         489,645,394         467,694,774         

Operating assets (increase) decrease

   Trade and other receivables 617,006,462         (750,867,275)       270,763,223         (430,036,700)       

   Other current financial assets 267,458               (4,125,506)           (7,433)                  (116,642)              

   Other current assets 364,537               (23,656,792)         2,379,513            (4,176,905)           

   Other non-current assets (3,279,282)           (5,149,963)           421,151               (1,675,151)           

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)

   Trade and other payables (462,176,543)       542,764,402         (176,117,317)       342,776,106         

   Other current liabilities (20,553,680)         34,855,032          (16,281,982)         24,114,143          

   Other non-current liabilities 2,448,000            (84,495)                -                           -                           

Cash flows from operating activities 1,007,979,691      715,418,478         570,802,549         398,579,625         

   Cash paid for corporate income tax (169,623,970)       (93,112,075)         (111,107,505)       (29,693,326)         

   Cash paid for provision for employee benefits (503,426)              (845,000)              (503,426)              (845,000)              

Net cash flows from operating activities 837,852,295         621,461,403         459,191,618         368,041,299         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Cash flows statement
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Cash flows statement (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease (increase) in restricted bank deposits (8,652)                  105,142               -                           100,000               

Increase in long-term loan to related parties -                           -                           (10,000,000)         (20,000,000)         

Increase in long-term loan to unrelated party (25,000,000)         -                           (25,000,000)         -                           

Cash received from long-term loans to related parties 1,430,563            1,015,466            11,250,001          6,249,999            

Acquisitions of equipment (38,888,529)         (63,546,739)         (8,138,179)           (5,206,077)           

Cash paid for business acquiaition -                           (150,000,000)       -                           -                           

Acquisitions of intangible assets (2,721,522)           (1,406,202)           (859,665)              (80,000)                

Acquisitions of right-of-use assets -                           (677,490)              -                           -                           

Proceeds from sales of equipment 7,930,227            999,999               700,935               999,999               

Cash paid for acquisitions of investment in subsidiaries (106,313,673)       (4,208,012)           (171,517,007)       (126,215,933)       

Cash paid for purchases of debentures (1,032,132,651)    (721,000,000)       (1,032,132,651)    (721,000,000)       

Cash received from sales of investment in debentures 1,090,984,927      460,564,939         1,090,984,927      455,559,330         

Cash received from interest income 3,380,151            391,325               1,948,084            671,142               

Cash received from dividend income -                           -                           213,934,629         132,162,466         

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (101,339,159)       (477,761,572)       71,171,074          (276,759,074)       

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from short-term loans from bank 49,664,000          37,448,188          -                           -                           

Repayments on short-term loans from bank (7,449,600)           (42,582,584)         -                           -                           

Cash received from long-term loans from banks -                           200,000,000         -                           100,000,000         

Repayments on long-term loans from banks (81,924,000)         (49,300,000)         (45,012,000)         (28,340,000)         

Repayments on long-term loans from related paries (2,234,452)           (1,774,539)           -                           -                           

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (60,440,687)         (23,560,576)         (7,634,262)           (4,935,630)           

Interest paid (17,873,294)         (11,509,679)         (7,733,450)           (2,394,205)           

Dividends paid (172,937,125)       (104,416,155)       (149,888,137)       (91,213,496)         

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (293,195,158)       4,304,655            (210,267,849)       (26,883,331)         

Increase (decrease) in translation adjustments (19,398,117)         17,209,936          -                           -                           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 423,919,861         165,214,422         320,094,843         64,398,894          

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 428,548,390         263,333,968         126,342,779         61,943,885          

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7) 852,468,251         428,548,390         446,437,622         126,342,779         

-                           -                           -                           -                           

Supplemental cash flows information

Non-cash items:

   Payables for purchase of equipment 1,271,419            1,285,006            85,386                 1,285,006            

   Increase in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 127,239,667         82,213,893          17,392,369          -                           

   Dividend receivable - subsidiary -                           -                           6,657,288            19,765,069          

   Dividend payables 331,740               5,246,270            331,740               305,003               

   Payables for finance cost 2,510,672            3,011,799            -                           3,011,799            

   Payable for business acquisition 49,970,650          47,459,978          -                           -                           

   Payable for increase in share capital in subsidiary -                           -                           33,248,000          -                           

   Receivable for increase in share capital in subsidiary 2,816,514            -                           -                           -                           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Cash flows statement (Continued)
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries 
Notes to consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2022  

1. General information 

 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated 

and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in an international air and sea 

freight forwarding, customs broker, inland transportation, cross-border transport, multimodal 

transport operator, warehousing service and all freight related services for imports and 

exports. The registered office of the Company is at 88/8 Nonsee Road, Chong-nonsee, 

Yannawa, Bangkok. 

2. Basis of preparation 

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting 

Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation 

has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of 

Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543. 

  The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the 

Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai 

language financial statements. 

  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where 

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies. 

2.2 Basis of consolidation  

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of WICE 
Logistics Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary 
companies (“the subsidiaries”) (collectively as “the Group”): 

Subsidiaries Nature of business 
Country of 

incorporation 
Percentage of 
shareholding 

   2022 2021 

   (%) (%) 
WICE Suppy Chain 

Solutions Company 
Limited      

Warehouse storage 
services  

Thailand 99.99 99.99 

Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company Limited 
(Formerly known as 
“Euroasia Total Logistics 
Company Limited”) 

Cross-Border Transport 
Service 

Thailand 51.00 51.00 

  

Notes to consolidated financial statements
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Subsidiaries Nature of business 
Country of 

incorporation 
Percentage of 
shareholding 

   2022 2021 

   (%) (%) 
Euroasia Transport 

Company Limited 
(100% held by Euroasia 
Total Logistics Public 
Company Limited) 

Inland transportation 
service 

Thailand 100.00 100.00 

WICE Logistics 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 

Freight forwarder and all 
freight related services 
for imports and exports 

Singapore 100.00 100.00 

WICE Logistics (Malaysia) 
Sdn Bhd. (70% held by 
WICE Logistics 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.) 

Freight forwarder and all 
freight related services 
for imports and exports 

Malaysia 70.00 70.00 

WICE Logistics (Hong 
Kong) Limited  

Freight forwarder and all 
freight related services 
for imports and exports 

Hong Kong 80.00 80.00 

WICE Logistics (Guang 
Zhou) Limited (Formerly 
known as “Guangzhou 
WICE Logistics Limited”) 
(100% held by WICE 
Logistics (Hong Kong) 
Limited) 

Freight forwarder and all 
freight related services 
for imports and exports 

China 100.00 100.00 

WICE Logistics 
(Shenzhen) Limited 
(70% held by WICE 
Logistics (Hong Kong) 
Limited) 

Freight forwarder and all 
freight related services 
for imports and exports 

China 70.00 70.00 

Euroasia Total Logistics 
(M) Sdn Bhd.(*) 

 (2022: 49% held by 
Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company Limited 
and 12% held by major 
shareholder of Euroasia 
Total Logistics Public 
Company Limited 
(2021: 49% held by 
Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company Limited 
and 21% held by major 
shareholder of Euroasia 
Total Logistics Public 
Company Limited) 

Cross-Border Transport 
Services 

Malaysia 49.00 49.00 
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Subsidiaries Nature of business 
Country of 

incorporation 
Percentage of 
shareholding 

   2022 2021 

   (%) (%) 
Euroasia Integrated 

Logistics Services (M)  
Sdn Bhd. (100% held by 
Euroasia Total Logistics 
Public Company 
Limited) 

Cross-Border Transport 
Services 

Malaysia 100.00 100.00 

Euroasia Total Logistics 
(China) Co., Ltd. 
(Formerly known as 
“Guangxi Euroasia Total 
Logistics Co., Ltd.”) 
(100% held by Euroasia 
Total Logistics Public 
Company Limited) 

Cross-Border Transport 
Services 

China 100.00 100.00 

Euroasia Total Logistics 
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 
(Formerly known as 
“Euroasia Total 
Logistics (China) Co., 
Ltd.”) (100% held by 
Euroasia Total Logistics 
(China) Co., Ltd.)  

Cross-Border Transport 
Services 

China 100.00 100.00 

  (*) Under control of the Company 

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights, 

or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the 

ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns. 

c) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains 

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant 

accounting policies as the Company. 

e) The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies 

is translated to Baht using the exchange rate prevailing on the end of reporting period, 

and revenues and expenses translated using monthly average exchange rates. The 

resulting differences are shown under the caption of “Exchange differences on 

translation of financial statements in foreign currency” in the statements of changes in 

shareholders’ equity. 
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f) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the 

consolidated financial statements.  

g)  Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the 

subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the 

consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial 

position. 

2.3 The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries and associate under 

the cost method. 

2.4  Business acquisition 

        On 17 September 2021, the Board of Director’s Meeting of Euroasia Total Logistics Public 

Company Limited passed a resolution approving Euroasia Transport Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, 

to acquire a transportation services business including acquisitions of motor vehicles and 

equipment and transferring of employees from Cross Asia Border Logistics Co., Ltd., a 

company incorporated in Thailand, at an acquisition cost of Baht 200 million.  

 On 21 September 2021, the subsidiary entered into an asset purchase agreement with Cross 

Asia Boarder Logistics Co. Ltd., with a total consideration of Baht 200 million for which the 

subsidiary made the first payment of Baht 30 million on the execution date of the contract, 

with the second payment of Baht 120 million on ownership of vehicles and equipment 

transferred (on 1 October 2021), and the remaining will be determined based on actual 

performance of the business acquired operating results for the period from October 2021 to 

September 2022, but this amount will not more than Baht 50 million. As at the acquisition 

date, the subsidiary recorded the difference of the higher amount of the consideration than 

the fair value of assets in the consolidate statement of financial position under the caption 

“Excess of the business purchase price over the fair value of assets” 

 During the current year, the subsidiary has completed the process of assessing the fair value 

of the identification of assets acquired. The subsidiary recorded the fair value of the assets 

which were allocated by costs of the business acquisition and recorded the difference of the 

higher amount of the consideration than the fair value of acquired assets as goodwill in the 

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022. 
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 The fair value and carrying value of the assets acquired on the investment date were 

presented as follow: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Fair value 

Carrying 

value 

Assets   

Motor vehicles and equipment 110,807 86,343 

Intangible assets - transportation licenses 380 - 

Total assets 111,187 86,343 

 Detail of payment for business acquisition was present as follow: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

Consideration for business acquisition 196,841 

Less: Fair value of net assets from business acquisition (111,187) 

Goodwill 85,654 

  

Consideration for business acquisition 196,841 

Less: Payable for business acquisition (46,841) 

Net cash paid on the date of business acquisition 150,000 

 The subsidiary has recorded a payable for business acquisition which will be due for 

settlement in January 2023 as liabilities in the statement of financial position. Such amount 

was as follow. 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated financial statements 

 2022 2021 

Payable for business acquisition 46,841 46,841 

Add: Accumulated finance cost 3,130 619 

Total 49,971 47,460 

Finance cost for the year 2,511 619 
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3.  New financial reporting standards  

3.1  Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year 

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and 

interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These 

financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International 

Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying 

accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.  

 The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on 

the Group’s financial statements. 

3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023 

 The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting 

standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These 

financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International 

Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying 

accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards. 

 The management of the Group believes that adoption of these amendments will not have any 

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements. 

4. Significant accounting policies 

4.1 Revenue and expense recognition 

 Rendering of services 

 The freight forwording recognised and logistics services are upon completion of the service. 

 Cross - Border transport Services are recognised over time when services have been 

rendered taking into account the stage of completion, measuring based on comparison of 

actual costs incurred up to the end of the period and total anticipated costs to be incurred to 

completion. 

 The recognised revenue which is not yet due per the contracts amounts recognised are 

reclassified to “Trade and other receivables” when the Group’s right to consideration is 

unconditional such as upon completion of services and acceptance by the customer. 
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 Interest income  

 Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual 

basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, 

unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it is applied to the net 

carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss allowance).    

Finance cost  

 Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective 

interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.   

 Dividends 

 Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.   

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid 

investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal 

restrictions. 

4.3 Investments in subsidiaries and associate 

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the 

equity method.  

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the 

cost method less impairment loss (if any). 

4.4 Property, building and equipment/Depreciation 

 Land is stated at cost. Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any). 

 Depreciation of building and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the 

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:  

 Building, building improvements and yard 3 - 20 years 

 Furniture, fixtures and office equipment           5 - 25 years 

 Computers      3 - 5 years 

 Motor vehicles   5 - 15 years 

 Container and container equipment 5 - 10 years 
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Depreciation is included in determining income. No depreciation is provided on land and 

assets under installation. 

An item of property, building and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of 

an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

4.5 Intangible assets 

 Intangible assets acquired through business combination are initially recognised at their fair value 
on the date of business acquisition while intangible assets acquired in other cases are recognised 
at cost. Following the initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any). 

 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic 
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset 
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible 
assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged 
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the economic useful life as follows: 

               Useful lives 

 Customer relationship 10 and 25 years 
 Computer software 3 - 5 years 

4.6 Goodwill  

 Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business 

combination over the fair value of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net assets 

acquired exceeds the cost of business combination, the excess is immediately recognised as 

gain in profit or loss. 

 Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for 

impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 

impaired. 

 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is 

allocated to each of the Company’s cash generating units (or group of cash-generating units) 

that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company estimates 

the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to 

which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less 

than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses 

relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. 
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4.7 Leases 

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.      

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Group as a lessee 

The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of              

the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group recognises     

right-of-use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based 

on lease payments. 

Right-of-use assets 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated 

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of     
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct 

costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease 

less any lease incentives received. 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-

line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term. 

Land 9 and 15 years 

Buildings 2 - 20 years 

Equipment 5 years 

Motor vehicles 3 and 10 years 

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or the 

cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated 

useful life of the asset. 

Lease liabilities 

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over 

the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives 

receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 

to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments include the 

exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and 

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising 

an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
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recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment 

occurs. 

The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit in 

the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the 

amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 

lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if 

there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the 

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a 

lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. 

4.8 Related party transactions 

  Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by,           

the Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with           

the Company. 

  They also include associate, and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a 

voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key 

management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning and direction of 

the Company’s operations. 

4.9 Foreign currencies 

  The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the 

Company’s functional currency. Items of each entity included in the consolidated financial 

statements are measured using the functional currency of that entity. 

  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the 

date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 

translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.  

 Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income. 
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4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of the 
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Group also 
carries out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognised 
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information 
available, reflects the amount that the Group could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an 
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of 
disposal. 

 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  

4.11 Employee benefits 

 Short-term employee benefits 

  Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as 

expenses when incurred. 

 Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits 

 Defined contribution plans 

 The Group in Thailand and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is 

monthly contributed by employees and by the Group. The fund’s assets are held in a separate 

trust fund and the Group’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred. 

 Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits 

 The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees 

upon retirement under labor law and other employee benefit plans. The Group treats these 

severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the Group provides other 

long-term employee benefit plan, namely long service awards. 

 The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is 

determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, 

using the projected unit credit method.   

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in 

other comprehensive income. 
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 Actuarial gains and losses arising from other long-term benefits are recognised immediately 

in profit and loss. 

 Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan 

amendment or curtailment and the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs. 

4.12 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

4.13 Income tax  

 Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred 

tax. 

 Current tax 

 Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the 

taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation. 

 Deferred tax 

 Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax 

rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.  

 The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while it 

recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried 

forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which 

such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised. 

 At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax 

assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

 The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that 

are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.  

4.14 Financial instruments   

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial 

assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, 

trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the 

transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition. 
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Classification and measurement of financial assets 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value 

through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is 

driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 

cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.  

Financial assets at amortised cost  

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order 

to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate 

(“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair 

value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 

These financial assets include derivatives, security investments held for trading, equity 

investments which the Group has not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI and financial 

assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest. 

Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised as other income in profit or loss.  

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 

Except for derivative liabilities, at initial recognition the Group’s financial liabilities are 

recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 

or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

In determining amortised cost, the Group takes into account any fees or costs that are an 

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.  

Derecognition of financial instruments 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 

asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has transferred control of the 

asset. 
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 

is recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt 

instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual 

cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 

to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. 

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since 

initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are 

possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which 

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is 

required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime ECL). 

The Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when contractual 

payments are more than 30 days past due and considers a financial asset as credit impaired 

or default when contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the 

Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit risk and to 

be in default using other internal or external information, such as credit rating of issuers. 

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, 

the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based 

on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.  

ECLs are calculated based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-

looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering           

the contractual cash flows. 

 Offsetting of financial instruments  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the 

statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 

and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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4.15 Derivatives 

The Group uses derivatives, as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks.  

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is 

entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. The subsequent changes are 

recognised in profit or loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is 

positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.  

 Derivatives are presented as non-current assets or non-current liabilities if the remaining 

maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled 

within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities. 

4.16 Fair value measurement 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement 

date. The Group applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets 

and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting 

standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted 

market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation technique that 

are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable inputs 

related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value. 

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on 

categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows: 

Level 1 -  Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or 

liabilities  

Level 2 -  Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or 

indirectly 

Level 3 -  Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows  

 At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred 

between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the 

reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
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5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times 

requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that 

are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and 

disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and 

estimates are as follows: 

 Consolidation of subsidiary that the Company holds less than half of shares  

 The management of the Company determined that the Company has control over Euroasia 

Total Logistics Public Company Limited, even though the Company holds shares less than 

half of total shares. This is because the Company is a major shareholder and has the ability 

to direct the significant activities.  

 The management of the subsidiary determined that the subsidiary has control over Euroasia 

Total Logistics (M) Sdn. Bhd., even though it holds shares less than half of total shares. This 

is because the subsidiary is a major shareholder and has the ability to direct the significant 

activities.  

 As a result, these two companies are deemed to be subsidiaries of the Group and have to be 

included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which the Company and 

subsidiary assumed control. 

 Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables 

 In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables, the management 

needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection 

history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the forecast economic condition for groupings 

of various customer segments with similar credit risks. The Group’s historical credit loss 

experience and forecast economic conditions may also not be representative of whether a 

customer will actually default in the future. 

 Goodwill and intangible assets 

 The initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and intangible assets, and subsequent 

impairment testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by 

the asset or the cash-generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to 

calculate the present value of those cash flows. 
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 Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee 
benefits 

 The obligation under the defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefit plans 
are determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various 
assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff 
turnover rate. 

6. Related party transactions 

During the year, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties. Such 

transactions arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial 

terms and bases agreed upon between the Company, its subsidiaries and those related 

parties.  

The relationship between the Company and the related parties are summarised below. 

Name of related parties Relationship with the company 

WICE Suppy Chain Solutions Company Limited      Subsidiary 

Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited (Formerly 

known as “Euroasia Total Logistics Company Limited”) 
Subsidiary  

Euroasia Transport Company Limited Subsidiary 

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary 

WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd. Subsidiary 

WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited  Subsidiary 

WICE Logistics (Guang Zhou) Limited (Formerly known as 

“Guangzhou WICE Logistics Limited”) (100% held by WICE 

Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited) 

Subsidiary 

WICE Logistics (Shenzhen) Limited Subsidiary 

Euroasia Total Logistics (M) Sdn. Bhd.                            Subsidiary  

Euroasia Integrated Logistics Services (M) Sdn Bhd.    Subsidiary 

Euroasia Total Logistics (China) Co., Ltd. 

  (Formerly known as "Guangxi Euroasia Total Logistics Co., 

Ltd.”)                               

Subsidiary 

Euroasia Total Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 

  (Formerly known as “Euroasia Total Logistics (China) Co., 

Ltd.”) 

Subsidiary 

Euroasia Total Logistics Vietnam Company Limited             Associate 

Wuhan Zhang Ma Tei Supply Chain Management Company 

Limited 

Common shareholder with its 

subsidiary 

ACC Logistics Co., Ltd. Close relative of the director and 

management of its subsidiary 

is a major shareholder 
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 During the years, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties. Such 

transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were 

concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Group and those related 

parties. 

 (Unit: Million Baht) 

 

Consolidated                    
financial statements 

Separate                             
financial statements Pricing policy 

 2022 2021 2022 2021  

Transactions with subsidiaries      
(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)    
Service income - - 20.4 15.2 Close to market price 
Rental income and other service income - - 6.6 4.5 As stipulated in the agreement 
Dividend income - - 200.8 150.3 As declared 
Interest income - - 0.8 0.6 Interest rate 3.0% - 4.0%  

   per annum 
Cost of services - - 155.8 138.9 Close to market price 
Transactions with associate     
Service income 70.0 66.4 - - Close to market price 
Interest income - 0.1 - - Interest rate 4.0% per annum 
Cost of service 0.7 2.9 - - Close to market price 
Transactions with related companies    
Service income - 0.1 - - Close to market price 
Cost of services 0.4 354.4 - - Close to market price 

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of the accounts between the Group and 

those related companies are as follows: 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated                 

financial statements 

Separate            

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Trade and other receivables - related parties (Note 8)    

Subsidiaries - - 2,292 1,117 

Associate 20,236 22,617 - - 

Related individuals (Management and directors) 5,354 147 - - 

Total trade and other receivables - related parties 25,590 22,764 2,292 1,117 

Dividend receivables - related party (Note 8)     

Subsidiary - - 6,657 19,564 

Total dividend receivables - related party - - 6,657 19,564 
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  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated                 

financial statements 

Separate            

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 19)    

Subsidiaries - - 29,424 23,231 

Associate 1,788 257 - - 

Related companies 31,841 110,077 - - 

Related individuals (Management and directors) 39 - - - 

Total trade and other payables - related parties 33,668 110,334 29,424 23,231 

Short-term and long-term loans to related parties 

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of loans between the Group and related parties and the 

movements are as follows: 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

  Consolidated financial statements 

Loan to Related by 

Balance as at       

1 January 2022 

Decrease during 

the year 

Gain on 

exchange  

Balance as at          

31 December 2022 

Euroasia Total Logistics Vietnam 

Company Limited Associate 1,421 (1,431) 10 - 

 
 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

  Separate financial statements 

Loan to Related by 

Balance as at       

1 January 2022 

Increase 

 during the year 

Decrease  

during the year Current portion  

Balance as at          

31 December 2022 

Euroasia Total Logistics 

Public Company Limited Subsidiary 1,956 - (1,806) (150) - 

WICE Supply Chain Solutions 

Company Limited  Subsidiary 15,556 10,000 (9,445) (10,000) 6,111 

Total  17,512 10,000 (11,251) (10,150) 6,111 

Long-term loan to related parties carried interest at rates of 3% and 4% per annum. These 
loans are due for repayment within 3 years (2023, 2024 and 2025) with no guarantee. 
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Long-term loan from related person 

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of loans from related person between the Group and 
related person and the movements are as follows: 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

  Consolidated financial statements 

Loan from Related by 
Balance as at       

1 January 2022 

Decrease 
during the 

year 
Loss on 

exchange  
Current 
portion 

Balance as at          
31 December 2022 

An individual Subsidiary’s director 2,337 (2,234) 224 (327) - 

Long-term loan from related person carried interest at a rate of 4% per annum. This loan is 
due for repayment within 5 years (2025) with no guarantee. 

Directors and management’s benefits 

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had employee benefit 
expenses payable to their directors and management as below. 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                

financial statements 

Separate                       

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Short-term employee benefits 113,906 97,825 37,858 31,475 

Post-employment and other long-term benefits 3,121 3,078 2,286 2,519 

Total 117,027 100,903 40,144 33,994 

 Guarantee obligations with related parties 

 The Company has outstanding guarantee obligations with its related parties as presented in 
Note 20. 

7. Cash and cash equivalents 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated              

financial statements 

Separate            

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Cash 1,460 1,674 - - 

Bank deposits 851,008 426,874 446,438 126,343 

Total 852,468 428,548 446,438 126,343 

 As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits in saving accounts carried interests between 0.04% 
and 0.35% per annum (2021: 0.04% and 0.13% per annum). 
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8. Trade and other receivables 

   (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                  

financial statements 

Separate                   

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Trade accounts receivable - related parties     

Aged on the basis of due dates     

 Not yet due 4,857 - 1,301 913 

 Past due     

 Up to 3 months 16,054 22,566 781 114 

Total trade accounts receivable - related parties 20,911 22,566 2,082 1,027 

Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties     

Aged on the basis of due dates     

 Not yet due 542,908 919,680 155,161 318,811 

 Past due     

 Up to 3 months 403,975 645,887 130,101 249,068 

  3 - 6 months 32,923 16,936 11,390 10,485 

 6 - 12 months 10,797 20,557 1,395 342 

 Over 12 months 12,498 20,126 963 971 

Total 1,003,101 1,623,186 299,010 579,677 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (16,090) (34,995) (991) (971) 

Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated  

   parties, net 987,011 1,588,191 298,019 578,706 

Total trade accounts receivable - net 1,007,922 1,610,757 300,101 579,733 

Other receivables      

Advance receivables - related parties - - 210 90 

Advance receivables - unrelated parties 49,891 44,523 37,278 31,822 

Dividend receivable - subsidiary - - 6,657 19,564 

Other receivables - related parties 4,679 198 - - 

Other receivables - unrelated parties 6,905 11,527 904 219 

Total other receivables 61,475 56,248 45,049 51,695 

Trade and other receivables - net 1,069,397 1,667,005 345,150 631,428 
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 Set out below is the movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade 
receivables. 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                          

financial statements 

Separate                      

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Beginning balance 34,995 6,251 971 268 

Provision for expected credit losses (reversal) (18,905) 28,106 21 703 

Translation adjustment - 638 - - 

Ending balance 16,090 34,995 992 971 

 During the year 2021, the significant increase in allowance for expected credit losses of trade 
receivables in consolidated financial statements was mainly due to lack of liquidity of account 
receivables of subsidiary in oversea that causing delay in debts settlement and resulting in 
significant increase in aging. 

9. Other current financial assets 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated                  

financial statements 

Separate                   

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Debt instruments at amortised cost     

Fixed deposits 14,496 14,052 2,290 2,283 

Contract assets 2,341 3,053 - - 

Total  16,837 17,105 2,290 2,283 

Financial assets at FVTPL     

Investment in Open-end Fund 336,384 393,567 336,341 393,525 

Total financial assets at FVTPL 336,384 393,567 336,341 393,525 

Total other current financial assets  353,221 410,672 338,631 395,808 

10. Restricted bank deposits 

 These represent fixed deposits pledged with the banks to secure fuel credit card and bank 

guarantees issued by bank on behalf of its subsidiary to secure cargo usages. 
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11. Long-term loans to unrelated party 

 On 8 December 2022, the Company has entered into long-term loan agreement with an 

unrelated party company. This loan is due for repayment within December 2024, carried 

interest as rate of 6% per annum, with no guarantee. The loan is provided as working capital 

for business collaboration. If the borrower repayment before maturity date, the borrower may 

settle by issuing new shares to the Company according to the conditions agreed in the 

contract. 

12. Investments in subsidiaries 

12.1 As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in 

separate financial statements are as follows: 

Subsidiaries Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage Cost 

Dividends received                  

during the year 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

   (%) (%) (Thousand 

Baht) 

(Thousand 

Baht) 

(Thousand 

Baht) 

(Thousand 

Baht) 

WICE Supply Chain           

   Solutions Co., Ltd. Baht 80 million Baht 13.5 million 99.99 99.99 79,996 13,498 8,821 3,617 

Euroasia Total Logistics         

 Public Company         

 Limited Baht 174.1 million Baht 122.4 million 51.00 51.00 192,541 166,216 26,325 - 

WICE Logistics          

 (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. SGD 0.7 million SGD 0.7 million 100.00 100.00 413,465 413,464 93,249 74,113 

WICE Logistics          

 (Hong Kong) Limited  HKD 1.1 million   HKD 1.0 million 80.00 80.00 126,580 80,412 72,431 72,576 

Total     812,582 673,590 200,826 150,306 

 WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited 

 On 4 January 2018, the Company acquired shares of WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited of 

80,000 ordinary shares (par value of HKD 10 each) or 80% of all shares issued. The Company 

paid a first amount of Baht 39.86 million. According to share purchase agreement, the 

Company will pay the remaining amount based on the actual operating results of this company 

upto the year 2022 with the amount not exceeding USD 2.21 million (due for settlement in 

May 2022). At the acquisition date, the Company recognised the fair value of investment 

amounted to Baht 80.4 million and recorded Baht 40.5 million as payable for purchase of 

investment. Finance cost related to this payable will be adjusted in subsequent period as 

follow: 
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 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated/Separate   

financial statements 

 2022 2021 

Payable for purchase of investment in a subsidiary 40,557 40,557 
Add: Addition during year - 17,196 
Add: Accumulated finance cost 29,904 11,033 
Less: Payment during the year (70,361) - 

Total - 68,786 

Finance cost for the year 1,575 3,012 

 During the year 2021, the management has considered an amount, in relation to investment 

acquired, to be paid upon settlement and recognised a Baht 17.2 million as liability to reflect 

an incremental cost since the performance of this subsidiary is higher than forecast. Such 

amount was included in administrative expenses in the income statement for the year 2021. 

 During the current year, WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited increased its registered capital 

from HKD 1.0 million to HKD 1.1 million by issuing 10,000 ordinary shares (par value of HKD 

10 each) to shareholder of its subsidiary. The Company paid Baht 46.2 million to invest in that 

company. 

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 

 On 1 November 2021, WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. established a new subsidiary in 

Malaysia namely “WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.”, which is principally engaged in freight 

forwarder and all freight related services for imports and exports, with a registered capital of 

MYR 700,000. The subsidiary holds 70% interest in such company and made payment for its 

share capital in November 2021. 

WICE Suppy Chain Solutions Company Limited      

 On 16 March 2022, the Company additionally invested Baht 66.5 million in WICE Supply Chain 

Solutions Co., Ltd. That company increased its registered capital from Baht 13.5 million to 

Baht 80.0 million (66,500 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1,000 each). The Company 

paid of Baht 33.25 million was made for the share capital and the remaining portion was 

recognised as payable for purchase of investment in a subsidiary. 
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Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company      

 On 15 July 2021, the subsidiary established a new subsidiary in Malaysia namely “Euroasia 

Integrated Logistics Services (M) Snd Bhd”, which is principally engaged in cross-border 

transport services, with a registered capital of MYR 0.1 million. The subsidiary holds 100% 

interest in such company and made payment for share subscription in November 2021. 

 On 31 August 2021, the Company additionally invested in ordinary shares of Euroasia Total 

Logistics Public Company Limited, its subsidiary company, of Baht 126.2 million (2,244,898 

ordinary shares at a price of Baht 56.22 each). After the addition investment, the percentage 

of shareholding of the Company in this subsidiary increased from 40% to 51%. 

 The reconciliation of an additional investment was as follow. 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated  

financial statements 

Purchase price of additional investment in subsidiary 126,216 

Less: Adjustment to non-controlling interests of the subsidiary   (89,013) 

Deficit on change in percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 37,203 

 On 29 December 2021, the subsidiary increased its interest in the ordinary shares of Euroasia 

Total Logistics (M) Sdn Bhd., its subsidiary in Malaysia, from, 40% to 49% by acquiring 45,000 

shares from shareholder with a consideration of Baht 2.5 million. The reconciliation of an 

additional investment was as follow. 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated  

financial statement 

Purchase price of additional investment in subsidiary 2,510 

Less: Adjustment to non-controlling interests of the subsidiary                                 (1,054) 

Deficit on change in percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 1,456 

On 24 May 2022, Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited’s Extraordinary General 

Meeting of Shareholders 1/2022 passed the following resolutions approving: 

a) Change of par value of ordinary shares from Baht 10 to Baht 0.50 per share, leading to 

the number of the ordinary shares increasing from 12,244,898 to 244,897,960 shares. 

Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited registered the change in shares value 

with the Ministry of Commerce on 25 May 2022. 
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b) Increase of the registered capital from Baht 122,448,980 (244,897,960 ordinary shares 

with a par value of Baht 0.50 each) to Baht 238,448,329 (476,896,658 ordinary shares 

with a par value of Baht 0.50 each) for initial public offering. Euroasia Total Logistics Public 

Company Limited registered the capital increase with the Ministry of Commerce on                 

25 May 2022. 

12.2 Details of its subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests 

   (Unit: Million Baht) 

Subsidiaries 

Proportion of equity interest 

held by non-controlling 

interests 

Accumulated balance of               

non-controlling interests 

Profit (loss) allocated to                

non-controlling interests                  

during the year 

Dividend paid to           

non-controlling interest 

during the year 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

 (%) (%)       

Euroasia Total Logistics Public 

Company Limited 49.00 49.00 197.06 169.06 28.38 58.82 - - 

Euroasia Total Logistics (M) Sdn Bhd. 51.00 51.00 (0.23) 4.41 (7.83) 10.44 - - 

WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bnd. 30.00 30.00 4.01 1.84 2.19 0.14 - - 

WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited 20.00 20.00 21.20 23.34 14.06 14.30 (18.11) (18.14) 

WICE Logistics (Shenzhen) Limited 30.00 30.00 10.18 5.68 4.41 1.56 - - 

Total   232.22 204.33 41.21 85.26 (18.11) (18.14) 

12.3 Summarised financial information of its subsidiaries that based on amounts before              

inter-company elimination that has material non-controlling interest. 

 Summarised information about financial position. 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 

Euroasia Total  

Logistics Pcl. and its 

subsidiaries 

WICE Logistics  

(Hong Kong) Limited and 

its subsidiaries 

Financial information 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Current assets 646.0 779.7 287.4 339.2 

Non-current assets 369.9 354.3 29.1 26.4 

Current liabilities (482.5) (625.7) (193.9) (239.2) 

Non-current liabilities (125.1) (140.2) (6.0) (3.0) 
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Summarised information about comprehensive income 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 

Euroasia Total  

Logistics Pcl. and its 

subsidiaries 

WICE Logistics  

(Hong Kong) Limited and 

its subsidiaries 

Financial information 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Revenue 1,481.2 1,855.7 1,175.3 1,384.6 

Profit (loss) 50.1 117.1 76.1 74.5 

Other comprehensive income (12.5) 9.0 (2.3) 1.8 

Total comprehensive income 37.5 126.1 73.9 76.3 

Summarised information about cash flow 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 

Euroasia Total  

Logistics Plc. and its 

subsidiaries 

WICE Logistics  

(Hong Kong) Limited and 

its subsidiaries 

Financial information 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Cash flow from operating activities 98.5 103.3 140.7 79.4 

Cash flow used in investing activities (8.6) (189.5) (1.2)           - 

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities (23.8) 184.6 (101.2) (97.8) 

Translation adjustment (12.7) 5.6 (3.5) 1.7 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents 53.4 104.0 34.8 (16.7) 

13. Investment in associate 

13.1 Details of associate 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

   

Consolidated  

financial statement 

Separate  

financial statement 

Associate Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage 

Carrying value  

under equity method Cost 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

   (%) (%)     

Euroasia Total 

Logistics (Vietnam) 

Company Limited 

VND 2,125 

million 

VND 2,125 

million 

40.00 40.00 1,398 799 1,140 1,140 

Less: Impairment on 

investment 

    

- - (1,140) (1,140) 

Total     1,398 799 - - 
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13.2 Share of comprehensive income and dividend received 

 During the year, its subsidiary has recognised its share of profit/loss from investment in an 

associate in the consolidated financial statements as follows: 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated financial statements 

Associate 

Share of profit and loss 
from investment in 

associate during the year 

Share of other 
comprehensive income 

from investment in 
associate during the year 

 2022  2021 2022 2021 

Euroasia Total Logistics (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. 618 656 (19) 42 

 During the years 2022 and 2021, no dividend was declared by this associate. 

13.3 Summarisation of financial information of an associate 

 Summarisation of information about financial position   

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Euroasia Total Logistics (Vietnam) 

Company Limited 

 For the year ended 31 December 

 2022 2021 

Current assets 23,785 22,696 

Non-current assets 1,286 1,634 

Current liabilities (21,577) (22,332) 

Net assets 3,494 1,998 

Shareholding percentage (%) 40 40 

Carrying amount of an associate under equity method - net 1,398 799 

Summarisation of income statement 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Euroasia Total Logistics (Vietnam) 

Company Limited 

 For the year ended 31 December 

 2022 2021 

Income  84,902 78,544 

Profit  1,545 1,640 

Shareholding percentage (%) 40 40 

Share of profit from investment in an associate during                

the year 618 656 
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15. Leases 

15.1 The Group as a lessee 

The Group has lease contracts for operating assets which generally have lease terms 

between 2 - 20 years. 

a) Right-of-use assets 

Movements of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were 

summarised below: 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated financial statements 

 

Land  Buildings  Equipment 

Motor 

vehicles Total 

1 January 2021 16,454 1,211 1,657 20,206 39,528 

Additions - 59,199 - 23,015 82,214 

Depreciation for the year (1,219) (18,178) (777) (3,675) (23,849) 

Translation adjustment - 680 125 1,055 1,860 

31 December 2021 15,235 42,912 1,005 40,601 99,753 

Additions 3,642 57,172 3,628 62,797 127,239 

Write-off - (1,129) (692) - (1,821) 

Depreciation for the year (1,387) (34,196) (769) (7,830) (44,182) 

Transfer to property, building 

and equipment (Note 14) - - - (13,316) (13,316) 

Translation adjustment - 501 59 (740) (180) 

31 December 2022 17,490 65,260 3,231 81,512 167,493 

 
 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 Land  Motor vehicles Total 

1 January 2021 16,454 14,521 30,975 

Additions - 1,159 1,159 

Depreciation for the year (1,219) (1,591) (2,810) 

31 December 2021 15,235 14,089 29,324 

Additions 3,642 13,750 17,392 

Transfer to property, building and               

equipment (Note 14) - (13,316) (13,316) 

Depreciation for the year (1,387) (1,418) (2,805) 

31 December 2022 17,490 13,105 30,595 
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b) Lease liabilities 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                                     

financial statements 

Separate                                      

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Lease payments 171,775 99,238 32,949 22,085 

Less: Deferred interest expenses (11,937) (9,775) (3,816) (3,466) 

Total 159,838 89,463 29,133 18,619 

Less: Portion due within one year (59,066) (30,135) (5,370) (1,323) 

Lease liabilities - net of current portion 100,772 59,328 23,763 17,296 

Movements of the lease liability account during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 

2021 are summarised below:  

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                                     

financial statements 

Separate                                      

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Balance at beginning of year 89,463 29,432 18,619 21,870 

Additions 127,239 81,991 17,392 1,159 

Accretion of interest 5,767 2,437 756 526 

Repayments (60,439) (26,146) (7,634) (4,936) 

Decrease during the year (1,856) - - - 

Unrealised loss on exchange   - 84 - - 

Translation adjustment (336) 1,665 - - 

Balance at end of year 159,838 89,463 29,133 18,619 

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 32.2 under the liquidity risk. 

c) Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated  

financial statements 

Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 44,182 23,849 2,805 2,810 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 5,767 2,437 756 526 

Expense relating to short-term leases 1,390 833 420 420 

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 1,183 694 589 630 
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d) Others 

The Group had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2022      

of Baht 63.0 million (2021: Baht 26.1 million) (the Company only: Baht 8.7 million, 2021: 

Baht 4.9 million), including the cash outflow related to short-term lease, leases of low-

value assets and variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate.  

16. Goodwill  

 Goodwill presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, arose from acquisitions 

of two overseas companies as follows: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

Subsidiaries 2022 

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 99,400 

WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited 40,442 

Total 139,842 

 The Company has determined the recoverable amounts of goodwill by using cash flow 

projections from financial estimation approved by management covering a five-year period. 

 Significant assumptions on cashflow projections are summarised below. 

 WICE Logistics 

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 

WICE Logistics 

(Hong Kong) Limited 

Growth rate 2% 2% 

Pre-tax discount rate 9% 10% 

 The management determined the growth rate based on the historical operating result and 

forecast market growth. The pre-tax discount rate used, reflects the risks specific to each 

entities. Management has considered and believes that there is no occurance of impairment 

of goodwill. 
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17. Intangible assets  

 The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is presented below. 

   (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated financial statements 

 

Customer 

relationship 

Computer  

software Total 

As at 31 December 2022:    

Cost 302,447 16,396 318,843 

Less: Accumulated amortisation (85,578) (10,012) (95,590) 

Net book value 216,869 6,384 223,253 

    

As at 31 December 2021:    

Cost 299,221 13,334 312,555 

Less: Accumulated amortisation (70,582) (7,553) (78,135) 

Translation adjustment 2,249 3 2,252 

Net book value 230,888 5,784 236,672 

 
  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Separate             

financial statements 

 Computer software 

As at 31 December 2022:  

Cost 12,600 

Less: Accumulated amortisation (9,249) 

Net book value 3,351 

  

As at 31 December 2021:  

Cost 11,741 

Less: Accumulated amortisation (7,271) 

Net book value 4,470 

The management determined that investment in entity with derived the customer relationship 

has no impairment indicator since there are continuous tradings with customers. 
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A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2022 and 2021 is 

presented below. 

  (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

 

Consolidated             

financial statements 

Separate          

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Net book value at beginning of year 236,672 249,813 4,470 6,439 

Additions in computer software 3,102 1,406 860 80 

Amortisation (17,194) (16,799) (1,979) (2,049) 

Translation adjustment 673 2,252 - - 

Net book value at end of year 223,253 236,672 3,351 4,470 

18. Short-term loans from financial institutions 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Interest rates 

Consolidated            

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

 (percent per 

annum) 

(percent per 

annum) 

  

Short-term loans from financial 

institutions 

 

4.00  

 

12.00 

 

49,664 

 

7,876 

An oversea subsidiary obtained short-term loans from bank amounted to CNY 10 million 

(2021: CNY 1.5 million) with no guarantee.  

19. Trade and other payables 

   (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                     

financial statements 

Separate                          

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Trade accounts payable - related parties 33,629 110,334 29,424 23,231 

Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 603,991 976,036 172,202 339,112 

Other payables - related party 39 - - - 

Other payables - unrelated parties 175,767 193,849 39,317 59,832 

Total trade and other payables  813,426 1,280,219 240,943 422,175 
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20. Long-term loans from banks 

    (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Credit 

  Consolidated                     

financial statements 

Separate                          

financial statements 

No. facility Interest rates Repayment schedule 2022 2021 2022 2021 

 (Million 

Baht) 

(Percent per 

annum) 

  

 

 

 

1 30  MLR - 2.75 See (1) 13,570 19,930 - - 

2 40  MLR - 2.75 See (2) 17,240 25,280 - - 

3 10 See (3) See (3) 5,909 7,954 - - 

4 80 MLR - 2.85 Interest payable on a monthly 

basis and principal gradually 

repaid in full by 2024 26,239 46,243 26,239 46,243 

5 100 MLR - 2.85 Interest payable on a monthly 

basis and principal gradually 

repaid in full by 2025 66,656 91,664 66,656 91,664 

6 10 MLR - 2.75 Interest payable on a monthly 

basis and principal gradually 

repaid in full by 2026 6,838 9,282 - - 

7 20 MLR - 2.75 Interest payable on a monthly 

basis and principal gradually 

repaid in full by 2026 12,318 16,326 - - 

8 70 MLR - 2.70 Interest payable on a monthly 

basis and principal gradually 

repaid in full by 2026 52,450 66,490 - - 

Total 201,220 283,169 92,895 137,907 

Less: Deferred financial fee (62) (122) - - 

 201,158 283,047 92,895 137,907 

Less: Current portion (82,002) (81,890) (45,012) (45,012) 

Long-term loans - net of current portion 119,156 201,157 47,883 92,895 

(1) During the period from April 2020 to March 2021, only interest is payable on a monthly 

basis. During the period from April 2021 to February 2025, monthly repayment of         

Baht 530,000, and in March 2025, repayment all loan and interest in full.  

(2) During the period from April 2020 to March 2021, only interest is payable on a monthly 

basis. During the period from April 2021 to February 2025, monthly repayment of           

Baht 670,000, and in March 2025 repayment all loan and interest in full. 

(3) During 1st - 24th month, interest rate is 2.0 percent per annum and after 25th month 

onwards, interest rate is MLR. Starting from February 2021, the loan principle and interest 

is payable on monthly basis, monthly repayment of Baht 186,000 and in July 2025, 

repayment all loan and interest in full. 
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Movements of the long-term loans during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are 

summarised below:  

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated       

financial statements 

Separate           

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Beginning balance 283,047 132,182 137,907 66,247 

Add: Additional borrowings - 200,000 - 100,000 

Less: Repayments (81,924) (49,300) (45,012) (28,340) 

Less: Amortise interest during the year (23) - - - 

Add: Deferred financial fee 58 165 - - 

Ending balance 201,158 283,047 92,895 137,907 

 The loans No.1 - 3 and No. 8 were guaranteed by the Company and shareholders of 

subsidiaries. 

 The loan agreement contained covenants that, among other, required the Company and its 

subsidiaries to maintain debt-to-equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio.  

 As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries have drawn down credit 

facilities in full. 

21. Provision for long-term employee benefits  

 Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensations payable to 

employees after they retire was as follows credit facilities in full. 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated  

financial statements 

Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Provision for long-term employee benefits     

   at beginning of year 27,535 20,326 24,136 18,175 

Included in profit or loss:     

   Current service cost  4,102 2,536 2,593 2,104 

   Interest cost  512 514 462 498 

Past service cost - 1,058 - 1,068 

Included in other comprehensive income:     

   Actuarial (gain) loss arising from     

      Demographic assumption changes - 1,215 - 1,145 

      Financial assumption changes - (483) - (350) 

      Experience adjustment  3,042 - 2,341 

Benefits paid during the year (504) (845) (504) (845) 

Translation adjustment (43) 172 - - 

Provision for long-term employee benefits     

   at end of year 31,602 27,535 26,687 24,136 
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 The Group expects to pay 2.2 million of long-term employee benefits during the next year 
(2021: Baht 0.1 million) (the Company only: Baht 1.4 million, 2021: Baht 0.1 million). 

 As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term 

employee benefit is 13 years (2021: 14 years) (the Company only: 9 years, 2021: 10 years). 

 Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below: 

(Unit: % per annum) 

 Consolidated                     

financial statements 

Separate                         

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Discount rates 1.77 - 2.87 1.77 - 2.87 1.77 - 1.94 1.77 - 1.94 

Salary increase rates  4.00 - 5.00 4.00 - 5.00 4.00 4.00 

Employee turnover rates (depending on age) 1.91 - 40.11 1.91 - 40.11 2.87 - 34.38 2.87 - 34.38 

 The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of 

the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised 

below: 

 (Unit: Million Baht) 

 As at 31 December 2022 

 Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements 

 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

 (%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

Discount rates 1.0 (1.72) 1.0 1.92 1.0 (1.52) 1.0 1.69 

Salary increase rates 1.0 2.01 1.0 (1.82) 1.0 1.78 1.0 (1.61) 

Turnover rates 20.0 (2.06) 20.0 2.50 20.0 (1.85) 20.0 2.24 

 
 (Unit: Million Baht) 

 As at 31 December 2021 

 Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements 

 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

 (%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

(%) (Million 

Baht) 

Discount rates 1.0 (1.71) 1.0 1.92 1.0 (1.55) 1.0 1.73 

Salary increase rates 1.0 1.74 1.0 (1.58) 1.0 1.56 1.0 (1.42) 

Turnover rates 20.0 (1.76) 20.0 2.11 20.0 (1.59) 20.0 1.91 
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22. Statutory reserve 

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is 
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net profit after deducting 
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of                  
the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.            
At present, the statutory reserve has fully been set aside. 

23. Finance cost 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 

Consolidated           

financial statements 

Separate                       

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Interest expenses on borrowings 12,853 9,857 3,146 2,350 

Interest expense on payable of investment               

in subsidiary 4,086 3,012 1,575 3,012 

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 6,234 2,437 756 570 

Total 23,173 15,306 5,477 5,932 

24. Expenses by nature 

 During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, significant expenses classified by 

nature are as follows: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated 

financial statements 

Separate 

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Salaries and wages and other  

   employee benefits 537,854 319,527 217,012 175,016 

Depreciation and amortisation  109,221 61,199 16,372 15,983 

Expense relating to short-term and low-

value assets lease agreement 2,573 2,645 1,009 1,050 
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25. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) / Income tax expense 

 Income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were made up              

as follows: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated  

financial statements 
Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Current income tax:     
Current income tax charge      
   for the year 160,243 146,373 93,195 87,790 
Deferred tax:     
Relating to origination and reversal  
   of temporary differences   (1,608) 1,112 4,097 (87) 
Income tax expense reported in  
   profit or loss 158,635 147,485 97,292 87,703 

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for 

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated  

financial statements 
Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss - 686 - 627 
 - 686 - 627 

The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below. 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated  

financial statements 

Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Accounting profit before tax 753,898 768,273 667,373 574,317 

     

Applicable tax rates 8.25% - 25% 8.25% - 25% 20% 20% 

Accounting profit before tax multiplied by 

income tax rates 191,577 181,203 133,475 114,863 

Adjustment income tax for the prior year 6,483 (11,699) - - 

Effects of:     

Non-deductible expenses 9,606 2,140 7,494 1,677   

Additional expense deductions allowed (3,308) (31,021) (3,512) (28,749) 

Non-taxable income (45,942) - (40,165) - 

Others 219 6,862 - (88) 

Total (39,425) (22,019) (36,183) (27,160) 

Income tax expense reported in profit or loss 158,635 147,485 97,292 87,703 
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The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows: 

(Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated                 

financial statements 

Separate                    

financial statements 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Deferred tax assets     

Allowance for expected credit losses  212 364 198 194 

Provision for long-term employee benefits 6,085 5,368 5,338 4,827 

Unrealised loss on change in fair value from 

derivatives - 25 - 25 

Leases 184 601 - 522 

Accrued finance cost  - 2,207 - 2,207 

Unused tax loss - 5,483 - - 

Others 334 - - - 

Total deferred tax assets 6,815 14,048 5,536 7,775 

Deferred tax liabilities      

Intangible assets - Customer relationship 33,238 35,389 - - 

Unrealised gain on change in fair value from 

investments 205 67 205 67 

Accumulated depreciation - Motor vehicles 3,856 9,671 3,082 1,655 

Leases 292 - 292 - 

Others 265 1,380 - - 

Total deferred tax liabilities 37,856 46,507 3,579 1,722 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are 

presented as follow:     

Deferred tax assets 2,897 692 1,957 6,053 

Deferred tax liabilities 33,938 33,151 - - 

26. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity 

holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. 
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27. Segment information  

 Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports 

that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions 

about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance.  

 For management purposes, the Group are organised into business units based on its services 

and have four reportable segments were sea freight, air freight, cross-border transport 

services and supply chain solution. 

 The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units 

separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing 

performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and total 

assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and total 

assets in the financial statements. 

 The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with 

that for third party transactions. 

 The following tables present revenue, profit and total assets information regarding the Group’s 

operating segments for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 For the year ended 31 December 2022 

 Sea freight 

 
 

Air freight 

Cross- 
border 
service 

Supply 
chain 

solution 

Adjustments 
and 

eliminations Total 

Service income           
Revenue from       
  external customers 3,692 1,516 1,409 400 - 7,017 
Inter-segment revenue 66 100 125 17 (223) 85 

Total revenue 3,758 1,616 1,534 417 (223) 7,102 

Operating results   
 

    
Segment profit 724 270 210 62 - 1,266 

 Other income (included finance income)     37 
Depreciation and amortisation     (38) 
Selling and administrative expenses    (489) 
Share of profit from investment in associate    1 

Finance cost    (23) 

Profit before income tax expense    754 

Income tax expense     (159) 

Profit for the year     595 

      
Timing of revenue recognition      

Revenue recognised at a point in time     5,672 

Revenue recognised over time     1,430 

      
Segment total assets       

Unallocated assets      3,332 

Total assets      3,332 
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(Unit: Million Baht) 

 For the year ended 31 December 2021 

 Sea freight 

 
 

Air freight 

Cross- 
border 
service 

Supply 
chain 

solution 

Adjustments 
and 

eliminations Total 

Service income           
Revenue from       
  external customers 3,690 1,687 1,794 399 - 7,570 
Inter-segment revenue 40 98 133 3 (207) 67 

Total revenue 3,730 1,785 1,927 402 (207) 7,637 

Operating results   
 

    
Segment profit 625 298 255 66 - 1,244 

 Other income (included finance income)     33 
Depreciation and amortisation     (59) 
Selling and administrative expenses    (436) 
Share of profit from investment in associate    1 

Finance cost    (15) 

Profit before income tax expense    768 

Income tax expense     (147) 

Profit for the year     621 

      
Timing of revenue recognition      

Revenue recognised at a point in time     5,844 

Revenue recognised over time     1,793 

      
Segment total assets       

Unallocated assets      3,495 

Total assets      3,495 

Geographic information  

 During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, revenue from external customers is 
based on locations of the customers as follow. 

 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 2022 2021 

Revenue from external customers    
Domestic segment 3,927,164 3,890,404 
Oversea segment 3,175,340 3,746,198 

Total 7,102,504 7,636,602 

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets    
Domestic 370,643 335,599 
Oversea 131,792 114,541 

Total 502,435 450,140 
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 Major customers 

 For the year 2022, the Group has revenue from one major customer in amount of Baht        

753 million, arising from sales by sea freight and air freight segments (2021: Baht 1,637 million 

derived from two major customers, arising from sales by sea freight and air freight segments.   

28. Provident fund 

 The Group in Thailand and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in 

accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Group contribute 

to the fund monthly at the rate of 5% of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by          

TISCO Assets Management Co., Ltd., will be paid to employees upon termination in 

accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2022 amounting to Baht       

4.5 million were recognised as expense (separate financial statements: Baht 3.3 million) 

(2021: Baht 3.8 million, separate financial statements: Baht 3.1 million). 

29. Dividends payment 

 Dividend declared during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 consisted of the 

followings. 

    

Dividends Approved by Total dividend 
Dividend        
per share 

  (Million Baht) (Baht) 
2022    
Final dividends for 2021 Annual General Meeting of    
    shareholders on 29 April 2022 149.9 0.23 

       
2021    
Final dividends for 2020 Annual General Meeting of    
    shareholders on 30 April 2021 91.2 0.14 

30. Commitments and contingent liabilities 

30.1 Operating lease commitments 

 The Group have entered into several lease agreements in respect of the lease of building 

space and office equipment which each contracts are low-value. The terms of the agreements 

are generally between 1 and 5 years (2021: 1 and 4 year).  
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 As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had future lease payments required under 

short-term lease agreement and low-value asset lease agreements as follow.  

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Consolidated                      

financial statements 

Separate                

financial statements 

 2022                   2021 2022 2021 

Payable     

   in up to 1 year 6.9 2.9 0.7 1.0 

   in over 1 and up to 5 years 3.1 1.9 1.2 0.5 

30.2 Long-term service commitment 

 The Group has entered into various service agreements. Under the conditions of agreements, 

the Group is to pay monthly fee as stipulated in the agreements. During the year 2022, total 

expenses were Baht 14.1 million (2021: Baht 9.2 million) (the Company only: Baht 3.8 million, 

2021: Baht 4.1 million). 

 The subsidiaries have entered into legal and finance service agreements. Under the conditions 

of such agreements, the subsidiaries are to pay a monthly service fee as stipulated in the 

agreements totaling Baht 3.1 million (2021: 3.8 million). 

30.3 Bank guarantees 

 There were outstanding bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company and its 

subsidiaries in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the normal course of 

business of the Group as follows: 

 (Unit: Million) 

  Consolidated                              

financial statements 

Separate                                    

financial statements 

Guarantee for Currency 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Warehouse service THB 10.8 2.5 7.9 2.0 

 MYR 0.2 - - - 

Performance obligation required by airline SGD 0.7 0.8 - - 
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31. Fair value hierarchy 

 As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had the assets and liabilities that were 

measured at fair value or for which fair value was disclosed using different levels of inputs as 

follows: 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Consolidated financial statements  

 As at 31 December 2022 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value      

Financial assets measured at FVTPL       

Investment in Open-end Fund - 336.4 - 336.4 

Liabilities measured at fair value      

Derivatives       

Foreign currency forward contracts  - 0.1 - 0.1 

 
(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Consolidated financial statements  

 As at 31 December 2021 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value      

Financial assets measured at FVTPL       

Investment in Open-end Fund - 393.6 - 393.6 

Liabilities measured at fair value      

Derivatives       

Foreign currency forward contracts  - 0.1 - 0.1 

 
(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 As at 31 December 2022 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value      

Financial assets measured at FVTPL       

Investment in Open-end Fund - 336.3 - 336.3 

Liabilities measured at fair value      

Derivatives       

 Foreign currency forward contracts  - 0.1 - 0.1 
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(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 As at 31 December 2021 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value      

Financial assets measured at FVTPL       

Investment in Open-end Fund - 393.5 - 393.5 

Liabilities measured at fair value      

Derivatives       

 Foreign currency forward contracts  - 0.1 - 0.1 

32. Financial instruments 

32.1 Derivatives 

    (Unit: Thousand Baht) 

 Consolidated/Separate  

financial statements 

 2022 2021 

Derivative liabilities   

Derivatives liabilities not designated as hedging 

instruments 

  

Foreign exchange forward contracts 42 127 

Total derivative liabilities 42 127 

Derivatives liabilities not designated as hedging instruments  

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction 

exposures. The contracts are entered into for periods consistent with foreign currency 

exposure of the underlying transactions, generally from one to six months. 

32.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade 

accounts receivable, loan to related person and related parties, fixed deposits, short-term and 

long-term loans from financial institutions, long-term loan from related person and payables 

for purchase of investment in subsidiary and business. The financial risks associated with 

these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.  
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Credit risk 

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable, loans, 

deposits with banks and other financial instruments. Except for derivatives, the maximum 

exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts as stated in the statement of financial 

position. The Group’s maximum exposure relating to derivatives is noted in the liquidity risk 

topic. 

Trade accounts receivable 

The Group manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures 

and therefore does not expect to incur material losses. Outstanding trade accounts receivable 

are regularly monitored. The Group does not have high concentrations of trade accounts  

receivable. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit losses. 

The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments 

with similar credit risks. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time 

value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting 

date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

Generally, trade accounts receivable are written-off if past due for more than one year.  

Financial instruments and cash deposits 

The Group manages the credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions by 

making investments only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to 

each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Board of Directors on an 

annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of               

the Group’s Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and 

therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.  

The credit risk on debt instruments and derivatives is limited because the counterparties are 

banks with high credit-ratings.  

Market risk  

The market risk related to the fluctuations in freight rates, which is the major cost of          

the Group. The Group realised the potential risks and closely monitored the freight rates in 

order to foresee the situation, and trend of freight rates and entered into the agreement with 

vessel company. 
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Foreign currency risk 

The Group’s exposure to the foreign currency risk related to service income and cost in foreign 

currencies. The Group seeks to reduce this risk by entering into foreign exchange forward 

contracts mature within six months.  

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated 

in foreign currencies are summarised below.  

Foreign currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate 

 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

 (Million) (Million) (Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit) 

US dollar 13.2 22.6 8.1 7.4 34.56 32.12 

HKD 0.3 7.3 3.7 9.7 4.43 4.29 

MYR 18.3 0.3 16.2 7.0 7.83 8.01 

The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of                      
monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives.               
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a 

reasonably possible change in US dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held constant 

are as follow.  

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. 

 2022 2021 

Currency 

Increase/Decrease                    

in exchange rate 

Effect on profit 

before tax 

Increase/Decrease                    

in exchange rate 

Effect on profit 

before tax 

 (%) (Million Baht) (%) (Million Baht) 

US dollar +3.2 5.75 +5.7 16.11 

 -3.2 (5.75) -5.7 (16.11) 

Interest rate risk 

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is low, due to most of the Group’s financial assets 

and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market 

rate.  

 Liquidity risk 

The Group manages the risk of a shortage of liquidity through the use of bank loans and lease 

contracts. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has assessed the concentration of risk with 

respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low, since the Group is able to access to 

a sufficient variety of sources of funding. 
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial 

liabilities and derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 based on 

contractual undiscounted cash flows: 
 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated financial statements 

 As at 31 December 2022 

 Less than  
1 year 

1 to 5 
years > 5 years Total 

Non-derivatives     
Short-term loans from financial institutions 49,664 - - 49,664 
Trade and other payables 813,426 - - 813,426 
Long-term loans from related person 327 - - 327 
Payable for business acquisition 49,971 - - 49,971 
Lease liabilities 59,066 83,347 17,425 159,838 
Long-term loans 82,002 119,156 - 201,158 

Total non-derivatives 1,054,456 202,503 17,425 1,274,384 

     
Derivatives     
Derivative liabilities: net settled 42 - - 42 

Total 42 - - 42 

 
 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Consolidated financial statements 
 As at 31 December 2021 

 Less than  
1 year 

1 to 5 
years > 5 years Total 

Non-derivatives     
Short-term loans from financial institutions 7,876 - - 7,876 
Trade and other payables 1,280,219 - - 1,280,219 
Long-term loans from related person 2,170 167 - 2,337 
Payable for purchase of investment in        

a subsidiary 68,786 - 
- 

68,786 
Payable for business acquisition - 47,460 - 47,460 
Lease liabilities 30,135 46,958 12,370 89,463 
Long-term loans 81,890 201,157 - 283,047 

Total non-derivatives 1,471,076 295,742 12,370 1,779,188 

     
Derivatives     
Derivative liabilities: net settled 127 - - 127 

Total 127 - - 127 
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 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Separate financial statements 

 As at 31 December 2022 

 Less than         
1 year 

1 to 5 
years > 5 years Total 

Non-derivatives     
Trade and other payables 240,943 - - 240,943 
Payable for purchase of investment in       

a subsidiary 33,248 - 
 

- 33,248 
Lease liabilities 5,370 11,439 12,324 29,133 
Long-term loans 45,012 47,883 - 92,895 

Total non-derivatives 324,573 59,322 12,324 396,219 

     
Derivatives     
Derivative liabilities: net settled 42 - - 42 

Total 42 - - 42 

 
 (Unit: Thousand Baht) 
 Separate financial statements 

 As at 31 December 2021 

 Less than         
1 year 

1 to 5 
years > 5 years Total 

Non-derivatives     
Trade and other payables 422,176 - - 422,176 
Payable for purchase of investment in       

a subsidiary 68,786 - 
 

- 68,786 
Lease liabilities 1,323 4,926 12,370 18,619 
Long-term loans 45,012 92,895 - 137,907 

Total non-derivatives 537,297 97,821 12,370 647,488 

     
Derivatives     
Derivative liabilities: net settled 127 - - 127 

Total 127 - - 127 

32.3 Fair values of financial instruments 

 Since the majority of the Group’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying 

interest at rate close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially 

different from the amounts presented in statement of financial position.  
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33. Capital management 

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate 

capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.          

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.78:1 and 1.33:1          

(the Company only: 0.30:1 and 0.63:1). 

34.  Events after the reporting period  

The Company 

- On 12 January 2023, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No.1/2023 passed 

a resolution approving a share repurchase program (Treasury Stock) for financial 

management purposes with a budget of up to Baht 170 million, whereby the Company is 

to repurchase 13 million shares, or up to 2% of the total paid-up capital. The share 

repurchase program will be carried out through the Stock Exchange of Thailand over a 

period of 6 months, from 19 January 2023 to 18 July 2023. 

- On 21 February 2023, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 2/2023 

passed a resolution to propose to the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s 

shareholders of the year 2023 for an approval of a dividend payment from the operations 

for the year 2022 at Baht 0.44 per share, (Baht 286.8 million). Dividend will be paid and 

accounted for after the approval of the Annual General Meeting of the Company's 

shareholders. 

Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company Limited 

- On 20 February 2023, the meeting of the Board of Directors of the subsidiary No. 2/2023 

passed a resolution to propose to the Annual General Meeting of the subsidiary’s 

shareholders of the year 2023 for an approval of a dividend payment from the operations 

for the year 2022 at Baht 0.0256 per share, (Baht 8.9 million). Dividend will be paid and 

accounted for after the approval of the Annual General Meeting of the subsidiary’s 

shareholders. 

35. Approval of financial statements 

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 

21 February 2023. 
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Information Authentication

 I have reviewed the information in this annual registration statement with caution as an executive director of the Company 

or the person holding the highest management position in the accounting department. I hereby certify that such information 

is true, complete, not false and does not mislead others, or lack of essential information that should be reported. In addition, 

I hereby certify that

1) the financial statements and financial information summarized in the annual registration statement have presented accurate 

and complete information on essential aspects of the financial position, performance and cash flows of the Company and 

its subsidiaries.

2) The Company has established a good information disclosure system, to ensure that the Company has disclosed the 

information that is important to both the Company and its subsidiaries correctly and completely, as well as to control and 

supervise the implementation of the such system.

3) The Company has set up a good internal control system and supervision to ensure compliance with such system. 

The Company has notified information on the assessment of internal control system as of February 21, 2023 to the auditors 

and the Audit Committee of the Company, which covers the shortcomings and significant changes of the internal control 

system, including wrongful acts that may affect the preparation of financial reports of the Company and its subsidiaries.

 In this regard, the Company has assigned Dr. Araya Kongsoontorn to sign this document on every page as evidence 

that all documents are from the same set of documents that the Company has certified its correctness. If any documents do 

not have a signature, the Company will assume that it is not the information that the Company has certified the accuracy of 

the information above.

Name Position Signature

1. Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Chief Executive Officer - Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn -

2. Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn Executive Director - Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn -   

3. Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn Executive Director - Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn -

4. Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem Director of Accounting and Finance - Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem -

Assignee

Name Position Signature

1. Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn Chief Executive Officer - Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn -
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คณะกริริมการิ
ณ	วันที�	31	ธิันวาคม	2565

Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin
• กริริมก�ริอิส์ริะ 
• กริริมก�ริติริวจิส์อบ
• ปริะธั�นกริริมก�ริบริริษััทภิิบ�ลและ

ก�ริพััฒน�อย่่�งย่ั�งย่ืน

Mr. Komol Rungruanyot
• กริริมก�ริอิส์ริะ 
• กริริมก�ริติริวจิส์อบ
• ปริะธั�นกริริมก�ริบริิห�ริ

คว�มเส่์�ย่งองค์กริ
• ปริะธั�นกริริมก�ริส์ริริห�และ

พัิจิ�ริณ�ค่�ติอบแทน 
• กริริมก�ริบริริษััทภิิบ�ลและ

ก�ริพััฒน�อย่่�งย่ั�งย่ืน

Mr. Ekaphon Pongsataporn
• กริริมก�ริอิส์ริะ 
• ปริะธั�นกริริมก�ริ 

Professor. Dr. Ruth Banomyong
• กริริมก�ริอิส์ริะ 
• ปริะธั�นกริริมก�ริติริวจิส์อบ

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn
• กริริมก�ริ
• กริริมก�ริส์ริริห�และ 

พัิจิ�ริณ�ค่�ติอบแทน 

Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn  
• กริริมก�ริ

Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem  
• กริริมก�ริ 
• กริริมก�ริบริริษััทภิิบ�ลและ 

ก�ริพััฒน�อย่่�งย่ั�งย่ืน

Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn
• กริริมก�ริ 
• กริริมก�ริส์ริริห�และ 

พัิจิ�ริณ�ค่�ติอบแทน 
• กริริมก�ริบริิห�ริคว�มเส่์�ย่งองค์กริ 
• กริริมก�ริบริริษััทภิิบ�ลและ 

ก�ริพััฒน�อย่่�งย่ั�งย่ืน
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คณะผิ้�บริิหาริ
ณ	วันที�	31	ธิันวาคม	2565

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn
• ปริะธั�นเจิ้�หน้�ท่�บริิห�ริ 

Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn 
• กริริมก�ริผู้้้จัิดก�ริ  

ฝ่่�ย่พััฒน�ธัุริกิจิ

Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem 
• ผู้้้อำ�นวย่ก�ริ  

ฝ่่�ย่บัญช่และก�ริเงิน 

Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn 
• กริริมก�ริผู้้้จิัดก�ริ  

ฝ่่�ย่ส์นับส์นุนองค์กริ 

Mr. Amnat Phuangrod  
• ผู้้้จิัดก�ริทั�วไป  

ฝ่่�ย่เทคโนโลย่่
ส์�ริส์นเทศ 

Ms.Suntaree Pulsombut  
• ผู้้้ช่วย่ผู้้้จิัดก�ริทั�วไป 

Ms. Somjai Purachako  
• ผู้้้อำ�นวย่ก�ริ  

ฝ่่�ย่ข�ย่และติล�ด

Mr. Prasert                     
Jirapivatthanakul 
• ผู้้้อำ�นวย่ก�ริ  

ฝ่่�ย่ปฏิิบัติิก�ริโลจิิส์ติิกส์์
และซััพัพัล�ย่เชน

Ms. Saovadee          
Asavamana
• ผู้้้จิัดก�ริทั�วไป  

ฝ่่�ย่ภิ้มิภิ�ค
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications 

Training Background 
• Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) with Certificate of Honor by       

The Institute of Internal Audit (USA)
• Directors Certification Program (DCP 141/2011) : Thai Institute 

of Directors (IOD)
• Company Secretary Program (CSP 41/2011) : Thai Institute        

of Directors (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP 4/2012) :          

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP 12/2014 ) :        

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 40/2017) : Thai Institute       

of Directors (IOD) 
• National Director Conference (NDC 1/2019) : Thai Institute      

of Directors (IOD)
• Advanced Master of Management Program, (AMM 5/2020) : 

National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA)
• Security Management Course for Senior Executives (SML 

1/2020) : The Association of National Defence College of 
Thailand Under The Royal Patronage of His Majesty The King 
(ANDCT)

• Director Leadership Certification Program (DLCP 0/2021) :       
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

• Director Leadership Certification Program (DLCP 1/2021) :       
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

• Successful Formulation & Execution of Strategy (SFE 36/2021) : 
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

2014 - Present Independent 
Director and 
Chairman of the 
Board

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

2012 - 2020 Managing 
Director 

Tipco Foods Public 
Company Limited

2012 - 2020 Director Tipco F&B Company 
Limited

2012 - 2020 Director Tipco Retail Company 
Limited

2012 - 2020 Director Tipco Biotech 
Company Limited

2012 - 2020 Director Tipco Pineapple 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2014 - Present Independent Director and Chairman of the Board 
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

2021 - Present Director
United Flour Mill Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations                    
(in the past year)

2016 – Present Chairman of the Board 
WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte.Ltd. (Singapore)

2021 - Present Director
Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA) 

2021 - Present Chief Executive Officer 
Srikrung Wattana Company Limited

Important Special Events (in the past year)

Aug 2022 - Present Lecturer at Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Ekaphon Pongsataporn
Independent Director / Chairman of the Board
Age 58 years 

• Independent Director  
(appointed on August 14, 2014)

• Chairman of the Board
 (appointed on August 14, 2014)

Shareholding Ratio :
0.00022 
(Self 0.00022; Spouse 0)

Familial Relationship      
among Executives :
None

Attachment 1 Information of the Board of Directors, Executives, 
Controlling Persons and Company Secretary

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

in MBA (Finance & Marketing),         
Kellog School of Management, 
Northwestern University, USA
Bachelor of Science in Chemical 
Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
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Professor. Dr. Ruth Banomyong
Independent Director / 
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Age 55 years 

• Independent Director 
(appointed on August 14, 2014)

• Chairman of the Audit Committee
 (appointed on August 14, 2014)

Shareholding Ratio :
None

Familial Relationship      
among Executives :
None

Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications 

Training Background 
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP 44/2005) :                    

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Audit Committee Program (ACP 13/200) :                         

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Director Certification Program (DCP 103/2008) :                   

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 18/2020) :                      

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Advanced Audit Committee Program (AACP 39/2021) :           

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2016 - 2019 Independent 
Director and 
Chairman of the 
Audit Committee

C.P.L. Group Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2013 - Present Independent Director and Chairman of the 
Audit Committee
Sea Oil Public Company Limited  

2014 - Present Independent Director and Chairman of the 
Audit Committee
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations (in the 
past year)

1993 - 2019 Teacher of Faculty of Commerce and 
Accountancy : Thammasat University

1996 - Present Director, Living Headquarters Company 
Limited 

2016 - Present Director, Global Allsights Company Limited

2019 - 2022 Dean, Thammasat Business School, 
Thammasat University

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

•  Doctoral Degree 

•  Master’s Degree
 
•  Bachelor’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree
•  Diploma

•  Post-Graduate 
Diploma

:

:

:

:
:

:

in International Logistics, Cardiff 
University, Wales, United Kingdom
Bachelor of Science in Chemical  
in International Business Law, Universite 
de Paris I, Pantheon-Sorbonne, France
in International Law, Universite de Paris I, 
Pantheon-Sorbonne, France
in Economics, Lycee Michelet, France
in Translating English-French Legal 
Terms, Paris Institute of Comparative 
Law, France
in Social Science Research Methods, 
Cardiff University, Wales, United Kingdom
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

 

Training Background
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP 171/2020) :                 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Advanced Audit Committee Program (AACP 41/2021) :          

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• ESG Direction : From Theory to Practice Seminar 2021 :          

PwC Thailand
• CGR Workshop (CGR 1/2021) : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2010 - 2020 Vice President APL Logistics South 
East Asia Region

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2020 - Present

2021 - Present 

Independent Director and Member of the 
Audit Committee  
Chairman of the Corporate Risk 
Management Committee / Chairman of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee / 
Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations        
(in the past year)

2022 - Present Director, WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) 
Limited

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Mr. Komol Rungruanyot
Independent Director / Member of the Audit 
Committee / Chairman of the Corporate Risk 
Management Committee / Chairman of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee / 
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
Age 60 years 

• Independent Director / Member of the Audit 
Committee 
(appointed on August 11, 2020)

• Chairman of the Corporate Risk Management 
Committee / Chairman of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee
(appointed on May 14, 2021)

• Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
(appointed on November 11, 2021)

Shareholding Ratio : 
0.00004  
(Self 0; Spouse 0.00004) 
 
Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

in Business Administration, National 
Institute of Development Administration 
(NIDA)
in Computer Science and Economics 
Finance; Cornell College, Iowa
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background 
• Pacific Rim Bankers Program 2013 University of Washington, 

USA
• Strategy and Innovation for Business in Asia 2015 MIT 

University, USA
• Capital Market Academy Programs (CMA 24/2017) :             

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP 184/2021) :                 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 28/2022) :                     

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 20/2022) :          

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

1981 - 2020 Assistant General 
Manager

Bangkok Bank Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2021 - Present

2021 - Present 

Independent Director / Member of the Audit 
Committee
Chairman of the Corporate Governance 
Committee 
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations           
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Mr. Boongrieng Thanaphansin
Independent Director / Member of the Audit 
Committee / Chairman of the Corporate 
Governance Committee
Age 64 years 

• Independent Director / Member of the Audit 
Committee 
(appointed on May 14, 2021)

• Chairman of the Corporate Governance 
Committee
(appointed on November 11, 2021)

Shareholding Ratio :
None

Familial Relationship      
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree
 
•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

Real Estate and Housing Development 
Program, Chulalongkorn University
Thammasat Business School, 
Thammasat University

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)236



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• Directors Certification Program (DCP 181/2013) :                

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Collective Action Against Corruption Conference       

(C-Conference 1/2018) : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Research Alliance (R-RA 1/2018) : Thai Institute of Directors 

(IOD)
• CFO’s Orientation Course for New IPOs (CFO 3/2019) :         

Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)
• TLCA CFO Professional Development Program (TLCA CFO  

CPD 2/2019) Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA)
• Capital Market Academy Program (CMA 30/2020) :               

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Refreshment Training Program (RFP 1/2021) :                   

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Director Leadership Certification Program (DLCP 3/2022) :        

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2014 - Present Chief Executive 
Officer

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2014 - Present Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations           
(in the past year)

2019 - Present

2016 - Present
2016 - Present
2018 - Present 

2020 - Present
2021 - Present
2022 - Present

2022 - Present

Director, WICE Supply Chain Solutions Company 
Limited
Director, WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
Director, WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd. 
Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, 
Euroasia Total Logistics Co., Ltd. 
Director, Euroasia Transport Company Limited
Director, Euroasia Integrated Logistics Services 
(M) Sdn. Bhd.
Director, WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Director, Alpha X Holding Co., Ltd.

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Dr. Araya Kongsoonthorn  
Director / Chief Executive Officer / Member of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Age 57 years 

• Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee / Chief Executive 
Officer 
(appointed on August 14, 2014)

Shareholding Ratio : 
32.814  
(Self 19.478; Spouse 
13.336) 

Familial Relationship       
among Executives : 
Executive’s Spouse and 
Major Shareholders

•  Doctoral Degree 

•  Master’s Degree

 
•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

:

Doctor of Business Administration 
in Industrial Business and Human 
Resource Development, King Mongkut’s 
University  
Master of Management in General 
Management, College of Management, 
Mahidol University
Bachelor of Accounting in Finance, 
University of the Thai Chamber of 
Commerce
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background 
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP SEC/2014) :                

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Capital Market Academy Program (CMA 24/2017) :              

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• The Board’s Role in Mergers and Acquisitions (BMA1/2022) : 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2014 - Present Managing Director 
Business 
Development

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2014 - Present Director
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations        
(in the past year)

2019 - Present

2016 - Present
2016 - Present
2018 - Present 

2020 - Present
2021 - Present

2022 - Present

2022 - Present
2022 - Present

2022 - Present

Director, WICE Supply Chain Solutions 
Company Limited
Director, WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
Director, WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd. 
Director / Member of the Corporate Risk 
Management Committee / Executive 
Chairman, Euroasia Total Logistics Co., Ltd. 
Director, Euroasia Transport Company 
Limited
Director, Euroasia Integrated Logistics 
Services (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Director, WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Director Euroasia Total Logistics (China) 
Co., Ltd.
Director Euroasia Total Logistics 
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Director, Alpha X Holding Co., Ltd.

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Mr. Chudet Kongsoonthorn  
Director / Managing Director Business 
Development 
Age 58 years 

• Director / Managing Director Business 
Development  
(appointed on August 14, 2014)

Shareholding Ratio  : 
32.814  
(Self 13.336;             
Spouse 19.478)

Familial Relationship      
among Executives : 
Executive’s Husband and 
2nd Major Shareholders

•  Bachelor’s Degree : Bachelor of Commerce in Maritime 
Commerce, Thammasat University
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• SME Advance Course Class 1
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP SEC/2014) :                              

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 10/2017) :                      

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption the Practical Guide (ACPG42/2017) :              

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Advance Risk Management (COSO) : Federation of        

Accounting Professions
• Advance Master of Management (AMM 6/2020)
• HCM Forum “People Strategy is Business Strategy” :             

Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA) 
• CGR Workshop (1/2021) : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

2014 - Present Managing Director 
Corporate Support

Managing Director 
Corporate Support

Important Special Events (in the past year)

2014 - Present 

2016 - Present

2021 - Present

Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 
Member of the Corporate Risk 
Management Committee
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited
Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations            
(in the past year)

2019 - Present Director, WICE Supply Chain Solutions 
Company Limited

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Thitimar Tantikulsuntorn
Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee / Member of the 
Corporate Risk Management Committee / 
Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee / Managing Director Corporate 
Support
Age 56 years 

• Director / Member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee / Managing  
Director Corporate Support  
(appointed on August 14, 2014)

• Member of the Corporate Risk Management 
Committee
(appointed on August 11, 2016)

• Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee  
(appointed on November 11, 2021)

Shareholding Ratio : 
8.722 

Familial Relationship       
among Executives  : 
Executive’s Younger Sister 
and Major Shareholders

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

in Public Relations, Faculty of Journalism, 
Sripatum University
in Computer Science and Economics  
in Finance, Faculty of Business 
Administration, University of the Thai 
Chamber of Commerce
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• Company Secretary Program (CSP 65/2015) :                   

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Strategic CFO in Capital Markets Program (CMP 5/2017) :  

Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)
• Director Accreditation Program (DAP148/2018) :                 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Cash Flow Statement Analysis and Cash Flow Management 

Program 2019 : Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP)
• Analyze the Present and Know the Future through Financial 

Statements Program, 2019 : Federation of Accounting 
Professions (FAP)

• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 20/2022) :          
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2018 - Present Director of 
Accounting and 
Finance 

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2018 - Present 

2021 - Present 

Director, WICE Logistics Public Company 
Limited 
Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee 
WICE Logistics Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations            
(in the past year)

2018 - Present Director / Member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee  
Euroasia Total Logistics Co., Ltd. 

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Busarin Tuanchaem  
Director / Member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee / Director of 
Accounting and Finance 
Age 50 years 

• Director  
(appointed on February 22, 2018)

• Director of Accounting and Finance   
*Responsible for the Supervision of Accounting*

(appointed on January 1, 2018)
• Member of the Corporate Governance 

Committee  
(appointed on November 11, 2021)

Shareholding Ratio : 
0.0003

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree
 
•  Bachelor’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

:

in Finance, Business Administration 
(MBA), Ramkhamhaeng University
in Accounting, Business Administration, 
Ramkhamhaeng University
in Business Economics, Faculty of 
Economics, Sukhothai Thammathirat 
Open University
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• Customs Specialist Course (Class 12/2014) :                 

Customs Academy
• Risk Management Course (Preliminary) :                    

Federation of Accounting Professions
• Risk Management Course (Advance) :                        

Federation of Accounting Professions
• L&D Transformation Labs Scholarship  Program 2021 :       

PacRim and Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA)
• Corporate Sustainability Strategy 2022 :  
• Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

2015 - 2019 Sales and 
Marketing 
Manager

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

2020 - 2021 General Manager 
Customer 
Development

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

2020 - Present Director of 
Customer 
Development

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

2020 - Present Member of the Corporate Risk 
Management Committee WICE Logistics 
Public Company Limited

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations            
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Somjai Purachako  
Member of the Corporate Risk Management 
Committee / Director of Customer 
Development
Age 48 years 

• Member of the Corporate Risk Management 
Committee  
(appointed on August 11, 2020) 

Shareholding Ratio : 
0.0000004

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

in Logistics, Faculty of Business 
Administration, Ramkhamhaeng 
University  
in Marketing, Faculty of Business 
Administration, Bangkok University
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background 
• Logistics & Supply Chain Management 
• Lean Management 
• Safety Office Management Level 
• ISO 14001 
• Quality Training  

2016 - 2021

2021 - Present 

General Manager

Operation 
Director of 
Logistics and 
Supply Chain 
Solution

APL Logistics Svcs 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.
WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations           
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Mr. Prasert  Jirapivatthanakul 
Operation Director of Logistics and Supply 
Chain Solution
Age 58 years 

Shareholding Ratio : 
 0.00072

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Bachelor’s Degree : in Hospitality, Rajamangala University       
of Technology Krungthep
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• PDPA for IT Management
• Safety for Management (OSHE)
• 6 Sigma green belt
• Leading without authorities

2561 - Present 

2561 - Present 

Information 
Technology 
Manager of 
Thailand
General Manager 
of Information 
Technology 
Department

Linfox M Logistics 
(Thailand) Company 
Limited

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations           
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Mr. Amnat Phuangrod  
General Manager of Information Technology 
Department
Age 52 years

Shareholding Ratio : 
0.000003

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

Master of Science in Computer and 
Engineering Management, Assumption 
University 
Bachelor of Engineering in Industrial 
Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• Professional Management Model 2018
• Risk Management Course (Preliminary) 2020 : Federation of 

Accounting Professions
• Risk Management Course (Advance) 2020 : Federation of 

Accounting Professions
• Advance Master of Management (AMM 7/2022)
• Corporate Sustainability Strategy 2022 :  
• Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

2017 - 2020 

2021 - Present 

General Manager

Regional 
Commercial

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited
WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations           
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Saovadee Asavamana 
Regional Commercial
Age 50 years

Shareholding Ratio : 
 0.00041

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree

 
•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

Public and Private Management Program, 
National Institute of Development 
Administration (NIDA)
Faculty of Humanities, Ramkhamhaeng 
University

Annual Report 2022 / (Form 56-1 One Report)244



Business Operation and Performance Corporate Governance Certification of Information AttachmentFinancial Statements

Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications 

Training Background
• Customs Specialist Course (Class 13/2015) : Customs Academy
• Risk Management Course (Preliminary) 2020 : Federation of 

Accounting Professions
• Customs Specialist Certificate Renewal Course No.2/2021 : 

Customs Academy
• Rules of Origin and Regulations within Rules of Origin under       

14 FTA of Thailand (Online), ICC Thailand
• Corporate Sustainability Strategy 2022 :  
• Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

2011 - 2014 

2015 - Present 

Senior Manager

Assistant 
General Manager

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited
WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations            
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms.Suntaree Pulsombut  
Assistant General Manager
Age 47 years

Shareholding Ratio  : 
0.00026

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Master’s Degree : in Marketing, Faculty of Business 
Administration, University of the Thai 
Chamber of Commerce
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Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications

Training Background
• Fundamentals for Corporate Secretaries (3 Days Course)       

Class 1/2016 : Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA)
• Advances for Corporate Secretaries (4 Days Course)            

Class 1/2016 : Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA)
• Thai Intelligent Investors Program (TIIP-17) :                      

Thai Investors Association
• Company Reporting Program (CRP19/2017) :                     

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Collective Action Against Corruption Conference        

(C-Conference 1/2017) : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Company Secretary Program (CSP 84/2017) :                    

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Board Reporting Program (BRP 26/2018) :                         

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Effective Minutes Taking (EMT 42/2018) :                        

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Corruption Risk & Control : Technical Update (CRC 3/2019) : 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Company Secretary Forum (R-CSF 1/2019) :                     

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption : The practical Guide (ACPG 52/2020) :          

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE 18/2021) :          

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 
• CGR Workshop 1/2021 : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• The Board’s Role in Mergers and Acquisitions (BMA1/2022) : 

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• ESG 101 : Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

2015 - Present Company 
Secretary

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations        
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Poramaporn Chamnongsuk
Company Secretary 
(appointed on 11 November 2015)
Age 32 years

Shareholding Ratio :
None

Familial Relationship       
among Executives :
None

•  Bachelor’s Degree : Bachelor of Laws, Faculty of Law, 
Rattana Bundit University
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Positions of Executives and Authorized Persons in WICE Logistics Public Company Limited 

Subsidiary and Associate Companies Year 2022

 List of Executives
As of December 31, 2022
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited WICE X O O O O* O/ O/ O/ // // // // //

Su
bs

id
ia
ry

WICE Supply Chain Solutions Co.,Ltd WSC O O/ O

WICE Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. WICE SG X O O

WICE Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd. WICE HK O O O

WICE Logistics (Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd. WICE M O O

Euroasia Total Logistics Public Company 

Limited
ETL O O O

Euroasia Transport Co., Ltd. ETS O O

Euroasia Integrated Logistics Services 

(M) Sdn Bhd
ETL  M O O

Euroasia Total Logistics (China) Co., Ltd. ETL CN O

Euroasia Total Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ETL SZ O

Alpha X Holding Co.,Ltd. O O

Remark :  

Symbol  X = Chairman of the Board,   O = Director,   * = Chief Executive Officer,   / = Executive Director,   // = Executive

List of executives according to the SEC definition The first 4 persons after the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director are Ms. Somjai Purachako 

and Mr. Prasert Jirapivatthanakul

Attachment 2  Details of the subsidiary company’s directors 

List of Company’s Names 
As of December 31, 2022
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Attachment 3 Detail of Head of the Office of Corporate Audit

Educational Qualifications / Training Background

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years 
(As of 31 December 2022)

Period Position Agency / Company

Educational Qualifications 

Training Background 
• Certified Professional Internal Auditors of Thailand (CPIAT) : 

Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT)
• How to do the Internal Control Assessment : Political Science 

Association of Kasetsart University
• IA S New Value Proposal During and After the Crisis : Institute of 

Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT)
• Analytical Thinking in the Internal Audit Process : Institute of 

Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT)
• Audit Report Writing : Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT)
• Personal Data Protection Act (PDPA) for Internal Auditor) : Institute 

of Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT)
• Anti-Corruption Working Paper : Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• Anti-Corruption : The Practical Guide (ACPG) Thai Institute of 

Directors (IOD)

2018 - Present 

2017 - 2018 

Internal Audit

Internal Audit

WICE Logistics Public 
Company Limited

CP All Public Company 

Limited

Directorship in Listed Companies (in the past year)

- -

Directorship in a Limited Company / Other Organizations 
(in the past year)

- -

Important Special Events (in the past year)

- -

Ms. Nipaphan Dulanee (CPIAT)
Internal Audit
Age 36 years 

Shareholding Ratio : 
None

Familial Relationship      
among Executives : 
None

•  Master’s Degree

•  Bachelor’s Degree

:

:

Master of Accounting, Faculty of 
Accounting and Management, 
Mahasarakham University
Bachelor of Accounting, Faculty 
of Accounting and Management, 
Mahasarakham University
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Assets used in business operations and details of property appraisals

As of December 31, 2022

Asset types 5 storey office building named “WICE Place” with land area of 170.2 square wa. 

Location No. 88/8 Nonsi Road, Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yannawa District, Bangkok 

Descriptions of Assets one 5-storey office building with a total area of 1,881.80 square meters. 

Net Book Value 12,564,279.84 baht 

Appraisal Price 79,120,000 baht 

Appraisal date November 21, 2021

Appraisal Company Agency for Real Estate Affairs Company Limited 

Right/Ownership Ownership 

Encumbrance The encumbrance registered at the land office is in leasing for a period of 20 years.

Asset types 3-storey commercial building, 2 buildings with total land area 42 square meters

Location Building No. 999/30-31, next to the Bangkok-Pattaya City Highway (Motorway 7),   
Surasak Sub-district, Sriracha District, Chonburi Province 

Descriptions of Assets 3-storey commercial building with 2 booths with a total area of 428 square meters. 

Net Book Value 7,257,906.83 baht 

Appraisal Price 8,100,000 baht 

Appraisal date November 24, 2021 

Appraisal Company Agency for Real Estate Affairs Company Limited 

Right/Ownership Ownership 

Encumbrance None

Attachment 4  Assets used in business operations and 
details of property appraisals
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 WICE Logistics Public Company Limited has set a good corporate governance policy and business ethics manual for the 

Board of Directors, executives and employees to use as a guideline for their work, as well as to promote efficiency of the Company 

in running the business. Moreover, the Company has good corporate governance and management, integrity in business operations, 

transparency and auditability. 

 The Company has published a good corporate governance policy manual and the Company’s business ethics, so that the 

Board of Directors, executives and every employees of the Company has been informed and considered as operating principles 

by publishing on the Company’s website. 

 The details regarding to the Good Corporate Governance Policy Manual and business ethics can be found in the link below. 

 

 https://www.wice.co.th/good-corporate-governance-and-code-of-conduct/

Attachment 5  Good Corporate Governance and Business Ethics Manual 
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 can be viewed from the page ……………….

Attachment 6  Audit Committee Report 
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WICE Logistics Public Company Limited.
88/8 Nonsi Road, Chong Nonsi Sub-district, Yannawa District, Bangkok 10120, Thailand

Telephone (662) 681-6181 Fax (662) 681-6173, (662) 295-2108 
info@wice.co.th

www.wice.co.th


